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This document (the "Base Prospectus™) constitutes a base prospectus in respect of the Programme (as defined below). Any Securities (as
defined below) issued on or after the date of this Base Prospectus are issued subject to the provisions herein. This does not affect any Securities
issued before the date of this Base Prospectus. T his Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 8 of Regulation
(EU) 2017/1129 of 14 June 2017 (the "Prospectus Regulation") (as amended).

This Base Prospectus supersedes and replaces the Base Prospectus dated 3 July 2019 and any supplement thereto.

This Base Prospectus received approval on 2 July 2020 from the Authority for the Financial Markets (the "AFM") and will be valid for a
period of one year following the date of its approval by the AFM. The obligation to supplement this Base Prospectus in the event of a
significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy does not apply when this Base Prospectus is no longer valid.

This Base Prospectus has been approved as a base prospectus by the AFM in the Netherlands as competent authority under the Prospectus
Regulation. The AFM only approves this Base Prospectus as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and con sistency
imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Approval by the AFM should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuers or the Guarantor or
of the quality of the Securities. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Securities.

Upon such approval, application may be made for securities issued under the Programme during a period of 12 months from the date of this
Base Prospectus to be listed and/or admitted to trading on Euronext Paris and/or a Regulated Market (as defined below) in another Member
State of the European Economic Area (the "EEA") or in the United Kingdom (the "UK"). Euronext Paris is a regulated market for the purposes
of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 2014/65/EU (each such regulated market being a "Regulated Market"). Reference in this
Base Prospectus to Securities being “listed"” (and all related references) shall mean that such Securities have been listed and admitted to trading
on Euronext Paris or, as the case may be, a Regulated Market (including the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (including
the professional segment of the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange)) or on such other or further stock exchange(s) as the
relevant Issuer may decide. Each Issuer may also issue unlisted Securities. The applicable Final Terms (as defined below) will specify whether
or not Securities are to be listed and admitted to trading and, if so, the relevant Regulated Market or other or further stock exchange(s).

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation only applies to Securities which are to be admitted to trading on a
regulated market in the EEA orin the UK and/or offered to the publicinthe EEA orin the UK other than in circumstances where an exemption
is available under Articles 1(4) and/or 3(2) of the Prospectus Regulation.



Each Issuer may issue Securities for which no prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Regulation ("Exempt Securities")
under this Base Prospectus. The AFM has neither approved nor reviewed information contained in this Base Prospectus in connection with

Exempt Securities.

Under the terms of the Warrant and Certificate Programme (the "Programme™), each of BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.")and BNP
Paribas ("BNPP") (the "Issuers" and each an "Issuer") may from time to timeissue warrants (“Warrants") and certificates (“Certificates"
and, together with the Warrants, the "Securities™) of any kind including, but not limited to, Securities relating to a specified index or a basket
of indices, a specified share (including two or more shares which are attached to each other so that they trade as a single unit ("Stapled
Shares")), global depositary receipt (‘GDR") or American depositary receipt ("ADR") or abasket of shares (including Stapled Shares), ADRs
and/or GDRs, a specified interest in an exchange traded fund, an exchange traded note, an exchange traded commodity or other exchange
traded product (each an "exchange traded instrument") or a basket of interests in exchange traded instruments, a specified debt instrument
or basket of debt instruments, a specified commodity or commodity index, a basket of commodities and/or commodity indices, a specified
currency or abasket of currencies, aspecified futures contract or basket of futures contracts, open end Certificates ("Open End Certificates")
and open end turbo Certificates ("OET Certificates") and any other types of Securities including hybrid Securities whereby the underlying
asset(s) may be any combination of such indices, shares, interests in exchange traded instruments, commaodities, currencies or futures contracts.
Each issue of Securities will be issued on the terms set out herein which are relevant to such Securities under "Terms and Conditions of the
Securities™ in respect of the Securities (the "Conditions" or the "Conditions™). Notice of, inter alia, the specific designation of the Securities,
the aggregate nominal amount or number and type of the Securities, the date of issue of the Securities, the issue price, the underlying asset,
index, fund, reference entity or other item(s) to which the Securities relate, the exercise period or date (in the case of Warrants), the redemption
date (in the case of Certificates), whether they are redeemable in instalments (in the case of Certificates), exercisable (onone or more exercise
dates) (in the case of Certificates) and certain other terms relating to the offering and sale of the Securities will be set out in a final terms
document (the "Final Terms") which may be issued for more than one series of Securities and will be filed with the AFM. It is specified that
interest bearing Securities may only be issued as Exempt Securities.

Securities are governed by French law. Securities issued by BNPP B.V. are unsecured and will be guaranteed by BNP Paribas (in such capacity,
the "Guarantor") pursuant to a garantie, (the "Guarantee"), the form of which is set out herein. Each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP has a right
of substitution as set out herein.

Each issue of Securities will entitle the holder thereof on due exercise (in the case of Warrants) or on the Instalment Date(s) and/or the
Redemption Date (in the case of Certificates) (or, in the case of Multiple Exercise Certificates, each Exercise Settlement Date) either to receive
acash amount (if any) calculated in accordance with the relevant terms or to receive physical delivery of the underlying assets (against payment
of a specified sum in the case of Warrants), all as set forth herein and in the applicable Final Terms.

Other than in relation to the documents which are deemed to be incorporated by reference (see “"Documents Incorporated by Reference"
below), the information on the websites to which this Base Prospectus refers does not form part of this Base Prospectus unless that information
is incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus and has not been scrutinised or approved by the AFM.

Capitalised terms used in this Base Prospectus shall, unless otherwise defined, have the meanings set forth in the Conditions.

Prospective purchasers of Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant Securities and the extent of their
exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the relevant Securities as an investment in the light of their own
circumstances and financial condition. Securities involve a high degree of risk and potential investors should be prepared to sustain
a total loss of the purchase price of their Securities. For more information, see *'Risks'* on pages 12 to 48.

In particular, the Securities and the Guarantee have not been or will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the ""Securities Act'™"), or any other applicable state securities laws and trading in the Securities has not been authorised by
the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the ""CFTC") underthe U.S. Commodity ExchangeAct (the ""CEA™).
Under U.S. law, neither the Securities, nor any rights over them, may at any time be offered, sold, resold, traded or delivered directly
or indirectly in the United States or to, or on behalf of or for the benefit of, U.S. Persons (as defined herein) and any offer, sale, resale,
trading or delivery carried out directly or indirectly in the United States, or to, or on behalf of or for the benefitof, U.S. Persons, will
be null and void. For a description of certain further restrictions on the offering and sale of the Securities and on the distribution of
the Base Prospectus, see the section below entitled " Offering and Sale™.



The Issuers, in accordance with Article 25(1) of the Prospectus Regulation, have requested the AFM to provide the competent authorities in
Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Luxembourg, Norway, Spain and Sweden with a certificate of approval attesting that the Base Prospectus

has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation.

Securities may be issued in dematerialised bearer form (au porteur), recorded in the books of Euroclear France, a subsidiary of Euroclear
Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear France") (acting as central depositary) which will credit the accounts of the Account Holders (as defined in the
Terms and Conditions below including Euroclear Bank SA/NV and the depositary bank for Clearstream Banking, S.A. (“Clearstream,
Luxembourg"). Securities may also be issued in bearer form (au porteur) recorded in the books of (i) Euroclear Netherlands, a subsidiary of
Euroclear Bank SA/NV (“Euroclear Netherlands"), (ii) Euroclear Sweden AB, a subsidiary of Euroclear Bank SA/NV (“"Euroclear
Sweden™), (iii) Sociedad de Gestion de los Sistemas de Registro, Compensacion y Liquidacion de Valores, S.A. Unipersonal (“Iberclear”),
or (iv) Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt ("Clearstream Banking Frankfurt").

BNPP's long-term credit ratings are A+ with a negative outlook (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited ("Standard & Poor's")), Aa3 with a
stable outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd. (“Moody's")), AA- with a "rating watch negative" outlook (Fitch France S.A.S. ("Fitch
France")) and AA (low) with a stable outlook (DBRS Limited ("DBRS")) and BNPP's short-term credit ratings are A-1 (Standard & Poor's),
P-1 (Moody's), F1+ (Fitch France) and R-1 (middle) (DBRS). BNPP B.V.’s long-term credit ratings are A+ with anegative outlook (Standard
& Poor’s) and BNPP B.V.’s short term credit ratings are A-1 (Standard & Poor’s). Each of Standard & Poor's, Moody's, Fitch France and
DBRS is established in the European Union or in the United Kingdom and is registered under the Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended)
(the "CRA Regulation"). As such each of Standard & Poor's, Moody's, Fitch France and DBRS is included in the list of credit rating agencies
published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its website (at https://www.esma.europa.eu/supervision/credit-rating-
agencies/risk) in accordance with the CRA Regulation. Securities issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. A security rating is
not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning
rating agency.
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OVERVIEW OF THIS BASEPROSPECTUS

The following overview does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by,
the remainder of this Base Prospectus and, inrelation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche
of Securities, the applicable Final Terms.

This overview constitutes a general description of this Base Prospectus for the purposes of Article 25(1) of
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 2019/980 of 14 March 2019 (the "Delegated Regulation™). It does
not,and is not intendedto, constitute a summary ofthis Base Prospectus within the meaning of Article 7 of the
Prospectus Regulation orany implementing regulationthereof,

Words and expressions defined in the "Terms and Conditions of the Securities” shall have the same meanings in

this overview.

Issuers

Guarantor

Risk Factors

Description of the Programme
under this Base Prospectus

Certain Restrictions

BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.")
Issuer Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48

BNP Paribas ("BNPP" and, together with its consolidated subsidiaries,
the "Group").

Issuer Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): ROMUW SFPUSMPRO8K5P83
BNP Paribas.

There are certain factors that may affect the relevant Issuer's ability to
fulfil its obligations under Securities issued under this Base Prospectus.
In the case of Securities issued by BNPP B.V., there are also certain
factors that may affect the Guarantor's ability to fulfil its obligations
under the Guarantee. In addition, there are certain factors which are
material for the purpose of assessing the market risks and legal risks
associated with Securities issued under the Programme, risks relating to
the structure of a particular Series of Securities and risks relating to the
Underlying Reference or the disruption and adjustment provisions of a
particular Series of Securities issued under the Programme. All of these
are set out under "Risks". Additional considerations associated with an
investment in the Securities are also set out under "Investment
Considerations”.

Warrant and Certificate Programme

Each issue of Securities denominated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which conmply
with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements fromtime to time (see "Offering and Sale™).



Form of the Securities

Securities

Gowerning Law

Redemption

Payout Methodology

Securities may be issued in dematerialised bearer form (au porteur), or
in materialised bearer form (in the case of Clearstream Frankfurt
Securities, as defined in Condition 2.2).

Securities may be issued as Index Securities, Share Securities, ETI
Securities, Debt Securities, Commodity Securities, Currency Securities
or Futures Securities or open end turbo Certificates which will be
redeemed on a date determined by the Issuer, acting in good faith, subject
as providedherein ("OET Certificates"), orany other or further type of
warrants or certificates including Hybrid Securities where the Underlying
Reference may be any combination of such indices, shares, interests in
exchange traded instruments, debtinstruments (or debt futures or options
contracts), commodities, currencies or futures contracts or other asset
classesortypes.

The Securities and the Guarantee will be governed by French law.

The terms under which Securities may be redeemed or exercised
(including the redemption date or exercise date and related settlerrent
date and theamount payable or deliverable on redemptionor exercise as
well as any provisions relating to early redemption or cancellation) will
be determined by thelssueratthe time of issue of the relevant Securities,
specified in the applicable Final Terms and, ifapplicable, summarised in
the relevant issue specific summary annexed to the applicable Final
Terms. Securities may be cancelled or redeemed early if the performance
of the Issuer's obligations under the Securities has become illegal or by
reason of force majeure or act of state it becomes impossible or
impracticable forthe Issuerto performits obligations under the Securities
and/or any related hedging arrangements. If specified in the applicable
Final Terms, Certificates may be redeemed early at the option of the
Issuerorattheoption of the Holders at the Optional Redemption Armount
specified in the applicable Final Terms. The Optional Redemption
Amount in respect of each Certificate shall be either (i) the Notional
Amount multiplied by the percentage specified in the applicable Final
Terms; or (ii) one of the following Call Payouts: Call Payout 2200/1,
Issuer Call Option with respect to the OET Certificates or Call Payout
2300 (in the case of early redemption at the option ofthe Issuer) orone
ofthe following Put Payouts: Put Payout2200/1, Put Payout 2210 or Put
Payout 2300 (in the case of early redemption at the option of the
Holders).

In the caseof Securities linked to an Underlying Reference, the Securities
may also be cancelled or redeemed early following the occurrence of
certain disruption, adjustment, extraordinary or otherevents.

Unless previously redeemed, or cancelled in respect of Warrants, or
purchased and cancelled, each Security entitles its holder to receive from
the relevant Issuer:

() on final redemption or exercise, the Cash Settlement Amount
(see Conditions 18 (Definitions (Warrants)) and 25 (Definitions
(Certificates)), and Payout Conditions 1);



Final Payouts

(i) if Automatic Early Redemption or Automatic Early Expiration
is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and an
Automatic Early Redemption Event or an Automatic Early
BExpiration Event occurs, the Automatic Early Redemption
Amount or Automatic Early Bxpiration Payout Amount, as
applicable, (see Conditions 22.8 (Automatic Early Expiration
(Warrants)) and 29.6(b) (Automatic Early Redemption
(Certificates));

(iii) if an Issuer Call Option or Holder Put Option is specified as
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Optional
Redemption Amount (see Conditions 29.2 (Issuer Call Option)
and 29.3 (Holder Put Option); and/or

(iv) in the case of Physical Delivery Securities, the Entitlement (see
Conditions 18 (Definitions (Warrants)) and 25 (Definitions)
(Certificates)).

The terms of a Series of Securities are comprised of (i) the Conditions,
(ii) the Annexrelevant to therelevant Underlying References and (iii) if
selected in the applicable Final Terms, the Payout(s) selected from Annex
1 to the Conditions (the " Payout Conditions") specified in theapplicable
Final Terms and the related variables specified in the applicable Final
Terms (including the relevant valuation provisions) for such Payout(s)
(as selected fromthe Payout Conditions).

Investors must review the Conditions, the Annex relevant to the
relevant Underlying Reference and the Payout Conditions, together
with the applicable Final Terms to ascertain the terms and
conditions applicable to the Securities.

Exchange Traded Securities (ETS) Final Payouts
@] Investment Products:

(@  Yield Enhancement (Payout 1250/4): fixed term
products which on redemption have a fixed return if
certain conditions (including a cap, knock-out and/or
automatic early redemption features) relating to the
performance ofthe Underlying Referenceare met. There
may be total, partial or no capital protection.

(b)  Participation (Payout 1320/1): fixed term products for
which the return is linked to the performance of the
Underlying Reference. The calculation of the retum may
be based on various mechanisms (including knock-in or
knock-out features). There may be total, partial or no
capital protection.

) Leverage Products:

(@  Leverage (Payouts 2100, 2200/1, 2200/2, 2210, 2230):
fixed term oropen ended products forwhich theretumis



Automatic Early Redemption

linked, either directly or indirectly to the linear or non-
linear performance of the Underlying Reference. The
calculation of the return may be based on various
mechanisms (including knock-out features). There is no
capital protection.

(b)  Constant Leverage (Payout 2300): fixed term or open
ended products which have a return calculated by
reference to a fixed daily leverage on the positive or
negative performance of the Underlying Reference.
There is no capital protection.

StructuredProducts Securities (SPS) Final Payouts

(@  Reverse Convertible Securities (Payout 3000): fixed
term products which have a return linked to both the
performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and a
knock-in level. There is no capital protection and these
products pay coupons.

(b)  Vanilla Call Securities (Payout 3001): fixed term
products which have a return linked to the performance
of the Underlying Reference(s). The return calculation
can be based on various mechanisms (including knock-
in or knock-out features). There may be total, partial or
no capital protection.

If an Automatic Early Redemption Event (in the case of Certificates) or
an Automatic Early Expiration Event (in the case of Warrants), in each
case as specified in theapplicable Final Terms, occurs, the Securities will
be (i) in the case of Certificates, redeemed early at the Automatic Early
Redemption Amounton the Automatic Early Redemption Date or (ii) in
the caseof Warrants, cancelled atanamountequal to the Automatic Early
Bxpiration Payout Amount onthe Automatic Early Expiration Date.

In the case of Certificates, the Automatic Early Redemption Amount will
be equal to the Automatic Early Redemption Payout specified in the
applicable Final Terms or, if not set out,an amount equal to the product
of (i) the Notional Amount in respect of such Certificate and (ii) the
relevant AER Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms relating to the
Automatic Early Redemption Date.

In the case of Warrants, the Automatic Early Expiration Payout Amount
will be equalto the Automatic Early Redemption Payout specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

Automatic Early Redemption Payouts
Automatic Early Redemption Payout2200/1
Automatic Early Redemption Payout 2200/2

Automatic Early Redemption Payout2210/1



Negative Pledge
Bvent of Default

Status

Guarantee

Ratings

Listing and Admission
Trading

to

Automatic Early Redemption Payout2210/2

Automatic Early Redemption Payout 2230

SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payout

The terms of the Securities willnot containa negative pledge provision.
The terms of the Securities willnot containevents of default.

The Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the
Issuer and rank pari passu among themselves. In relation to Securities
issued by BNPP, the term "unsubordinated obligations" refers to senior
preferred obligations which fall or are expressed to fall within the
category of obligations described in Article L.613-30-3-1-3°. of the
French Codemonétaire et financier.

The Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by BNP Paribas ("BNPP" or the "Guarantor")
pursuantto a French law garantieexecuted by BNPP on oraround 2 July
2020 (the "Guarantee").

In the event of a bail-in of BNPP but not BNPP B.V., the obligations
and/oramounts owed by BNPP underthe guarantee shall be reduced to
reflect any such modification orreductionapplied to liabilities of BNPP
resulting from the application of a bail-in of BNPP by any relevant
regulator (including in a situation where the Guarantee itself is not the
subject of suchbail-in).

The obligations under the Guarantee are senior preferred obligations
(within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code
monétaire etfinancier) and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank
pari passu with all its other present and future senior preferred and
unsecured obligations subject to such exceptions as may from time to
time be mandatory under French law.

BNPP B.V.'s long termcredit rating is A+with a negative outlook (S&P
Global Ratings Europe Limited) and BNPP B.V.'s short termcredit rating
is A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited).

BNPP's long-term credit ratings are A+ with a negative outlook (S&P
Global Ratings Europe Limited), Aa3 with a stable outlook (Moody's
Investors Service Ltd.), AA- with a "rating watch negative™ outlook
(Fitch France S.A.S.) and AA (low) with a stable outlook (DBRS
Limited) and BNPP's short-term credit ratings are A-1 (S&P Global
Ratings Europe Limited), P-1 (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.), F1+
(Fitch France S.A.S.)and R-1 (middle) (DBRS Limited).

Securities issued under the Programme may be admitted to trading on
Euronext Paris, Euronext Access Paris (including the XMLI Segment),
Euronext Amsterdam, Euronext Brussels, the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange (including the professional segmentofthe regulated market of



Selling Restrictions

Exempt Securities

Taxation

the Luxembourg Stock Exchange), Stock exchange of
Madrid/Barcelona/Valencia/Bilbao, NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd., the
Nordic Growth Market, NASDAQ OMX Stockholm, the Nordic
Derivatives Exchange Stockholm or such other regulated market,
organised market, third country market, SME market or other trading
system (such as the Nordic MTF or the Boerse Stuttgart cats GmbH)
specified in the applicable Final Terms, or may be issued on an unlisted
basis.

The Securities will be freely transferable, subject to the offering and
selling restrictions in the United States, the European Economic Area,
Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Luxembourg, the Netherlands,
Norway, Spain and Sweden and under the Prospectus Regulation and the
laws of any jurisdiction in which the relevant Securities are offered or
sold.

The requirementto publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation
only applies to Securities which are to be admitted to trading on a
regulated market in the European Economic Area or in the United
Kingdomand/or offered to the public in the European Economic Area or
in the United Kingdomotherthanin circumstances where an exemption
is available under Article 1(4) and/or Article 3(2) of the Prospectus
Regulation. Under this Base Prospectus, the Issuers may issue Exempt
Securities (being Securities for which no prospectus is required to be
published under the Prospectus Regulation). In the case of Exempt
Securities, any terms and conditions not contained in this Base
Prospectus whichare applicable to such Exempt Securities will be set out
in a pricing supplement document (the "Pricing Supplement"). The
Agency Agreement, as amended or supplemented fromtime to time (as
defined in the Conditions), sets out the form of Pricing Supplement for
BExempt Securities which are Securities. For the purposes of any Exempt
Securities, references in the Conditions to "Final Terms" shall be deemed
toinclude areference to "Pricing Supplement”.

The Holder must pay all taxes, duties and/or expenses arising from the
disposal, exercise and settlement or redemption of the Securities and/or
the delivery ortransfer ofthe Entitlement.

The relevantIssuerandthe Guarantor (ifany) shall deduct fromamounts
payable or assets deliverable to Holders certain taxes and expenses not
previously deducted fromamounts paid or assets delivered to Holders, as
the Calculation Agent determines are attributable to the Securities.

Payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other laws and
regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, (ii) any
withholdingor deductionrequired pursuantto an agreement described in
Section 1471(b) ofthe U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the ""Code™)
or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the
Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official
interpretations thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental
approachtheretoand (iii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant
to Section 871(m) of the Code.
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In addition, ifthe Securities are deemedto be Specified Securities for the
purpose of Section 871(m) of the Code, in determining the amount of
withholding or deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m) of the
Code imposed with respect to any amounts to be paid on the Securities,
the Issuer shall be entitled to withhold on any "dividend equivalent”
payment (as defined for purposes of Section 871(m) of the Code) at a rate
of 30 percent.

Payments onthe Securities that reference U.S. securities or an indexthat
includes U.S. securities may be calculated by reference to the net
dividends payable on such U.S. securities or net total returns of the U.S.
components of such index In calculating the relevant payment amount
the Issuer has withheld and the holder will be deemed to have received
30 percent. ofany"dividend equivalent” payments (as defined in Section
871(m) of the Code) in respect of the relevant U.S. securities or U.S.
dividend paying index components, as the case may be. The Issuer will
not pay any additional amounts to the holder on account of the Section
871(m) amount deemed withheld.
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RISKS

Prospective purchasers ofthe Securitiesoffered hereby should consider carefully, among other things andin light
of theirfinancial circumstances and investmentobjectives, all ofthe informationin this Base Prospectus and, in
particular, the risks set forth below (which each Issuer, in its reasonable opinion, believes represents or may
representthe risks known to it which may affect such Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under the Securities)
in makinganinvestmentdecision. Investors may losethevalue oftheir entire investmentin certain circumstances.

Factors which the Issuers believe are specific to the Issuers and/or the Securities and material for an informed
investmentdecisionwith respectto investing in Securities issued under the Programme arealso described below.

The Issuers believethatthefactors described below representthe principal inherentrisksin investing in Securities
issued under the Programme, but the inability ofthe Issuersto pay interest, principal or other amountsonor in
connectionwithany Securities may occur for other reasons. Prospective investors should also read the detailed
informationsetout elsewhereinthis Base Prospectus (including any documents incorporated by reference herein)
and reachtheir ownviews prior to making any investmentdecision.

In each sub-categorybelowthe Issuers setout firstthe mostmaterial risks, intheirassessment, taking into account
the expected magnitude of their negative impactand the probability oftheir occurrence. Terms used in this section
and not otherwise defined havethe meanings given tothemin the relevant Conditions.

Risks Relating toBNPP and its Industry

See "Risks Factors" under Chapter5on pages 276 to 288 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English), pages 3and 4 ofthe First Amendmentto the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
and pages 76to 79 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
(each as defined below), each of which is incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus and which discloses
all material risks relating to BNPP's ability to fulfil its obligations underthe Securities.

Risk Factors

The main categories of risk inherent in BNPP’s business as further described in the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English), the First Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document
(in English) and the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English) are
presented below. They may be measured through risk-weighted assets or other quantitative or qualitative indicia,
to the extent risk-weighted assets are not relevant (forexample, for liquidity and funding risk).

Risk-weighted assets in billions ofeuros 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Credit risk 524 504
Counterparty risk 30 27
Securitization risk in the banking book 11 7

Operationalrisk 69 73
Market risk 19 20
Otherrisks* 16 17
Total risk-weightedassets under Basel 3 | | 669 | | 647

* Risks related to deferred taxes and certain investments in credit or financial institutions.
More generally, the risks to which BNPP is exposed may arise froma number of factors related, among others, to

changes in its macroeconomic or regulatory environment or factors related to the implementation of its strategy
and its business.
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The risks specific to BNPP’s business are presented below under 7 main categories: credit risk, counterparty risk
and securitization risk in the banking portfolio; operational risk; market risk; liquidity and funding risk; risks
related to the macroeconomic and market environment; regulatory risks; and risks related to BNPP’s growth in its
current environment.

BNPP’s risk management policies have been taken into account in assessing the materiality of these risks; in
particular, risk-weighted assets factor in risk mitigation elements to the extent eligible in accordance with
applicable banking regulations.

1.

11

Credit risk, counterparty risk andsecuritization risk in the banking portfolio

BNPP’s credit risk is defined as the probability of a borrower or counterparty defaulting on its
obligationsto BNPP. Probability of default along with the recovery rate ofthe loan or debtin the event
of default are essential elements in assessing credit quality. In accordance with European Banking
Authority recommendations, this category of risk also includes risks on equity investments, as well as
those related to insurance activities. As of 31 December 2019, BNPP’s credit risk exposure broke down
as follows: corporates (44%), retail customers (29%), central governments and central banks (19%),
credit institutions (5%), other assets at risk (2%) and equities (1%). As of 31 December 2019, 30% of
BNPP’s credit exposure was comprised of exposures in France, 13% in Belgiumand Luxembourg, 10%
in Italy, 21% in other European countries, 14% in North America, 6% in Asiaand 6% in the rest of the
world. BNPP’s risk-weighted assets subjectto this type of riskamounted to€524 billion at 31 December
2019, or 78% ofthe total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP’s counterparty risk arises from its credit risk in the specific context of market transactions,
investments, and/or settlements. BNPP’s exposure to counterparty risk, excluding Credit Valuation
Adjustment ("CVA") riskas of 31 December 2019, was comprised of: 41% in the corporatesector, 23%
in governments and central banks, 12% in credit institutions and investment firms, and 24% in clearing
houses. By product, BNPP’s exposure, excluding CVA risk, as of 31 December 2019 was comprised of:
54% in over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives, 30% in repurchase transactions and securities
lending/borrowing, 14% in listed derivatives and 2% in contributions to the clearing houses’ default
funds. The amountofthis risk varies over time, depending onfluctuations in market parameters affecting
the potential future value ofthe covered transactions. In addition, CVA risk measures the risk of losses
related to CVA volatility resulting fromfluctuations in credit spreads associated with the counterparties
in respect of which BNPP is subjectto risk. Therisk-weighted assets subjecttothis type of risk amounted
to €30 billion at 31 December 2019, representing 4% of the BNP Paribas Group’s total risk-weighted
assets.

Securitization risk in the banking portfolio: Securitization is a transaction or arrangement by which
the credit risk associated with a liability or set of liabilities is subdivided into tranches. Any commitrment
made by BNPP undera securitization structure (including derivatives and liquidity lines) is considered
to be a securitization. The bulk of BNPP’s commitments are in the prudential banking portfolio.
Securitized exposures are essentially those generated by BNPP. The securitization positions held or
acquired by BNPP may also be categorized by its role: ofthe positions as at 31 December 2019, BNPP
was originator of49%, was sponsor of 36% and was investor of 15%. The risk-weighted assets subject
to this type of risk amounted to €11 billion at 31 December 2019 for BNPP, or 2% of the total risk-
weighted assets of BNPP.

A substantial increase in new provisions or a shortfall in the level of previously recorded provisions
exposed to credit risk and counterparty risk could adversely affect BNPP’s results of operations and
financial condition.

Credit risk and counterparty risk impact BNPP’s consolidated financial statements when a customer or
counterparty is unable tohonour its obligations and whenthe book value of these obligations in BNPP’s
records is positive. The customer or counterparty may be a bank, a financial institution, an industrial or
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commercial enterprise, agovernmentoragovernmententity, an investment fund, ora natural person. If
the level of customer or counterparty defaults increases compared to recenthistorically low levels, BNPP
may have to record significant charges and provisions for possible unrecoverable or doubtful debts,
affecting its profitability.

As a result, in connection with its lending activities, BNPP regularly establishes provisions for loan
losses, which are recorded on its income statement in the line item Cost of Risk. These provisions
amounted to €3.203 billion at 31 December 2019, representing 39 basis points of outstanding custoner
loans (compared with 35basis points at 31 December 2018).

BNPP’s overall level of provisions is based on its assessment of prior loss experience, the volune and
type of lending being conducted, industry standards, past due loans, economic conditions and other
factors related to the recoverability of various loans or statistical analysis based on scenarios applicable
toassetclasses.

Although BNPP seeks toestablishan appropriate level of provisions, its lending businesses may haveto
increase their provisions for loan losses substantially in the future as a result of deteriorating economic
conditions or other causes. Any significantincrease in provisions for loan losses ora significant change
in BNPP’s estimate of the risk of loss inherent in its portfolio of non impaired loans, as well as the
occurrence of loan losses in excess of the related provisions, could have a material adverse effect on
BNPP’s results of operations and financial condition.

As at 31 December 2019, the ratio of doubtful loans to total loans outstanding was 2.2% and the coverage
ratio of these loans (net of guarantees received) by provisions was 74%, compared to 2.6% and 76.2%,
respectively, as at 31 December 2018.

While BNPP seeks to reduce its exposure to credit risk and counterparty risk by using risk mitigation
techniques such as collateralization, obtaining guarantees, entering into credit derivatives and entering
into netting agreements, it cannot be certain that these techniques will be effective to offset losses
resulting from counterparty defaults that are covered by these techniques. Moreover, BNPP is ako
exposed to therisk of default by the party providing the credit risk coverage (suchas a counterparty in a
derivative oraloan insurance contract) orto the risk of loss of value ofany collateral. In addition, only
aportion of BNPP’s overall credit risk and counterparty risk is covered by these techniques. Accordingly,
BNPP has very significantexposure to theserisks.

The soundness and conductofother financial institutions and market participants could adversely affect
BNPP.

BNPP’s ability to engage in financing, investment and derivative transactions could be adversely affected
by the soundness of other financial institutions or market participants. Financial institutions are
interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, funding or other relationships. As a resul,
defaults of one or more states or financial institutions, or even rumours or questions about, one or more
financial services institutions, or the financial services industry generally, may lead to market wide
liquidity problems and could leadto further losses or defaults. BNPP has exposure to many counterparties
in the financial industry, directly and indirectly, including clearing houses, brokers and dealers,
commercial banks, investment banks, mutual and alternative investment funds, and other institutional
clients with which it regularly executes transactions. BNPP may also be exposed to risks related to the
increasinginvolvementin the financial sector of players and theintroduction of new types of transactions
subject to little or no regulation (e.g., unregulated funds, trading venues or crowdfunding platforrrs).
Credit and counterparty risks could be exacerbated if the collateral held by BNPP cannot be realized or
is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the fullamount of the loan or derivative exposure due to
BNPP orin case ofa failure of a significant financial market participant such as a central counterparty.
It is worth noting in this respect that regulatory changes requiring mandatory clearing of standardized
OTC derivatives through central counterparties haveresultedin an increase of the exposure of financial
market participants to such central counterparties.
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Forreference, counterparty risk exposure related to financial institutions was €20 billion at 31 December
2019, or 12% of BNPP’s total counterparty risk exposure, and counterparty risk exposure related to
clearing houses was €40 billion, or 24% of BNPP’s total counterparty risk exposure.

In addition, fraud or misconduct by financial market participants can have a material adverse effect on
financial institutions due in particular to the interrelated nature of the financial markets. An example is
the fraud perpetrated by Bernard Madoff that came to light in 2008, as a result of which numerous
financial institutions globally, including BNPP, announced losses or exposure to losses in substantial
amounts. BNPP remains the subject of various claims in connection with the Madoff matter; see Note
8.b "Contingent liabilities: legal proceedingsand arbitration™ to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English).

Losses resulting fromthe risks summarized above could materially and adversely affect BNPP’s results
of operations.

Operational Risk

BNPP’s operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from failed or inadequate internal processes
(particularly those involving personnel and informationsystems) or external events, whether deliberate,
accidental or natural (floods, fires, earthquakes, terrorist attacks, etc.). BNPP’s operational risks cover
fraud, human resources risks, legal and reputational risks, non-compliance risks, tax risks, information
systems risks, risk of providing inadequate financial services (conductrisk), risk of failure of operational
processes including credit processes, or from the use of a model (model risk), as well as potential
financial consequences related to reputation risk management. From 2011-2019, BNPP’s main type of
incidentsinvolving operational risk were in " Clients, products and business practices”, which represents
63% ofthe total financial impact, largely as a result of BNPP’s agreementwith US authorities regarding
its review of certain dollar transactions concluded in June 2014. The next largest category of incident for
BNPP in operational risk was in "Execution, delivery and process management™, accounting for 17% of
the financialimpact. Between 2011 and 2019, othertypes ofriskin operational risk consist of external
fraud (13%), business disruptionand systems failure (3%), employment practices and workplace safety
(2%), internal fraud (1%) and damage to physical assets (1%).

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €69 billion at 31 December 2019, or
10% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP’s risk management policies, proceduresand methods may leave it exposed to unidentified or
unanticipated risks, which could lead to material losses.

BNPP has devoted significant resources to developing its risk management policies, procedures and
assessment methods and intends to continue todo soin the future. Nonetheless, BNPP’s risk managerent
techniques and strategies may not be fully effective in mitigating its risk exposure in all economic and
market environments oragainstall types ofrisk, particularly risks that BNPP may have failed to identify
or anticipate. BNPP’s ability to assess the creditworthiness ofits customers or to estimate the values of
its assets may be impaired if, as a result of market turmoil such as that experienced in recent years, the
models and approaches it uses become less predictive of future behaviour, valuations, assumptions or
estimates. Some of BNPP’s qualitative tools and metrics for managing risk are based on its use of
observed historical market behaviour. BNPP applies statistical and other tools to these observations to
arrive at quantifications of its risk exposures. The process BNPP uses to estimate losses inherent in its
credit exposure or estimate the value of certain assets requires difficult, subjective, and complex
judgments, including forecasts of economic conditions and how these economic predictions might impair
the ability of its borrowers to repaytheir loans orimpact the value of assets, which may, during periods
of market disruption, be incapable of accurate estimationand, in turn, impactthe reliability of the process.
These tools and metrics may fail to predict future risk exposures, e.g., if BNPP does not anticipate or
correctly evaluate certain factors in its statistical models, or upon the occurrence of an event deemed
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extremely unlikely by thetools and metrics. This would limit BNPP’s ability to manage its risks. BNPP’s
losses could therefore be significantly greater than the historical measures indicate. In addition, BNPP’s
quantified modelling does not take all risks into account. Its more qualitative approach to managing
certain risks could proveinsufficient, exposing it to material unanticipated losses.

Aninterruption in or a breach of BNPP’s information systems may cause substantial losses of client or
customer information, damage to BNPP’s reputationand result in financial losses.

As with most other banks, BNPP relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct
its business. This dependency has increased with the spread of mobile and online banking services, and
the development of cloud computing. Any failure or interruption or breach in security of these systens
could result in failures or interruptions in BNPP’s customer relationship management, general ledger,
deposit, servicing and/or loan organization systems or could cause BNPP to incur significant costs in
recovering and verifying lost data. BNPP cannot provide assurances that such failures or interruptions
will not occuror, if they do occur, thatthey willbe adequately addressed.

In addition, BNPP is subject to cybersecurity risk, or risk caused by a malicious and/or fraudulent act,
committed virtually, with the intention of manipulating information (confidential data, bank/insurance,
technical or strategic), processes and users, in order to cause material losses to BNPP’s subsidiaries,
employees, partners and clients. An increasing number of companies (including financial institutions)
have in recent years experienced intrusion attempts or even breaches of their information technology
security, some of which have involved sophisticated and highly targeted attacks on their computer
networks. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, steal
confidential data or sabotage information systems have become more sophisticated, change frequently
and often are not recognized until launched against atarget, BNPP and its third party service providers
may be unable to anticipate these techniques orto implement in a timely manner effective and efficient
countermeasures.

Any failures of or interruptions in BNPP’s information systems or those of its providers and any
subsequent disclosure of confidential information related to any client, counterparty or employee of
BNPP (or any other person) orany intrusion or attack against theits communicationsystemcould cause
significant losses and have an adverse effect on BNPP’s reputation, financial condition and results of
operations.

Moreover, BNPP is exposed to the risk of operational failure or interruption of a clearing agent, foreign
markets, clearing houses, custodian banks or any other financial intermediary or external service provider
used by BNPP to execute or facilitate financial transactions. Due toits increased interaction with clients,
BNPP is also exposed to the risk of operational malfunction of the latter’s information systems. BNPP’s
communications and data systems andthose of its clients, service providers and counterparties may alkso
be subject to malfunctions or interruptions as a result of cyber-crime or cyber-terrorism. BNPP cannot
guarantee that these malfunctions or interruptions in its own systems or those of other parties will not
occur or that in the event of a cyberattack, these malfunctions or interruptions will be adequately
resolved. These operational malfunctions or interruptions accounted for an average of 3% of operational
risk losses overthe 2011-2019 period.

Reputational risk couldweigh onBNPP’s financial strengthand diminish the confidence of clients and
counterpartiesin it.

Considering the highly competitive environment in the financial services industry, a reputation for
financial strength and integrity is critical to BNPP’s ability to attract and retain customers. BNPP’s
reputation could be harmed if it cannotadequately promote and market its products and services. BNPP’s
reputation couldalso be damagedif, as it increases its clientbaseandthe scale of its businesses, BNPP’s
comprehensive procedures and controls dealing with conflicts of interest fail, orappear to fail, to address
themproperly. At the same time, BNPP’s reputation could be damaged by employee misconduct, fraud
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or misconduct by financialindustry participants to which BNPP is exposed, adecline in, a restatement
of, or corrections to, its financial results, as well as any adverse legal or regulatory action, such as the
settlement BNPP entered intowith the U.S. authorities in 2014 for violations of U.S. laws and regulations
regarding economic sanctions. The loss of business that could result fromdamage to BNPP’s reputation
could have an adverse effecton its results of operations and financial position.

Marketrisk

BNPP’s market risk is the risk of loss of value caused by an unfavourable trend in prices or market
parameters. The parameters affecting BNPP’s market risk include, but are not limited to, exchange rates,
prices of securities and commodities (whetherthe price is directly quoted or obtained by reference to a
comparable asset), the price of derivatives on an established market and all benchmarks that can be
derived frommarket quotations suchas interestrates, credit spreads, volatility orimplicit correlations or
othersimilar parameters.

BNPP is exposed to market risk mainly throughtrading activities carried out by the business lines of its
Corporate & Institutional Banking (*CIB") operating division, primarily in Global Markets, which
represented 12% of BNPP’s revenuein 2019. BNPP’s trading activities are directly linked to economic
relations with clients ofthese business lines, or indirectly as part of its market making activity.

In addition, the market risk relating to BNPP’s banking activities covers its interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risk in connection with its activities as a banking intermediary. The "operating” foreign
exchange risk exposure relates tonet earnings generated by activities conducted in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity concerned. The "structural” foreign exchange risk position of an
entity relates to investments in currencies other than the functional currency. In measuring interest rate
risk, BNPP defines the concepts of standard rateriskand structural rate risk as the following: the standard
rate risk corresponds to the general case, namely when it is possible to define the most appropriate
hedgingstrategy fora given transaction, and the structural rate risk is the interest rate risk for equity and
non-interest-bearing current accounts.

BNP Paribas’ market risk based onits activities is measured by Value at Risk ("\VVaR"), or the maximum
potential loss over oneyear, at a 99.9% confidence level to calculate regulatory capital requirements, and
various other market indicators (stressed VaR, Incremental Risk Charge, Comprehensive Risk Measure
for credit correlation portfolio) as well as by stress tests and sensitivity analysis compared with market
limits.

The risk-weighted assets subjecttothis type of riskamounted to €19 billion at 31 December 2019, or 3%
of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP may incur significantlosses on its trading and investmentactivities dueto market fluctuations and
volatility.

BNPP maintains tradingand investment positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets
and in unlisted securities, real estateand other asset classes, including through derivative contracts. These
positions could be adversely affected by extreme volatility in these markets, i.e., the degree to which
prices fluctuate over a particular period in a particular market, regardless of market levels. Moreover,
volatility trends thatprove substantially different from BNPP’s expectations may lead to losses relating
to a broad range of other products that BNPP uses, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options
and structured products.

To the extent that BNPP owns assets, or has net long positions, in any of those markets, a market
downturncould result in losses froma decline in the value of its positions. Conversely, to the extent that
BNPP has sold assets that it does not own, orhas net short positions in any of those markets, a market
upturn could, in spite of the existing limitation of risks and control systems, expose BNPP to potentially
substantial losses as it attempts to cover its net short positions by acquiring assets in a rising market.

17



3.2

33

BNPP may from time to time hold a long position in one asset and a short position in another, in order
to hedge transactions with clients and/or from which it expects to gain based on changes in the relative
value of the two assets. If, however, therelative value of the two assets changes in a direction or manner
that BNPP did not anticipate or against which it is not hedged, it might realize a loss on those paired
positions. Such losses, if significant, could adversely affect BNPP’s results and financial condition. In
addition, BNPP’s hedging strategies may not be suitable for certain market conditions.

If any ofthe variety of instruments and strategies that BNPP uses to hedge its exposure to various types
of risk in its businesses is not effective, the Group may incur losses. Many of its strategies are based on
historical trading patterns and correlations. For example, if BNPP holds a long position in an asset, it
may hedge that position by taking a short position in another asset where the short position has
historically moved in adirection that would offseta change in the value of the long position. However,
the hedge may only be partial, orthe strategies used may not protect against all future risks or may not
be fully effective in mitigating BNPP’s risk exposure in all market environments oragainst all types of
risk in the future. Unexpected market developments may also reduce the effectiveness of BNPP’s
hedging strategies, as occurred forexample in late 2018 with BNPP’s index derivatives hedging in the
United States. In addition, themanner in which gains and losses resulting fromcertain ineffective hedges
are recorded may result in additional volatility in BNPP’s reported earnings.

BNPP usesaVaR modelto quantify its exposureto potential losses frommarket risks, andalso perfonrs
stress testing with a view to quantifying its potential exposure in extreme scenarios. However, these
techniques rely on statistical methodologies based on historical observations, which may turn out to be
unreliable predictors of future market conditions. Accordingly, BNPP’s exposure to market risk in
extreme scenarios could be greater thanthe exposures predicted by its quantification techniques.

The Global Markets business line in particular had €18 billion in risk-weighted assets subjectto market
risk at 31 December 2019, or 3% ofthe total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP may generate lower revenues from commission and fee based businesses during market
downturns.

Commissions represented 21% of BNPP’s total revenues in 2019. Financial and economic conditions
affect the number and size of transactions for which BNPP provides securities underwriting, financial
advisory and other investment banking services. These revenues, which include fees fromthese services,
are directly related to the numberand size of the transactions in which BNPP participates and can thus
be significantly affected by economic or financial changes that are unfavourable to its Investment
Banking business and clients. In addition, because the fees that BNPP charges for managingits clients’
portfolios are in many cases based on the value or performance of those portfolios, a market downtum
that reduces the value of its clients’ portfolios or increases the amount of withdrawals would reduce the
revenues it receives from its asset management, equity derivatives and private banking businesses.
Independently of market changes, below market performance by BNPP’s mutual funds may result in
increased withdrawals and reduced inflows, which would reduce the revenues BNPP receives from its
assetmanagementbusiness.

Adjustments to the carryingvalue of BNPP’s securities and derivatives portfolios and BNPP’s own debt
could have anadverseeffect on its netincome and shareholders’ equity.

The carrying valueof BNPP’s securities and derivatives portfolios and certain other assets, as well as its
own debt, in its balance sheet is adjusted as of each financial statement date. As at 31 December 2019,
on the assets side of BNPP’s balance sheet, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes and financial assets at fair value through
shareholders’ equity amounted to €576.1 billion, €12.4 billion and €52.7 billion respectively. In the
liabilities column, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes amounted to €582.2 billion and €14.1 billion, respectively, at 31
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December 2019. Most of the adjustments are made onthebasis of changes in fair value of BNPP’s assets
ordebt duringan accounting period, with the changes recorded either in the income statement or directly
in shareholders’ equity. Changes that are recorded in the income statement, to the extent not offset by
opposite changes in the value of other assets, affect BNPP’s consolidated revenues and, as a resul, its
net income. All fair value adjustments affect shareholders’ equity and, as a result, BNPP’s capital
adequacyratios. The fact that fair value adjustments are recorded in one accounting period does not mean
that further adjustments willnot be needed in subsequentperiods.

Limitations on Exercise of Warrants

If so indicated in the Final Terms, the Issuer will have the option to limit the number of Warrants
exercisable on any date (other than the final exercise date) to the maximum number specified in the Final
Terms and, in conjunction with such limitation, to limit the number of Warrants exercisable by any
person or group of persons (whether or not acting in concert) on such date. In the event that the total
number of Warrants being exercised on any date (other than the final exercise date) exceeds such
maximum number and the Issuer elects to limit the number of Warrants exercisable on such date, this
could havean adverse impact ona Holder, who may notbe able to exercise onsuch dateall the Wamants
that such Holder desires to exercise. In any such case, the number of Warrants to be exercised on such
date will be reduced until the total number of Warrants exercised on such date no longer exceeds such
maximum, such Warrants being selected at the discretion of the Issuer. The Warrants tendered for
exercise but not exercised on such date will be automatically exercised on the next date on which
Warrants may be exercised, subject to the same daily maximum limitation and delayed exercise
provisions, which could have an adverse impact on the Holders.

Minimum Exercise AmountofWarrants

If so indicated in the Final Terms, a Holder must tender or, in the case of automatic exercise, hold, a
specified number of Warrants at any one time in order to exercise. This could have a negative impact on
Holders as, Holders with fewer than the specified minimum number of Warrants will either have to sell
their Warrants or purchase additional Warrants, incurring transaction costs in each case, in order torealise
their investment. Furthermore, Holders of such Warrants incur the risk that there may be differences
between the trading price of such Warrants and the Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Cash Settled
Warrants) orthe amountof the Entitlement (in the case of Physical Delivery Warrants) of such Warrants.

Liquidity and funding risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that BNPP will not be able to honour its commitments or unwind or offset a
positiondueto market conditions or specific factors within a specified period of time and at a reasonable
cost. It reflects therisk of notbeing able to cope with net cash outflows, including collateral requirements,
overshort-termto long-termhorizons. The Group’s specific risk can be assessed through its short-term
liquidity ratio (" Liquidity Coverage Ratio" or"LCR"), which analyses the hedging of net cash outflows
during a thirty-day stress period. The monthly average in 2019 of the Group’s LCR was 123%,
representinga liquidity surplus of €568 billion compared to regulatory requirements. Theliquidity reserve
was €309 billion at the end of 2019.

BNPP’s access to and cost of funding could be adversely affected by a resurgence of financial crises,
worsening economic conditions, rating downgrades, increases in sovereign credit spreads or other
factors.

The financial crisis, the euro zone sovereign debt crisis as well as the general macroeconomic
environmenthave at times adversely affected the availability and cost of funding for European banks in
recent years. This was due to several factors, including a sharp increase in the perception of bank credit
risk due to exposure tosovereigndebtin particular, credit rating downgrades of sovereigns and of banks,
and debt market speculation. Many European banks, including BNPP, at various points experienced
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restricted access to wholesale debt markets and to the interbank market, as well as a generalincreasein
their cost of funding. Accordingly, reliance on direct borrowing from the European Central Bank
("ECB") at times increased substantially. If such adverse credit market conditions were to reappear in
the event of prolonged stagnation of growth, deflation, resurgence of the financial crisis, another
sovereign debtcrisis or new forms of financial crises, factors relating to the financial industry in general
orto BNPP in particular, the effect onthe liquidity of the European financial sector in generaland BNPP
in particular could be materially adverse and have a negative impact on BNPP’s results of operations and
financial condition.

Protracted market declines can reduce BNPP’s liquidity, making it harder to sell assets and possibly
leading to material losses. Accordingly, BNPP mustensure thatits assets and liabilities properly match
in orderto avoidexposure to losses.

In some of BNPP’s businesses, particularly Global Markets (which represented 12% of BNPP’s revenue
in 2019) and Asset/Liability Management, protracted market movements, particularly asset price
declines, can reduce the level ofactivity in the market or reduce market liquidity. These developnents
can lead to material losses if BNPP cannot close out deteriorating positions in a timely way. This is
particularly true forassets thatare intrinsically illiquid. Assets thatare not traded on stock exchanges or
other public trading markets, such as certain derivative contracts between financial institutions, may have
values that BNPP calculates using models rather than publicly quoted prices. Monitoring the
deterioration of prices ofassets like these is difficult and could lead to significant unanticipated losses.

BNPP is exposed to the risk that the maturity, interest rate or currencies of its assets might not match
those of its liabilities. The timing of payments on certain of BNPP’s assets is uncertain, and if BNPP
receives lower revenues thanexpected ata giventime, it might require additional market funding in order
to meet its obligations on its liabilities. While BNPP imposes strict limits on the gaps between its assets
and its liabilities as part of its risk management procedures, it cannot be certain that these limits will be
fully effective to eliminate potential losses arising fromasset and liability mismatches.

Any downgrade of BNPP's credit ratings could weigh heavily onits profitability.

Credit ratings have a significant impact on BNPP's liquidity. On 23 April 2020, Standard & Poors
confirmed the long-term deposit and senior preferred debt rating at A+, and short-termrating at A-1,
with an outlookrevised fromstable to negative. On 30 March 2020, Fitch France placed its AA- long-
termdeposits and senior preferred debt rating for BNPP and its F1+ short-termrating for BNPP on Rating
Watch Negative. On 9 December 2019, Moody’s confirmed its long-termdeposits and senior prefemed
debt rating fromas Aa3, and confirmed its short-termrating as P-1, with a stable outlook. On 12 July
2019, DBRS confirmed BNPP's senior preferred debtratingas AA (low), as well as its short-termrating
as R-1(middle) with a stable outlook. A downgrade in BNPP's credit rating could affect its liquidity and
competitive position. It could also increase BNPP's borrowing costs, limit access to the capital markets
or trigger additional obligations under its covered bonds or under certain bilateral provisions in some
trading, derivative or collateralized financing contacts.

In addition, BNPP’s costofobtaining longtermunsecured funding frommarket investors is also directly
related to its credit spreads, which in turn depend to a certain extent on its credit ratings. Increases in
credit spreads can significantly increase BNPP’s cost of funding. Changes in credit spreads are
continuous, market driven, and subject at times to unpredictable and highly volatile movements. Credit
spreads are also influenced by market perceptions of BNPP’s creditworthiness. Furthermore, credit
spreads may be influenced by movements in the costto purchasers of credit default swaps referenced to
BNPP’s debt obligations, which are influenced both by the credit quality of those obligations,andbya
number of market factors that are beyondthe control of BNPP.
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Risks relatedto the macroeconomic and marketenvironment

Adverse economic and financial conditions have in the pasthad and may in the future have an impact
on BNPP and themarkets in which it operates.

BNPP’s business is sensitive to changes in the financial markets and more generally to economic
conditions in France (31% of BNPP’s revenues at 31 December 2019), other countries in Europe (44%
of BNPP’s revenues at 31 December 2019) and the rest of the world (25% of BNPP’s revenues at 31
December 2019). A deterioration in economic conditions in the markets where BNPP operates could
have some orall of the following impacts:

. Adverse economic conditions could affect the business and operations of BNPP’s custonmers,
reducing credit demand andtrading volume andresulting in an increased rate of default on loans
and otherreceivables;

. A decline in market prices of bonds, equities and commodities could impact many of the
businesses of BNPP, including in particular trading, investment banking and asset management
revenues;

. Macroeconomic policies adopted in responsetoactual or anticipated economic conditions could

have unintended effects, and are likely to impact market parameters such as interest rates and
foreign exchange rates, which in turn could affect BNPP’s businesses that are most exposed to
market risk;

° Perceived favourable economic conditions generally or in specific business sectors could result
in asset price bubbles, whichcould in turn exacerbate the impactof corrections when conditions
become less favourable;

. A significant economic disruption (such as the global financial crisis of 2008 or the European
sovereign debt crisis of 2011) could have a severe impact on all of BNPP’s activities,
particularly if the disruption is characterized by an absence of market liquidity that makes it
difficult to sell certain categories of assets at their estimated market value orat all; and

. A significant deterioration of market and economic conditions resulting from, among other
things, adverse political and geopolitical events such as natural disasters, geopolitical tensions
(in particular protectionist measures), emergence of health risks such as pandemics, acts of
terrorism, societal unrest, cyber attacks, military conflicts or threats thereof and related risks
could affect the operating environmentfor BNPP episodically or forextended periods.

In 2020, European economies and financial markets will be particularly sensitiveto a number of factors,
including, for example, tensions around international trade (protectionist measures, such as custorrs
duties, the "trade war" between the United States and China and tensions between the United States and
Europe), geopolitical tensions (particularly in the Middle East and, more generally, betweenthe United
States and Iran), political risks directly affecting Europe (including the implementation of Brexit and the
rise of populism), a persisting climate of sluggish economic growth, the volatility in commodity prices
(itself affected by the above-mentioned factors) and, as discussed below, the evolution of monetary
policy orthe impact of health risks related toa pandemic such as the coronavirus.

More generally, increased volatility of financial markets could adversely affect BNPP’s trading and
investment positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets, as well as its positions in
other investments. For reference, Global Markets accounted for 12% of BNPP’s revenues in 2019. Severe
market disruptions and extreme market volatility have occurred in recent years and may occur again in
the future, which could result in significantlosses for BNPP. Such losses may extend toa broad range of
trading and hedging products, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options and structured

21



5.2

products. The volatility of financial markets makes it difficult to predict trends and implement effective
trading strategies.

It is difficult to predict when economic or market downturns or other market disruptions will occur, and
which markets will be most significantly impacted. If economic or market conditions in France or
elsewhere in Europe, or global markets more generally, were to deteriorate or become more volatik,
BNPP’s operations could be disrupted, and its business, results of operations and financial condition
could be adversely affected.

Significantinterest ratechanges could adversely affect BNPP’s revenues or profitability. The prolonged
low interest rate environment carries inherent systemic risks, which could impact BNPP’s income or
profitability, and any exitfromsuch environment would also carry risks.

The netinterestincome earned by BNPP during any given period significantly affects its overall revenues
and profitability for that period. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond BNPP’s
control, suchastherate of inflation, country-specific monetary policies and certain decisions conceming
regulatory capital. Changes in market interest rates could affect the interest rates charged on interest-
earning assets differently than the interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Any adverse change
in the yield curve could cause a decline in net interest income generated by BNPP’s lending activities.
In addition, increases in the interest rates at which BNPP’s short-termfunding is available and maturity
mismatches may adversely affectits profitability.

Since the 2008-2009 financial crisis, global markets have been characterized by an extended period of
low interest rates. This low interest rate environment has weighed significantly on banks’ profitability,
including that of BNPP, for a number of years. The relative impact on banks depends, in particular, on
the proportion oftheir revenues represented by net interest income; this proportion was 47% for BNPP
in 2019 (see Note 3.a "Net interest income™ to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)). The situation worsened in 2019, in particular with the emergence and increasing prevalence
of loans at negativeinterest rates, including placements by European banks with the ECB. If the low, and
even negative, interestrate environment continues, as a result, for example, of continued monetary
loosening, low growth or other factors, BNPP’s profitability could be impacted oreven decline. In this
respect, the ECBannouncedin 2019 — in the face of slower than anticipated growth— a status quo on its
benchmark lending rates until at least the first half of 2020), new targeted longer-term financing
operations ("TLTRO") bearing, under certain conditions, negative rates and, in September 2019, the
resumptionofits quantitative easing policy, which had been suspended a few months earlier. In addition,
the persistently low interest rate environment blunts the effectiveness of monetary policies against
declining growth or recessions.

During periods of low interest rates, interest rate spreads tend to tighten, and BNPP may be unable to
lower interest rates on deposits sufficiently to offsetreduced income fromlending at lower interest rates.
Net interest income amounted to €21,062 million in 2018 and €21,127 million in 2019, respectively (see
Note 3.a "Net interestincome" to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)). On an
indicative basis, overone-, two- and three-year timeframes, the sensitivity of revenues at 31 December
2019 to a parallel, instantaneous and definitive increase in market rates of +50 basis points (+0.5%)
acrossallcurrencies had an impact of +€270 million, +€216 million and +€614 million, respectively, or
0.6%, 0.5% and 1.4% of BNPP’s net banking income. The negative interest rate environment in which
banks are charged for cash deposited with central banks, whereas banks typically do not charge clients
for deposits, further weighs on banks” margins. In addition, BNPP has been facing and may continueto
face an increase in early repayment and refinancing of mortgages and other fixed rate consumer and
corporate loans as clients take advantage of lower borrowing costs. This, along with the issuance of new
loans at the low prevailing market interest rates, has resulted and may continue to result in a decreasein
the averageinterest rate of BNPP’s portfolio of loans thereby causing a decline in its net interestincome
from lending activities. Moreover, an environment of persistently low interest rates can also have the
effect of flattening the yield curve in the market more generally, which could reduce the premium
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generated by BNPP from its funding activities. A flattening yield curve can also influence financial
institutions to engage in riskier activities in an effort to earn the desired level of returns, which can
increase overallmarket risk and volatility. Low interest rates may also affect the profitability and even
the solvency of the insurance activities of French banks, including BNPP, particularly due to the
prevalence in the market of life insurance contracts backed by euro-denominated funds, which may not
be able to generate sufficientreturns tobe competitive with other investment products. Low interest rates
may also adversely affect commissions charged by BNPP’s asset management subsidiaries on money
market and other fixed income products. A reduction in credit spreads and decline in retail banking
income resulting from lower portfolio interest rates may adversely affect the profitability of BNPP’s
retail banking operations.

On the other hand, the end of a period of prolonged low interest rates, in particular due to tightening
monetary policy (itself triggered in particular by increases in economic growth or in inflation at rates
higher than expected by central banks) would also carry risks. If market interest rates were to rise, a
portfolio featuring significant amounts of lower interestloans and fixed income assets would be expected
todecline in value. If BNPP’s hedging strategies are ineffective or provide only a partial hedge against
such a change in value, BNPP could incur losses. Any sharper or more rapid than expected tightening
could havea negativeimpact on theeconomic recovery. On the lending side, it could in particular cause
stress in loan and bond portfolios, possibly leading to an increase in non performing exposures and
defaults. More generally, the ending of accommodative monetary policies (including liquidity infusions
from central bank asset purchases) may lead tosevere corrections in certain markets or asset classes (e.g.,
non investment grade corporate and sovereign borrowers, certain sectors of equities and real estate) that
particularly benefitted (including fromvery lowrisk premia as compared to historical averages) fromthe
prolonged low interest rate and high liquidity environment, and such corrections could potentially be
contagious to financial markets generally, including through substantially increased volatility.

Given the global scope of its activities, BNPP may be vulnerable to risk in certain countries where it
operates and may be vulnerable to political, macroeconomic or financial changes in the countries and
regionswhereit operates.

BNPP is subjectto country risk, meaning therisk that economic, financial, political or social conditions
in a given foreign country in which it operates could affect its business and results. BNPP monitors
countryriskandtakes it into accountin the fair valueadjustments and cost of risk recorded in its financial
statements. However, a significant changein political or macroeconomic environments may require it to
record additional charges orto incur losses beyond theamounts previously written down in its financial
statements. In addition, factors specific to a country or region in which BNPP operates could make it
difficult for it to carry out its business and leadto losses orimpairment of assets.

At 31 December 2019, BNPP’s loan portfolio consisted of receivables fromborrowers located in France
(30%), Belgiumand Luxembourg (13%), Italy (10%), other European countries (21%), North America
(14%), Asia (6%) and the rest of the world (6%). Adverse conditions that particularly affect these
countries and regions would have a particularly significant impact on BNPP. In addition, BNPP has
significant exposures in countries outside the OECD, which are subject to risks that include political
instability, unpredictable regulation and taxation, expropriation and other risks that are less present in
more developedeconomies.

Regulatory Risks

Laws and regulations adopted in recent years, particularlyin response to the global financial crisis, as
well as new legislative proposals, may materially impact BNPP and the financial and economic
environment inwhichit operates.

Laws and regulations have been enacted in the past few years, in particular in France, Europe and the
United States, with a view to introducing a number of changes, some permanent, in the financial

23



environment. Theimpact of the measures has changed substantially the environment in which BNPP and
other financial institutions operate.

The measures that have been adopted include:

. more stringentcapital and liquidity requirements (particularly for global systemically important
banks suchas BNPP), as well as changes to the risk-weighting methodologies and the methods
of using internal models thatcould lead to increased capital requirements;

. restrictions on certain types of activities considered as speculative undertaken by commercial
banks that are prohibited or need to be ring fenced in subsidiaries (particularly proprietary
trading) and are subject to prudential requirements and autonomous funding;

. prohibitions orrestrictions oncertain types of financial products or activities;

. enhanced recovery and resolution regimes, in particular the Bank Recovery and Resolution
Directive of 15 May 2014 (the "BRRD"), as amended fromtime to time, which strengthens
powers to prevent and resolve banking crises in orderto ensure that losses are borne largely by
the creditors andshareholders ofthebanks and in orderto keepthe costs incurred by taxpayers
to a minimum;

. the establishment of the national resolution funds by the BRRD and the creation of the Single
Resolution Board (the"SRB") by the European Parliament and Council of the European Union
in a resolution dated 15 July 2014 (the "SRM Regulation™), as amended from time to time,
which can initiate resolution proceedings for banking institutions such as BNPP, and the Single
Resolution Fund (the "SRF"), the financing of which by BNPP (up to its annual contribution)
can be significant;

. the establishment of national deposit guarantee schemes and a proposed European deposit
guarantee scheme or deposit insurance which will gradually cover all or part of the guarantee
schemes of participating countries;

. increased internal controland reporting requirements with respect to certainactivities;

. greater powers granted to the relevant authorities to combat money laundering and terrorism
financing;

. more stringentgovernanceand conduct of business rules and restrictions and increased taxes on

employee compensation over specified levels;

. measures to improve the transparency, efficiency and integrity of financial markets and in
particular the regulation of high frequency trading, more extensive market abuse regulations,
increased regulation of certain types of financial products including mandatory reporting of
derivative and securities financing transactions, requirements either to mandatorily clear, or
otherwise mitigate risks in relation to, OTC derivative transactions (including through posting
of collateralin respect of noncentrally cleared derivatives);

. the taxation of financial transactions;
. enhanced protection of personal data and cybersecurity requirements;
o enhanceddisclosure requirements, forinstancein the area of sustainable finance; and
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. strengtheningthe powers of supervisory bodies, such as the French Prudential Supervisionand
Resolution Authority (the " ACPR™) andthe creation of new authorities, including the adoption
of the Single Resolution Mechanism (the *SRM™) in October 2013, which placed BNPP under
the direct supervision of the ECBas of November 2014.

These measures may have a significant adverse impact. For example, the introduction of a required
contributionto the Single Resolution Fund resulted in a substantial additional expense for BNPP (BNPP
made a €0.6 billion contribution to the SRF in 2019).

Measures relating to the banking sector could be furtheramended, expanded or strengthened. Moreover,
additional measures could be adopted in other areas. It is impossible to predict what additional measures
will be adopted and, given the complexity and continuing uncertainty of a certain number of these
measures, todetermine their impact on BNPP. The effect of these measures, whether already adopted or
that may be adopted in the future, has been and could continue to be a decrease in BNPP’s ability to
allocate its capital and capital resources to financing, limit its ability to diversify risks, reduce the
availability of certain financing and liquidity resources, increase the cost of financing, increase the cost
of compliance, increase the cost or reduce the demand for the products and services offered by BNPP,
require BNPP to proceed with internal reorganizations, structural changes or reallocations, affect the
ability of BNPP to carry on certain activities or to attract and/or retain talent and, more generally, affect
its competitiveness and profitability, which could have an impact onits profitability, financial condition
and operating results. Forexample, the European Banking Authority estimated, in a report published on
5 August 2019, that the implementation ofthe final Basel Il agreementadopted by the Group of Central
Bank Governors and Heads of Supervision ("GHOS") on 7 December 2017 may result, under
conservative assumptions, in an increase of the tier 1 minimum required capitalamount by 24.4% with
respectto the June 2018 baseline, which would cause, for the 189 banks in thesample, a shortfall in total
capital of€135.1 billion, of which €91.1 billion common equity tier 1.

BNPP is subject to extensive and evolving regulatory regimes in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
BNPP faces the risk of changes in legislation or regulation in all of the countries in which it operates,
including, but not limited to, the following:

. monetary, liquidity, interest rate and other policies of central banks and regulatory authorities;

. changes in government or regulatory policy thatmay significantly influenceinvestor decisions,
in particular in the markets in which BNPP operates;

. changes in regulatory requirements applicable tothe financial industry, such as rules relating to
applicable governance, remunerations, capital adequacy and liquidity frameworks, restrictions
on activities considered as speculative and recovery andresolution frameworks;

. changes in securities regulations aswell as in financial reporting, disclosure and market abuse
regulations;
. changes in the regulation of certain types of transactions and investments, such as derivatives

and securities financing transactions and money market funds;

. changes in the regulation of market infrastructures, such as trading venues, central
counterparties, central securities depositories, and payment and settlementsystems;

. changesin the regulation of paymentservices, crowdfunding and fintech;
. changes in the regulation of protection of personal data and cybersecurity;
. changesin tax legislation or the application thereof;
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. changesin accountingnorms;

. changesin rules and procedures relating to internal controls, risk managementand compliance;
and
. expropriation, nationalization, price controls, exchange controls, confiscation of assets and

changesin legislationrelating to foreign ownership.

These changes, the scope and implications of which are highly unpredictable, could substantially affect
BNPP and have an adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations. Some
reforms not aimed specifically at financial institutions, such as measures relating to the funds industry or
promoting technological innovation (such as opendataprojects), could facilitate the entry of new players
in the financial services sector or otherwise affect BNPP’s business model, competitiveness and
profitability, which could in turn affectits financial conditionand results of operations.

BNPP may incur substantial fines and other administrative and criminal penalties for non compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, andmay alsoincur losses in related (orunrelated) litigation with
private parties.

BNPP is exposed toregulatory compliancerisk, i.e. the failure to comply fully with the laws, regulations,
codes of conduct, professional norms or recommendations applicable to the financial services industry.
This risk is exacerbated by the adoption by different countries of multiple and occasionally diverging
and even conflicting legal or regulatory requirements. Besides damageto BNPP’s reputation and private
rights ofaction (including class actions), noncompliance could lead to material legal proceedings, fines
and expenses (including fines and expenses in excess of recorded provisions), public reprimand, enforced
suspension of operations or, in extreme cases, withdrawal by the authorities of operating licenses. This
risk is further exacerbated by continuously increasing regulatory scrutiny of financial institutions as well
as substantial increases in the quantumofapplicable fines and penalties. Moreover, litigation by private
parties againstfinancial institutions has substantially increased in recentyears. Accordingly, BNPP faces
significant legal risk in its operations, and the volume and amount of damages claimed in litigation,
regulatory proceedings and other adversarial proceedings against financial services firms have
substantially increased in recent years and may increase further. BNPP may record provisions in this
respectas indicated in Note 5.p ""Provisions for contingencies and charges" to the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English).

In this respect, on 30 June 2014 BNPP entered into a series ofagreements with, and was the subject of
severalorders issued by, U.S. federaland New York state governmentagencies and regulatory authorities
in settlement of investigations into violations of U.S. laws and regulations regarding economic sanctions.
The fines and penalties imposed on BNPP as part of this settlement included, among other things, the
payment of monetary penalties amounting in the aggregate to $8.97 billion (€6.6 billion) and guilty pleas
by BNP Paribas S.A., the parent company of BNPP, to charges ofhaving violated U.S. federal criminal
law and New York State criminal law. Following this settlement, BNPP remains subject to increased
scrutiny by regulatory authorities (including via the presence of an independent consultant within BNPP)
who are monitoring its compliance with a remediation plan agreed with them.

BNPP is currently involved in various litigations and investigations as summarised in Note 8b
"Contingent liabilities: legal proceedings and arbitration" to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English). It may become involved in further suchmatters at any point. No assurance can
be given that anadverse outcome in oneor more of such matters would nothave a material adverse effect
on BNPP’s operating results forany particular period.
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BNPP could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subjectto a
resolution proceeding: holders ofsecurities of BNPP couldsuffer losses as a result.

The BRRD, SRM Regulation and the Ordinance of 20 August 2015, as amended fromtime to time,
confer upon the ACPR or the SRB the power to commence resolution proceedings fora banking
institution, suchas BNPP, with a viewto ensuring the continuity of critical functions, avoiding the risks
of contagion and recapitalizing or restoring the viability of the institution. These powers are to be
implemented so that, subjectto certainexceptions, losses are borne first by shareholders, then by holders
of additional capital instruments qualifying as tier 1and tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), then by the
holders of non-preferred senior debt and finally by theholders of senior preferred debt, all in accordance
with the order of their claims in normal insolvency proceedings. For reference, BNPP’s medium-to long-
termwholesale financingat 31 December 2019 consisted of the following: €10 billion of hybrid Tier 1
debt, €18 billion of Tier 2 subordinated debt, €41 billion of senior unsecured non-preferred debt, €81
billion of seniorunsecured preferred debtand €26 billion of seniorsecured debt.

Resolution authorities have broad powers to implement resolution measures with respect to institutions
and groups subjectto resolution proceedings, which may include (without limitation): the total or partial
sale of the institution’s business to a third party or a bridge institution, the separation of assets, the
replacement or substitution of the institution as obligorin respect of debtinstruments, the full or partial
write down of capital instruments, the dilution of capital instruments through the issuance of new equity,
the full or partial write down or conversion into equity of debtinstruments, modifications to the tems of
debtinstruments (includingaltering the maturity and/or the amountof interest payable and/or imposing
a temporary suspension on payments), discontinuing the listing and admission to trading of financial
instruments, thedismissal of managers or theappointment ofa special manager (administrateur spécial).

Certain powers, including the full or partial write down of capital instruments, the dilution of capital
instruments through the issuance of new equity, the full or partial write down or conversion into equity
of additional capital instruments qualifyingas tier Land tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), can ako be
exercised as a precautionary measure, outside of resolution proceedings and/or pursuant to the European
Commission’s State Aid framework if the institution requires exceptional public financial support.

The implementation ofthese tools and powers with respect to BNPP may result in significant structural
changes to BNPP (including as a result of asset or business sales or the creation of bridge institutions)
and in a partial or total write down, modification or variation of claims of shareholders and creditors.
Such powers may also result, afterany transfer ofall or part of BNPP’s business or separation of any of
its assets, in the holders of securities (even in the absence of any such write down or conversion) being
left as creditors of BNPP in circumstances where BNPP’s remaining business orassets are insufficient
to supportthe claims ofall orany ofthe creditors of BNPP.

RisksrelatedtoBNPP’s growth inits currentenvironment

Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and their economic
consequences may adversely affect BNPP's business, operations, results and financial condition.

Since emerging in China in December 2019, a novel strain of the coronavirus (COVID-19) spread
globally and became a pandemic, with a high concentration of cases in several countries in which the
Group operates. Both the pandemic and government measures taken in response (including, border
closings, travel restrictions, lockdown measures) have had and will continueto have a major impact, both
direct and indirect, on economic activity and financial markets globally. In particular, the shamp
slowdowns of the economies in many regions as well as the reduction in global trade and commerce
more generally have had and are likely to continue to have severe negative effects on global economic
conditions as global production, investments, supply chains and consumer spending have been and
continue to be affected.
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In response to the adverse economic and market consequences of the pandemic, various governments
and central banks have taken or announced measures to support the economy (such as loan guarantee
schemes, tax payment deferrals, expanded unemployment coverage) or to improve liquidity in the
financial markets (suchas increased asset purchases, funding facilities). The Group has been channelling
and continues to channel these measures to support customers in particular in the domestic markets'
networks, as well as through active participation in the French government loan guarantee progranme
(retaining 10 to 30 percent. of the risk, depending on the borrower's size). No assurance can be given,
however, that such measures will suffice to offset the negative effects of the pandemic on the econormy
regionally orglobally, to mitigate regional or global recessions (which are now occurring or are generally
forecast) or to stabilise financial markets fully and sustainably. The economic environment may well
deteriorate further before beginningto improve. The Group is exposed torisks fromthe pandemic and its
economic and market consequences both due to its inherent general sensitivity, as a global financial
institution, to macroeconomic and market conditions, as well as to specific implications, as described
below.

The Group's results and financial condition could be adversely affected by reduced economic activity
(including recessions) in its principal markets. The containment measures taken in several of the principal
countries where the Group operates, in particular its domestic markets (France, Italy, Belgium and
Luxembourg which collectively represent 43 per cent. of its total gross credit exposures as at 31
December 2019), have significantly reduced economic activity to recessionary levels and a substantial
prolongation or reinstitution of such measures would have a similar effect. The Group's results are
affected by such measures due to reduced revenues and to deteriorated asset quality both generally and
in specific sectors that are particularly affected. The sectors most adversely affected to date includethe
travel and tourism sectors. The Group's exposure to the aircraft sector (e.g. airlines and lessors) and to
the tourismsector each represented approximately 1 percent. ofits total gross credit exposures as at 31
December 2019. The non-food retail sector has been affected by the lockdown measures; this sector
represents slightly above 1 percent. of the Group's total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2019.
The transport andstorage (excluding shipping) sector, which represents approximately 3 per cent. ofthe
Group’s total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2019, has been affected by the lockdown
measures andthe disruptionin globaltrade. The oil and gas sector has been affected by a concomitant
decrease in demand resulting fromthe pandemic and increase in supply due tothetemporary unravelling
of the OPEC/Russia production cooperation. This sector represented approximately 2.2 per cent. of the
Group's total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2019. The Group's results and financial condition
could be adversely affected tothe extentthatthe counterparties to whomit has exposure in these sectors
(and more generally, to the extent the negative effect on credit quality is more widespread) could be
materially and adversely affected, resultingin an increasein the Group's cost of risk.

An immediate financial effect of the health crisis is the impact on the Group's cost of risk, which reflects
macroeconomic expectations based on several scenarios, in accordance with the framework in place prior
to the health crisis. In theapplication of this framework, macroeconomic scenarios and GDP assumptions
and forecasts are key inputs for the calculation of the cost of risk. The health crisis has led, among other
things, to a weakening in GDP assumptions in many of the markets in which the Group operates. The
cost ofrisk calculation also incorporates the s pecific features of the dynamics of the health crisis on credit
and counterparty risk and in particular the impact of lockdown measures on economic activity and the
effects of government support measures and authorities' decisions. It also includes an ex-ante sector
component based onareview of several sensitive sectors (suchas hotels, tourismand leisure; non-food
retail (excluding home furnishings and e-commerce); transport and logistics; andoiland gas). All these
elements contributed to the substantial increase in the Group's cost of risk in the first quarter of 2020,
and could likewise contribute to continued high cost of risk in the following quarters, depending on
macroeconomic scenarios and, in particular, the currentuncertainties aroundthe course of the pandemic
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and its economic consequences going forward. Moreover, the impact of the pandemic on the long-term
prospects of businesses in the affected sectors and more generally is uncertainand may lead to significant
charges on specific exposures, which may not be fully captured by modelling techniques. The Group's
exposure to increased costofrisk could also result fromits participation in government-guaranteed loan
programmes (given its residual exposure) and the existence of forbearance periods limiting credit-
protection measures (such as payment acceleration) under emergency health legislation in various
markets.

The Group's results and financial condition could also be negatively affected by adverse trends in
financial markets to the extent that the pandemic initially led in particularto extreme market conditions
(including, market volatility spikes, sharp drop in equity markets, tension on spreads, specific asset
markets on hold), with market volatility continuing. This situation has had and could continue to have an
adverse impact on the Group's market activities, which accounted for 12 per cent. of its consolidated
revenues in 2019, resulting in trading or other market-related losses, including additions to valuation
reserves and counterparty risk provisions. This extreme market volatility has been and could continue to
increase asa consequence of the decisions taken by authorities in particular in Europe, such as restrictions
on short-selling anddividend distributions. Moreover, some of the Group's investment portfolios (e.g. in
its insurance subsidiaries) are accounted for on a mark to market basis and thus have been and could
continue to be impacted by deteriorated market conditions.

The current health crisis could increase the probability and magnitude of various existing risks faced by
the Group suchas:

@) pressure on revenues due in particular to (i) a further reduction in market interest rates and a
likely prolongation of the low interest rate environmentand (ii) lower asset management inflows
and hencerevenues fromfees and commissions;

(b) increasedrisk ofaratings downgrade following the sector reviews announced by certain rating
agencies;
(©) deterioration in the Group's liquidity due to various factors including increased custorer

drawdowns and/ or lower deposit balances; and

(d) higher risk weighted assets due to the deterioration of risk parameters hence affecting the
Group's capital position.

Uncertainty astothedurationand extent ofthe course ofthe pandemicas wellas the pace ofemergence
fromlockdowns and loosening of restrictions onmobilityand other restrictions makesthe overall impact
on the economiesofthe Group'sprincipal markets as well as the world economy difficultto predict. The
extent to which the economic consequences of the pandemic will continue to affect the Group's results
and financial condition will depend largely on (i) the timing and extent of a return to pre-pandemic
lifestyles, business operationsand economic interactions, (ii) the effectsofthe measures takento date or
future measures that may be taken by governments and central banks to attenuate the economic fallout
of the pandemic and (iii) the duration and extent ofthe pandemic, including the prospect of additional
waves and hence of a reinstitution of containment measures in the various markets where the Group
operates. In addition, while central bank and govemment actions and support measures taken in
response to the pandemic have to date attenuated, and may well continue to help attenuate, the adverse
economic and market consequences of the pandemic, they have also issued and may issue additional
restrictions or recommendations in respect ofbanks' actions (in particular, the recommendation issued
by the European Central Bank on 27 March 2020). In particular, the measures have limited and may
continue to limit orseek to limitbanks'flexibility inmanaging their business and taking action in relation
to capital distribution and capital allocation. In this respect, BNPP announced on 2 April 2020that its
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7.3

Board of Directors would propose to the annual shareholders’ meeting to suspend the payment of the
dividendoriginally proposed to be paidin respect 0f2019 and to allocate the amount to reserves, with
a potential decision to be taken after 1 October 2020 regarding a possible distribution of reserves to
shareholders.BNPP’s failure to implement its strategic plan or to achieve its published financial
objectivecouldaffect thetrading price ofits securities.

BNPP announced a strategic plan for the 2017 2020 period on 7 February 2017. This plan contemplates
a number of initiatives, including the implementation of new customer pathways, BNPP’s digital
transformation, continuingtoimprove operating efficiency and various business developmentinitiatives.
In its first quarter results publication on 5 May 2020, the Group provided new disclosure on the outlook
in respect oftrends in revenues, operating expenses, costof riskand net income attributable to the Group
for 2020 in order to take into account the possible effects, which are subject to a high degree of
uncertainty, of the health crisis which has caused a drastic revision of the 2020 macroeconomic scenario.

These financial objectives were established primarily for purposes of internal planning and allocation of
resources, and are based ona number ofassumptions with regard to business and economic conditions.
BNPP’s actualresults could vary significantly fromthese objectives fora number of reasons, including
the occurrenceofone or more ofthe risk factors relatingto BNPP, in particular due to the consequences
of the health crisis, which has had and could continue to have major repercussions on the economic
outlookand generate major shocks in the financial market. If BNPP does not achieve its objectives, its
financial positionandthe trading price of its securities, as well as its financing costs, could be affected.

Additionally, BNPP is pursuing an ambitious Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") policy and is
committed to making a positive impacton society with concrete achievements. Attheend of 2019, BNPP
reaffirmed its ambition to be a global leader in sustainable finance. BNPP is thus taking strong positions,
as a founding member of the United Nations Principles for Responsible Banking, which commits it to
align its strategy with the Paris Agreement and the Sustainable Development Goals ("SDGs"). Its
objective in 2020 is to provide €185 billion in financing to sectors contributing to the SDGs. It &
enhancing its support for the energy and environmental transition by deciding, forexample, to reduce its
outstanding loans tothermal coal companies to zero by 2030 in the EuropeanUnionand 2040 in the rest
of the world, and by raising its target for supporting renewable energy development by €18 hillion by
2021. These measures (and any future ones along similar lines) may in certain cases adversely affect
BNPP’s results in the relevant sectors.

BNPP may experience difficulties integrating acquired companies and may be unable to realize the
benefits expected fromitsacquisitions.

BNPP makes acquisitions ona regular basis. Forexample, BNPP’s most recent major acquisition was of
substantially all of the activities of Raiffeisen Bank Polska in Poland, which was completed on 31
October 2018; such activities were subsequently merged with BGZ BNP Paribas. Integrating acquired
businesses is a long and complex process, which entailed, in 2019, BNPP incurring €311 million in
restructuring costs, the integration of Raiffeisen Bank Polska, as well as the discontinuation or
restructuring of certain businesses (in particular, BNP Paribas Suisse in 2019). Successful integration
and the realization of synergies require, among other things, proper coordination of business
development and marketing efforts, retention of key members of management, policies for effective
recruitment andtraining as well as theability to adaptinformation and computer systems. Any difficulties
encountered in combining operations could result in higher integration costs and lower savings or
revenues than expected. There will accordingly be uncertainty as to the extent to which anticipated
synergies will be achieved and the timing of their realization. Moreover, the integration of BNPP’s
existing operations with those of the acquired operations could interfere with its respective businesses
and divert management’s attention fromother aspects of BNPP’s business, which could havea negative
impact on BNPP’s businessand results. In some cases, moreover, disputes relating to acquisitions may
have an adverse impact on the integration process or have other adverse consequences, including
financialones.
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7.5

Although BNPP undertakes an in depth analysis of the companies it plans toacquire, such analyses often
cannot be complete orexhaustive. As aresult, BNPP may increase its exposure to doubtful or troubled
assetsandincurgreater risks as a resultof its acquisitions, particularly in cases in which it was unable to
conduct comprehensive due diligence prior to theacquisition.

BNPP’s current environment may be affected by the intense competition amongst banking and non-
banking operators, which could adversely affect BNPP’s revenues and profitability.

Competition is intensein all of BNPP’s primary business areas in France and the other countries in which
it conducts a substantial portion of its business, including other European countries and the United States.
Competition in the banking industry could intensify asa result of consolidationin the financial services
areaoras a result ofthe presence of new players in the payment and the financing services area, or the
development of crowdfunding platforms, as well as the continuing evolution of consumer habits in the
banking sector. While BNPP has launched initiatives in these areas, such as the debut of Hello Bank
and its acquisition of Nickel, competitors subject to less extensive regulatory requirements or to less
strict capital requirements (e.g., debtfunds, shadow banks), or benefiting fromeconomies of scale, data
synergies, technological innovation (e.g., internet and mobile operators, digital platforms, fintechs), or
free access to customer financial data could be more competitive by offering lower prices and more
innovative services toaddress the new needs of consumers. In addition, new paymentsystems and crypto-
currencies, such as Bitcoin, and new technologies that facilitate transaction processes, such as
blockchain, have developed in recent years. While it is difficult to predict the effects of these emerging
technologies as well as any applicable regulations, their use could nevertheless reduce BNPP’s market
share or secure investments that otherwise would have used technology used by more established
financial institutions, such as BNPP. If BNPP is unable to respond to the competitive environment in
France or in its other major markets by offering more attractive, innovative and profitable product and
service solutions thanthose offered by current competitors or new entrants, it may lose market share in
key areas of its business or incur losses on some or all of its activities. In addition, downturns in the
economies of its principal markets could add to the competitive pressure, through, for example, increased
price pressure and lower business volumes for BNPP and its competitors (the results of BNPP’s various
businesslines in 2019 are described in the press release presenting the 2019 results, published on 5
February 2020). It is also possible thatthe imposition of more stringent requirements (particularly capital
requirements and business restrictions) on large or systemically significant financial institutions, could
lead to distortions in competitionin amanneradverse to large private sector institutions such as BNPP.

BNPP could experience business disruption and losses due to climate change risks such as transition
risks, physical risksor liability risks.

BNPP is exposed to risks related to climate change, either directly through its own operations or
indirectly through its financing and investment activities. There are two main types of risks related to
climate change: (i) transition risks, which result fromchanges in the behaviour of economic and financial
actors in response to the implementation of energy policies or technological changes; (i) physical risks,
which result fromthe direct impact of climate change on people and property through extreme weather
eventsorlong-termrisks suchas rising water levels or increasing temperatures. In addition, liability risks
may arise from both categories of risk. They correspond to the damages that a legal entity would have to
pay if it were found to be responsible for global warming. BNPP is progressively integrating the
assessment of theserisks into its risk management system. BNPP monitors theserisks in the conduct of
its business, in the conduct of its counterparties' business, and in its investments on its own behalf and
on behalf ofthird parties. In this respect, the specific credit policies and the General Credit Policy have
been enhanced since 2012 and 2014, respectively, with theaddition of relevant clauses in terms of social
and environmental responsibility. In addition, sector-specific policies and policies excluding certain
Environmental, Socialand Governance ("ESG") sectors fromfinancing have also been put in place. In
2019, as part of the fight against climate change, BNPP made new commitments to reduce its exposure
to thermal coal to zero by 2030 in the European Union and by 2040 for the rest of the world. By the end
of 2015, BNPP had already significantly strengthened its criteria for financing and investing in the coal
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sector,andin 2017, it was the firstbank to announce the cessation of its financing activities for companies
that derive most of their revenues from non-conventional hydrocarbons, measures that remain to date
among the most advanced in the sector. These decisions are also reflected in the energy mix that BNPP
finances. BNPP also supports its clients, both individuals and businesses, in their transition to a low-
carbon economy. BNPP also aims to reduce the environmental footprint of its own operations. Despite
the actions takenby BNPP to monitorrisks and combat climate change, physical, transition or liability
risks related to climate change could disrupt business or lead to losses.

7.6 Changesincertainholdings in credit or financial institutionscould have an impacton BNPP’s financial
position.

Amounts below the thresholds for prudential capital deduction are assets subject to a risk-weight of
250%. These assets include: credit or financial institutions consolidated under the equity method within
the prudential scope, (excluding insurance); significantfinancial interestin credit or financial institutions
in which BNPP holds a stake of more than 10%; and deferred taxassets thatrely on future profitability
and arise fromtemporary differences.

The risk-weighted assets subjecttothis type of riskamounted to €16 billion at 31 December 2019, or 2%
of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

RisksRelatingtoBNPP B.V.

The main risks described above in relation to BNPP also represent the main risks for BNPP B.V., either as an
individualentity oracompany ofthe BNPP Group.

Dependency Risk

BNPP B.V. is an operating company. The assets of BNPP B.V. consist ofthe obligations of other BNPP Group
entities. In respect of securities it issues, the ability of BNPP B.V. to meet its obligations under such securities
depends on thereceiptby it of payments under certain hedgingagreements that it enters with other BNPP Group
entities. Consequently, Holders of securities issued by BNPP B.V. will, subjectto the provisions ofthe Guarantee
issued by BNPP, be exposedto theability of BNPP Group entities to performtheir obligations under such hedging
agreements and may suffer losses should theseentities fail to satisfy their obligations.

More generally, the creditworthiness of BNPP B.V. depends on the creditworthiness of BNPP. In the case of
bankruptcy proceedings of BNPP B.V. or any other similar proceedings affecting the Issuer, Holders of securities
will become creditors of BNPP pursuantto the relevant guarantee granted by BNPP. Holders shouldalso refer to
risk factor 6.3 BNPP could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subject
to a resolution proceeding: holders of securitiesof BNPP could suffer losses as a result.” below for a description
of the impact of resolution onthe BNPP Group.

Creditrisk

BNPP B.V. has significant concentration of credit risks as its issuance are entirely hedged through OTC
transactions with its parent company or other BNPP Group entities. Such credit risks amount thus for the to the
total size of its balance sheets (EUR 64.9 billion as at 31 December 2019). BNPP B.V. is thus fully at risk on the
capacity of its parent company or other BNPP Group entities tofulfil its obligation underthe OTC contract.

RISKS RELATING TO SECURITIES

A numberofthe risks described below may be relevantto a specific Series of Securities, depending on thetenrs
ofthose Securities. Theeffect of this compounding of risks is likely to increasethe volatility of the Securities and
increase the possibility that a Holder loses some or all of their investment or does not receive the anticipated
return.
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Risks Relating tothe Structure of the Securities

Risksassociated with specifictypes of products

@) Risks associated with ETS Products:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Risks associated with Yield Enhancement Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and
whethera cap, knock-outand/or automatic early redemption features apply. As a consequence,
investors may be exposedto a partial ortotal loss oftheir investment.

Risks associated with Participation Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and
whether knock-in, knock-out and/or automatic early redemption features apply. As a
consequence, investors may be exposedto a partial or total loss of their investment.

Risks associated with Leverage Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and
whether knock-in, knock-out and/or automatic early redemption features apply. Additionally,
the return may depend on other market factors such as interest rates, the implied volatility of
the Underlying Reference(s) and the time remaining until redemption or until exercise (in the
case of European Style Warrants). Theeffectof leverage on the Securities may be either positive
or negative (see "Risk of leveraged exposure" below). As a consequence, investors may be
exposed to a partial ortotal loss of their investment. The risk of loss is linked to the fluctuation
of the leverage. Indeed, an increase in leverage is likely to lead to an increase in the risk of
partial ortotalloss ofthe investment. Consequently, the higher the leverage, the higher the risk
of losing the invested capital.

Risks associated with Constant Leverage Products

The return on the Securities depends on the daily performance ofthe Underlying Reference(s)
and the operation of an automatic early redemption feature. Constant Leverage Products are
generally suited to short term investments intraday or over a few days. Investments held for a
longer period of time may be affected by volatile market conditions whichmay havea negative
impact on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) (see "Risks associated with Constant
Leverage Securities” below). As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total
loss oftheirinvestment.

(b) Risks associated with SPS Products:

(i

(ii)

Risks associated with Reverse Convertible Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and
whether a knock-in event occurs. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or
total loss oftheir investment.

Risks associated with Vanilla Products

The return depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and whether knock-in
or knock-out features apply. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total
loss oftheirinvestment.
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The formulae, relevantvariables and other related provisions of these products are more fully described in "Annex
1 - Additional Terms and Conditions for Payouts".

Securities subject to early redemption at the option of the Issuer, cancellation or early exercise by the relevant
Issuer or other early redemption (including Automatic Early Redemption) and consequences of early redemption

An optional or other early redemption (or cancellation) or early exercise feature (including an Automatic Early
Redemption feature) is likely to limit the market value ofthe Securities. In the case of Securities with an optional
redemption (or cancellation) feature, during any period when the relevant Issuer may elect to redeem (or cancel)
the relevant Securities, the market value of those Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at
which they can be redeemed (or cancelled). This may also be true prior to any redemption (or cancellation) period.
In addition, the Final Terms may provide that the relevant Securities will be redeemed (or cancelled) early in
specified circumstances, such as the occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event (as defined in Condition 15
(Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)), an Optional Additional Disruption
Event (as defined in Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events))
and/or an Automatic Early Redemption Event (as defined in Condition 29.6 (Automatic Early Redemption)).
Following an optional or other early redemption (or cancellation) (includingan Automatic Early Redemption), a
Holder generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption (or cancellation) proceeds (if any) at an effective
interest rate ashighas theinterestrate on the relevant Securities being redeemed (or cancelled), and may only be
ableto do so atasignificantly lower rate. As a consequence the Holder may lose some orall of theirinvestment.
Investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time. In addition, in the
case of Securities with an Automatic Early Redemption feature, the value of the Securities and the amount that
Holders receive upon an Automatic Early Redemption may not correlate with the value of the Underlying
Reference, which may trigger such Automatic Early Redemption and Holders could receivea significantly lower
return than expected in relation to the change in value of the Underlying Reference.

CostofBorrowing

Holders of Securities that are "short" (or "put™) Securities should note that the price of such Securities may include
a premium charged to Holders which reflects the cost to the Issuer or its Affiliates of borrowing the Underlying
Reference(s). Holders will not receive a refund of this premiumif an Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs
or upon theexercise ofan Issuer Call Option ora Holder Put Option, and consequently may significantly reduce
the return a Holder stands to receiveon its investment.

Minimumtradingamount may affecta Holder's ability to transfer their Securities

If the Securities have a minimum trading amount, a Holder will not be permitted totransfer its Securities prior to
expiration or redemption, as applicable, without purchasing enough additional Securities to hold the minimum
trading amount. The Holder may not be able to purchase additional Securities, in which case they will have to
wait until expiration or redemption of the Securities to realise any value. If they are able to purchase additional
Securities, this may be at a price higher thantheir original investmentandis likely to adversely affect the overall
return they achieve on their investment.

Certainspecific information may not be known atthe beginning ofan offer period

Where an indicative range is specified in the Final Terms at the start of an offer period in respect of Knock-in
Level and/or Knock-out Level, prospective purchasers of Securities should be aware thatthe actual rate, level or
percentage, as applicable, selected fromwithin the indicative range specified for Knock-in Leveland/or Knock-
out Level, as applicable, in respect of any Securities may have a negative impact on the final return on the
Securities when compared with another price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, within the indicative range.

Gap Risk
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In the case of ETS Final Payout 2200/1 and ETS Final Payout 2210a gap risk premiumwill be addedto the price
ofthe Securities which will be calculated to takeaccountofthe cost tothe Issuer orits Affiliates of unwinding its
hedging positions in relation to the Securities on early redemption of the Securities andthe Gap Risk associated
with the relevant level, value or price of the Underlying Reference(s). Such Gap Risk premium is subject to
fluctuations upwards and downwards, until the maturity of the Securities, if any, depending of the market
conditions and may have anadverseimpact onthe priceof the Securities. Holders will not receive a refund of this
premium if an Automatic Early Redemption Eventoccurs or uponthe exercise ofan Issuer Call Option ora Holder
Put Option, which could significantly reducethe return a Holder stands toreceive onits investment.

Limited exposure to Underlying Reference(s)

If the applicable Final Terms provide that the exposure of the relevant Securities to one or more Underlying
References is limited or capped at a certain level or amount, the relevant Securities will not benefit from any
upside inthe value ofany such Underlying Reference(s) beyond such limit or cap. In this case, Holders will not
receive as much fromtheir investment as they would have done if they had invested directly in the Underlying
Reference(s) or in alternative Securities without such features. The likelihood of this occurring is dependent on
the likelihood ofthe Underlying Reference(s) performing such thatthe limit or cap affects the Securities.

Risk ofleveraged exposure

Securities includinga leverage feature (suchas OET Certificates, the terms of which are described in "Annex 15
—Additional Terms and Conditions for OET Certificates” (see "Risks associated with Open End Certificates and
OET Certificates" below)) magnify gains and losses. If the Underlying Reference moves against expectations,
Holders risk losing a greater proportion of their investment than if they had invested in a Security that i not
leveraged.

Risksassociatedwith Constant Leverage Securities

Securities towhich ETS Final Payout 2300 (the formulae, relevantvariables and other related provisions for which
are set out in "Annex 1 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Payouts™) applies ("Constant Leverage
Securities") are designed for very short-term trading or intraday trading and are not intended for buy-to-hold
investing. Theperformance of Constant Leverage Securities overa period longer thanone day is derived fromthe
compounded daily performance of the relevant Underlying Reference, meaning that the performance of the
Constant Leverage Securities could differ significantly fromthe overall performance of the Underlying Reference
during that period. Holders are exposed totherisk thatan investment in Constant Leverage Securities may perform
worse than adirect investment in the relevant Underlying Reference andthis risk increases thelonger the period
that Holders hold the Constant Leverage Securities andthe more volatility the Underlying Reference experiences
during that period.

Risks associatedwith OpenEnd Certificates and OET Certificates

Open End Certificates and OET Certificates do not have a pre-determined maturity and may be redeermed on a
date determined by the relevant Issuer, acting in good faith, in accordance with the Terms and Conditions or
following a request by the Holder for a buy back of the Certificates,. Investment in Open End Certificates and
OET Certificates will entail additional risks compared with other Certificates, dueto the factthat they do not have
a prescribed tenorand Holders may receive a lower return than expected and depending on when the Open End
Certificates and OET Certificates are redeemed or boughtback. Open End Certificates will be subject to the
provisions set outin Condition29.5 (Open End Certificates) and OET Certificates will be subjectto the provisions
setoutin "Annex9 — Additional Termsand Conditions for OET Certificates".

There are no eventsofdefault under the Securities

The Terms and Conditions of the Securities do not include events of default allowing for the acceleration of the
Securities if certain events occur. Accordingly, if the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) fail to meet any
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obligations under the Securities, including the payment ofany interest or bankruptcy proceedings are instituted,
Holders willnot be able to accelerate the paymentof principal. Upon a payment default, the sole remedy available
to Holders for recovery of amounts owing in respect of any payment of principal or interest on their Securities
will be the institution of proceedings to enforce such payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer or the
Guarantor (if applicable) will not, by virtue of the institution of any such proceedings, be obliged to pay any sum
or sums sooner than the same would otherwise have beenpayable by it, meaning investors could lose all or part
oftheirinvestment. Asaresult, thevalueofthe Securities and/or their liquidity in the secondary market could be
negatively affected.

The terms of the Securities do notcontain a negative pledge andthe Issuer is entitled to incur additional debt

There is no negative pledge in respect ofthe Securities and the Terms and Conditions of the Securities placeno
restrictions ontheincurrence bythe Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) of additional obligations that rank pari
passu with, orseniorto, the Securities. In addition, the Issuer orthe Guarantor (if applicable) may pledge assets
to secure other notes or debt instruments without granting an equivalent pledge or security interest and status to
the Securities. Anincrease of the outstanding amount of such securities or other liabilities could reduce the amount
(if any) recoverable by the Holders onawinding-up of the Issuer, if the amountoutstanding exceeds the assets of
the Issuer, Holders could suffer a loss of their entire investment if the Issuer becomes insolvent (whether
voluntarily or otherwise).

Time Lag after Exercise of Warrants

In the case ofany exercise of Warrants, there will be a time lag between the time a Holder gives instructions to
exercise and the time the applicable Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Cash Settled Warrants) relating to
such exercise is determined. Any such delay between the time of exercise and the determination of the Cash
Settlement Amount will be specified in the applicable Final Terms or the applicable Conditions. However, such
delay could besignificantly longer, particularly in the caseofa delay in theexercise of Warrants arising fromany
daily maximum exercise limitation, the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event or the failure to open of an
exchange (if applicable) or following the imposition of any exchange controls or other similar regulations
affecting the ability to obtain orexchange any relevant currency (or basketof currencies) in the case of Currency
Securities. The applicable Cash Settlement Amount may change significantly during any such period, and such
movement or movements could decrease the Cash Settlement Amountofthe relevant Warrants, and may result in
such Cash Settlement Amount being zero.

Risks Relating tothe Underlying Reference(s) and Disruption and/or Adjustment Mechanisms
Risks associatedwith Underlying Reference Securities

Securities issued under this Base Prospectus may be linked to the performance of one or more Underlying
Reference(s) (as further described in the "Investment Considerations” section below) (such Securities,
"Underlying Reference Securities™). Depending on theterms of the Underlying Reference Securities, theamount
payable on redemption or in interest will be determined by reference to the value of one or more Underlying
References specified in the applicable Final Terms. If an Underlying Reference does notperformas expected, this
will have a material adverse impact on the amounts (if any) that Holders will receive in respectofthe Securities
and may also negatively affect thevalue ofthe Securities.

Absence of rights in respect ofthe Underlying Reference(s)

The Securities do not represent a claimagainst any Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or
other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference) and Holders will not have any right of recourse
under the Securities to any such Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person
in respect of an Underlying Reference). The Securities are not in any way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by
any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person in respect ofan Underlying Reference and such entities
have no obligation to take into account the consequences of theiractions on any Holders and such consequences
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may have a negative impact on Holders. Investors in Physical Delivery Securities should also refer to "Risks
associatedwith Physical Delivery Securities" below and Condition 30.2 (Physical Delivery).

Risksassociatedwith Physical Delivery Securities

If the Securities are Physical Delivery Securities (as defined in Conditions 20 (Type (Warrants)) and 27 (Type
(Certificates)), Holders will only obtain a direct investment in the Underlying Reference and have a right to
participate in any voting, dividends, distributions or other rights of the Underlying Reference, as the case may be,
upon delivery ofthe Entitlement. Holders of Physical Delivery Securities are exposed to the risk that the market
value of the Entitlement is less than the market value of the Securities and Holders may not subsequently be able
to realise any cash value fromthe assets comprising the Entitlement. This risk is increased if the assets comprising
the Entitlement have a nexus with an emerging market (see "Risks associated with Securities with a nexus to
emerging markets" below).

In the case of Physical Delivery Securities, if a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on the Settlement
Date or the Redemption Date respectively, settlement will be postponed untilthe next Settlement Business Day
in respect of which there is no Settlement Disruption Event. The relevant Issuer in these circumstances also has
the right to pay the Disruption Cash SettlementPrice (as definedin Condition 5.1 (Settlement Disruption)) in lieu
of delivering the Entitlement. The Disruption Cash Settlement Price may be less than the fair market value of the
Entitlement and could belessthanthereturnthatthe investor had anticipated.

The value of Underlying References may be subjectto market fluctuations

The price determination of an Underlying Reference Securities is influenced by the value of the Underlying
Reference, which itself depends on market fluctuations caused by a number of interrelated factors over which the
Issuer has no control, including economic and political developments, changes in interest rates and perceived
trends in the prices of securities. Depending on the Underlying Reference, the value ofa Holder's investment in
Underlying Reference Securities, may be significantly adversely affected by these market fluctuations.

Interest linked to an Underlying Reference

In the case of Underlying Reference Linked Interest Securities (see Condition 28(d) (Interest on Linked Interest
Certificates), where theamountofinterest payable is determined by referenceto the performance of an Underlying
Reference orabasket of Underlying References, Holders are subject to the following risks:

(i) the market price of such Securities may be volatile, and so Holders may only be able to sell their
Securities in the secondary market at a loss (if they are able to sell at all);

(i) they may receive no interest;

(iii) payment of interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected, which could
negatively affect the valueofthe Securities;

(iv) an Underlying Reference may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes
in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the yield may be less than other comparable investments;

(V) if an Underlying Reference in a basket has a disproportionately greater weighting compared to other
basket components oraweighting greaterthan oneor contains some other leverage factor, the effect of
changes in the value of such Underlying Reference on interest payable will be magnified and could
magnify any loss of interest that Holders would experience compared to an investment in Securities
without such features; and

(vi) interest may only be payable and/or calculated in respectof certain specified days and/or periods on or
during which the Underlying Reference or its value equals, exceeds and/or is less than certain specified
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thresholds and if such conditions are notsatisfied, Holders may not receive any interest, thus negatively
affecting the Holder's overall yield.

Risks associated with the occurrence of Additional Disruption Events and/or Optional Additional Disruption
Events

If an Additional Disruption Eventoccurs orany Optional Additional Disruption Event specified in the applicable
Final Terms occurs (otherthan in respect of a Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity) (each as defined in Condition
15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)), the Securities may be subject to
adjustment (including, in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to the Basket of
Shares), cancellation (in the case of Warrants) or early redemption (in the case of Certificates) or the amount
payable on scheduled redemption (in the case of Certificates) may be different from the amount expected to be
paid at scheduled redemption. In the case of Index Securities linked to a Custom Index, the occurrence of an
Additional Disruption Event or Optional Redemption Event specified in the applicable Final Terms may lead to
the selection of a successor Index. Any of these consequences is likely to have a material adverse effect on the
value and liquidity of the Securities and/or the return a Holder can expectto receiveon their investment.

The occurrenceofa Disrupted Day may have an adverse effect onthe value and liquidity ofthe Index Securities,
Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities

If, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event, as described in the IndexConditions,
Share Conditions, ET1 Conditions, Commodity Conditions, Debt Conditions and Futures Conditions, as the case
may be, has occurred or the relevant exchange has not opened on a date for valuation in respect of an issue of
IndexSecurities, Share Securities, ET1 Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities (a " Disrupted Day"), any
consequential postponement of the valuation date, or any alternative provisions for valuation provided in any
Securities in respect of an Underlying Reference (includingany Underlying Reference comprising a basket) may
have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities, particularly if the Redemption Date of the
Securities is postponed as a conseguence.

Risksassociated with Index Securities

IndexSecurities are linked to the performanceofan underlying index(an " Index'), which may reference various
assetclasses suchas equities, bonds, currency exchangerates or property price data, or could reference a mixture
of asset classes. Investors in Index Securities face the risk of a broader set of circumstances that mean that the
assets underlying the Indexdo not performas expected comparedto aninvestment in conventional debt securities.
Accordingly, the return on an investment in Index Securities is more likely to be adversely affected than an
investment in conventional debt securities. The terms and conditions relevant to Index Securities are set out in
"Annex2 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Index Securities".

In the case of Index Securities that are linked to the performance of a proprietary index (a "Custom Index"), if
the components of the Custom Indexare subject to regular rebalancing in accordance with the methodology of
the Custom Index, this may be determined (in whole or in part) by reference to criteria specified in the index
and/orone or more lists ofassets compiled by anindependentthird party (such as research lists, analytical reports
or"top picks" guides). Suchthird parties have noregard to the interests of Holders and any such rebalancing could
negatively affect the performanceofa CustomIndexand the value of the IndexSecurities.

The occurrenceofan Index Adjustment Event may adverselyimpact Holders of Index Securities

The occurrence of an Index Modification, an Index Cancellation or an Index Disruption (each being an "Index
Adjustment BEvent"”, as more fully described in IndexCondition 3.2 (Modification and Cessationof Calculation
of an Index)) may lead to (i) changes in the calculation of the relevant value or price (if the Calculation Agent
determines such Index Adjustment Event has a material effect on the Securities), (ii) early cancellation of the
Securities (in the case of Warrants), (iii) early redemption ofthe Securities (in the case of Certificates) or (iv) the
amount payable on scheduled redemption of the Securities (in the case of Certificates) being different from the
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amount expected to be paid at scheduled redemption. Any such adjustment or early redemption of the Index
Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount
Holders can expect to receive on theirinvestment.

Risks associated with Share Securities

Unlike a direct investment in any Share(s), Stapled Share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s) comprising the Underlying
Reference(s) (together the "Share(s)"), an investment in Share Securities does not entitle Holders to vote or
receive dividends or distributions (unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms). Accordingly, the retum on
Share Securities will not be the same as a direct investment in the relevant Share(s) and Holders could receive
less than they would have doneon a direct investment. The terms and conditions relevant to Share Securities are
setoutin "Annex3 - Additional Terms and Conditions for Share Securities".

An adjustment to Share Securities following a Potential Adjustment Eventmay adversely impactHolders

In the case of Share Securities, following the declaration by the Basket Company or Share Company, as the case
may be (or, in the case of Stapled Shares, an issuer of each constituent share comprising the Stapled Shares), of
the occurrence of any Potential Adjustment Event (as more fully described in Share Condition 3 (Potential
Adjustment Events)), the Calculation Agent will, in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner,
determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or concentrative effect onthetheoretical value
of the Shares (or the Stapled Shares, as the case may be) and, if so, will make the corresponding adjustment, if
any, to any terms of the Securities as the Calculation Agentacting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect (providedthatno adjustrrents
will be made to account solely forchanges in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative
to the relevant Share (orthe relevant Stapled Shares, as the case may be)). Such adjustment may have an adverse
effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect
to receive on their investment.

Extraordinary Events relating to Share Securities

Following the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event (as defined in Share Condition4 (Extraordinary Events) in
relation to a Share, the terms of the Share Securities may be adjusted (including, in the case of Share Securities
linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituentshares of the Basket of Shares), in
the case of Warrants, the Share Securities may be cancelled in whole or in part, in the case of Certificates, the
Share Securities may be redeemed in whole or in part or the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment
corresponding toadjustments made by an Options Exchange.

An adjustmentto the Share Securities may havean adverse effecton the value and liquidity of theaffected Share
Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on theirinvestment. If the Share Securities
are early redeemed or cancelled, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the relevant proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as the effective return on the relevant Securities being redeemed ot cancelled and
may only be able to do soat a significantly lower rate, and investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of
otherinvestments available at that time. Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in relation to a
Share may have an adverse effect on thevalue or liquidity of the Securitiesand accordingly the amount Holders
can expect to receive on their investment.

Risksassociatedwith ETI Securities

An investmentin ETI Securities carries similar risks to an investment in Share Securities. An exchange traded
instrument (an "ETI") may invest using sophisticated techniques, suchas leverageor short selling orin complex
financial instruments such as derivatives (swaps, options, futures), securities lending transactions, repurchase or
reverse repurchase agreements or foreign exchange instruments. If the investment strategy of the ETI is not
successful it will have a negative impact upon the performanceofthe ETI, and consequently, could have a negative
impact on the value ofthe ET1 Securities and the return investors may receive. Holders of ET1 Securities have no
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right to participate in the ETI, whether by voting orin any distributions. Accordingly, the returna Holder of ETI
Securities receives could be less (and could be significantly less) than a direct investment in an ETI. This effect
could be amplified ifthe ETI Share Provisions (as set outin ET1 Conditions 9to 14) are specified as notapplicable
in the applicable Final Terms and the value ofthe ET s linked to the NAV per ETI Interest, the trading price of
the ET1 or the actual redemption proceeds the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical investor in the relevant ETI(s)
would receive. The terms and conditions relevant to ETI Securities are set outin "Annex 4 — Additional Terms
and Conditions for ETI Securities".

An adjustment to ETI Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders

In the case of ET1 Securities, except as may be limited in the caseof U.S. Securities, following the declaration by
the relevant ET1or any person appointed to provide services directly or indirectly in respect ofsuch ET1, as the
case may be, of the terms of any Potential Adjustment Event (as more fully described in Share Condition 3
(Potential Adjustment Events) or (if the ETI Share Provisions are specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms) ETI Condition 11 (Potential Adjustment Events)), the Calculation Agent will, acting in good faith and in
a commercially reasonable manner, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or
concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the ETI Interests and, if so, will make the corresponding
adjustment, if any, to any terms of the Securities as the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect
(provided that no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock
loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant ETI Interest). Such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the
value and liquidity ofthe affected ETI Securities, and accordingly, the amount Holders can expect to receiveon
theirinvestment.

The occurrenceofan Extraordinary ETI Event(where ETI Share Provisions is not applicable) or Extraordinary
Event (whereETI Share Provisions is applicable) may havean adverse impacton Holders

If an Extraordinary ETI Event or an Extraordinary Event (each as further described in the "Investment
Considerations” section belowand ETI Condition 4 (Extraordinary ETI Events) or (if the ETI Share Provisions
are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms) ETI Condition 12 (Extraordinary Events)) occurs, the
Issuermay (i) adjust the terms of the ETI Securities toreflect suchevent, (ii) substitute therelevant ETI Interests,
or (iii) early redeemorcancelthe ETI Securities. Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event or
an Extraordinary Event, as thecase may be, may have an adverse effecton the valueor liquidity of the Securities
and the amountHolders canexpect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence ofa Market Disruption Event relating to Commodity Securities may have an adverse impacton
Holders

If a Market Disruption Event (as defined in Commodity Condition 2 (MarketDisruption)) occurs or is continuing
on a date for valuation in respect of Commodity Securities, then the Calculation Agent may make any relevant
calculation in respect of the Commodity Securities using an alternative value in lieu of the published price, the
affected Commodity or Commodity Index may be substituted or the Issuer will cancel or early redeem, as
applicable, the Securities. Any such adjustment or early redemption of the Securities may have an adverse effect
on the value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their
investment.

The occurrenceofa Commodity Index Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders of Commodity Securities
that reference a Commodity Index

The occurrence of a Commodity Index Modification, Commodity Index Cancellation or Commodity Index
Disruption (each being a "Commodity Index Adjustment Bvent", as more fully described in Commodity
Condition 4(b) (Modification and Cessation of Calculation of a Commodity Index))) may lead to (i) the
Calculation Agent determining the Relevant Price using, in lieu of a published level, the Commodity Fallback
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Value (if the Calculation Agent determines such Commodity IndexAdjustment Eventhas a material effect on the
Securities), or (ii) cacellation orearly redemption ofthe Securities. Any such adjustment or early redemption of
the Commodity Securities may haveanadverse effect onthe value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly
the amount Holders canexpect to receive on their investment.

Risksassociated with Commaodity Securities referencing a proprietary commodity index

If the Commodity Securities reference the performance of a proprietary commodity index, the operational rules
of the commodity index(which may not be publicly available) will affect howthe level of the commodity index
is determined in the event of a disruption. A delay in the publication of the commodity index could adversely
affect the commodity index and consequently, the value of the Commodity Securities, which in turn could
negatively affect the return an investor can expect to receive on the Commodity Securities. The terms and
conditions relevantto Commodity Securities are set out in "Annex 6 — Additional Terms and Conditions for
Commodity Securities".

Risksassociated with Currency Securities

Fluctuations in exchange rates are affected by complex political and economic factors, including governmental
action to fix or supportthe value of a currency, regardless of other market forces. If the rate of issuance of
exchange rate instruments (such as warrants, securities or options relating to particular currencies or currency
indices) increases, the value of Currency Securities in the secondary market will decline. Holders of Currency
Securities risk losing some or all of their investment if exchange rates of the relevant currency (or basket of
currencies) do notmove in the direction they had anticipated. Additionally, if Currency Securities are settled in a
currency otherthan the Holder's home currency, the negative effects of exchange rate fluctuations will be greater.
The terms and conditions relevant to Currency Securities are set out in "Annex 7 — Additional Terms and
Conditions for Currency Securities"”.

Risksassociatedwith Index Securities, Debt Securities or Commodity Securities valued by reference to Futures
Contracts

If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms in respect of IndexSecurities,
or Debt Securities thevalue of the Securities will be dependent onthe performance ofa futures or options contract
relating to (i) an index (in the case of IndexSecurities) (see IndexCondition 9 (Futures Price Valuation)) or (ii)
a synthetic debt instrument (in the case of Debt Securities) (see Debt Condition 6 (Futures Price Valuation)).
Commodity Securities may also be linked to the performanceofa futures or options contractover an underlying
commodity (as more fully describedin " Annex 6 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Commaodity Securities™).
If such underlying futures or options contract does not performas expected, an investor in such types of Securities
may receive a lower return (and could receive a significantly lower return) than anticipated.

The performance of futures and options contracts can be affected by, among other things, the liquidity of the
futures or options exchange and events beyond the control of the futures or options exchange. There may be
significant differences between the value of spot markets and the futures or options markets for the underlying
commodity, indexand/or synthetic debt instrument. Accordingly, an investment in Securities referencing such
futures contracts may performworse thana comparable investmentin Commodity Securities, IndexSecurities, or
Debt Securities that do not reference a futures or options contract or even a direct investment in the relevant
underlyingcommodity, index, ordebt instrument.

Risksassociatedwith Rolling Futures Contract Securities

If the terms of the Securities contemplate that the underlying futures contract will roll to maintain ongoing
exposure to such underlying futures contract throughout the termofthe Securities, the value of the Securities and
an investor's expected return onthe Securities willdepend onthe performance of the futures market. If the market
is in backwardation (where the price of the near-dated futures contract is greater than the longer-dated futures
contract), any loss in valuethat the Holder experiences in respect of the Securities will be increased, as the Holders
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synthetic exposure to the longer-dated futures contract is greater. However, if the market is in contango (where
the price of the near-dated futures contract is less than the longer-dated futures contract), any gain in value that
the Holder experiences in respect of the Securities will be reduced, as the Holder's synthetic exposure to the
longer-dated futures contractis lower. The relevant provisions for Rolling Futures Contract Securities will depend
on the relevant Underlying Reference and are more fully described in Index Condition 9.2 (Rolling Futures
ContractSecurities), Debt Condition 7 (Rolling Futures Contract Securities), or Commodity Condition 6 (Rolling
Futures Contract Securities), as applicable.

Futures contracts will roll on a specified date (the "Futures Rollover Date"). At each Futures Rollover Date there
may be expensesincurredin replacing the futures contractwhich may have an adverse effect onthereturnon the
Securities. Investors should be aware that in respect of Rolling Futures Contract Securities, the price difference
between thefutures contracts involved on each Futures Rollover Date may have a negative effecton the value of
the securitiesand in the long termbe higher thanthe positive performance of the underlyingand result in a total
loss ofaHolder’s investment in the Securities. The effectof this will be greater the longer thetermofan investors
investment in Rolling Futures Contract Securities.

The Calculation Agentmay modify the terms ofthe Securities

The Calculation Agent may, following its determination that there has been a change in the prevailing market
standard terms or market trading conventions that affects any hedging transaction, modify the terms of the
Securities to the extent reasonably necessary to ensure consistency with the prevailing market standard terms or
market trading conventions, without the consent of Holders or prior notice to Holders. The Calculation Agentis
not obliged to make any such modifications. If the Calculation Agentmodifies the terms of the Securities, it will
do so without regard tothe interests of the holders of the Securities and any such modification may be prejudicial
to the interests ofthe holder of the Securities.

Risks Relating to the Market
Certainfactors affectingthevalue and trading price of Securities

The trading price of the Securities is affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to, the price or
level of the relevant Underlying Reference or Underlying References, the time to expiration or redemption of the
Securities andtheactual or implied volatility associated with the Underlying Reference(s) and the correlation risk
of the relevant Underlying Reference(s). Such factors may mean that the trading price of the Securities is below
the Cash Settlement Amountor the value of the Entitlement, as applicable.

The possibility that the value and trading price of the Securities will fluctuate (either positively or negatively)
depends onanumber of factors, which investors should consider carefully before purchasing or selling Securities,
including:

. the trading price of the Securities;

. depending on the applicable payout, movements in the value and/or volatility of the Underlying
Reference may causethe theoretical value of the Securities to eitherrise or fall;

. dependingonthe applicable payout, thevalue of the Securities may fluctuate as the time remaining until
the scheduled expiration date decreases;

. in the case of Cash Settled Securities the probable range of Cash Settlement Amounts;

. any change(s) in currency exchange rates;

. the depth of the market or liquidity of the Underlying Reference as specified in the applicable Final
Terms; and
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. any related transaction costs.

Such factors may mean that the trading price ofthe Securities is belowthe Cash Settlement Amount or the value
of the Entitlement, as applicable and accordingly, Holders may receive an amount or an asset with a value
significantly lowerthan theamount that they invested to purchase the Securities.

Possibleilliquidity ofthe Securities in the secondary market

For certain issues of Securities, BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. is required to act as market-maker, in which case
it will endeavourto maintain a secondary market throughout the life of the Securities, subject to normal market
conditions, and will submit bid and offer prices to the market. However, during certain periods, it may be difficult,
impractical orimpossible for BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. to quote bid and offer prices, and during such periods,
it may be difficult, impracticable orimpossible tobuy or sell these Securities. Adverse market conditions, volatile
prices or large price fluctuations, a large market place being closed or restricted or experiencing technical
problems suchas an IT systemfailure or network disruption could affect BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.'s ability
to maintain a secondary market.

Each Issuer may, but is not obligedto, at any time purchase Securities at any price in theopen market or by tender
or private offer/treaty. Any Manager may also be a market-maker foran issueof Securities but it is not obliged to
and may cease to do so at any time. Even if a Manager is a market-maker for an issue of Securities (including
where BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. acts as market-maker), the secondary market for such Securities may be
limited.

The only means through whicha Holder can realise value fromtheir Securities prior to its Redemption Date is to
sellthemat the market price in an available secondary market, which may bea lower price thana Holder's original
investment. If there is no or a limited secondary market for the Securities and the Holder is unable to sell its
Securities they will have to wait until redemption, as applicable, of the Securities torealise any value.

Securities sold in the United States orto U.S. persons may be subjectto transfer restrictions, whichwill also limit
a Holder's ability to sell their Securities prior to redemption or exercise.

Effect of credit rating reduction

The value of the Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the creditworthiness
of the relevant Issuerand, if applicable, the Guarantor. Such perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings
attributedtotheoutstanding securities of BNPP B.V. or BNPP by standard statistical rating services, such as S&P
Global Ratings Europe Limited, Fitch France S.A.S., Moody's Investors Service Ltd., and DBRS Limited. A
reduction in the rating, if any, attributed to outstanding debt securities of BNPP B.V. or BNPP by one of these
rating agencies could result in areductionin the trading value ofthe Securities.

Risksassociated with Securities with a nexus to emerging markets

Where the value and rate of return an investor can expect to receive in respect of the Securities depends on the
performance of one or more Underlying References issued by issuers located in, or subject to regulation in,
emerging or developing countries, denominated in the currency of, or are traded in, emerging or developing
countries orwhere the Securities are denominated in currencies of emerging or developing countries, Holders are
exposed to greater risks associated with political and economic uncertainty, adverse governmental policies,
restrictions on foreign investment and currency convertibility, currency exchangerate fluctuations, possible lower
levels of disclosure and regulation, and uncertainties as to the status, interpretation and application of laws
including, but notlimited to, those relating to expropriation, nationalisation and confiscation. Holders of Securities
with such a nexus to emerging or developing countries are exposed to the risk that such Securities may be less
liquid and the prices of such Securities more volatile, thus increasing the risk thatsuch Holders may experience a
loss on their investment. In addition, settlement of trades in such markets may be slower and more likely to be
subject tofailure than in markets in developed countries.
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Investorsin such Securities should also be aware that the probability of the occurrence ofa Hedging Disruption
Event (or other Adjustment Event under the relevant terms of the Securities as set out further in the Conditions)
and consequently loss of investment or profit by an investor may be higher for certain developing or emerging
markets.

Legal Risks
Meetings ofHolders

The Terms and Conditions of the Securities contain provisions for calling meetings of Holders to consider matters
affecting their interests generally (see Condition 9.4 (Meetings of Holders)). These provisions permit defined
majorities to bind all Holders, including Holders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting, Holders
who did notconsentto the Written Resolutions or Holders who voted in a manner contrary tothe majority. General
meetings orwritten consultations may deliberate onany proposal relating to the modification of the conditions of
the Securities and subject to the limitations provided by French law. Holders will, in certain circumstances, be
grouped for the defence of their common interests in a separate legal entity called " Masse" (as defined in Condition
9.4 (Meetings of Holders)). While it is not possible to assess the likelihood that the Conditions will need to be
amended during the termof the Securities by a meeting ofthe Holders, if a decision is adopted by a majority of
Holders and such modifications impair or limit the rights of Holders, this may negatively affect the market value
of the Securities, although the probability of sucha decision being taken by Holders is consideredto be low.

TerminationofSecurities in theevent of illegality or impracticability

If the Issuer determines thatthe performance of its obligations under the Securities has become illegal, impossible
or impracticable in whole or in part forany reason, the Issuer may cancel, in the case of Warrants, or redeem, in
the case of Certificates, the Securities by paying to each Holder the Amount (as defined in "Investment
Considerations" below) specified in the applicable Final Terms. Such cancellation or redemption may result in an
investor losingsome orall of theirinvestmentin the Securities.

Potential conflicts of interests

BNPP, BNPP B.V. and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents may engage in activities or
arrangements in arange of capacities thatmay result in conflicts of interest between their own financial
interestsandthoseofany Holders, forexample, by:

(i) engaging in trading activities (including hedging activities) relating to the Underlying Reference
or Reference Entity and other instruments or derivative products based on or relating to the
Underlying Reference or Reference Entity of any Securities for their proprietary accounts or for
otheraccounts under their management;

(i) underwriting future offerings of shares or other securities relating to an issue of Securities or
acting as financial adviser or in a commercial banking capacity to certain companies or
companies whose shares or other securities are included in a basket in respect of a Series of
Securities;

(iii) acting in anumber of different capacities in relation toan underlying Index(including a Custom
Index), including, but notlimited to, as issuer of the constituents of the Index(or CustomIndex
as the case may be), indexsponsor or calculation agent;

(iv) engaging in business, such as investing in, extending loans to, providing advisory services to,
entering into financing or derivative transactions with a company that has issued shares or a
debt instrument, a fund that has issued fund shares or units, an exchange traded instrument
comprising the relevantUnderlying Reference or a Reference Entity;
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v) receiving a fee for performing any services orentering intoany transactions described above;

(vi) publishing research reports relating to any Underlying Reference or Reference Entity, which
express views that are inconsistent with purchasing or holding the Securities;

(vii) making determinations regarding the occurrence of various events in respect of the Securities
and the applicable consequences in its role as Calculation Agent or Issuer, as the case may be,
of the Securities.

Any ofthe conflicts of interest described above could have a material adverse effect onthe value of the
Securities andthe return a Holder can expect toreceive ontheir Securities, as none of BNPP, BNPP B.V.
and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents, acting in any capacity, is required to have regard to
the interests of the Holders. Investors should also refer to the description of the role of the Calculation
Agentin the "Investment Considerations" section below.

French Insolvency Law

As a société anonyme incorporated in France, French insolvency law applies to BNP Paribas as Issuer or
Guarantor. Under French insolvency law holders of debt securities are automatically grouped into a single
assembly of holders (the "Assembly™) in order to defend their common interests if a safeguard procedure
(procédure de sauvegarde), accelerated safeguard (procédure de sauvegarde accélérée), accelerated financil
safeguard procedure (procédure de sauvegarde financiére accélérée) or a judicial reorganisation procedure
(procédure de redressementjudiciaire) is opened in France with respect to the Issuer.

The Assembly comprises holders ofall debt securities issued by the Issuer (including the Securities), whether or
not underadebt issuance programme and regardless of their ranking andtheir governing law.

The Assembly deliberates on the proposed safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde), proposed accelerated
safeguard (projetde plan de sauvegarde accélérée), proposed accelerated financial safeguard plan (projet de plan
de sauvegarde financiere accélérée) or proposed judicial reorganisation plan (projet de plan de redressement)
applicable to BNPP and may furtheragree to:

- partially or totally reschedule payments which are due and/or write-off debts and/or convert debts into
equity (including with respect to amounts owed under the Securities; and/or

- establish an unequal treatment between holders of debtsecurities (includingthe Holders) as appropriate
underthe circumstances.

Decisions of the Assembly will be taken by a two-thirds majority (calculated as a proportion of the amount of
debt securities held by the holders expressinga vote). No quorumis required to hold the Assembly.

Forthe avoidance of doubt, the provisions relating to the Masse, the General Meeting ofthe Holders and Written
Resolutions setoutin the Conditions will not be applicable in thesecircumstances.

The procedures described above (as may be amended fromtime to time) could havean adverse impact on Holders
seeking repaymentofthe Securities in the event that the Issuer or its subsidiaries were to become insolvent.

The commencement of insolvency proceedings against the Issuer would have a material adverse effect on the
market value of Securities issued by the Issuer. Any decisions taken by the Assembly could substantially impact
the Holders ofthe Securities and even cause themto lose all or part of theirinvestment, should they not be able
to recoveramounts due to themfromthe Issuer.

The implementation ofthe EU Bank Recoveryand Resolution Directive could materiallyaffect the Securitiesand
their Holders
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Directive 2014/59/EU, as amended by Directive (EU) 2019/879 of the European Parliament and of the Council
0f20 May 2019 (the "Bank Recoweryand Resolution Directive" or "BRRD") provides for the establishment of
an EU-wide framework forthe recovery andresolution of credit institutions and investment firms. The BRRD has
been implemented in France by several legislative texts to provide relevant resolution authorities with, among
otherpowers,acredible set oftools (the "BRRD Resolution Tools") to intervene sufficiently early and quickly
inan unsoundor failing institution soas to ensure the continuity of the institution’s critical financial and economic
functions, while minimising the impact of its potential failure on the economy andfinancial system.

In respect of Securities where BNPP is the Issuerorthe Guarantor, if BNPP is determined to be failing or likely
to fail within the meaning of, and under the conditions set by the BRRD, and the relevant resolution authority
applies any, oracombination, of the BRRD Resolution Tools (including, a sale ofthe business, thecreation of a
bridge institution, assetseparation or bail-in), any shortfall fromthe sale of the BNPP's assets may lead toa partial
reductionin the outstandingamounts of certain claims of unsecured creditors of thatentity (including, as the case
may be, the Securities or the Guarantee), or, in a worst case scenario, a reduction to zero. The unsecured debt
claims of BNPP (including, as the case may be, the Securities or the Guarantee) might also be converted into
equity or other instruments of ownership, in accordance with the hierarchy of claims in normal insolvency
proceedings, which equity or other instruments could also be subject toany future cancellation, transfer or dilution
(such reduction or cancellation being first on common equity tier one instruments, thereafter the reduction,
cancellation or conversion being on additional tier one instruments, then tier two instruments and other
subordinated debts, then other eligible liabilities). The relevant resolution authority may also seek to amend the
terms (such as varying the date for redemption) of any outstanding unsecured debt securities (including, as the
case may be, the Securities or the Guarantee) (all as further described in Condition 32 (Recognition Of Bail-In
And Loss Absorption).

Public financial support to resolve the Issuer (or the Guarantor, as the case may be) where there is arisk of failure
will only be usedas alast resort, after having assessed and applied the resolution tools above, including the bail
in tool, to the maximum extent possible whilst maintaining financial stability.

The exercise ofany power under the BRRD by therelevantresolutionauthority or any suggestion thatsuch powers
may be exercised could materially adversely affect the rights of the Holders of Securities, the price or value of
their investment in the Securities and/or the ability ofthe Issuer orthe Guarantor, as the case may be, to satisfy
its obligations under the Securities or the Guarantee, respectively. As a result, Holders of Securities could lose all
or asubstantial part of theirinvestment in the Securities.

The regulationand reform of "benchmarks" may adversely affect the value of Securities linked to or referencing
such "benchmarks"

A number of major interest rates (including the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") and the Euro
Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR")), other rates, indices and other published values or benchmarks are the
subject of recent national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. These reforms
may cause such benchmarks to perform differently than in the past, to disappear entirely or have other
consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could have a material adverse effectonthe value
of and return on Securities linked to any such value or benchmark.

The EU Regulation on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure
the performance of investment funds (the "Benchmark Regulation™) is a key element of ongoing regulatory
reformin the EU and the UK and has applied, subjectto certain transitional provisions, since 1 January 2018. In
addition to so-called "critical benchmark" indices, such as LIBOR and EURIBOR, other interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, and indices, including equity, commodity and "proprietary” indices or strategies, will in most
cases be withinscopeofthe Benchmark Regulation as "benchmarks" where they are used to determine theamount
payable under, orthe value of, certain financial instruments (including Securities listed on an EU or UK regulated
market, EU or UK multilateral trading facility (*"MTF"), EU or UK organised trading facility ("OTF") or via a
systematic internaliser).
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The Benchmark Regulation applies to the contribution of input data to a benchmark, the administration of a
benchmark, and the use of a benchmark in the EU (which, for these purposes and as used below, includes the
United Kingdom). Amongstother things, the Benchmark Regulation requires EU benchmark administrators to be
authorised or registered as such and to comply with extensive requirements relating to benchmark administration.
It also prohibits certain uses by EU supervised entities of (a) benchmarks provided by EU administrators which
are not authorised or registered in accordance with the Benchmark Regulation and (b) benchmarks provided by
non-EU administrators where (i) the administrator's regulatory regime has notbeen determined to be "equivalent”
to that ofthe EU, (ii) the administrator has notbeenrecognised in accordance with the Benchmark Regulation, or
(i) the benchmark has not been endorsed in accordance with the Benchmark Regulation.

The Benchmarks Regulation could have a material adverse impact on any Securities for which a request for
admission totradingona trading venue has been made, orwhichare traded onatrading venue or via a "'systematic
internaliser” linked to, referencing or otherwise dependent (in whole or in part) upon a "benchmark" for
Benchmarks Regulation purposes.

Any ofthe above changes orany other consequential changes to any benchmark may result in:

. the level of the published rate or the level of the "benchmark™ or the volatility of the published rate or
levelbeing adversely affected;

. an increase in the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting of a
"benchmark™ and complying with such regulations or requirements;

. the "benchmark™ (including certain currencies or tenors of benchmarks) being discontinued or otherwise
unavailable, whichmay result in the rate of interest in respect of the Securities (if any) being determined
based onanyapplicable fallback provisions;

. the methodology or other terms of the benchmark being changed in order to comply with regulatory
requirements;

. the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event (as further described under "Risks associated with
the occurrence ofan Administrator/Benchmark Event" below); or

. have otheradverse effects or unforeseen consequences.

Any suchconsequences could have a material adverse effecton the value of and return on any Securities and/or
could lead to the Securities being de-listed, adjusted, redeemed early following the occurrence of an
Administrator/Benchmark Event, subject to discretionary valuation or adjustment by the Calculation Agent or
otherwise impacted depending on the particular "benchmark and the applicable terms of the Securities. This
could also negatively affect the liquidity of the Securities and a Holder's ability to sell their Securities in the
secondary market.

Risks associated withtheoccurrence ofan Administrator/Benchmark Event

If specified as an Optional Additional Disruption Event in the applicable Final Terms, the occurrence of an
Administrator/Benchmark Event (as defined in Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional
Additional Disruption Events)and more fully described in the "Investment Considerations” section below) may
lead to redemption or adjustment of the Securities. Any such adjustmentor redemption of the Securities following
the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of
such Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive ontheir investment.

Future discontinuance of LIBOR or EURIBOR may adverselyaffect the value ofthe Securities
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As furtherdescribed in the " Investment Considerations™ section below, thereis uncertainty as towhether LIBOR
will cease to exist entirely afterthe end of2021 and it is not possible to predict whether, and towhat extent, panel
banks will continue to provide LIBOR submissions to the administrator of LIBOR going forwards. As a
consequence, LIBOR may perform differently than it did in the past and may have other consequences which
cannotbe predicted. The futureof EURIBOR is also uncertain. Amongst other developments, relevant authorities
are strongly encouraging the transition away from Interbank Offered Rates ("IBORs"), suchas LIBOR and
EURIBOR, and have identified "risk free rates™ to eventually take the place of such IBORs as primary
benchmarks. This includes (i) for sterling LIBOR, a reformed Sterling Overnight IndexAverage (*SONIA™), so
that SONIA may be established as the primary sterling interest rate benchmark by the end of 2021, (ii) for EONIA
and EURIBOR, a new Euro Short-TermRate ("€STR") as the neweurorisk free rate, and (iii) for USD LIBOR,
the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") to be established as the primary U.S. dollar interest rate
benchmark. The risk free rates have a different methodology and other important differences fromthe IBORs they
will eventually replace and have little, if any, historical track record and may be subject to changes in their
methodology. It is not known whether certain IBORs will continue long-termin their current form. Any of these
developments could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on Securities linked to any such
rates.

The reforms and eventual replacement of IBORs with risk free rates may cause the relevant IBOR to perform
differently than in the past, to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannotbe predicted.

Investors in Securities referencing LIBOR or EURIBOR as a floating rate of interest face the risk that such rate
will be discontinued or otherwise unavailable during thetermoftheir Securities, in which casetherate of interest
on the Floating Rate Certificates which reference LIBOR or EURIBO will be determined forthe relevant period
by the fall-back provisions applicable to such Securities. Depending on the manner in which the LIBOR or
EURIBOR rate is to be determined under the Terms and Conditions, this may in certain circumstances (i) if ISDA
Determination or FBF Determination applies, be reliant upon the provision by reference banks of offered
quotations forthe LIBOR or EURIBOR rate which, depending on market circumstances, may not be available at
the relevanttime, (i) if Screen Rate Determinationapplies, result in the effectiveapplication ofa fixed rate based
on the rate which applied in the previous period when LIBOR or EURIBOR was available, or (iii) be determined
by reference to an alternative rate selected by an institution with authority consistent with industry accepted
standards or, in the absence of such alternative rate, by a third party agent appointed by the Calculation Agent. As
the replacement rate will not be identical to the original rate (and may not be comparable), any of the foregoing
circumstances could have a significant adverse effect onthe value or liquidity of, and return on, any Floating Rate
Certificates which reference LIBOR or EURIBOR. In addition, any Holders of such Securities that enter into
hedginginstruments based on the original replacementreference rate may find their hedges to beineffective, and
they may incur costs replacing such hedges with instruments tied to the new replacement referencerate.
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IMPORTANT NOTICES

This Base Prospectus (together with supplements to this Base Prospectus fromtime to time (each a " Supplement"
and togetherthe "Supplements™)) comprises a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 8 of Regulation (EU)
2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017, as amended (the "Prospectus
Regulation™)and contains orincorporates by reference all relevant information concerning BNP Paribas, BNPP
B.V. and the BNP Paribas Group (being BNP Paribas together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group")
which is necessary to enable investors to make an informed assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial
position, profit and losses and prospects of the Issuers, the rights attaching to the Securities and the reason for the
issuanceand itsimpact on the Issuers. In relation to each separate issue of Securities, the final offer price and the
amount of such Securities will be determined by the relevant Issuerand the relevantmanager in accordance with
prevailing market conditions at the time of the issue of the Securities and will be set out in the applicable Final
Terms.

In accordance with Article 23(2) of the Prospectus Regulation, investors who have already agreed to purchase or
subscribefor Securities beforethis Base Prospectus is published have the right, exercisable within two (2) working
days after the publication of this Base Prospectus, to withdraw their acceptances. Investors should be aware,
however, thatthis period may be extended by therelevant Issuer.

No person is or has beenauthorised to give any information orto make any representation not containedin or not
consistent with this document or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the
Securities and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been
authorised by BNPP B.V. or BNPP or any manager of an issue of Securities (as applicable to such issue of
Securities, each a " Manager"). This document does not constitute, and may not be used forthe purposes of, an
offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any
personto whomit is unlawfulto make such offer or solicitationandno actionis being takento permit an offering
of the Securities orthe distribution of this documentin any jurisdiction where any such action is required.

This documentis to be read and construed in conjunction with alldocuments which are deemed to be incorporated
herein by reference (see ""Documents Incorporated by Reference™ below).

Warrants create options exercisable by the relevant holder or which will be automatically exercised as provided
herein. There is no obligation on the relevant Issuer to pay any amount or deliver any asset to any holder of a
Warrant unless the relevantholder duly exercises such Warrant or such Warrants are automatically exercised and,
where applicable, an Exercise Notice is duly delivered. The Warrants will be exercisable in the manner set forth
herein and in the applicable Final Terms. In certain instances, the holder of a Warrant will be required to certify,
inter alia (in accordance with the provisions outlined in Condition 22 of "Terms and Conditions ofthe Securities”
below), thatitis nota U.S. personorexercisingsuch Warrant on behalf ofa U.S. person (as defined in Regulation
S). Certificates shall be redeemed on each instalment date and/or the redemption date by paymentofone or more
Cash Settlement Amount(s) (in the case of Cash Settled Securities) and/or by delivery ofthe Entitlement (in the
case of Physical Delivery Securities). In order to receive the Entitlement, the holder ofa Security will be required
to submit an Asset Transfer Notice and in certain circumstances to certify, inter alia (in accordance with the
provisions outlined in Condition 30.2(a) of " Terms and Conditions ofthe Securities” in the case of Certificates),
thatitis nota U.S. personoractingon behalfofa U.S. person.

The Securities of eachissue may be sold by therelevant Issuer and/or any Manager at such time and at such prices
as the relevant Issuer and/or the Manager(s) may select. There is no obligation upon the relevant Issuer or any
Managerto sellall ofthe Securities ofany issue. The Securities ofany issue may be offered orsold fromtime to
time in one or more transactions in the over-the-counter market or otherwise at prevailing market prices or in
negotiated transactions, at the discretion of the relevant Issuer.
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Subject to therestrictions set forth herein, each Issuer shall have complete discretion as to whattype of Securities
it issuesandwhen.

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore, as
modified or amended from time to time (the SFA) — Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Tems
in respect of any Securities, all Securities issued or to be issued under the Programme shall be capital markets
products other than prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets
Products) Regulations 2018 of Singapore) and Specified Investment Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA
04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on
Investment Products).

IMPORTANT - EEA AND UK RETAIL INVESTORS - If the Final Terms in respect of any Securities specify
the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA and UK Retail Investors— Legend" as applicable, the Securities are notintended
to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to
any retail investor in the European Economic Area (the"EEA™) orin the United Kingdom (the "UK™) other than
in the jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document willbe made available. If the Final Terms in respect
of any Securities specify the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA and UK Retail Investors — Legend™as not applicable,
the Securities may be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA or in the UK,
provided that, where a key information document is required pursuant to the PRIIPs Regulation (as defined
below), the Securities may only be offered, sold or otherwise made available to retail investors in the EEA orin
the UK in the jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available. For these purposes, a
retail investor meansa personwho is one (ormore) of: (i) a retail client as definedin point (11) of Article 4(1) of
Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID II'); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97
(as amended, the "Insurance Distribution Directive" or "1DD"), where that customer would not qualify as a
professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MIFID II; or (iii) notaqualified investoras defined
in the Prospectus Regulation. Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No
1286/2014 (as amended, the "PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making
them available to retail investors in the EEA or in the UK has been prepared, other than in respect of the
jurisdiction(s) for which a key information documentwill be made available, and therefore offering or selling the
Securities or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA or in the UK may be unlawful
underthe PRIIPs Regulation.

Amounts payable under the Securities may be calculated by reference to one or more “benchmarks” for the
purposes of Regulation (EU) No. 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and ofthe Councilof8 June 2016 (the
"Benchmarks Regulation"). In this case, a statement will be included in the applicable Final Terms as to whether
or not the relevant administrator of the “benchmark” is included in ESMA’s register of administrators under
Article 36 of the Benchmarks Regulation. Certain "benchmarks" may either (i) not fall within the scope of the
Benchmarks Regulation by virtue of Article 2 ofthat regulation or (i) transitional provisions in Article 51 of the
Benchmarks Regulationmay apply to certain other "benchmarks" whichwould otherwisebe in scope such that at
the date ofthe applicable Final Terms, the administrator ofthe "benchmark™ is not required to be included in the
register ofadministrators.

MiIFID Il product gowernance / target market — The Final Terms in respect of any Securities may include a
legend entitled "MIFID Il product governance/target market assessment™ which will outline the target market
assessment in respect of the Securities, taking into account the five (5) categories referred to in item 18 of the
Guidelines published by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) on 5 February 2018, and which
channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or
recommending the Securities (a "distributor" as defined in MiFID Il) should take into consideration the target
market assessment; however, a distributor subjectto MiFID Il is responsible for undertaking its own target market
assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining the target market assessment) and
determining appropriate distribution channels.

No Manager has independently verified the information contained or incorporated by reference herein.
Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility is
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accepted byany Manager as to theaccuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Base Prospectus
or any otherinformation provided by BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP. The Manager(s) accept(s) no liability in relation
to the information contained in this Base Prospectus or any other information provided by BNPP B.V. and/or
BNPP in connectionwith the Programme.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any
Securities (a) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be considered as a
recommendationby BNPP B.V. or BNPP orany Manager thatanyrecipientofthis Base Prospectus or any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Securities should purchase any Securities. Each
investor contemplating purchasing any Securities should make its own independent investigation of the financial
conditionandaffairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP. Neither this Base
Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Securities
constitutes an offer oran invitation by oron behalf of BNPP B.V., BNPP or the Managers or any other personto
subscribefororto purchase any Securities.

The delivery ofthis BaseProspectus does notat any time imply that the information contained herein conceming
BNPP B.V. or BNPP is correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof orthat any other information supplied
in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document
containingthesame. No Manager undertakes to review the financial condition or affairs of BNPP B.V. or BNPP
during the life of the Programme. Investors should review, inter alia, the most recently published audited annual
non-consolidated financial statements and interim financial statements of BNPP B.V. and/or the most recently
published audited annual consolidated financial statements, unaudited semi-annual interimconsolidated financial
statements and quarterly financial results of BNPP, as applicable, when deciding whether or not to purchase any
Securities.
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INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS
1. General investment considerations associatedwith the Securities
A Security's purchaseprice may notreflectitsinherent value

Prospective investors in the Securities should be aware that the purchase price of a Security does not necessarily
reflect its inherent value. Any difference betweena Security's purchase price and its inherentvalue may be dueto
a number of different factors including, without limitation, prevailing market conditions and fees, discounts or
commissions paid oraccordedto thevarious parties involved in structuringand/or distributing the Security. Any
such difference in value could negatively affect the return an investor may receive. For further information
prospective investors should refer to the party fromwhomthey are purchasing the Securities. Prospective investors
may also wish to seekan independent valuation of Securities prior to their purchase.

Securities are Unsecured Obligations

The Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer and will rank pari passu with
themselves (in relation to Securities issued by BNPP, the term "unsubordinated obligations™ refers to senior
preferred obligations which fall or are expressed to fall within the category of obligations described in Article
L.613-30-3 1-3°. of the French Code monétaire et financier). Each issue of Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will
be guaranteed by BNPP pursuant to the Guarantee. The obligations of BNPP under the Guarantee are senior
preferred obligations within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier)
and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passuwith allits other presentand future senior prefemed
and unsecured obligations, subjectto such exceptions as may fromtime to time be mandatory under French law.

Descriptionofthe role ofthe Calculation Agent

0) The Calculation Agent may be an Affiliate of the relevant Issuer or, if applicable, the Guarantor, orthe
Calculation Agent may be the Issueritselfor, if applicable, the Guarantor itself. The Calculation Agent
is undernoobligationtotake intoaccountthe interests of Holders of the Securities, including with respect
to making certain determinations and judgments, such as whether an event, including a Market
Disruption Event or a Settlement Disruption Event (each, as defined in the Conditions), has occuned
and, in some cases, the applicable consequences.

(i) The Calculation Agent is obligedto carry out its duties and functions as calculation agent acting in good
faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

Investors shouldalso referto " Potential conflicts ofinterests™ in the "Risks" section.
Certainspecific information may not be known atthe beginning ofan offer period

In certain circumstances at te commencement of an offer period in respect of Securities, but prior tothe issue date
of such Securities certain specific information (specifically, the final payout and/or the Knock-in Level and/or
Knock-out Level used to ascertain whether a Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event, as applicable, has occurred)
may not be known. In these circumstances the Final Terms will specify in place of the relevant rate, level or
percentage, as applicable, an indicative range of rates, levels or percentages. The actual rate, level or percentage,
as applicable, applicable to the Securities will be selected by the Issuer fromwithin the range and will be notified
to investors prior to the Issue Date. The actual rate, level or percentage, as applicable, will be determined in
accordancewith market conditions by the Issuer in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

Prospective purchasers of Securities will be required to make their investment decision based on the indicative

range ratherthanthe actual rate, level or percentage, as applicable, which will only be fixed afterthe investrrent
decision is made but willapply to the Securities onceissued.
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The Barrier Level, Bonus Leveland/or Cap Level may not be known until after the Issue Date

In certain circumstances in respect of ETS Payouts, the Barrier Level, Bonus Leveland/or Cap Level may not be
known at the issue date of the Securities. In these circumstances, the Final Terms will specify that the Barrier
Level, Bonus Leveland/or Cap Level, as applicable, will be the product ofa specified percentageand the Closing
Level, Closing Price, Relevant Price or Settlement Price, as applicable, ofthe Underlying Reference onthe Strike
Date (rounded upwards or downwards as determined by the Calculation Agent in good faithand in a commercially
reasonable manner). Following the Strike Date, the Issuer will give notice of theactual Barrier Level, Bonus Level
and/or Cap Level, as applicable, applicable to the Securities. Prospective investors should review the Final Tenms
together with the information contained in the notice in orderto ascertain the Barrier Level, Bonus Leveland/or
Cap Level which will apply to the Securities.

The relationship of the United Kingdom with the European Union may affect the business (including the
Securities) ofthe relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (ifapplicable) in the United Kingdom

Underthe terms of the ratified EU-UK article 50 withdrawal agreement (the "article 50 withdrawal agreement”),
a transition period has now commenced which will last until 31 December 2020. During this period, most BU
rules and regulations will continue toapply toandin the UK and negotiations in relation to a free trade agreement
will be ongoing. Under the article 50 withdrawal agreement, the transition period may, before 1 July 2020, be
extended once by upto twoyears. However, the UK legislation ratifying thearticle 50 withdrawal agreement (the
European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 as amended by the European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020
(as so amended, the "EUWA™)) containsa prohibitionon a Minister of the Crown agreeing any extension tothe
transition period. While this does not entirely remove the prospect that the transition period will be extended (as
the UK Parliament could pass legislation that would override the effect of the prohibition in the EUWA), the
likelihood of a further extension is reduced. During the transition period, the UK and the EU may not reach
agreement on the future relationship between them, or may reach a significantly narrower agreement than that
envisaged by the political declaration of the European Commissionandthe UK Government.

To minimise the risks for firms and businesses the UK Government continues preparations (including the UK
Government publishing further draft secondary legislation under powers provided in the EUWA) to ensure that
there is a functioning statute book at theend of the transition period.

Due to the on-going political uncertainty as regards the structure of the future relationship between the UK and
the EU, the precise impact on the business of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) in the United
Kingdomis difficult to determine. As such, noassurance canbegiven that such matters would not adversely affect
the ability of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) to satisfy its obligations under any Series of
Securities with a United Kingdom nexus and/or the market value and/or the liquidity of such Securities in the
secondary market.
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2. Investment considerations associatedwith certaininterestrates
Additional information on the future discontinuance of LIBOR

On 27 July 2017, the Chief Executive of the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority, which regulates
LIBOR, announced that it does not intend to continue to persuade, or use its powers to compel, panel banks to
submit rates forthecalculation of LIBOR to the administrator of LIBOR after 2021. The announcement indicates
that the continuation of LIBOR on the current basis is notguaranteed after 2021.

Specifically, the sustainability of LIBOR has been questioned as a result of the absence of relevant active
underlying markets and possible disincentives (including possibly as a result of benchmark reforms) for market
participants to continue contributing to such benchmarks. On 27 July 2017, and in a subsequent speech by its
Chief Executive on 12 July 2018, the UK Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™) confirmed thatit will no longer
persuade or compel banks to submit rates for the calculation of the LIBOR benchmark after 2021 (the "FCA
Announcements™). The FCA Announcements indicated that the continuation of LIBOR on the current basis
cannotand will not be guaranteed after 2021.

Investors should be aware that, if LIBOR (or EURIBOR) were discontinued or otherwise unavailable, the rate of
interest on the Securities will be determined for the relevant period by the fall-back provisions applicable to the
Securities, as further described in the Conditions.

If LIBOR, EURIBOR or any other benchmark is discontinued, the applicable floating rate of interest may be
changed

In respect of Securities which pay a floating rate of interest, if the Issuer or the Calculation Agent determines at
any time that the relevantreference rate has beendiscontinued, the Calculation Agent will use, as a substitute for
the relevant reference rate, the alternative reference rate selected by the central bank, reserve bank, monetary
authority or any similar institution in the jurisdiction of the currency of the relevant rate that is consistent with
industry accepted standards. If the Calculation Agent notifies the Issuer that it is unable to determine such an
alternative referencerate, the Calculation Agent willappoint a determinationagent (which may be the Issuer, the
Guarantor (if applicable) or an affiliate of the Issuer, the Guarantor (ifapplicable) or the Calculation Agent) who
will determine areplacement reference rate, as well as any required changes to the business day convention, the
definition ofbusiness day, the interest determination date, the day count fraction andany method for calculating
the replacement rate including any adjustment required to make such replacement reference rate comparable to
the relevant reference rate. Such replacement reference rate will (in the absence of manifest error) be final and
binding, and willapply to the relevant Securities.

The replacement rate may performdifferently fromthe discontinued reference rate. There can be no assurance
that any adjustment applied to any Securities will adequately compensate for this impact.

The conditions also provide for other fallbacks, such as consulting reference banks for rate quotations, which may
not be possible ifthe reference banks decline to provide such quotations for a sustained period of time (or at all).
If the relevant screen page for the reference rateis not available or it is not possible to obtain quotations then the
Calculation Agent will determine the relevant rate of interest for the affected Securities as the rate it determines
was last available prior to such non-availability. The replacement rate may be different to the original rate and
this may negatively affect the valueofthe Securities.

It is possible that, if a reference rate is discontinued, a clear successor rate will not be established in the market
for some time. Accordingly, the terms of the Securities provide as an ultimate fallback that, following the
designation of a replacementrate, if the Calculation Agentor the determination agent appointed by the Calculation
Agent considers that such replacement reference rate is no longer substantially comparable to the original
reference rate ordoes notconstitute an industry accepted successor rate, the Calculation Agentwillappoint or re-
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appointadeterminationagent (which may or may not be the same entity as the original determination agent) for
the purposes of confirming the replacement reference rate or determining a substitute replacement reference rate
(despite the continued existence of the initial replacement reference rate). Any such substitute replacerment
reference rate, oncedesignated pursuantto the Conditions, will apply to the affected Securities. This could impact
the relevant rate of interest in respectofthe Securities. In addition, any Holders of such Securities thatenter into
hedginginstruments based on the original replacementreference rate may find their hedges to beineffective, and
they may incur costs replacing such hedges with instruments tied to the new replacement referencerate.

3. Investment considerations associatedwith Securities with specific features
Additional informationin respectof ConstantLeverage Securities

Where ETS Final Payout 2300 applies in respectof the Securities, the percentage change in value of the Securities
over one day will be the Leverage Factor which is a constant factor for each Security multiplied by the daily
performance of the relevant Underlying Reference measured as the percentage change of the reference price from
one day tothe next day adjusted by theapplicable Financing Component (which includes a Fee, an Interest Margin
and Hedging Costs and may be positive or negative depending on, amongst other things, prevailing interest rates).
Bull Constant Leverage Certificates aim to produce a performance equal to the Leverage Factor (as specified in
the applicable Final Terms) multiplied by the performance of the relevant Underlying Reference, whereas Bear
Constant Leverage Certificates aim to produce a performance equal to the Leverage Factor times the inverse
performance of the relevantUnderlying Reference. However, becausethe performance of the Securities over any
period longer than one day will be derived from the compounded daily performance of the relevant Underlying
Reference during that period, such Security's performance may differ significantly to the overall performance of
the Underlying Reference over that same period. Accordingly, compared to a security that measures change in
value of the Underlying Reference between two dates, Constant Leverage Securities may have significantly
different outcomes depending on the number and direction of changes in the daily value of the Underlying
Reference over such period and the order in which such changes occur. Constant Leverage Securities are therefore
describedas " path-dependent” financial instruments. The potential for divergence between the Performance of the
Constant Leverage Securities and the performance of the Underlying Reference over the same period of time will
increase as such period becomes longer and will be most marked in periods when the value of the Underlying
Reference is volatile. Consequently, Constant Leverage Securities are only suitable for intra-day trading or very
short investmentperiods.

4, Investment considerations associated with adjustment, disruption and related redemption
provisions in respectof the Securities

Descriptionof Additional Disruption Event and Optional Additional Disruption Events

The Additional Disruption Events correspond to changes in law (including changes in taxor regulatory capital
requirements) and hedging disruptions in respect of any hedging transactions relating to the Securities. The
Optional Additional Disruption Events that may be specified in the applicable Final Terms correspond to the
occurrence of anevent relating to benchmark reform(including a material change, permanent cancellation or issue
with any official authorisation of the benchmark, administrator or sponsor) (an Administrator/Benchmark Event),
an early redemption ofany Debt Instruments (a Cancellation Event), an issue converting or determining a rate for
a currency (a Currency Event), a failure to deliver assets comprising the Entitlement in the case of Physical
Delivery Securities (a Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity), a material hindrance or delay to the performance of
the Issuer's obligations under the Securities (an Extraordinary External Event), a materially increased cost of
hedging (an Increased Cost of Hedging), an increase in the rate to borrowany relevant Share orany component
ofan Index(an Increased Cost of Stock Borrow), circumstances where it is impracticable, illegal orimpossible to
purchase, sell, hold or otherwise deal in the Underlying Reference (a Jurisdiction Event), insolvency of the
relevant Share Company or Basket Company (an Insolvency Filing), an inability to borrow any relevant share (a
Loss of Stock Borrow), a drop in the price of a Share below 5 per cent. (or such other value specified in the
applicable Final Terms) of its Strike Price (a Stop-Loss Event) and/oran eventthatis notattributable tothe Issuer
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that significantly alters the economics of the Securities (a Significant Alteration Event). Each of the Additional
Disruption Eventsand Optional Additional Disruption Events are both more fully set out in the Conditions.

Consequences ofa Disrupted Day

The occurrence ofa Disrupted Day may delay the determinationofthe final level, value, price or amount of the
index, share, ETl interest, debt instrument, future, commodity or commodity indexwhich could also cause a delay
in the paymentofany Cash Settlement Amount, as more fully set outin the Conditions.

Descriptionof Early Redemption Amounts

The manner in which the amount due to Holders on an early redemption of the Securities is determined may
depend on the event that has triggered an early redemption of the Securities and the early redemption method
specified in the applicable Final Terms. The Securities will be redeemed at an amountcalculated by reference to:

1. in the case of Warrants:

@) (unless Market Value or Highest Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms) the fair market value
of such Securities; or

(b) (if Highest Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms) the greater of the fair market value of the
Securities and the Protected Amountspecified in the Final Terms;

2. in the case of Certificates:

@) (unless otherwise specified or if Market Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms) the fair market
value of such Securities;

(b) (if the applicable Final Terms indicate redemption will be delayed) the fair market value of the Securities
at the point of the event triggering redemption plus the Issuer's cost of funding up to the scheduled
Redemption Date;

(©) (if Highest Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms) the greater of the fair market value of the
Securities and the Protected Amountspecified in the Final Terms; or

(d) (if Monetisation Optionis specified in the applicable Final Terms and Holders donotelect to receive the
fair market value of the Securities) the present value of the Protected Amount specified in the Final
Terms, the market value ofthe embedded derivative, a hypothetical interest rate that might be achieved
on an alternative debt instrument with the same tenor as the Securities and the remaining time to the
scheduled Redemption Date (the "Monetisation Amount"),

each an "Early Redemption Amount”.

In the case of 2.(b), payment of the Early Redemption Amount willbe made on the scheduled Redemption Date.
Any determination of the fair market value of the Securities will take into accounttheeventor circumstances that
triggered theearly redemption. The Final Terms may specify thatany costs incurred by the Issuer (or its affiliates)
as a result ofunwinding any hedging arrangements associated with the Securities may not be taken into account
when determining the amount payable onearly redemption.

If the Final Terms specify that Highest Value, Market Value or Monetisation Option are applicable, the amount
the Holder receives on early redemptionwill include reimbursement of any costs thatwere charged as partof the
Issue Price of the Securities and will not include a deduction of any costs. If Monetisation Option is specified as
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Holder may elect toreceive the fair market value of the Securities as
if Market Value were applicable instead of the Monetisation Amount.
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If the Securities are early redeemed in part, the amount calculated as payable on such early redemption will take
into account thatonly a portion ofthe outstanding Securities are being early redeemed.

5. Investment considerations associatedwith Securities linked to the performance of one or more
Underlying References

Investmentdecisionbased on publiclyavailable information

Holders are required to make their investment decision on the basis of information that is publicly available.
Therefore, Holders are exposed tothe risk thatinformation that is subsequently made public could adversely affect
the trading price ofthe Underlying Reference(s), which could have a significant adverse impact on the value of
the Securities.

Additional investmentconsiderations in respectofIndex Securities

In respectof IndexSecurities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by referenceto
the value ofthe underlying index/indices and/or the IndexSecurities will pay interest calculated by reference to
the value of the underlying index/indices. Such underlying index may be a well known and widely published
indexor an index which may not be widely published oravailable. The indexmay reference, among other asset
types, equities, bonds, currency exchangerates, or other securities or it may bea property indexreferencing certain
property price datawhich will be subjectto market price fluctuations, or reference a number of different assets or
indices. A property indexmay include valuations only and not actual transactions and the property data sources
used to compile the indexmay be subject to change.

Index Securities linked to a custom index are linked to a proprietary index which may be sponsored and/or
calculated by BNP Paribas or one of its Affiliates. Pursuantto the operational rules of the relevant customindex
the customindexis scheduled to be calculated on a periodic basis (for example on each weekday). In the event
that one ofthe levels, values or prices of a component included in the customindexis not available for any reason
on arelevant day of calculation including, without limitation, (a) because such day is a non-scheduled trading day
in respect of that index componentor (b) that index component is subject to a market disruption, then the
Calculation Agentofthe customindexmay, but will not be obligedto, calculate thelevel of the customindexon
a different basis (forexample by taking a value for the affected indexcomponent fromthe first preceding day on
which a level for such affected indexcomponent was available). Such an occurrence may potentially result in a
delay in the publication ofthe indexand the level of the indexmay be affected.

If the Indexspecified in the Final Terms is replaced by a successor indexwith the same ora substantially similar
method for calculating thatindexor the original indexsponsor is replaced by a successor indexsponsor acceptable
to the Calculation Agent, the successor indexor the successor indexsponsor will replace the original indexor
originalindexsponsor, as applicable.

Following a modification to the methodology ofthe Index(an Index Modification), a permanent cancellation of
the Index (an Index Cancellation) or if the Index Sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of the Indexon a
relevant date for valuation (an Index Disruption) (each, an Index Adjustment Event), (i) the Calculation Agent
may determine whether to (X) determine the level of the Indexitself, or (y) replace the Index or (ii) the Issuer
may redeemthe IndexSecurities at the Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, ifthe published level of an Indexis subsequently corrected, the corrected level will be used if corrected
within the prescribed period, provided that, ifthe corrected levelis published less thanthree Business Days prior
to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Index Securities will
reference the performance of one or more futures or options contracts in respect of an index. Investors should
referto the "Additional investment considerations in respectof FuturesPrice Valuation™ for details onsuch Index
Securities.
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Additional investmentconsiderations in respectofShare Securities

In respectof Share Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by referenceto
the value ofthe share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs and/or the physical delivery of a given number of
share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs and/or the Share Securities will pay interest calculated by
reference to the value ofthe underlying share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs.

No issuer of the underlying shares will have participated in the preparation of the applicable Final Terms or in
establishing the terms of the Share Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or any Manager
will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information
concerning any such issuer of shares contained in such Final Terms or in the documents fromwhich such
information was extracted. Consequently, there canbe noassurance that allevents occurring prior to the relevant
issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information
describedin this paragraph orin any applicable Final Terms) that would affect the trading price ofthe share (or
Stapled Shares), GDRs and/or ADRs will have beenpublicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure ofany such events
or thedisclosure of orfailure to disclose material future events concerning suchan issuer of shares could affect
the trading price of the share (or Stapled Shares), GDRs and/or ADRs.

Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or
distributions orany other rights with respect to the relevantshares towhich such Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Event will occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the Conditions that
have adiluting or concentrative effect onthe theoretical value of the share(s). The Calculation Agent may adjust
the terms ofthe Share Securities as it determines appropriate to take account of such Potential Adjustment Event.

An Extraordinary Event will occurupon a De-Listing, Insolvency, Merger Event, Nationalisation, Stapling,
Tender Offer (unless Tender Offer is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms) or (if specified in
the applicable Final Terms), llliquidity, Listing Change, Listing Suspension or CSR Eventin respect ofashare.
If an Extraordinary Event occurs:

@ the Calculation Agent may make adjustments to any of the terms of the Share Securities (including, in
the caseof Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments toand/or substitution of constituent
shares ofthe Basketof Shares);

(b) in the case of Warrants, the Issuer may cancel the Share Securities in whole, or in the case of Share
Securities relating to a Basketof Sares, in part;

(©) in the case of Certificates, tthe Issuer may redeemthe Share Securities in whole or (in the case of Share
Securities linked to a Basket of Shares) in part at the Early Redemption Amount; or

(d) the Calculation Agent may make an adjustmentto any terms of the Share Securities by reference tothe
corresponding adjustment(s) made by the relevant exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which options
on the affected Shares are traded.

If the Stapled Shares become de-stapled suchthat one or more shares comprising the Stapled Shares may be held,
owned, sold, transferred, purchased and otherwise dealt with as an individual share, the Issuer may elect to
substitute the Stapled Shares with an alternative share meeting certain criteria selected by the Calculation Agent.

If Hedging Liquidity Event is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may redeem the

Share Securities in fullat the Early Redemption Amountifthe volume of Shares held by the Issuerand/or any of
its affiliates via hedging arrangements related to the Share Securities exceeds a specified level.
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In addition, ifthe published price of a Share is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if corrected
within the prescribed period, providedthat, if the corrected price is published less than three Business Days prior
to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investmentconsiderations in respectof ETI Securities

In respect of ETI Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to
the value ofan interestin one or more exchange traded instruments (an "ET]1 Interest™) and/or the ET 1 Securities
will pay interest calculated by reference to the valueofone ormore ETI Interests. While ET1 Interests are traded
on an exchange and are therefore valued in a similar manner as a share traded on an exchange, if ETI Share
Provisions is specified as not applicable in theapplicable Final Terms, certain provisions related to ET| Securities
are similar to the provisions related to funds. IFET1 Share Provisions is specified as applicable in the applicable
Final Terms, the provisions related to the ET1 Securities will be more similar to the provisions related to shares
and Share Securities.

An exchange traded instrument (an "ETI") may invest in and trade in a variety of investments and financial
instruments using sophisticated investment techniques for hedging and non-hedging purposes. None of the
relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (if any) or the Calculation Agent have any control over investments made by the
relevant exchange traded instrument(s) and in no way guarantee the performance ofan ETI.

In hedgingthe relevant Issuer's obligations under the ET1 Securities, an entity providing such hedging (the "Hedye
Provider™) is not restricted to any particular hedging practice. Accordingly, the Hedge Provider may hedge its
exposure using any method it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate. The Hedge Provider may perform any
number of different hedging practices with respect to ETI Securities without taking into account any Holders
interests.

No entity related to the ETI will have participated in the preparation of the applicable Final Terms or in
establishing theterms of the ET1 Securities, and none ofthe Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) orany Manager
will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information
concerning any such ETI contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such information was
extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date
(including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described
in this paragraph or in any applicable Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the interests in the
exchange traded instrument will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the
disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such an exchange traded instrument could
affect the trading price of interests in the exchangetraded instruments.

Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or
distributions orany other rights with respect to the relevant ETIs to which such Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Eventwill occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the Conditions that
have adiluting or concentrative effecton the theoretical value of the ETI Interest(s). The Calculation Agent may
adjust the terms of the ETI Securities as it determines appropriate to take account of such Potential Adjustrment
Event.

In the case of ETI Securities where ETI Share Provisions is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, an Extraordinary ETI Event will occuras aresult ofevents including (a) a merger of the ETI Interests or
the ETI or ETI Related Party with other ET1 Interests or another entity, an entity obtaininga controlling stake in
the ETI or ETI Related Party orthe insolvency ofthe ET1 orany ETI Related Party (Global Events), (b) material
litigation or allegations of criminal or fraudulent activity in respect of the ETI or ET| Related Party
(Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events), (c) the ETI Related Party ceasingto act withoutbeing replaced (Change
in ETI Related Parties/Key Person Events), (d) a material changeto the ET1orthe ETI Documents (Modification
Events), () a change to or suspension of the calculation of the Value per ETI Interest or a breach of the
Investment/AUM Levelor Value per ETI Interest Trigger Percentage (Net Asset Value/Investment/AUM Level
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Events), (f)achangein taxlaw, revocation of any required licence or compulsory redemption ofthe ETI Interests
required by a competent authority (Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events), (g) an issue affecting the hedging
associated with the ETI Securities (Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events) and (h) otherevents such as
an Extraordinary ETI Event affectinga portion ofthe basketof ET| Interests, a rating downgrade, issues obtaining
or trading ETI Interests or changes in the way dividends are paid (Miscellaneous Events), each more fully
describedin the Conditions. The relevant Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms of the ETI
Securities to reflect such event, substitute the relevant ET1 Interest(s), or cancel the ETI Securities at the Eary
Redemption Amount.

In the case of ET1 Securities where ET1 Share Provisions is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terns,
an Extraordinary Event will occur upon a Delisting, ETI Currency Change, ETI Modification, ETI
Reclassification, ETl Redemption or Subscription Event, ETI Regulatory Action, ETI Reporting Event, ETI
Strategy Breach, ETI Termination, Insolvency, Merger Event, Nationalisation or, if specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, llliquidity, Listing Change, Listing Suspensionor Tender Offer. If an Extraordinary Event
occurs:

@ the Calculation Agent may make adjustmentsto any of the terms ofthe ETI Securities (including, in the
case of ETI Securities linked toa Basket of ET| Interests, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent
ETI Interests of the Basketof ETI Interests);

(b) the Issuer may redeemthe ETI Securities in whole or (in the case of ET1 Securities linked to a Basket of
ETI Interests) in part at the Early Redemption Amount; or

(© the Calculation Agent may make an adjustmentto any terms of the ETI Securities by reference to the
corresponding adjustment(s) made by the relevant exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which options
on the affected ETI Interests are traded.

In the case of ETI Securities where ET I Share Provisions and Hedging Liquidity Eventis specified as applicable
in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may redeemthe ET1 Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount
if the volume of ET1 Interests held by the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates via hedging arrangements related to
the ETI Securities exceeds a specified level.

In addition, ifthe published price ofan ET1 Interest is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if
corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business
Days priorto a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investmentconsiderations in respectof Debt Securities

In respectof Debt Securities, Holders will receive an amount (ifany) on redemption or exercise, as the case may
be, determined by reference to the value of the underlying debt instrument(s) and/or the physical delivery of a
given number of debtinstrument(s) and/or the Debt Securities will pay interestcalculated by reference to the value
of the underlying debt instrument(s).

If the publishedreference price ofa debt instrument is subsequently corrected, the corrected reference price will
be used if corrected within the specified Debt Instrument Correction Period, provided that, if the corrected
reference price is published less than three Exchange Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be
disregarded.

Investors should be aware that if an underlying debt instrumentis redeemed or cancelled by therelevant issuer of
such debtinstrument (forexample, following an eventof default under the terms of the relevantdebtinstrument),
the Issuer will early redeem the Debt Securities at the Early Redemption Amount in accordance with the
Conditions.
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If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Debt Securities will
reference the performance of one or more debt futures or debt options contracts. Investors should refer to the
"Additional investment considerations in respectof Futures Price Valuation" for details on such Debt Securities.

Additional investmentconsiderations in respectof Commodity Securities

In respect of Commodity Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the
case may be, determined by reference to the value of the underlying commodity, commodity index, commodities
and/orcommodity indices and/or Commodity Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the value of
the underlying commodity, commodity index, commodities and/or commodity indices.

Where the Commodity Securities are linked to acommodity index, such commodity indexmay be a well known
and widely available commodity index(such as the S&P GSCI®) or a commodity indexwhich may be less well
known (such as acommodity indexthat is composed, sponsored and/or calculated by BNP Paribas orone of its
affiliates) in which case information on the commodity indexmay be less readily available. A commodity index
may be comprised of futures contracts, mono-indices, or other commodity indices, which may be proprietary.
Pursuant to the operational rules of the relevant commodity index, the commodity index is scheduled to be
calculated ona periodic basis (forexample on each weekday). In the event thatone ofthelevels, values or prices
of a component included in the commodity indexis not available forany reason on a relevant day of calculation
including, withoutlimitation, (a) where it is a nota business day in respect of that commodity indexcomponent
or (b) that commodity indexcomponent is subject to a market disruption event, then the calculation agent of the
commodity index may calculate the level of the commodity index on a different basis (forexample, by taking a
value for the affected commodity index component on the first day following the end of a specified maximum
days ofdisruptionbased on the price at which it is able to sell or otherwise realise any hedge position). Such an
occurrence may potentially resultin a delay in the publication of the commodity index and the level of the
commodity indexmay be affected.

A Market Disruption Event will occurifthere is adisruptionin respect of acommodity ora commodity index(a)
to the availability of any pricesource, (b) to the ability to trade, (c) (other thanin respect of Commodity Securities
referencing Gold, Silver, Platinum or Palladium) caused by a change in composition, methodology or taxation or
(d) (in respect ofacommodity indexonly) to the price source or calculation of a commodity indexcomponent. If
a Market Disruption Event occurs:

@) the Calculation Agent may make any calculations in respect of the Commodity Securities usinga price,
levelor value that it has determined;

() the Calculation Agent may substitute any relevant commodity, reference price or commodity index
component (subjectto adheringto thecriteria set out in the Conditions); or

(©) the Issuer may redeemthe Commodity Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount.
In the case of Commodity Securities thatreference one or more commodity indices, if:

@) the commodity indexis replaced by a successor commodity indexwith the same or a substantially similar
method for calculating thatcommodity indexor the original commodity indexsponsor is replaced by a
successor commodity indexsponsor acceptable to the Calculation Agent such successor commodity
index or successor commodity indexsponsor will replace the original commodity indexor the original
commodity indexsponsor, as applicable; and

(b) following a modification to the methodology of the commodity index (a Commodity Index
Modification), a permanent cancellation of the commodity index(a Commodity Index Cancellation) or
if the commodity index sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of the commodity index on a
relevant date for valuation (a Commodity Index Disruption) (each, a Commodity Index Adjustment
Event), (i) the Calculation Agent may determine whether to (X) determine the level of the commodity
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indexitself, or (y) replace the commodity index or (ii) the Issuer may redeemthe Commodity Securities
at the Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, if the reference price of a commodity or commodity index is subsequently corrected, the corrected
reference price will be used if corrected within 30 calendar days of the original publication, provided that, if the
corrected levelis published less than three Commodity Business Days priorto a due date for payment it will be
disregarded.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies that the Commodity Securities are linked to the performance ofa futures
contract in respect of a commodity, the considerations described above will apply to such futures contract by
reference to the underlying commodity. If the applicable Final Terms specify that the Commodity Securities are
"Rolling Futures Contract Securities”, thereference price of thecommodity will be valued by reference to futures
contracts with delivery months that do not match the Redemption Date of the Commodity Securities. The
Calculation Agent will select a new futures contract on each Futures Rollover Date specified in the applicable
Final Terms. If it is impossible or materially impracticable to select a new futures contract and/or hedgethe Issuers
obligations in respect of the Commodity Securities, the consequences of a Market Disruption Event or a
Commodity IndexAdjustment Eventdescribed above will apply.

Additional investmentconsiderations in respectof Currency Securities

In respect of Currency Securities, Holders will receive an amount (ifany) on redemption determined by reference
to the value of the currency/currencies and/or the physical delivery ofa given amountofa currency or currencies
and/or Currency Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the value of the underlying
currency/currencies. Currency Securities referencethe performance of an exchange rate between a base currency
and one ormore subjectcurrencies.

A DisruptionEventwilloccur in respect of thebase currency orany subjectcurrency if (i) there is a disruption to
the source ofthe exchange rate, (ii) (unless llliquidity Disruption is specified as not applicable in the applicable
Final Terms) it is not possible to obtain firm quotes for such currency, (iii) the currency s split into more than one
currency exchange rate, or (iv) circumstances similar to (i), (i) (if applicable) or (iii) arise. Upon the occurrence
of aDisruption Event in respectofadate forvaluation, thefollowing consequences may apply:

@ the Calculation Agentmay postpone therelevant date for valuation until the Disruption Eventis no longer
subsisting, up to amaximum number of days specified in the applicable Final Terms (or if not specified
five Scheduled Trading Days), following which the Calculation Agent may determine a level for the
subject currency as ofthe lastsuch Scheduled Trading Day;

(b) the Issuer may redeemthe Currency Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount; or

(© (unless Disruption Postponement is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms) the
Calculation Agentmay postponeany payment date untila Disruption Eventis no longer subsisting.

If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Currency Securities will
reference the performance of one or more currency futures or currency options contracts. Investors should refer
to the "Additional investmentconsiderations in respect of Futures Price Valuation" for details onsuch Currency
Securities.

Additional investmentconsiderations in respectof Futures Securities
In respect of Futures Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the case

may be, determined by reference to the value of one or more futures contracts and/or Futures Securities will pay
interest calculated by reference to thevalue of one or more futures contracts.
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A Futures Adjustment Event will occur if the relevant exchange makes or announces (a) a modification to the
futures contract (a Futures Modification), (b) a replacement of the futures contract with another futures contract
(a Futures Replacement) or (¢) thatthe futures contract will cease tobe listed, traded or publicly quoted (a Futures
De-Listing). Upon the occurrence of a Futures Adjustment Event (i) the Calculation Agentmay determine whether
to use the futures contract so modified or replaced, as the case may be, or (ii) the Issuer may redeemthe Futures
Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, ifthe published price ofa futures contract is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used
if it is corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three
Exchange Business Days priorto a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investmentconsiderations in respectof Futures Price Valuation

A futures transaction constitutes the contractual obligation to buy or sell a certain amount or number of the
respective underlyingat a fixed price and at a predetermined future pointin time. Futures contracts are traded on
futures exchanges and standardised for this purpose with respect to their contract size, the nature and quality of
the underlying aswell as delivery places and dates, ifany.

In the case of IndexSecurities or Debt Securities where Futures Price Valuation is applicable, the Securities are
exposed to a futures oroptions contract relating to a synthetic debt instrument (in the case of Debt Securities) or
an index (in the case of Index Securities). If trading in the futures contract never commences or is permanently
discontinued on orpriorto a date for valuation andthe relevantprice for the futures contract is not available, (@)
(in the case of IndexSecurities, other than where ETS Final Payout 2300 applies) the level of the underlying index
shall be used for any calculation, or (b) (in any other case) the Issuer shall redeemthe Securities at the Early
Redemption Amount.

If adjustments are made to the futures contract by the relevant exchange, the Calculation Agent will make
consequential adjustments to the Securities to account for such change. In addition, if the published price of a
futures contract is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if it is corrected within the prescribed
period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business Days prior to a due date for
payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investmentconsiderations in respectofRolling Futures Contract Securities

Futures contracts have a predetermined expiration date. Holding a futures contract until expiration will resultin
delivery of the physical underlying or the requirement to make or receive a cash settlement amount. Rolling
Futures Contract Securities are valued by reference to futures contracts thathavea delivery orexpiry month that
do not correspond with the term of the Securities. Consequently the futures contracts are "rolled™ which means
that the futures contract that is nearing expiration is sold before it expires and a futures contract that has an
expiration date furtherin the future is purchased, thus maintaining ongoing exposure to such underlying futures
contracts throughout the termofthe Securities. The Calculation Agent will select a new futures contracton each
Futures Rollover Date specified in the applicable Final Terms. If it is impossible or materially impracticable to
select a new futures contractand/or (unless Related Hedging is specified as notapplicable in the applicable Final
Terms) hedge the Issuer's obligations in respect of the Securities, the Issuerwill redeemthe Securities in full at
the Early Redemption Amount.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO NON-EXEMPT OFFERS OF SECURITIES

Restrictions on Non-exempt offers of Securities in relevant Member States of the EEA and the United
Kingdom

Certain issues of Securities with an issue price ora Notional Amount, as applicable of less than €100,000 (or its
equivalentin any other currency) may be offeredin circumstances wherethere is noexemption fromthe obligation
underthe Prospectus Regulationto publisha prospectus. Any such offer is referred to as a " Non-exempt Offer".
This Base Prospectus has been prepared ona basis that permits Non-exempt Offers of Securities in each Member
State of the European Economic Areaor in the United Kingdomin relation to which the relevant Issuer has given
its consent as specified in the applicable Final Terms (each specified Member State a "Non-exempt Offer
Jurisdiction" and together the "Non-exempt Offer Jurisdictions"). Any person making or intending to make a
Non-exempt Offer of Securities on the basis of this Base Prospectus must do so only with the relevant Issuers
consentto theuse ofthis Base Prospectus as provided under " Consentgiven in accordance with Article 1.4 of the
Prospectus Regulation™and provided such person complies with the conditions attached to that consent.

Save as providedabove, neither BNPP B.V. nor BNPP has authorised, nordo they authorise, the making of any
Non-exempt Offer of Securities in circumstances in which an obligation arises for either of BNPP B.V. or BNPP
to publish orsupplement a prospectus for such offer.

Consentgivenin accordance with Article 5(1) of the Prospectus Regulation

In the context ofa Non-exempt Offer of such Securities, BNPP B.V. and BNPP accept responsibility, in each of
the Non-exempt Offer Jurisdictions, for the content of this Base Prospectus in relation to any person (@n
"Investor")who purchasesany Securities in a Non-exempt Offer made by a Manager oran Authorised Offeror
(as defined below), where that offer is made during the Offer Period specified in the applicable Final Terms and
provided that the conditions attached to the giving of consent for the use of this Base Prospectus are complied
with. The consent and conditions attached to it are setoutunder " Consent" and " Common Conditions to Consent"
below.

Neither BNPP B.V. nor BNPP makes any representation as to thecompliance by an Authorised Offeror with any
applicable conduct of business rules or other applicable regulatory or securities law requirements in relation to
any Non-exempt Offer and neither of BNPP B.V. nor BNPP has any responsibility or liability for the actions of
that Authorised Offeror.

Except in the circumstances set out in the following paragraphs, neither BNPP B.V. nor BNPP has
authorised the making of any Non-exempt Offer by any offeror and BNPP B.V. and BNPP haw not
consentedto the use of this Base Prospectus by any other person in connection with any Non-exempt Offer
of Securities. Any Non-exempt Offer made without the consent of the relevant Issuer is unauthorisedand
neither BNPP B.V. nor BNPP accepts any responsibility or liability in relation to such offer or for the
actions of the persons making any such unauthorisedoffer.

If, in the context ofa Non-exempt Offer, an Investor is offered Securities by a personwhich is not an Authorised
Offeror, the Investor should check with that person whether anyoneis responsible for this Base Prospectus for the
purposes of the relevant Non-exempt Offer and, if so, who that person is. If the Investor is in any doubt about
whetherit can rely on this Base Prospectus and/or who is responsible for its contents it should take legal advice.

Consent

In connectionwith eachissue of Securities and subjectto the conditions set out below under "Common Conditions
to Consent™:

Specific Consent
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@)

General Consent

(b)

each Issuer consents to the use of this Base Prospectus (as supplemented as at the relevant time, if
applicable) in connection with a Non-exempt Offer of such Securities:

0]
(i)
(iii)

the relevant Manager(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;
any financial intermediaries specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

any other financial intermediary appointed after the date of the applicable Final Terms and
whose name is published on BNPP's websites (www.produitsdebourse.bnpparibasf,
www.bnpparibasmarkets.be; www.bnpparibasmarkets.nl; www.educatedtrading.bnpparibas se
and https://www.productoscotizados.com/home/) and identified as an Authorised Offeror in
respect of therelevant Non-exempt Offer; and

if (and only if) Part A of the applicable Final Terms specifies "General Consent" as " Applicable", each
Issuer hereby offers to grant its consent to the use of this Base Prospectus (as supplemented as at the
relevant time, if applicable) in connection with a Non-exempt Offer of Securities by any other financial
intermediary which satisfies the following conditions:

(i

(ii)

it is authorised to make such offers under applicable legislation implementing the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2014/65/EU); and

it accepts each Issuer's offer to grant consent to the use of this Base Prospectus by publishing
on its website thefollowing statement (with the information in square brackets completed with
the relevant information) (the " Acceptance Statement™):

"We, [insert legal name of financial intermediary], refer to the offer of [insert title of relevant
Securities] (the "Securities") described in the Final Terms dated [insert date] (the "Final
Terms) published by [ ] (the "Issuer™). In consideration of the Issuer offering to grant its
consentto our use of the Base Prospectus (as defined in the Final Terms) in connection with the
offer ofthe Securities [specify relevant state(s)] during the Offer Period and subjectto the other
conditions to such consent, each as specified in the Base Prospectus, we hereby accept the offer
by the Issuer in accordance with the Authorised Offeror Terms (as specified in the Base
Prospectus) and confirmthat we are using the Base Prospectus accordingly."

The Authorised Offeror Terms, being the terms to which the relevant financial intermediary
agrees in connection with using this Base Prospectus, are that the relevant financial
intermediary:

(A) will, and it agrees, represents, warrants and undertakes for the benefit of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP that it will, atall times in connectionwith the relevantNon-exempt Offer:

I act in accordance with, and be solely responsible for complying with, all
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidance of any applicable regulatory
bodies (the "Rules") fromtime to time including, without limitation and in
each case, Rules relating to both the appropriateness or suitability of any
investment in the Securities by any person and disclosure to any potential
Investor, and will immediately inform BNPP B.V. and BNPP if at any time
such financial intermediary becomes aware or suspects that it is or may be in
violation ofany Rules andtake all appropriate steps to remedy such violation
and comply with suchRules in all respects;
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VII.

VIII.

Xl.

comply with the restrictions set out under " Offering and Sale" in this Base
Prospectus and consider the relevant manufacturer's target market and
assessment and distribution channels identified underthe "MIFID Il product
governance/target market assessment " legend which may be set out in the
applicable Final Terms;

ensure that any fee (and any other commissions or benefits of any kind)
received or paid by that financial intermediary in relation to the offer or sale
of the Securities does notviolate the Rules and, to the extent required by the
Rules, is fully and clearly disclosed to Investors or potential Investors;

hold all licences, consents, approvals and permissions required in connection
with solicitation of interest in, or offers or sales of, the Securities under the
Rules;

comply with applicable anti-money laundering, anti-bribery, anti-corruption
and "know your client" Rules (including, without limitation, taking
appropriate steps, in compliance with such Rules, to establishand docurrent
the identity of each potential Investor prior to initial investment in any
Securities by the Investor), and will not permit any application for Securities
in circumstances where the financial intermediary has any suspicions as tothe
source ofthe application monies;

retain Investor identification records for at least the minimumperiod required
underapplicable Rules, and shall, if so requestedand to theextent permitted
by the Rules, make such records available to BNPP B.V. and BNPP or
directly to the appropriate authorities with jurisdiction over BNPP B.V. and
BNPP in order to enable BNPP B.V. and BNPP to comply with anti-money
laundering, anti-bribery, anti-corruption and "know your client" Rules
applying to BNPP B.V. and BNPP;

ensure that it does not, directly or indirectly, cause BNPP B.V. or BNPP to
breach any Rule or subject BNPP B.V. or BNPP to any requirementto obtain
or make any filing, authorisation or consentin any jurisdiction;

ensure that Investors understand therisks associated withan investmentin the
Securities;

comply with the conditions to the consent referred to under "Comnon
Conditions to Consent” below and any further requirements relevant to the
Non-exempt Offer as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

make available to each potential Investor in the Securities the Base Prospectus
(as supplemented as at the relevant time, if applicable), the applicable Final
Terms and any applicable informationbooklet provided by the relevant Issuer
for such purpose, and not convey or publish any information that is not
contained in orentirely consistent with the Base Prospectus;

if it conveys or publishes any communication (other thanthe Base Prospectus
orany other materials providedto suchfinancial intermediary by or on behalf
of the relevant Issuer for the purposes of the relevant Non-exempt Offer) in
connection with the relevant Non-exempt Offer, it will ensure that such
communication (A) is fair, clear and not misleading and complies with the
Rules, (B) states that such financial intermediary has provided such
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XIl.

XML

communication independently of the relevant Issuer, that such financial
intermediary is solely responsible for such communication and that none of
BNPP B.V. or BNPP acceptsany responsibility for suchcommunicationand
(C) does not, without the prior written consent of BNPP B.V. or BNPP (as
applicable), use the legal or publicity names of BNPP B.V. or BNPP or any
other name, brand or logo registered by an entity within their respective
groups or any material over which any such entity retains a proprietary
interest, except to describe the relevant Issuer as issuer of the relevant
Securities and the Guarantor as the guarantor of therelevant Securities on the
basis setoutin the Base Prospectus;

ensure that no holder of Securities or potential Investor in Securities shall
become an indirect or direct client of BNPP B.V. and BNPP forthe purmposes
of any applicable Rules fromtime to time, and to the extent that any client
obligations are created by the relevant financial intermediary under any
applicable Rules, then such financial intermediary shall perform any such
obligationssoarising;

co-operate with BNPP B.V. and BNPP in providing such information
(including, without limitation, documents and records maintained pursuant to
paragraph V1) upon written requestfromBNPP B.V. or BNPP, as applicablk,
as is available to such financial intermediary or which is within its power and
control from time to time, together with such further assistance as is
reasonably requested by BNPP B.V. or BNPP:

@ in connection with any request or investigation by any regulator in
relation to the Securities, BNPP B.V. or BNPP; and/or

)] in connectionwith any complaints received by BNPP B.V. or BNPP
relating to BNPP B.V. or BNPP or another Authorised Offeror
including, without limitation, complaints as defined in rules
published by any regulator of competent jurisdiction fromtime to
time; and/or

(3) which BNPP B.V. or BNPP may reasonably require from time to
time in relation to the Securities and/or as to allow BNPP B.V. or
BNPP fully to comply with its own legal, tax and regulatory
requirements,

in each case, as soon as is reasonably practicable and, in any event, within any time
frame set by any suchregulator or regulatory process;

XIV.

during the primary distribution period of the Securities: (i) only sell the
Securities at the Issue Price specified in the applicable Final Terms (unless
otherwise agreed with the relevant Manager); (ii) only sell the Securities for
settlement onthe Issue Datespecified in the applicable Final Terms; (iii) not
appoint any sub-distributors (unless otherwise agreed with the relevant
Manager); (iv) not pay any fee or remunerationor commissions or benefits to
any third parties in relation to the offering or sale of the Securities (unless
otherwise agreed with the relevant Manager); and (v) comply with such other
rules of conduct as may be reasonably required and specified by the relevant
Manager; and
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(B)

©

XV. either (i) obtain fromeach potential Investoran executed application for the
Securities, or (ii) keep arecord ofall requests such financial intermediary (¥
makes for its discretionary management clients, (y) receives fromits advisory
clients and (2) receives fromits execution-only clients, in each case prior to
making any order for the Securities on their behalf, and in each case maintain
the same on its files forso long as is required by any applicable Rules;

agrees and undertakes to indemnify each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP (in each case on
behalf of suchentity and its respective directors, officers, employees, agents, affiliates
and controlling persons) against any losses, liabilities, costs, claims, charges, expenses,
actions or demands (including reasonable costs of investigation and any defence raised
thereto and counsel's fees and disbursements associated with any such investigation or
defence) which any of them may incur or which may be made against any of them
arising out of orin relation to, or in connection with, any breach of any of the foregoing
agreements, representations, warranties or undertakings by such financial
intermediary, including (without limitation) any unauthorised action by such financial
intermediary or failure by such financial intermediary to observe any of the above
restrictions or requirements or the making by such financial intermediary of any
unauthorised representationorthegivingoruse by it ofany information which has not
been authorised for such purposes by BNPP B.V. or BNPP; and

agrees andacceptsthat:

I the contractbetweenthe relevant Issuer and itself formed upon its acceptance
of the relevant Issuer's offer to use the Base Prospectus with its consent in
connection with the relevant Non-exempt Offer (the " Authorised Offeror
Contract™) shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, French
law;

. the courts within the jurisdiction of the Paris Court of Appeal (Cour d'Appel
de Paris) have jurisdiction tosettle any dispute arising outof orin connection
with the Authorised Offeror Contract (including any dispute relating to any
non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the
Authorised Offeror Contract) (a "Dispute™) and the relevant Issuer and the
financial intermediary submit to the jurisdiction of such French courts;

1"l for the purposes of I and |1, the relevantIssuerand itself waive any objection
to the relevant courts on the grounds that they are an inconvenient or
inappropriate forumto settle any dispute;

V. each of the relevant Issuer and itself will be entitled to enforce those
provisions of the Authorised Offeror Contract which are, or are expressedto
be, for their benefit, including the agreements, representations, warranties,
undertakings and indemnity given by itself pursuant to the Authorised Offeror
Terms.

The financial intermediaries referred to in paragraphs 2(a)(ii), 2(a)(iii) and 2(b), are
togetherthe" Authorised Offerors™and each an " Authorised Offeror™.

Any Authorised Offeror falling within 2(b) who meets the conditions set out in
2(b) and the other conditions stated in **Common Conditions to Consent** below
and who wishes to use this Base Prospectus in connection with a Non-exempt
Offer is required, for the duration of the relevant Offer Period, to publish on its
website the Acceptance Statement.
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Common Conditions to Consent

The conditionsto the Issuer's consent to theuse of this Base Prospectus in the context of the relevant Non-exenpt
Offerare (in addition tothe conditions described in paragraph 2(b) if Part A ofthe applicable Final Terms specifies
"General Consent"as "Applicable™) thatsuch consent:

(0 is only valid during the Offer Period specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(i) only extends to the use of this Base Prospectus to make Non-exempt Offers of the relevant Tranche of
Securities in Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Spain and
Sweden as specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(iii) the consent is subject to any other conditions set out in Part A ofthe applicable Final Terms.

The consent referred to above relates to Offer Periods (if any) occurring within 12 months from the date of this
Base Prospectus.

The only relevant states which may, in respect ofany Tranche of Securities, be specified in the applicable Final
Terms (if any Member State of the EEA or the United Kingdom is so specified) as indicated in 2(b)(ii), will be
Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Spain and Swedenand accordingly
each Tranche of Securities may only be offered to Investors as part of a Non-exempt Offer in Belgium, Denmark,
Finland, France, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Spain and Sweden as specified in the applicable Final
Terms, or otherwise in circumstances in which no obligation arises for BNPP B.V. or BNPP to publish or
supplement a prospectus for such offer.

ARRANGEMENTS BETWEEN INVESTORS AND AUTHORISED OFFERORS

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO PURCHASE OR PURCHASING ANY SECURITIES IN A NON
EXEMPT OFFER FROM AN AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF
SUCH SECURITIES TO AN INVESTOR BY SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL BE MADE, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER IN PLACE BETWEEN
SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR INCLUDING ARRANGEMENTS IN
RELATION TO PRICE ALLOCATIONS, EXPENSES AND SETTLEMENT. THE RELEVANT
ISSUER WILL NOT BEAPARTY TO ANY SUCH ARRANGEMENTS WITH SUCH INVESTORS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE NON-EXEMPT OFFER OR SALE OF THE SECURITIES CONCERNED
AND, ACCORDINGLY, THIS BASEPROSPECTUS AND ANY FINAL TERMS WILL NOT CONTAIN
SUCH INFORMATION. THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND THE RELEVANT INFORMATION
WILL BEPROVIDED BY THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF SUCH OFFER. NONE
OF BNPP B.V. OR BNPP HAS ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY TO AN INVESTOR IN
RESPECT OF THE INFORMATION DESCRIBED ABOVE

INFORMATION RELATED TO SECURITIES SOLD IN BELGIUM

In respect of Securities offeredto individuals in Belgium, the relevant Issuer may be required to comply with the
provisions of the Belgian Code of Economic Law, especially the provisions on unfair terms in the application of
the terms and conditions as setout in the Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms relating to such Securities
in Belgium, insofaras these provisions would be applicable.

Information relating to the use of this Base Prospectus andoffer of Securities generally
The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offering of Securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by

law. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus comes are required by BNPP B.V., BNPP and each
Manager to informthemselves aboutandto observe any such restrictions.
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In this Base Prospectus referencesto U.S.$and U.S. dollars are to United States dollars and references toeuro, €
and EUR areto the currency introducedat the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union
pursuantto the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended.
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Each of BNPP B.V. (in respect of itself) and BNPP (in respectof itselfand BNPP B.V.) accepts responsibility for
the information contained in this Base Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge of each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP,
the information contained herein is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the
import of such information.

Information contained in this Base Prospectus whichis sourced fromathird party has beenaccurately reproduced
and, as faras the relevantIssuer is aware and is able to ascertain frominformation published by therelevant third
party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. The
relevant Issuerhasalso identified the source(s) of such information.

The applicable Final Terms will (if applicable) specify the nature of the responsibility taken by the relevant Issuer
and, if applicable, the Guarantor for the information relating to the underlying asset, index or other item(s) to
which the Securities relate, which is contained in such Final Terms.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents which have been
previously published or are published simultaneously with this Base Prospectus and shall be incorporated in, and
form part of, this Base Prospectus:

(@ the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in each of the following previous base prospectuses:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the "2014 Base
Prospectus™) of BNPP B.V. dated 22 August 2014 (as approved by the Authority for the
financial Markets) (the "2014 Conditions™) (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/Legal%20Docs/
index_filessAFM_Base_Prospectus_22 Augqust_2014.pdf),

the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the 2015 Base
Prospectus™) of BNPP B.V. dated 24 August 2015 (as approved by the Authority for the
financial Markets) (the "2015 Conditions™) (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/Legal%20Docs/
index_files/2015_AFM_Base Prospectus_dated_24_August_2015.pdf),

the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the 2016 Base
Prospectus") of BNPP B.V. dated 5 July 2016 (as approved by the Authority forthe financial
Markets) (the "2016 Conditions™) (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/L egal%20Docs/
index_files/2016_AFM_Base Prospectus_dated_5 July 2016.pdf),

the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the 2017 Base
Prospectus") of BNPP B.V. dated 4 July 2017 (as approved by the Authority forthe financial
Markets) (the "2017 Conditions") (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/L egal%20Docs/
index_files/2017_AFM_Base Prospectus_dated_4_July 2017.pdf),

the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the 2018 Base
Prospectus") of BNPP B.V. dated 4 July 2018 (as approved by the Authority forthe financial
Markets) (the "2018 Conditions") (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/L egal%20Docs/
index_files/2018_AFM%20Base_Prospectus_dated_4_July 2018.pdf), and

the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the "2019 Base
Prospectus')of BNPP B.V. dated 3 July 2019 (as approved by the Authority for the financial
Markets) (the "2019 Conditions™) (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/L egal%20Docs/
index_files/2019_AFM%20Base_Prospectus_dated 3 July 2019.pdf);

(b) the form of final terms of the Securities contained in each base prospectus listed below:

(i

(ii)

the formoffinalterms of the Securities contained in the 2014 Base Prospectus (the 2014 Form
of Final Terms") (https://rates-
alobalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/L egal%20Docs/
index_files/AFM_Base_Prospectus 22 August_2014.pdf),

the formoffinalterms of the Securities contained in the 2015 Base Prospectus (the "2015 Form
of Final Terms™") (https://rates-
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©)

(d)

©)

(f)

@)

globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/ Legal%20Docs/
index_files/2015_AFM_Base Prospectus_dated 24 August_2015.pdf),

(i) the formoffinalterms of the Securities contained in the 2016 Base Prospectus (the 2016 Form

of Final Terms") (https://rates-

globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/Legal%20Docs/
index_files/2016 AFM Base Prospectus dated 5 July 2016.pdf),

(iv) the formoffinalterms of the Securities contained in the 2017 Base Prospectus (the 2017 Form
of Final Terms™) (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/L egal%20Docs/
index_files/2017 _AFM_Base Prospectus_dated 4 July 2017.pdf),

v) the formoffinal terms of the Securities contained in the 2018 Base Prospectus (the 2018 Form
of Final Terms™) (https://rates-
alobalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/L egal%20Docs/
index_files/2018_AFM%20Base_Prospectus_dated 4 July 2018.pdf), and

(vi) the formoffinalterms of the Securities contained in the 2019 Base Prospectus (the 2019 Form

of Final Terms") (https://rates-

globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/Legal%20Docs/
index_files/2019 AFM%20Base Prospectus _dated 3 July 2019.pdf);

the English translation of BNP Paribas' Document de référence et rapport financier annuel for 2018
including the consolidated financial statements forthe yearended 31 December 2018 and the statutory
auditors’ report thereon other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Registration
Document”, the "Table of Concordance™ and any reference to a completion letter ("Lettre de fin de
travaux’) therein (the "BNPP 2018 Registration Document (in  English)")
(https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/ddr_2018 bnp_paribas _gb.pdf);

the English translation of BNP Paribas' Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 et
rapport financier annuel in English including the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the statutory auditors’ report thereon other than the sections entitled " Person
Responsible for the Registration Document”, the "Table of Concordance™ and any reference to a
completion letter ("Lettre de fin de travaux”) therein (the "BNPP 2019 Uniwversal Registration
Document (in English)")
(https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp2019 urd_en_20_03 13.pdf);

the firstamendment to BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 et rapport

financier annuel in English dated 30 March 2020, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible

for the Universal Registration Document” and the "Table of Concordance™ with filing number D.20-

0097-A01 (the "First Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in

English)™") (https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp _paribas -
amendment_to 2019 urd_as_at 30 _march_2020.pdf);

the press release dated 2 April 2020 relating to a meeting of the Board of Directors of BNPP (the "2
April 2020 BNPP Press Release™) (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2 F/Legal%20Docs/index_fil
es/Press_Release BNP 2 April 2020.pdf);

the second amendmentto BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 et rapport
financier annuel in English dated 5 May 2020, otherthan the sections entitled "Person Responsible for
the Universal Registration Document” and the "Table of Concordance™ with filing number D.20-0097-
AO02 (the "Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Uniwersal Registration Document (in English)")
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https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/Press_Release_BNP_2_April_2020.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/Press_Release_BNP_2_April_2020.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/Press_Release_BNP_2_April_2020.pdf

(https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp_paribas_-
2nd_amendment to 2019 urd 050520.pdf);

() the third amendment to BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 et rapport
financier annuelin English dated 25 June 2020, other than thesections entitled " Person Responsible for
the Universal Registration Document™ and the " Table of Concordance” with filing number D.20-0097-
AO03 (the "Third Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)")
(https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp_paribas_-
3rd_amendment_to_2019 universal registration_document.pdf); and

0) the audited annual non-consolidated financial statements of BNPP B.V. as at, and for the years ended,
31 December 2018 (the "BNPP B.V. 2018 Financial Statements™) and 31 December 2019 (the "BNPP
B.V. 2019 Financial Statements"), such financial statements and the respective auditors' reports
thereon, being available as part of the respective statutory annual reports for 2018 and 2019 (the 2018
BNPP B.V. Annual Report" (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal
Docs/index_files/20190417 BNP_Paribas Issuance B V_Annual_Accounts 2018.pdf) and "2019
BNPP B.V. Annual Report" (https://rates-
alobalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal
Docs/index_files/BNP_Paribas_Issuance BV_Financial_Statements_2019.pdf) respectively).

save that any statementcontained herein or in adocument which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein
shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Base Prospectus to the extent that such
statement is inconsistent with a statement contained in this Base Prospectus or any supplementto this Base
Prospectus.

Forthe purposes of the Prospectus Regulation, the information incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus
is set out in the cross-reference table below. Forthe avoidance of doubt, the information requested to be disclosed
by the Issueras aresult of Annex6 of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/980 of 14 March 2019
supplementing the Prospectus Regulation (the " Commission Delegated Regulation") and not referred to in the
cross-reference table below is either contained in the relevant sections of this Base Prospectus or is not relevant
to the Issuer.

Any non-incorporated parts of a document referredto herein are either deemednot relevant for an investor
or are otherwise covered elsewhere in this Base Prospectus.

The information incorporated by referenceaboveis available as follows:

Information Incorporated by Reference Reference

Previous Conditions
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/L egal Docs.aspx

2014 Conditions Pages 124to 270 of the 2014 Base Prospectus
2015 Conditions Pages 12410 298 ofthe 2015 Base Prospectus
2016 Conditions Pages 12610 311 ofthe 2016 Base Prospectus
2017 Conditions Pages 153to0 388 of the 2017 Base Prospectus
2018 Conditions Pages 18210 447 ofthe 2018 Base Prospectus
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https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp_paribas_-3rd_amendment_to_2019_universal_registration_document.pdf
https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp_paribas_-3rd_amendment_to_2019_universal_registration_document.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/20190417_BNP_Paribas_Issuance_B_V_Annual_Accounts_2018.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/20190417_BNP_Paribas_Issuance_B_V_Annual_Accounts_2018.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/20190417_BNP_Paribas_Issuance_B_V_Annual_Accounts_2018.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/BNP_Paribas_Issuance_BV_Financial_Statements_2019.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/BNP_Paribas_Issuance_BV_Financial_Statements_2019.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/BNP_Paribas_Issuance_BV_Financial_Statements_2019.pdf
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2019 Conditions

Pages 17810 453 of the 2019 Base Prospectus

Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

Previous Forms of Final Terms

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/Legal Docs.aspx

2014 Form of Final Terms

Pages 95t0 123 of the 2014 Base Prospectus

2015 Form of Final Terms

Pages 9410 123 ofthe 2015 Base Prospectus

2016 Form of Final Terms

Pages 9410 125 ofthe 2016 Base Prospectus

2017 Form of Final Terms

Pages 113to 152 of the 2017 Base Prospectus

2018 Form of Final Terms

Pages 13710 181 ofthe 2018 Base Prospectus

2019 Form of Final Terms

Pages 133to 177 of the 2019 Base Prospectus

BNP PARIBAS

BNPP 2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/L egal Docs.aspx

2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit and lossaccountforthe yearended 31
December 2018

Page 152 of the BNPP 2018 Registration Document
(in English)

Statement of net income and changes in assetsand
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 153 of the BNPP 2018 Registration Document
(in English)

Balance sheetat 31 December 2018

Page 154 of the BNPP 2018 Registration Document
(in English)

Cash flow statementforthe yearended 31 December
2018

Page 155 of the BNPP 2018 Registration Document
(in English)

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity between
1 January 2018and 31 December 2018

Pages 156 and 157 of the BNPP 2018 Registration
Document (in English)

Statutory Auditors'report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas forthe year
ended 31 December 2018

Pages 270to 276 ofthe BNPP 2018 Registration
Document (in English)

BNPP 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/L egal Docs.aspx

Headings as listed by Annex | of European Commission Regulation (EC) No.2017/1129

Persons Responsible

11 Person responsible for the Universal

Registration Document

Page 610 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)
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Page 610 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration

12 Statement of the person responsible forthe | pocument (in English)
Universal Registration Document
] Page 1 ofthe BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
15 Approval froma competent authority Document (in English)
) Page 608 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
2. Statutory auditors Document (in English)
. Pages 27610 288 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
3. Risk factors Registration Document (in English)
] ] Pages 4and 5and 617 to 619 of the BNPP 2019
4. Information about the issuer Universal Registration Document (in English)
5. Business overview
o o Pages 6to 16, 188 to 191 and 592 to 598 ofthe
51 Principal activities BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
o Pages 6to 16, 188 to 191 and 592 to 598 ofthe
52 Principal markets BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
) ) Page 5 ofthe BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
5.3 History and developmentofthe issuer Document (in English)
o Pages 1360 138, 515 and 558 to 568 of the BNPP
5.4 Strategy andobjectives 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
. Page 590 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
55 Possible dependency Document (in English)
] ] Pages 6to 16 and 114 to 128 ofthe BNPP 2019
5.6 Basis for any statements made by the ksuer | \ynjyersal Registration Document (in English)
regarding its competitive position
Pages 136, 238 to 241, 503, 556 and 557, 564 to 566
5.7 Investments and 591 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)
6. Organisational structure
) o Pages 4,6, 576 and 577 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
6.1 Brief description Registration Document (in English)
. o o Pages 24910 257, 496 to 502 and 592 to 597 of the
6.2 List ofsignificant subsidiaries BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
7. Operating and financial review
. o Pages 152, 154, 466 and 467 of the BNPP 2019
71 Financialsituation Universal Registration Document (in English)
) Pages 114t0 128, 134, 135, 140 to 146, 152, 189 and
7.2 Operating results 466 ofthe BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)
8. Capital resources
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Pages 156, 157 and 491 of the BNPP 2019 Universal

8.1 Issuer’s capital resources Registration Document (in English)
Page 155 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
8.2 Sources and amounts of cash flows Document (in English)
. ] . Pages 138and 416 to 430 ofthe BNPP 2019
8.3 Borrowing  requirements and  funding | \ynjyersal Registration Document (in English)
structure
- - - - N/A
8.4 Information regarding any restrictions on the
use of capital resources that have materially
affected, or could materially affect, the
issuer’s operations.
N/A
8.5 Anticipated sources of funds
. Pages 267,272 and 273 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
. Regulatory environment Registration Document (in English)
. ] Page 138 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
10. Trend information Document (in English)
N/A
11. Profitforecasts or estimates
12. Administratiwe, management, and
supervisory  bodies, and senior
management
o ) ) Pages 31to 43 and 98 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
121 Administrative and managementbodies Registration Document (in English)
o . ., | Pages 47,48, 61, 62 and 72 to 94 of the BNPP 2019
122 Administrative and management bodes’ | njyersal Registration Document (in English)
conflicts of interest
13. Remuneration and benefits
. . | Pages 72t0 97 and 226 to 233 of the BNPP 2019
131 Amount of remuneration paid and benefitsin | jniversal Registration Document (in English)
kind granted
) Pages 72to 97 and 226 to 233 of the BNPP 2019
13.2 Total amounts set aside or accrued by the | jniversal Registration Document (in English)
issuer or its subsidiaries to provide pension,
retirement, or similar benefits
14, Board practices
Pages 31to 42 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
N/A
14.2 Information about members of the
administrative bodies’ service contracts with
the issuer
. . ] Pages 51to 58 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
143 Information about the audit committee and

remuneration committee

Registration Document (in English)
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Pages 4410 49 of the BNPP 2019 Universal

144 Corporate governance regime in force in the | Registration Document (in English)
issuer’s country ofincorporation
] o Pages 31to 42 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
145 Potential material impacts on the corporate Registration Document (in English)
governance
15. Employees
Pages 4,540, 541 and 576 of the BNPP 2019
151 Numberofemployees Universal Registration Document (in English)
] ) Pages 72t0 94, 175, 176, 545 and 546 of the BNPP
152 Shareholdingsand stock options 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
16. Major shareholders
. Pages 17and 18 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
16.1 Shareholders owning more than 5% of the Registration Document (in English)
issuer’s capital orvotingrights
Page 16 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
162  Existenceofdifferent votingrights Document (in English)
_ Pages 17 and 18 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
163 Controloftheissuer Registration Document (in English)
o Page 18 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
16.4 Description of any arrangements, known to | poeument (in English)
the issuer, the operation of which may at a
subsequent date result in a change of control
of theissuer
. Pages 72t0 94, 246, 247, 604 and 605 of the BNPP
17. Related party transactions 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
18. Financial information concerning the
issuer’s assets and liabilities,
financial position, and profits and losses
S o ) Page 4, 21, 113 to 258, 465 to 503 and 613 of the
18.1  Historicalfinancial information BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
N/A
18.2 Interimand other financial information
N o S Pages 259to 264 and 504 to 509 ofthe BNPP 2019
18.3 Auditing of historical annual financial Universal Registration Document (in English)
information
N/A
18.4 Pro forma financial information
o ] Pages 21,24, 25, 115, 494 and 577 of the BNPP
185  Dividend policy 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
o ) Pages 236 and 237 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
186  Legaland arbitration proceedings Registration Document (in English)
Page 591 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
18.7  Significantchangein the issuer'sfinancial | pocument (in English)
or trading position
19. Additional information
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Pages 16, 234 to 236, 484 to 487, 599 and 624 of the

191 Share capital BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
. o Pages 599to 603 ofthe BNPP 2019 Universal

19.2 Memorandumand articles of association Registration Document (in English)

. Page 590 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
20. Material contracts Document (in English)

] Page 590 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration

21. Documents on display

Document (in English)

2019 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit and lossaccountforthe yearended 31
December 2019

Page 152 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Statement of net income and changes in assetsand
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 153 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Balance sheetat 31 December 2019

Page 154 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Cash flow statementforthe yearended 31 December
2019

Page 155 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
between 1January2018and 31 December 2019

Pages 156 and 157 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Notes to the financial statements preparedin
accordancewith International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 158t0 258 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas forthe year
ended 31 December 2019

Pages 25910 264 ofthe BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

FIRST AMENDMENTTO THE BNPP 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/L egal Docs.aspx

3. Risk factors Pages 3 and 4 of the First Amendment to the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
21. Documents on display Page 5 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2019

Universal Registration Document (in English)

2 April 2020 BNPP Press Release

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/Legal Docs.aspx

Press Release of the BNP Paribas Board of Directors
meeting of 2 April 2020

Page 1 ofthe 2 April 2020 BNPP Press Release

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE BNPP 2019 UNIVERSALREGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in
English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/Legal Docs.aspx

2. Statutory auditors

Page 106 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)

79



https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

3. Risk factors

Pages 76 to 79 of the Second Amendment to the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

5. Business overview

54 Strategy and objectives Pages 18 and 37 of the Second Amendment to the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

7. Operating and financial review

7.1 Financial situation Pages 3to 71and 74 ofthe Second Amendmentto the

BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

7.2 Operating results Pages 61 to 71 and 74 of the Second Amendment to
the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

8. Capital resources

8.1 Issuer’s capital resources Pages 55, 56, 74 and 80 to 84 of the Second
Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

8.3 Borrowing requirements and funding Page 17 ofthe Second Amendment tothe BNPP 2019

structure Universal Registration Document (in English)

13. Remuneration and benefits

131  Amountofremunerationpaid andbenefits | Pages 87 to 105 of the Second Amendment to the

in kind granted

BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

132  Totalamountsset aside oraccruedby the
issuer or its subsidiaries to provide pension,
retirement, or similar benefits

Pages 87 to 105 of the Second Amendment to the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

18. Financial information concerning the
issuer’sassets andliabilities, financial position,
and profits and losses

181 Historical financial information Pages 61 to 71 and 74 of the Second Amendment to
the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

18.2 Interimand other financial information Pages 61 to 71 and 74 of the Second Amendment to

the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
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18.6 Legal and arbitration proceedings Pages 85 and 86 of the Second Amendment to the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

18.7 Significant changein the issuer’s financial Page 850fthe Second Amendment tothe BNPP 2019

or trading position

Universal Registration Document (in English)

21. Documents on display

Page 850fthe Second Amendment tothe BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE BNPP 2019 UNIVERSALREGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/l egal Docs.aspx

1. Persons Responsible

15 Approval froma competent authority Pages 3to 4 of the Third Amendment to the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)

2. Statutory auditors Page 6 of the Third Amendment to the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

18. Financial information concerning the

issuer’sassetsandliabilities, financial position,
and profits and losses

18.7  Significant changein the issuer’s financial
or trading position

Page 5 of the Third Amendment to the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

21. Documents on display

Page 5 of the Third Amendment to the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

BNP PARIBAS ISSUANCE B.V.

2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/L egal Docs.aspx

Managing Director's Report

Pages 3and 4 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Balance Sheet at 31 December 2018

Page 5 ofthe 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Profit & Loss Account forthe yearended 31
December 2018

Page 6 ofthe 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Cashflow Statementfor the yearended 31 December
2018

Page 7 ofthe 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Shareholder's equity

Page 8 ofthe 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Notes/Other Information

Pages 9to 19 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
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Auditor's Reportofthe Financial Statements of
BNPP B.V. for the yearended 31 December 2018

Pages 21to 24 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual
Report

2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/Legal Docs.aspx

Managing Director’s Report

Pages 3to 4 ofthe 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Balance Sheet at 31 December 2019

Page 5 ofthe 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Profit & Loss accountforthe yearended31
December 2019

Page 6 ofthe 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Cashflow Statementfor the yearended 31 December
2019

Page 7 ofthe 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Notes/Other Information

Pages 810 16 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Shareholder's equity

Page 10 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Auditor's Reportofthe Financial Statements of
BNPP B.V. for the yearended 31 December 2019

Pages 17to 21 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual
Report

Each of the documents incorporated by reference in (c) to (i) above will only be made available by the relevant
Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) to which such document relates. In addition, copies of any docunents
incorporated by reference will be made available, free of charge, by BNP Paribas Securities Services ("BP2S™),
BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. ("BNPA™) and the other Agents. Requests for such documents should be directed
to the specified office of such Agent. Such documents will, along with this Base Prospectus, be available for
viewing via the websites of BNPP (www.produitsdebourse.bnpparibas.fr; www.bnpparibasmarkets.be or

www.bnpparibasmarkets.nl; www.educatedtrading.bnpparibas.se; https://www.productoscotizad os.com/home/).

Otherthan in relation to the documents which are deemedto be incorporated by reference, theinformationon the
websites to which this Base Prospectus refers does notformpart of this Base Prospectus unless that information
is incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus and has not beenscrutinised or approved by the AFM.
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[FINAL VERSION APPROVED BY THE ISSUER]
(insertifthe Final Terms are not signed)

FORM OF FINAL TERMS

[The Base Prospectus dated 2 July 2020 expires on 2 July 2021. The updated Base Prospectus shall be available
for viewing free of charge on [https:/rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx].]*

FINAL TERMS DATED [®]
[BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.
(incorporated in The Netherlands)
(aslssuer)
Legal entity identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48]
BNP Paribas
(incorporated in France)
(as[lssuer] [Guarantor])
Legal entity identifier (LEI): ROMUW SFPUSMPRO8K5P83
(Warrant and Certificate Programme)
[inserttitleof Securities]
[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.
(asManager)]

Any personmaking or intending to make an offer of the Securities may only do so[:

() in those Non-exempt Offer Jurisdictions mentioned in Paragraph 37 of Part A below, provided such
person is a Manager oran Authorised Offeror (as such termis defined in the Base Prospectus) and that
the offeris made during the Offer Period specified in that paragraph and that any conditions relevantto
the use ofthe Base Prospectus are complied with; or

(i) otherwise]? in circumstances in which no obligationarises for the Issuer[, the Guarantor] or any Manager
to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3ofthe Prospectus Regulation or to supplementa prospectus

pursuantto Article 23 ofthe Prospectus Regulation, in each case, in relation to such offer.

[Neither][None of] the Issuer [nor], [the Guarantor or] any Manager has authorised, [n]or [do they] authorise[s],
the making of any offer of Securities in any other circumstances.

[Investors should note that if a supplement to or an updated version of the Base Prospectus referred to below is
published at any time during the Offer Period (as defined below), suchsupplement or updated base prospectus, as
the case may be, willbe published and made available in accordance with thearrangements applied to the original
publication of these Final Terms. Any investors who have indicated acceptances of the Offer (as defined below)

! Include in respect of an issue of Securities for which the offer periods to retail investors span an update to the Base Prospectus or
the Issue Date occurs after an update to the Base Prospectus where the public offer period to retail investors concludes prior to
the update to the Base Prospectus

2 Include this wording where a non-exempt offer of Securities is anticipated.
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priorto the date of publication of such supplement or updated version of the Base Prospectus, as the case may be
(the "Publication Date"), have the right within two working days of the Publication Date to withdraw their
acceptances.]®

[Investors who, before the Base Prospectus is published, have already agreed to purchase or subscribe for the
Securities whichare thesubjectof the Non-exempt Offer, where the Securities havenotyet beendelivered to such
investors, have the right, exercisable within the period of two working days after the publication of the Base
Prospectus to withdraw their acceptances. This right towithdraw shall expire by close ofbusinesson [@].]

PART A- CONTRACTUAL TERMS

[Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions setforth in the Base
Prospectus dated 2 July 2020 [, [the][each] Supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus published and approved onor
before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described below) and any other Supplement
to the Base Prospectus which may have been published and approved before the issue of any additional amount
of Securities (the " Supplements") (provided that to theextent any such Supplement (i) is published and approved
afterthe dateof these Final Terms and (i) provide forany change to the Conditions of the Securities such changes
shall have no effect with respect to the Conditions of the Securities to which these Final Terms relate)] which
[together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129, (as amended, the
"Prospectus Regulation™) (the "Base Prospectus"). This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities
described herein for the purposes of the Prospectus Regulation and must be read in conjunction with the Base
Prospectus to obtain all the relevantinformation. [A summary of the Securities is annexed to these Final Terms.]
[The Base Prospectus [[and][,] any Supplement(s) to the Base Prospectus] [and these Final Terms]*[is/are]
available for viewing at [address] [and] [website] andcopies may be obtained free of charge at the specified
offices of the Security Agents.]]

[The following altemative language appliesifthe Securities are being issued pursuantto Conditions set forth in
a previous Base Prospectus that isincorporated by reference herein, such asthe first tranche ofan issue which
isbeing increased was issued under a Base Prospectus withan earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such forthe purposes ofthe Conditions (the " Conditions™)
set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [original date] [, [the][each] Supplement[s] toit published and approved on
or before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described below) and any other
Supplement to it which may have been published and approved before the issue of any additional amount of
Securities (the "Supplements") (provided that to the extent any such Supplement (i) is published and approved
afterthe date ofthese Final Terms and (ii) provide for any change to the Conditions of the Securities such changes
shallhave no effectwith respectto the Conditions of the Securities to which these Final Terms relate)] which are
incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus dated [currentdate]. This documentconstitutes the Final Tenmrs
of the Securities described herein for the purposes of the Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (as amended, the
"Prospectus Regulation™) and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated [current date] [and
any Supplement[s] toit] to obtainall relevant information, which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the
purposes of the Prospectus Regulation (the "Base Prospectus"), including the Conditions incorporated by
reference in the Base Prospectus. [A summary of the Securities is annexed to these Final Terms][The Base
Prospectus [[and][,] any Supplement(s) to the Base Prospectus] [and these Final Terms]®[is/are] available
for viewing at [address] [and] [website] andcopies may be obtained free of charge at the specifiedoffices of
the Security Agents.]

[The following alternative language applies in respect ofissues of Securities (a) where the offer period to retail
investors spans a supplement to the Base Prospectus or an update to the Base Prospectus or (b) where the offer

3 Include in respect of issues of Securities where the offer period to retail investors spans a supplement to the Base Prospectus or
an update to the Base Prospectus.

4 Include in respect of issues of Securities that are listed.

s Include in respect of issues of Securities that are listed.
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period to retail investors concludes prior to the publication ofa supplement to the Base Prospectus or an update
to the Base Prospectus, but the Issue Date ofthe Securities occurs after suchpublication

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such forthe purposes of the Conditions (the " Conditions™)
set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [date] [,]J[and][the][each] Supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus published
and approved on or before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described below) and
any other Supplement to the Base Prospectus which may have been published and approved (such date of
publication and approval, the "Publication Date™) before the issue of any additional amount of Securities (the
"Supplements™) (providedthat to the extentany such Supplement (i) is published and approved after the date of
these Final Terms and (ii) provide forany change to the Conditions of the Securities such changes shall have no
effect with respect to the Conditions of the Securities towhichthese Final Terms relate) (together, the "2020 Base
Prospectus")], notwithstanding the approval of an updated base prospectus which will replace the 2020 Base
Prospectus (the "2021 Base Prospectus™). This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities described
herein for the purposes of the Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (as amended, the "Prospectus Regulation™) and (i)
priorto the Publication Date, must beread in conjunctionwith the 2020 Base Prospectus, as supplemented, or (i)
on and afterthe Publication Date, must be read in conjunctionwith the 2021 Base Prospectus, as supplemented,
save in respectofthe Conditions which are extracted fromthe 2020 Base Prospectus as supplemented, as the case
may be, to obtain all the relevant information. The 2020 Base Prospectus, as supplemented, constitutes, and the
2021 Base Prospectus will constitute, a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Regulation. [A
summary of the Securities is annexed to these Final Terms.] The 2020 Base Prospectus], as supplemented)]
[and] [these Final Terms]® are available, and the 2021 Base Prospectus will be available for viewing at
[address][and] [website] and copies may be obtained from [address].]

[Include whichever ofthe following applyor specify as ""Not applicable”. Note that the numbering should remain
asset out below, even if "Notapplicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub paragraphs. Italics denote
directions for completing the Final Terms. However, such numbering may change where individual paragraphs
orsub-paragraphs are removed.]

References herein to numbered Conditions are to theterms and conditions of the relevant series of Securities and
words and expressions definedin such terms and conditions shall bear the same meaning in these Final Terms in
so faras they relate to such series of Securities, save as where otherwise expressly provided.

[When completing any final terms consideration should be given as to whether such terms or information
constitute "significant new factors"” and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base Prospectus
under Article23 ofthe Prospectus Regulation.]

These Final Terms relate to the series of Securities as set out in " Specific Provisions for each Series" below.
References herein to "Securities" shallbe deemed to be references to the relevant Securities that are the subject
of theseFinal Terms and references to " Security"” shall be construed accordingly.

SPECIFIC PROVISIONS FOR EACH SERIES

SERI [TRAN NO.OF NOOF [NO. ISI [COMM [MNEM [C [FI ISSUE [CA [EXER [REDEM [EXERCI [RELE- [PAR [SPECI [Inse

ES CHE SECUR SECUR OF N/ ON ONIC  FI] SN] PRICE L/ CISE PTION SE VANT ITY FIED rt
NUM NUMB ITIES ITIES WARR [] CODE][L CODE] PER PUT PRICE] DATE] [PERIOD/ JURISDI SECUR other
BER ER ISSUED ANTS OCAL [SECURIT ] DATE]  CTION] ITIES  denti
PER CODE] Y/UNIT] PURSU fier
UNIT] ANT code

TO or
SECTI varia

ble]

6 Include in respect of issues of Securities that are listed.
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ON
871(m)”
[®] [®] [®] [Upto] [®] [e][®]  [®]  [e] [e] [finsert [call/ [[insert [@]/[Open[®] [®] [®] [Yes/ [®]
{®} currency]  put] currenc End]® No]
Q0N ylell
of the
Notional
Amount]
[®] [e]] [e] [Up [e]° [e][e] [®11'° [®] [®] [finsert [call/ [[insert [®]/[Open[®]]"> [®1]"* [®]] [Yes/ [®]
to]{®} currency]  put]] currenc End]] No]]
[®11/[[®1% y]
of the [e1]*
Notional
Amount]

(Where the Final Terms cover more than one series of Securities, the table above should be completed for all
variableswhichwilldiffer across the differentseriesof Securities. The relevantline itemfor any suchvariablein
the General Provisions belowshould include the following language: " See the Specific Provisions for each Series
[above]™)

GENERAL PROVISIONS

The following terms apply to eachseries of Securities:

1. Issuer: [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]J/[BNP Paribas]

2. [Guarantor: BNP Paribas]

3. Trade Date: [specify]

4, Issue Date [and Interest  [specify] [Applicable only for Fixed Rate Interestor Coupon
Commencement Date]: Rate Payout 3000/1 - Digital Coupon/ Coupon Rate Payout

3000/2 - Snowball Digital Coupon]

5. Consolidation: [The Securities are to be consolidated and form a singlke
series with the [insert title of relevant series of Securities]
issuedon [insert issue date]/[Not applicable]]

6. Type of Securities: @) [Warrants/Certificates]

(0) The Securities are [Index Securities/Share
Securities/ ETI Securities / Debt Securities /
Commodity Securities/ Currency Securities/
Futures Securities/Hybrid Securities].

7 Specify "Yes" if the Securities are Specified Securities for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986.

Include for Open Ended Securities

Include for Warrants if applicable.

10 Only applies where the Securities are listed on Euronext Paris or Euronext Amsterdam.
1 Include for Warrants.

12 Include for Warrants.

1 Include for Certificates.
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10.

11.

Form of Securities:

Business Day Centre(s):

Settlement:

Rounding Convention for Cash
Settlement Amount:

Variation of Settlement:

@) Issuer's option to vary
settlement:

14
15

Include for Warrants.
Applicable only to Clearstream Frankfurt Securities

[The Warrants are [European/American] Style Warrants.]
(N.B. Swedish Dematerialised Warrants may only be
European Style Warrants)

Automatic Exercise [applies/does not apply]. (N.B.
Automatic Exercise may only apply in relation to Cash
Settled Warrants/Automatic Exercise will always apply to
Swedish Dematerialised Warrants).]*

[The provisions of Annex 2 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Index Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 3 (Additional Terms and Conditions
for Share Securities) shallapply.] [The provisions of Annex
4 (Additional Terms and Conditions for ET1 Securities)
shallapply.][The provisions of Annex5 (Additional Tenrs
and Conditions for Debt Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex6 (Additional Terms and Conditions
for Commodity Securities) shallapply.] [The provisions of
Annex7 (Additional Terms and Conditions for Currency
Securities) shall apply.] [The provisions of Annex 8
(Additional Terms and Conditions for Futures Securities)
shallapply.][The provisions of Annex9 (Additional Tenrs
and Conditions for OET Certificates) shallapply ]

Unwind Costs: [Applicable/Notapplicable]
[Waiver of Set-Off: Not applicable]
[Essential Trigger: Applicable]

[Dematerialised bearer form (au porteur)] [Swedish
Dematerialised Securities] [Materialised bearer form]*®

The applicable Business Day Centre[s] for the purposes of
the definition of " Business Day" in Condition 1 [is/are] [@®].

Settlement will be by way of [cash payment (Cash Settled
Securities)] [and/or] [physical delivery (Physical Delivery
Securities)]. (N.B. Swedish Dematerialised Securities may
only be Cash Settled Securities)

[Issuer’s Optionto Substitute: Not applicable]

[Rounding Convention 1 (only applicablein the case of
Warrants)]/[Rounding Convention 2])/[Not applicable]

The Issuer [has/does nothave] the option tovary settlerment
in respectofthe Securities. (N.B. the Issuer's option tovary
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12.

(0) Variation of Settlement of
Physical Delivery Securities:

Final Payout

[ETS Payout

[SPS Payout

settlement is not applicable to Swedish Dematerialised
Securities)

(N.B. If the Issuer does not have the option to vary
settlement in respect of the Securities, delete the sub-
paragraphs ofthisparagraph11)

[Notwithstanding the fact that the Securities are Physical
Delivery Securities, the Issuer may make payment of the
Cash Settlement Amount on the [Settlement Date (in the
case of Warrants)] / [Redemption Date (in the case of
Certificates)], and the provisions of Condition 5will apply
to the Securities.]/[The Issuer will procure delivery of the
Entitlement in respect of the Securities and the provisions
of Condition 5will not apply tothe Securities.]

[NA X [@9%]]
[Yield Enhancement Products:

[ETS Final Payout 1250/4
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]]

[Participation Products:

[ETS Final Payout 1320/1
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]]

[Leverage Products:

[ETS Final Payout 2100
Insert related provisions from Conditions]]

[ETS Final Payout 2200/1
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]

[ETS Final Payout 2200/2
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]

[ETS Final Payout 2210
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]

[ETS Final Payout 2230

[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]]
[Constant Leverage Products:

[ETS Final Payout 2300

[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]]

[SPS Rewerse Conwertible Securities
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Aggregation:

13.  Relevant Asset(s):

14.  Entitlement:

15. [BExchange Rate]/[Conversion Rate]

16.  Settlement Currency:

17.  Syndication:

18.  Minimum Trading Size:

19.  Principal Security Agent:

[SPS Final Payout 3000 - Reverse Convertible Securities
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]

[SPS VanillaProducts

[SPS Final Payout 3001 - Vanilla Call Securities
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]]]

[Applicable / Not applicable]

[The relevant asset to which the Securities relate [is/are]
[®@].J/[Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable/Physical Delivery Option
[1/2/3]]

[The Entitlement Amountin relation to each Security is:

@) The Entitlement will be evidenced by [insert
details of howtheEntitlement will be evidenced] ]

(b) [The Entitlement will be [delivered] [Delivered]
[insert details of the method of delivery of the
Entitlement].]

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to Physical Delivery
Securities)

[The applicable rate of exchange for conversion of any
amount into the relevant [settlement currency]/[Settlement
Currency or Calculation Currency, as applicable] for the
purposes of determining the Settlement Price (as defined in
the relevant Annexto the Terms and Conditions) or the
Cash Settlement Amount (as defined in Condition 1) is
[insert rate ofexchange and details ofhow and when such
rate is to be ascertained]/[specify]]/[As specified in the
OET Certificate Conditions]/[Not applicable].

The settlement currency for the payment of [the Cash
Settlement Amount] (in the case of Cash Settled

Securities)/[the Disruption Cash Settlement Price] (in the
case of Physical Delivery Securities) is [@].

The Securities will be distributed on a [non-]syndicated
basis.

[if syndicated, specify names ofthe Managers]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.]/ [BNP Paribas Securities

Services]/[BNP Paribas Securities Services in Amsterdam]
/[BNP Paribas Securities Services, Branch in Spain]/ [BNP
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20.

21.

22.

Paribas Securities Services, Branch in Frankfurt] [specify

other]

Calculation Agent: [BNP Paribas]/[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.J/[specify
other][ADDRESS].

Governing law: French law

[Masse provisions (Condition 9.4): [Contractual representation of Holders/No Masse]*® / [Full

Masse]*’ / [Contractual Masse]*®/ [Not applicable]® [If
Condition 9.4(b)(ii) (Full Masse) or Condition 9.4(c)(ii)
(Contractual Masse) applies, insert below details of
Representative and alternate Representative and
remuneration, ifany:

[Name and address ofthe Representative: [@]
Name and address ofthe alternate Representative: [@®]]

[The Representation will receive no remuneration/The
Representativewill receive aremuneration of [@]].]

PRODUCT SPECIFIC PROVISIONS (ALL SECURITIES)

23.

Index Securities: [Applicable/Notapplicable]
@) Index/Basket of Indices/Index [insert type of Index/Indices (e.g. Total Return, Price Retum
Sponsor(s): etc.)and specify name of Index/Indices]

[specify name of Index Sponsor(s)]

[The [®] Index is a [Component Security]/[Multi
Exchange] Index]?

[The [@] Indexis a CustomIndex

[Asset Class Type: [Equity]/[Commodity] Custom
Index]]*

[Futures Price Valuation [applies to the [®] Index(see item
23(n) below)]/ [does not apply to the [®] Index]/ [Futures
Price Valuation applies to each Indexspecified in the table

16

17

18

19

20
21

Apply "Contractual representation of Holders/No Masse" pursuant to Condition 9.4(a) of the Terms and Conditions of the
Securities which constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et financier and are
traded in amounts or have a notional amount of at least EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as of the Issue
Date).

Appl)y "Full Masse" pursuant to Condition 9.4(b) of the Terms and Conditions in respect the Securities which constitute
obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et financier and (i) are traded in amounts or
have a notional amount of less than EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as of the Issue Date) and (ii) are
issued inside France..

Apply "Contractual Masse" pursuant to Condition 9.4(c) of the Terms and Conditions of the Securities which constitute
obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et financier and (i) are traded in amounts or
have a notional amount of at least EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as of the Issue Date) or (ii) are issued
outside France (“a I'étranger"”), within the meaning of Article L.228-90 of the French Code de commerce..

Select "Not applicable” if the Securities do not constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code
monétaire et financier.

Specify each Composent Security Index and/or Multi-Exchange Index (if any).

Specify each Custom Index (if any).
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(b)
©)
(d)
©)

(f)

@)

(h)

(i

0)

Index Currency:
Exchange(s):
Related Exchange(s):

Exchange Business Day:

Scheduled Trading Day:

Weighting:

Settlement Price:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

Valuation Time:

22

in "Specific Provisions for each Series" above (see item
23(n) below)]

[specify]
[specify]/[Not applicable]?
[specify]/[All Exchanges]/[Not applicable]?

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis/As
per Conditions]/[Not applicable]?

[Exchange/Related: Applicable]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis/As
per Conditions]/[Not applicable]?

[Exchange/Related: Applicable ]
(must match electionmadefor Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket of Indices to ascertain the Settlement Price is [@].
Each such Weighting shall be subject to adjustment in
accordancewith Annex2]/[specify other].]/[Not applicable]
(N.B. Only applicable in relationto Securities relatingto a
BasketofIndices)

[Official openinglevel]/[Official closing level]/[level at the
Valuation Time]/[Index Condition 9 (Futures Price
Valuation) applies]

[As per Conditions]/[[specify] Scheduled Trading Days] /
[Not applicable]?

[Specified Maximum Days of Disruption will be equal to
[®@]/[twenty]] (N.B. Only applicable in the case of Custom
Indices. If no Specified Maximum Days of Disruption are
stated, Specified Maximum Days of Disruption will beequal
to twenty)

[Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the relevant
time on the relevant Settlement Price Date or Averaging
Date , as the case may be, is [Scheduled Closing Time (in
the case of Warrants) orthe Valuation Time (in the case of
Certificates)] each as definedin Condition 1.] [specify].]

(N.B. If no Valuation Time is specified, the Valuation Time
will be the Scheduled Closing Time as defined in
Condition 1. Not applicable inthe case of Custom Indices).

[As perthe Conditions]/[[®@], being the time specified on the
last Valuation Date or an Averaging Date or Observation

Specify "Not applicable” in the case of ETS Final Payout 2300 if Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable.
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()

(0
(m)

[[Cancellation] (in the case of
Warrants)/[Redemption] (in
the case of Certificates) on
Occurrence of Index
AdjustmentEvent:

Index Correction Period:

Additional provisions
applicable to CustomIndices:

(i) Screen Page:

Date as the case may be, for the calculation of the
Settlement Price (N.B. Only applicable in the case of
Custom Indices).]

In the case of Warrants:

[As per Conditions]

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines an Index Adjustment
Event constitutes a force majeure, Index Condition
3.2(c)(iii) applies]]

In the case of Certificates:

[Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an Index
Adjustment Event: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If applicable:

Principal Protected Termination Amount: [Applicable/Not
applicable]

[Highest Value:[Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If Principal Protected Termination Amount, Highest Value
or Monetisation Optionare applicable:

Protected Amount: [specify] per cent. of the Notional
Amount]

[If the Calculation Agentdeterminesan IndexAdjustement
Event constitutes a force majeure, Index Condition
3.2(d)(vi) applies]

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[specify]
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

[Custom Index

Business Day:

[Scheduled Custom
IndexBusiness Day:

[Custom Index
Correction Period:

[Cancellation] (in the

case of
Warrants)/[Redempti
on] (in the case of
Certificates) on
Occurrence of
Custom Index

Adjustment Event [or
Commodity Custom
Index Market
Disruption Event]:

[All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis/Single Index Basis/As
per Conditions]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)

[All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis/Single Index Basis/As
per Conditions]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)

(N.B. Must match electionmade for Custom Index Business
Day)

[As per Conditions/specify]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)
In the case of Warrants:

[As per Conditions]

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines a Custom Index
Adjustement Event constitutes a force majeure, Index
Condition 6.2[(a)/(b)/(c)](i)(D)l applies.]

In the case of Certificates:

[Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an Index
Adjustment Event [or Commodity Custom Index Market
Disruption Event]: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Highest Value:[Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If Highest Value or Monetisation Option are applicable:
Protected Amount: [specify] per cent. of the Notional

Amount]

[If the Calculation Agent determines a Custom Index
Adjustement Event [or Commodity Custom Index Market
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(n)

Additional provisions
applicable to Futures Price
Valuation:

(i) Rolling Futures

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(iX)
)

Contract Securities:

Exchange-traded
Contract:

Delivery or expiry
month:

Futures or Options
Exchange:

Futures Rollover
[Date/Period]:

First Traded Price:

Relevant FTP Screen
Page:

Relevant Futures or

options  Exchange
Website:
Cut-off Time:

[Cancellation] (in the
case of
Warrants)/[Redempti
on] (in the case of
Certificates) on Non-
Commencement or
Discontinuance of an
Exchange-traded
Contract:

Disruption Event] constitutes a force majeure, Index
Condition 6.2[(2)/(b)/(©)](i)E)M / [6.2(c)(vI)]/[6.2(b)(V)]
[and 17.2(b)(iii)(E)] applies]
[Applicable/Notapplicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[Yes/No]

[Related Hedging: Not applicable]

[Dislocation Event: [Applicable]/[Notapplicable]
Dislocation Level: [specify]/[As per Conditions]]

[specify]/[If the Index Securities are Rolling Futures
Contract Securities: IndexCondition 9.2 applies]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

(Not applicable in the case of Index Securities that are
Rolling Futures Contract Securities)

[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Applicable]/[Not applicable]

[If First Traded Price is applicable: Relevant Time:

[specify]]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

In the case of Warrants:

[As per Conditions]

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
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24.  Share Securities/ETI Share Securities:

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines a Non-
Commencement or Discontinuance of an Exchange-traded
Contract constitutes a force majeure, Index Condition
9.2(a)(iii) applies.]

In the case of Certificates:
[Delayed Redemption on Non-Commencement or
Discontinuance of an Exchange-traded Contract:

[Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[If applicable: Principal Protected Termination Amount:
[Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[Highest Value:[Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If Principal Protected Termination Amount, Highest Value
or Monetisation Option are applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify] per cent. ofthe Notional Amount]

[If the Calculation Agent determines a Non-
Commencement or Discontinuance of an Exchange-traded
Contract constitutes a force majeure, Index Condition
9.2(b)(vi) or 9.4(vi) applies]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]
[ETI Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(Inthe case of Hybrid Securitieswhich are Share Securities
and ETI Share Securities, repeat sub-paragraphs (a) to (t)
below for Share Securitiesand ETI Securities to which the
ETI Share Provisions apply, as required)

@) Share(s)/Share [insert type of Share(s) and Share Company/Basket
Company/Basket Companies/ETI Interest(s) and ETI(s)]
Company/GDR/ADR/ETI
Interest/Basket  of ETI
Interests:

[Insert details of GDR/ADR]®
= Specify each GDR or ADR (if any). Inthe case of Share Securities relating to a GDR/ADR, complete Share Securities Final

Terms as applicable for GDR/ADR reference asset(s).
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[Stapled Sharesapplicable]

[Insert details of Stapled Shares and Stapled Share
Constituents]?

(b) Relative Performance Basket:  [Not applicable/specify]

(Always specify as "Not applicable” where ETI Share
Securitiesis specifiedasapplicable)

(c) Share/ETl InterestCurrency:  [specify]

(d) ISIN of Share(s)/ETI  [specify]

Interest(s):

(e) Exchange(s): [specify]

) Related Exchange(s): [specify]l/[All Exchanges]

@) Exchange Business Day: [Single [Share/ETI Interest] Basis/All [Share/ETI Interest]
Basis/Per [Share/ETI Interest] Basis/As per Conditions]

(h) Scheduled Trading Day: [Single [Share/ET]I Interest] Basis/All [Share/ET1 Interest]
Basis/Per [Share/ETI Interest] Basis/As per Conditions]
(must match electionmadefor Exchange Business Day)

(i) Weighting: [The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket of [Share/ETI Interest] to ascertain the Settlerent
Price is [@®]. Each such Weighting shall be subject to
adjustment [in accordance with [Annex 3]/[Annex
4])/[specify other]. ]/[Not applicable] (N.B. Onlyapplicable
in relationto Securities relatingto a Basket of Sharesor a
Basketof ETI Interests)]

0) Settlement Price: [Official closing price]/[Price at the Valuation Time]]

(K) Specified Maximum Days of [As per Conditions]/[[specify] Scheduled Trading Days].
Disruption:

()] Valuation Time: [Continuous monitoring] / [specify other] and the relevant
time on the relevant Settlement Price Date or Averaging
Date, as the case may be, is the Scheduled Closing Time as
defined in Condition 1.] [specify] (N.B. Ifno Valuation Time
is specified, the Valuation Time will be the Scheduled
Closing Time asdefined in Condition 1)]

(m) [Cancellation] (in the case of In the case of Warrants:
Warrants)/[Redemption] (in
the case of Certificates) on [As perConditions]

2 Specify each Stapled Share Constituent comprising the Stapled Shares. In the case of Share Securities relating to Stapled Shares,
complete Share Securities Final Terms as applicable for Stapled Shares reference asset(s).
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(n)

(0)
(p)
@)

()
(t)

Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Event:

Share/ET]1 Interest Correction
Period

[Dividend Payment:
Listing Change:
Listing Suspension:
lliquidity:

Tender Offer:

Hedging Liquidity Event:

Not applicable in respect of ET | Securities.

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines that an Extraordinary
Event constitutes a force majeure, Share Condition
4.2(b)(iii) or 4.2(c)(iii) applies.]

In the case of Certificates:

[Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an Extraordinary
Event: [Not applicable/ Applicable]]

[If applicable:

Principal Protected Termination Amount: [Applicable/Not
applicable]]

[Highest Value:[Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If Principal Protected Termination Amount, Highest Value
or Monetisation Option are applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify] percent. ofthe Notional Amount]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines that an Extraordinary
Event constitutes a force majeure, Share Condition
4.2(b)(vi) or 4.2(d)(vi))J/[ETI Condition 12.2(b)(iii) or
12.2(c)(vi)] applies]

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]]*®
[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
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25.

ETI Securities

@) [ETIVETI Basket:

(b) ETI Interest(s):

(c) ETI Related Party:

(d) ETI Documents:

(e) Exchange(s):

() Related Exchange:

Q) Scheduled Trading Day:

() Exchange Business Day:

(i) Calculation Date(s):

) Initial Calculation Date:

(K) Final Calculation Date:

() Hedging Date:

(m) Investment/AUM Level:

(n Value per ETI Interest Trading
Price Barrier:

(0) Number of Value Publication
Days:

(p) Value Trigger Percentage:

@ Value Trigger Period:

[Maximum Hedging Liquidity Level: [[®] per cent.]/[As
per Conditions]]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[ETI Share Provisions: [Applicable — see item 24 (Share
Securities/ET1 Share Securities) above]/[Not applicable]

(If applicable and sub-paragraphs (a) to (dd) are not
requiredfor Hybrid Securities, delete sub-paragraphs(a)to

(dd) and complete item 26 (Share Securities/ETI Share
Securities above).

[specify]

[inserttype of ETI Interest(s)]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]/[Not Applicable]

[specify]/[All Exchanges]/[Not Applicable]

[All ETI Interest Basis/Per ETI Interest Basis/Single ETI
Interest Basis]

[All ETI Interest Basis/Per ETI Interest Basis/Single ETI
Interest Basis]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[[®] calendardays] [[®] Value Business Days]
[Value Business Day Centre(s): [specify]

(Only applicable if Number of Value Publication Days is
calculated by reference to Value Business Days)]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
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26.

() Basket Trigger Level:

(s) Settlement Price/Closing
Price:

9] Weighting:

w Valuation Time:

v) Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

(W) Additional Extraordinary ETI
Event(s):

(x) Maximum Stock Loan Rate:

) ETI Interest Correction Period:

2 Termination Amount:

(aa) [Simple InterestSpread:

(bb)  Termination Date:

(cc) [Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of an

Extraordinary ETI Event (in
case of Certificates):

(dd)  [Protected Amount:

Debt Securities:

@ Debt Instrument(s):

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[The Weighting to be applied to each ETI Interest
comprising the ETI Basket is [specify]]/[Not applicable]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of [specify in
relation to eachrelevantETI Interest] is [@®].]

[As per Conditions/specify]

In the case of Warrants:

[As per Conditions]/[Highest Value]/[Market Value]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

In the case of Certificates:

[Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[Non-Principal
Protected  Termination Amount]/[specify]/[Market
Value]/[Highest Value]/[Monetisation Option]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]]

[specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[If Highest Value, Monetisation Option or Delayed
Redemption on Occurrence ofan Extraordinary ETI Event
and Principal Protected Termination Amount are
applicable: [specify] per cent. of the Notional Amount]]]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable — Synthetic Debt Instrument
applies —see item26(m) below]/[Not applicable (if Futures
Price Valuation applicable)]
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(b)
©)

(d)

©)

(f)

@
(h)

(i

Debt Instrument Currency:

Settlement Price:

Reference Price:

Nominal Amount:

Exchange
Centre(s):

Business Day

Valuation Time:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

[Cancellation] (in the case of
Warrants)/[Redemption] (in
the case of Certificates) on
Occurrence of Debt Instrument
Redemption Event:

[specify]

[As per Debt Condition 1 applies]/ [(If Futures Price
Valuation applicable) Debt Condition 6 (Futures Price
Valuation) applies (please referto below)]

[The Reference Price[s] for [insert relevant Debt
Instrument(s)] is/are the [bid price]/[mid price]/[offer
price]/[bid  yield]/[mid yield])/[offer  yield].]/[Not
applicable]
(Notapplicableif Futures Price Valuationapplicable)

[The relevant nominal amount is [®] and the Relevant
Screen Page is [®].] [Not applicable]

(Notapplicableif Futures Price Valuationapplicable)

[specify]

[specify]

[[As defined in Condition 1])/[specify] Scheduled Trading
Days.] [Not applicable] (Not applicable if Futures Price
Valuationapplicable)

In the case of Warrants:

[As per Conditions]

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines that the Debt
Instrument Redemption Event constitutes a force majeure
constitutes a force majeure, Debt Condition 5(a)(iii)

applies.]
In the case of Certificates:

[Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of Debt Instrument
Redemption Event:

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[If applicable:

Principal Protected Termination Amount: [Applicable/ Not
applicable]]
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0)

()

(M

(m)

Debt Instrument Correction

Period:

Debt Instrument Issuer:

Weighting:
Additional provisions
applicable to Futures Price
Valuation:
0) Rolling Futures

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Contract Securities:

Exchange-traded
Contract(s):

Synthetic Debt

Instrument(s):

Delivery or expiry
month:

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If Principal Protected Termination Amount is applicable:
Highest Valueor Monetisation Optionare applicable:

Protected Amount: [specify] per cent. of the Notional
Amount]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines that the Debt
Instrument Redemption Event constitutes a force majeure,
Debt Condition 5(b)(vi) applies]

(Notapplicableif Futures Price Valuationapplicable)

[As per Conditions]/[specify]/[Notapplicable]
(Notapplicableif Futures Price Valuationapplicable)
[specify]/[Not applicable]

(Not applicableif Futures Price Valuationapplicable)
[Not applicable/The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Debt Instruments to ascertain the

Settlement Price is [®]. Each such Weighting shall be
subject toadjustment.]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
thisparagraph)

[Yes/No]

[Related Hedging: Not applicable]

[Dislocation Event: [Applicable]/[Notapplicable]
Dislocation Level: [specify]/[As per Conditions]]

[specify]/[If the Debt Securities are Rolling Futures
Contract Securities: Debt Condition 7 applies]

[specify](If the Exchange-traded Contract relates to a
Synthetic Debt Instrument, include description of the key
terms of the synthetic debtinstrument)/[Notapplicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable]
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Period of Exchange-
traded Contract(s):

Futures or Options
Exchange:

Futures Rollover
[Date/Period]:

Cancellation (in the
case of
Warrants)/Redempti
on (in the case of
Certificates) on Non-
Commencement or
Discontinuance of an
Exchange-traded
Contract:

(Not applicable in the case of Debt Securities that are
Rolling Futures Contract Securities)

[specify]/[Not applicable]

(Not applicable in the case of Debt Securities that are
Rolling Futures Contract Securities)

[specify]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

In the case of Warrants:

[As per Conditions]

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines that the Non-
Commencement or Discontinuance of an Exchange-traded

Contract constitutes a force majeure, Debt Condition
7(2)(iii) and/or9(a)(iii) applies.]

In the case of Certificates:

[Delayed Redemption on Non-Commencement or
Discontinuance of an Exchange-traded Contract:

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[If applicable: Principal Protected Termination Amount:
[Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If Principal Protected Termination Amount is applicable:
Highest Value or Monetisation Optionare applicable:

Protected Amount: [specify] per cent. of the Notional
Amount]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines that the Non-
Commencement or Discontinuance of an Exchange-traded
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(iX) Daily Settlerment
Price Correction
Period:

27.  Commodity Securities:

Contract constitutes a force majeure, Debt Condition
7(b)(vi) or 9(b)(vi) applies]

[As per Conditions][specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

@) Commodity/Commodities/ [specify Commodity/Commodities/Commodity  Index/
Commodity Index*Commodity Commodity Indices]
Indices:
[The Sponsor[s] ofthe Commodity [Index/Indices] [is/are]
[®]]
(b) Pricing Date(s): [specify]
() Initial Pricing Date: [specify]
(d) Final Pricing Date: [specify]
() Commodity Reference Price:  [specify]
The Price Source is/are [@]%
() Delivery Date: [specify]/[Not applicable]
() Nearby Month: [specify]/[Not applicable]
(h) Specified Price: [specify]/[Not applicable]
() Exchange: [specify]/[Not applicable]
() Disruption Fallback(s): [specify]/[As per Conditions]
K Valuation Time: [Continuous monitoring [specify other]andthe relevant
time on [insert relevant date(s)].}/[specify]
0] Specified Maximum Days of [specify] [[®] Commodity Business Days]*'/[As per
Disruption: Conditions]
(m) Weighting: [The Weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Commodity Basket is [specify]]/ [Not applicable]
(n) Rolling Futures Contract [Yes/No]
Securities: i .
(If notapplicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)
[Dislocation Event: [Applicable]/[Notapplicable]
Dislocation Level: [specify]/[As per Conditions]]
* Delete if using automated Commodity Reference Prices
a Only applicable in respect of Commodity Securities linked to a single Commodity.
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28.

(0)

Futures Rollover

[Date/Period]:

[Cancellation] (in the case of
Warrants) / [Redemption] (in
the case of Certificates)
following Market Disruption
Event or Commodity Index
Adjustement Event:

Currency Securities:

@)
(b)

©)

(d)
©)
(f)

@
(h)

Relevant Screen Page:

The relevant base currency
(the “Base Currency”)is:

The relevant subject
[currency/currencies]
([the]/[each  a]  “Subject

Currency™) [is/are]:
Weighting:
Price Source:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

Settlement Price:

Valuation Time:

[Notapplicable]/[specify]

In the case of Warrants:
[As per Conditions]
[Highest Value]/[Market Value]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines a Market Disruption
Event or Commodity Index Adjustement Event constitutes
a force majeure, Commodity Condition 3(c)(iii) or

4(b)(ii)(C) applies.]
In the case of Certificates:

[Commodity Condition 3(d)(i) applies]/[Highest Value]
/[Market Value]/[Monetisation Option]

[If Highest Value or Monetisation Option are applicable:
Protected Amount: [specify] per cent. of the Notional
Amount]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines a Market Disruption

Event or Commodity Index Adjustement Event constitutes
a force majeure, Commodity Condition 3(d)(v) or

4(b)(iii)(E) applies.]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[specify]
[specify]

[specify]

[specify] /[Not applicable]

[specify]

[specify]/[five] Scheduled Trading Days

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]
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29.

(i)

[Cancellation] (in the case of
Warrants)[Redemption]  (in
the case of Certificates) on
Occurrence of a Disruption
Event:

Futures Securities:

@)
(b)
©)

(d)

©)

Future(s):
Exchange(s):

Exchange Business Day:

Scheduled Trading Day:

Weighting:

In the case of Warrants:
[As per Conditions]
[Highest Value]/[Market Value ]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agentdetermines a Disruption Event
constitutes a force majeure, Currency Condition 3(b)(iii)

applies.]

In the case of Certificates:

[iquidity Disruption: Not applicable]
[Disruption Event Postponement: Not applicable]

[Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an Disruption
Event:[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[If applicable:

Principal Protected Termination Amount: [Applicable/Not
applicable]]

[Highest Value:[Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If Principal Protected Termination Amount, Highest Value
or Monetisation Option are applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify] per cent. of the Notional Amount]

[If the Calculation Agentdetermines a Disruption Event
constitutes a force majeure, Currency Condition 3(c)(vi)

applies]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[insert type of Future(s)]

[specify]

[Single Future Basis/All Futures Basis/Per Futures
Basis/As per Conditions]

[Single Future Basis/All Futures Basis/Per Futures
Basis/As per Conditions]

(must match electionmadefor Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket to ascertain the Settlement Price is [®]. Each such

105



[FINAL VERSION APPROVED BY THE ISSUER]
(insertifthe Final Terms are not signed)

30.

) Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

Q) Valuation Time:

() Futures Correction Period:

0) [Cancellation] (in the case of
Warrants)/[Redemption] (in
the case of Certificates) on
Occurrence  of  Futures
AdjustmentEvent

OET Certificates:

Weighting shall be subject to adjustment [in accordance
with Annex8]/[specify other]]/[Notapplicable]. (N.B. Only
applicable in relationto Securities relating to a Basket)

[As per Conditions]/[[specify] Scheduled Trading Days].

[Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the relevant
time on the Valuation Date, Observation Date or Averaging
Date, as the case may be, is the Scheduled Closing Time as
defined in Condition 1.] [specify] (N.B. Ifno Valuation Time
is specified, the Valuation Time will be the Scheduled
Closing Time asdefined in Condition 1)]

[As per Conditions/specify]

In the case of Warrants:

[As per Conditions]

Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[If Highest Value is applicable: Protected Amount:
[specify]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines a Futures Adjustment
Event constitutes a force majeure, Futures Condition
3.1(b)(iii) applies.]

In the case of Certificates

[Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of Futures
Adjustment Event: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If applicable:

Principal Protected Termination Amount: [Applicable/Not
applicable]]

[Highest Value:[Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]
[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[If Principal Protected Termination Amount, Highest
Value or Monetisation Option are applicable: Protected
Amount: [specify] per cent. of the Notional Amount]]

[If the Calculation Agent determines a Futures Adjustment
Event constitutes a force majeure, Futures Condition
3.1(c)(vi) applies]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
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@)
(b)
©)
(d)

©)

(f)

@

(h)

Final Price:
Valuation Date:
BExercise Price:

Capitalised Exercise Price:

Capitalised Exercise Price
RoundingRule:

Dividend Percentage:

Financing Rate:

(i) Interbank Rate 1
Screen Page:

(ii) Interbank Rate 1
Specified Time:
(iii) Interbank Rate 2

Screen Page:

(iv) Interbank Rate 2

Specified Time:

V) Financing Rate
Percentage:

(vi) Financing Rate
Range:

Automatic Early Redemption:

[As per OET Certificate Conditions]
[As per OET Certificate Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

[Capitalised Exercise Price applicable, in accordance with
the OET Certificate Conditions]/[Unrounded Capitalised
Exercise Price applicable, in accordance with the OET
Certificate Conditions] (As set outin sub-paragraph [1] [2]
of the definition of “Capitalised Exercise Price’ provided
in Condition 1 of Annex 9 - Additional Terms and
Conditions for OET Certificates)

OET Website(s):
[www.produitsdebourse.bnpparibas.fr]/[www.bnpparibasm

arkets.be]/[www.bnpparibasmarkets.nl]/
[www.educatedtrading.bnpparibas.se] /[specify]

Local Business Day Centre(s): [specify]

[upwards/downwards] [[®] digits] [specify]

[specify][subject to adjustement by the Calculation Agent
in accordancewith the OET Certificate Conditions]/[Not
applicable]

(N.B. Not applicable in respect of Commodity OET
Certificates, Currency OET Certificates, Debt OET
Certificates or Futures OET Certificates)

[specify]

[specify][As per OET Certificate Conditions]

[specify]

[specify][As per OET Certificate Conditions]

[+/-][specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
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31.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
(iX

)

(xi)

Automatic Early
Redemption Payout:

Automatic Early
Redemption Date:

ObservationPrice:

Observation  Price
Source:

Observation Time(s):

Security Threshold:

Security  Threshold
RoundingRule:

Security Percentage:

Minimum  Security
Percentage:

Maximum  Security
Percentage:

Reset Date:

lllegality (Condition 7.1)and Force
Majeure (Condition 7.2):

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
thisparagraph)

[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2210/1]

[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2210/2]
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]

[®]Business Days following the Valuation Date.

[Official level)/[Opening price]/[Official close]/[Closing
price]/[Purchase price]/[Sale price]/[Traded price]/[Bid
price]/[Asked price]/[Last price]/[Official settlerrent
price]/[ Daily settlement price]/ [high])/[mid]/ [low]/ [bid
high]/[bid low]/[ask high]/[ask low]

[specify source]

[Atany time during the opening hours of the
Exchange]/[specify]

[As per OET Certificate Conditions]

The Security Threshold in respect of a Relevant Business
Day will be published as soon as practicable after its
determination onthe OET Website(s), as set out in § 30(d)

[upwards/downwards] [@®] digits] [specify]

[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Option [1/2] is applicable]/[Not applicable]
lllegality: [[Highest Value]/[Market Value]/[Monetisation
Option] applicable]/[redemption][cancellation] in

accordancewith Condition 7.1(d)]

[If Highest Value or Monetisation Option are applicable:
Protected Amount: [Specify]]

Force Majeure: [redemption][cancellation] in accordance
with Condition [7.2(a)]/[7.2(b)]]
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32.

Additional Disruption Eventsand
Optional Additional Disruption Events:

@)

(b)

109

Additional Disruption Events: [Applicable/Not
applicable]/[[Change in Law/Hedging Disruption]
does notapply to the Securities]

[Change in Law — Hedge Maintenance Cost: Not
applicable]

[The following Optional Additional Disruption
Events apply to the Securities:

(specify each of the following which applies. NB.
Optional Additional Disruption Events are
applicable to certain Index Securities, Share
Securities, ETI Securities and Commodity
Securities. Careful consideration should be given
to whether Optional Additional Disruption Events
would apply for Debt Securitiesandfor Currency
Securities and if so, the relevant definitions will
require amendment.)

[Not applicable]
[Administrator/Benchmark Event]
[Increased Costof Hedging]

[Increased Costof Stock Borrow]
[InsolvencyFiling]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Share
Securities)

[Cancellation Event]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Debt
Securities)

[Loss of Stock Borrow]

[[Stop-Loss Event]

[Stop-Loss EventPercentage: [5] per cent.]]
[Currency Event]

[Extraordinary External Event]
[Jurisdiction Event]

[Hedging Arrangements: Not applicable]
[Significant Alteration Event]

[Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity]
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©)

(d)

©)

110

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Physical
Delivery Securities— Failure to Deliver due to
Illiquidityis applicableto certain Share Securities.
Careful consideration should be given to whether
Failureto Deliver due to llliquiditywould apply to
other Physical Delivery Securities)

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of
[specify in relation to each relevant
Share/Security]is [®].

(N.B. Only applicable if Loss of Stock Borrow is
applicable)]

[The Initial Stock Loan rate in respect of [specify
in relationto each relevant Share/Security] is [@®].

(N.B. Only applicable if Increased Cost of Stock
Borrow isapplicable)]

[Redemption:
(only applicable in case of Certificates)

[Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of
Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional
Additional Disruption Event: [Applicable/Not
applicable]

[If applicable:

Principal Protected Termination Amount:
[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[Highest Value:[Applicable/Not applicable]]
[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[Monetisation Option: [Applicable/Not
applicable]]

[If Principal Protected Termination Amount,
Highest Value or Monetisation Option are
applicable: Protected Amount: [specify] per cent.
of the Notional Amount]]

[Cancellation:
(only applicable in case of Warrants)

[Cancellation in accordance with Condition
15.2(b)(iii)]

[Highest Value: [Applicable/Not applicable]]
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33.

34.

Knock-in Event:

@)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)

(f)

@
(h)

(i

0)

(k)

Level:

Knock-in Level/Knock-n

Range Level:

Knock-in Period Beginning
Date:

Knock-in Period Beginning
Date Day Convention:

Knock-in Determination
Period:
Knock-in Determination
Day(s):

Knock-in Period Ending Date:

Knock-in Period Ending Date
Day Convention:

Knock-in Valuation Time:

Knock-in Observation Price
Source:

(K) Disruption
Consequences:

Knock-out Event:

[Market Value: [Applicable/Notapplicable]]

[If Highest Value
Amount: [specify]]

is applicable]: Protected

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[If applicable:

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal to"/"kss
than"/"less than orequal to"/"within"7]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[Official level)/[Official ~ close]/[last  price]/[bid

price]/[asked price]/[Standard Level])/[Traded price]/[Not
applicable]

[specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Condition 16]

[specify]/[Each [Scheduled Trading Day/ Schedulkd
CustomIndexBusiness Day/ Commodity Business Day] in
the Knock-in Determination Period]

[specify]
[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[specify/See definition in Condition 16]/[Valuation

Time]/[Any time on a Knock-in Determination Day]/[Not
applicable]

[specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[If applicable:
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@)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)

(f)

@)

(h)

(i

0)

()

Level:

Knock-out Level /Knock-out
Range Level/Knock-out
Corridor Range:

Knock-out Period Beginning
Date:

Knock-out Period Beginning
Date Day Convention:

Knock-out Determination
Period:

Knock-out Determination
Day(s):

Knock-out Period Ending
Date:

Knock-outPeriod Ending Date
Day Convention:

Knock-out Valuation Time:

Knock-out Observation Price
Source:

Disruption Consequences:

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal to"/"less
than"/"less than or equal to"/["within"]/[Knock-out
Corridor Range]]]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[Knock-out Corridor Value 1:] [Official level])/[Official
close]/[last price]/[bid price]/[asked price]/[Standard
Level]/[Traded price]/[Notapplicable]

[Knock-out Corridor Value 2: [Official level]/[Official
close]/[last price]/[traded price]/[bid price]/[asked
price]/[Standard Level]/[Notapplicable]]

[specify]

[If Knock-outCorridor Rangeisapplicable:

Knock-out Low Barrier: [specify]

Knock-out High Barrier: [specify]]

[specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Condition 16]

[specify]/[Each [Scheduled Trading Day/ Schedulkd
Custom Index Business Day/ Commodity Business Day/
Business Day] in the Knock-out Determination Period]

[specify]

[Not applicable/Applicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Condition 16] [Any time on a
Knock-out Determination Day]/[Valuation Time]/[Not
applicable]

[specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
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PROVISIONS RELATING TO WARRANTS

35.

Provisions relatingto Warrants:

@)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)

(f)

@)

Units:

Minimum Exercise Number:

Maximum Exercise Number:

Exercise Price(s):

BExercise Date:

Exercise Period:

Valuation Date:

[Applicable][Notapplicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

Warrants must be exercised in Units. Each Unit consists of
the number of Warrants set out in " Specific Provisions for
each Series" above. (N.B. This is in addition to any
requirements relating to *Minimum Exercise Number" or
"Maximum Exercise Number" as set out below).

The minimum number of Warrants that may be exercised
(including automatic exercise) on any day by any Holder is
[®] [and Warrants may only be exercised (including
automatic exercise) in integral multiples of [® ] Warrants in
excess thereof].

The maximum number of Warrants that must be exercised
on any day by any Holderorgroup of Holders (whether or
not acting in concert) is [®]. (N.B. not applicable for
European Style Warrants [and therefore generally not
available for Swedish Dematerialised Warrants])

The exercise price(s) per [Warrant/Unit] (which may be
subjecttoadjustment in accordance with Annex3 in the case
of Share Securities and Annex 2 in the case of Index
Securities and Annex 6 in the case of Commodity
Securities) is setout in " Specific Provisions for each Series™
above. (N.B. This should take into account any relevant
Weighting and, in the case of an Index Security, must be
expressedasa monetaryvalue).

The exercise date of the Warrants is set out in "Specific
Provisions foreach Series" above, provided that, if such date
is not an Exercise Business Day, the Exercise Date shall be
the immediately succeeding Exercise Business Day. (NB.
Only applicablein relation to European Style Warrants).

The exercise period in respect of the Warrants is set out in
""Specific Provisions for each Series" above, [inclusive of
the dates specified] [, or if either day specified is not an
Exercise Business Day, the immediately succeeding
BExercise Business Day]. (N.B. Only applicable in relation
to certain American Style Warrants).

[The Valuation Date shall be the Actual Exercise Date of the
relevant Warrant, subject toadjustments in accordance with
Condition 18]/[The Valuation Date shall be the first
Scheduled Trading Day following the Actual Exercise Date
of the relevant Warrant, subject to adjustments in
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(h)

(i

0)

(k)
(M
(m)

(n)

Strike Date:

Averaging:

Observation Dates:

Observation Period:
Settlement Date:

Settlement Business Day

Automatic Early BExpiration:

(i) Automatic  Early
BExpiration Level:

(ii) Automatic  Early
BExpiration Valuation
Time:

accordance with Condition 18]/[specify]. (N.B. specify if
different fromthe definition in Condition 18.)

[specify] (N.B. Only relevant for certain Index, Share, and
CurrencySecurities)

Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the Warrants. [The
Averaging Dates are [specify].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] (as
defined in Condition 18) will apply.] (N.B. Not applicable

to Index Securities relating to a Custom Index or
Commodity Securities)]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[In the eventthat an Observation Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will
apply.] (N.B. Not applicable to Index Securities relating to
a Custom Indexor Commodity Securities) [Observation Day
Disruption Consequences are not applicable.]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[As per Conditions]

["'Settlement Business Day" for the purposes of Condition
5 means [specify].

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Physical Delivery
Warrants)]

[Applicable/ Not applicable]

(if not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

[If applicable: ["greater than™ / "greater than or equal to" /
"less than" / "lessthanorequal to™]

[AER Knock-out: [Knock-out Event]/[Knock-in Event]

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Conditions.]

(@]

[specify]
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36.

(0)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Automatic  Early
Redemption Payout:

Automatic  Early
Bxpiration Valuation
Time:

Automatic  Early
BExpiration Valuation
Date(s)/Period(s):

Automatic  Early
Expiration

Settlement Date:

Observation  Price
Source:

Underlying
Reference Level:

Identification information of
Holders as provided by
Condition 19:

Provisions relating to Certificates:

[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2200/1]

[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2200/2]
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[Automatic Early RedemptionPayout2210/1]
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2210/2]
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payout]

[Insert related provisions from Conditions]

[specify]

[specify]/[AER Knock-out Date]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Official level]/[Official close]/[last  price]/[bid
price]/[asked price]/[Standard Underlying Reference Level]
/[Traded price]/[Not applicable]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

[Applicable][Notapplicable]

(If notapplicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of thisparagraph)
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@) Notional Amount of each
Certificate:

() [Interest

() Interest Period End
Date(s)

(ii) Business Day
Convention for Interest
Period End Date(s):

(i) Interest Payment
Date(s):

(iv) Business Day
Convention for Interest
Payment Date(s):

v) Day Count Faction:

(vi) Determination Dates:

(vii)  Accrualto Redemption:
(viii)  Coupon Rate:

(include one or more of
the following if
applicable):

28

One notional amount per series

[specify]®.

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

(Applicable only for SPS Payout [OR) and Fixed Rate
Provisions)

(If notapplicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]

[Following/Modified Following/Preceding/None/Not
applicable]

[specify]

[Following/Modified Following/Preceding/None/Not
applicable]

(If a Business Day Convention is specified for Interest
Period End Date(s), unless Interest Payment Date(s) is
(are) expressed to be a number of Business Days after
the relevant Interest Period End Final Date, Interest
Payment Date(s) must be subject to the same Business
Day Convention)

[specify]/[unadjusted]

[specify] in each year [insert regular payment dates,
ignoring issue date or redemption date in the case of a
long or short first or last coupon.] (N.B. only relevant
where Day CountFractionis Actual/Actual (ICMA))

[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[Applicable/Notapplicable]
[Coupon Rate Payout 3000/1— Digital Coupon

[insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Payout Conditions]]

[Coupon Rate Payout 3000/2 — Snowball Digital
Coupon

[insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Payout Conditions]]]
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() [Fixed Rate Provisions

(i) Fixed Rate[(s)] of
Interest
([including/excluding]
on overdue amounts
after Redemption Date
or date set for early
redemption):

(ii) Fixed Coupon
Amount[(s)]:

(d) [Instalment Certificates:]
() Instalment Amount(s)
(i) Instalment Date(s):

(e) [Issuer Call Option:]

(i) Optional  Redemption
Date(s):

(i) Optional Redemption
Valuation Date(s):

(iii) Optional  Redemption
Amount(s):

29

Tobe inserted in relation to OET Certificates

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of thisparagraph)

(specify ifmore than onefixed rate isto be determined)

[specify] percent. [per annum].

[[specify] per Certificate [Not applicable]]]

The Certificates [are/are not] Instalment Certificates.
[specify]
[specify]

[Applicable]/[Not applicable]/[Applicable. The Issuer
may redeemthe OET Certificates in accordance with the
OET Certificate Conditions. See item30 above®.]

(If not applicable or OET Certificate Conditions apply,
delete the remaining sub-paragraphsofthis paragraph)

[specify]

[The day falling [five] Business Days following the
Optional Redemption Valuation Date]

(Insert ifCall Payout 2200/1 is applicable)
[specify]

[The date designated as the Optional Redemption
Valuation Date by the Issuer in the notice of redemption,
being the day falling [15] Business Days after the notice
referred to in Condition 29.2 has been delivered to the
Holders in accordance with Condition 10

(Insertif Call Payout 2200/1 is applicable)]
[NA x [®]percent.]

[Call Payout 2200/1]
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(f)

@

(iv) Minimum Notice
Period:

v) Maximum Notice
Period:

[Holder Put Option:]

0) Optional Redemption
Date(s):

(i) Optional Redemption
Valuation Date(s):

(i) Optional Redemption

Amount(s):

(iv) Minimum Notice
Period:

v) Maximum Notice
Period:

[Automatic Early Redemption:]

(i) Automatic Early
Redemption Event:

[Call Payout 2300]

[specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

(If notapplicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of thisparagraph)

[specify]

[specify]

[NA x [®]percent.]
[Put Payout 2200/1]
[Put Payout 2210]
[Put Payout 2300]

[Insert formula, relevantvalue(s) and related provisions
for PayoutConditions]

[specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Notapplicable]

"greater than"/"greater than orequal to"/"lessthan"/"less
than orequalto™

[AER Knock-out[Knock-out Event]/
[Knock-in Event]
[As per Condition 29.6(a)]

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Conditions.]]

(If notapplicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of thisparagraph)
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(h)
(i
0)

(K)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Automatic Early
Redemption Payout:

Automatic Early
Redemption Date(s):

Observation Price
Source:

Underlying Reference
Level:

Automatic Early
Redemption Level:

[AER Rate:]

Automatic Early
Redemption Valuation
Date(s)/Period(s):

[Strike Date:]

[Strike Price:]

[Redemption Valuation Date:]

[Averaging:]

[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2200/1]

[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2200/2]
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[Automatic Early RedemptionPayout2210/1]
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2210/2]
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[Automatic Early Redemption Payout2230]
[Insert related provisions from Conditions]
[SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payouft]

[Insert related provisions from Conditions]

[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Official  level)/[Official  close]/[last price]/[bid
price]/[asked price]/[Standard Price]/[Not applicable]
[specify]

[®]

[Insert relevant provisions from Conditions]

[specify]/[AER Knock-out Date]

[specify]/[Not applicable]/[see item [@] above]
[specify]/ [see item[®]above]/ [Not applicable]

[specify]/[As specified in Condition [@] in relation to
Open End Certificates]/[Not applicable]

Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the Securities.
[The Averaging Dates are [specify].]
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[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] (as
defined in Condition 25) will apply.] (N.B. Not
applicable to Index Securities relating to a Custom Index
or Commodity Securities)

[Inthe event thatan Averaging Dateis a Disrupted Day,
the provisions of Annex 2 will apply] (N.B. Only
applicable to Index Securities relating to a Custom
Index)

()] [Observation Dates:] [specify]/[Not applicable]

[In the event that an Observation Date s a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will
apply.] [Observation Day Disruption Consequences are
not applicable.] (N.B. Not applicable to Index Securities
relating to a Custom Index or Commaodity Securities)

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disrupted
Day, the provisions of Annex2 will apply] (N.B. Only
applicable to Index Securities relating to a Custom
Index)

(m) [ObservationPeriod:] [specify]/[Not applicable]

(n) [Settlement Business Day:] "Settlement Business Day" for the purposes of
Condition 5.1 means [specify]. (N.B. Only applicable in
the case of Physical Delivery Securities)

(0) [Cut-off Date:] [specify]/[Not applicable] (N.B. Only applicable in the
case of Physical Delivery Securities and if provisions in
Conditions not applicable)

() Identification information of [Applicable/Notapplicable]

Holders as provided by Condition
26:

DISTRIBUTION

37.  Non-exempt Offer: [Applicable] [Not applicable] (if not applicable, delete the
remaining placeholders of this paragraph 36 and
paragraph 7 of Part B).

(a) Non-exempt Offer [specify relevant Member State(s) (which, for these
Jurisdictions: purposes, includes the United Kingdom) where the Issuer
intends to make Non-exempt Offers (select from the list of
Non-exempt Offer Jurisdictions in the Base Prospectus) —
which must be jurisdictions wherethe Base Prospectus and
any supplements have been passported (in addition to the
jurisdiction whereapproved and published)]

(b) Offer Period: [specify date and, if applicable, time] until [and including]
[specify date (and, ifapplicable, time) or a formula such as
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38.

©)

(d)
©)

Financial intermediaries
granted specific consenttouse
the Base Prospectus in
accordance with the
Conditionsin it:

General Consent:

Other
Terms:

Authorised  Offeror

Additional U.S. Federal income tax

considerations:

"the Issue Date" or "the datewhichfalls [®] Business Days
thereafter"][subjectto any early closing]

[insert names and addresses of financial intermediaries
receiving consent (specificconsent)]

[Not applicable]/[Applicable]

[Not applicable] [Add here any other Authorised Offeror
Terms]

(Authorised Offeror Terms should only be included here
where General Consent isapplicable)

(N.B. Consider anylocal regulatory requirements necessary
to be fulfilledso asto be ableto makea non-exempt offer in
relevant jurisdictions. No such offer shouldbe made inany
relevant jurisdiction until those requirements have been
met. Non-exempt offers may only be made into jurisdictions
in whichthe base prospectus (and any supplement) has been
notified/passported.)

[The Securities are [not] Specified Securities for the purpose
of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986.] [The Securities may be Specified Securities for the
purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as stated in "Specific Provisions for each
Series" above. If the Securities are Specified Securities, then
the following provisions will apply]. [Additional
information regarding the application of Section 871(m) to
the Securities will be available at [give name(s) and
address(es) of Issuer contact]. [The Issuer will arrange for
withholding under Section 871(m) to be imposed on any
dividend equivalent paymentat a rate of 30 per cent.]]

(If the Securities are Specified Securities, include the
"Additional information" sentence and provide the
appropriate contact information at the Issuer. N.B. Include
the option above, completed as appropriate, where (a) the
Securitiesdo notreferenceany U.S. equityor any index that
contains any component U.S. equity or otherwise provide
direct orindirectexposure toU.S. equities or (b) the Section
871(m) determination has been made by the time the Final
Terms are finalised (in which case, the determination will
have beenmadeeither (i) onthe pricing date, ifthis falls 14
daysor fewer before the issuedate or (ii) on the issue date,
if the pricing date falls more than 14 days before the issue
date. Otherwise, includethe following option, completed as
appropriate:)

121



[FINAL VERSION APPROVED BY THE ISSUER]
(insertifthe Final Terms are not signed)

39.

Prohibition of Sales to EEA and UK
Retail Investors:

[As at the date of these Final Terms, the Issuer has not
determined whether the Securities are Specified Securities
forpurposes of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue
Code of 1986; however, indicatively it considers that they
will [not] be Specified Securities for these purposes. This is
indicative information only subjectto change and if the
Issuer’s final determination is different then it will give
notice of such determination. Please contact [give name(s)
and address(es) of Issuer contact] for further information
regarding the application of Section 871(m) to the
Securities.]

(The Securitieswill notbe Specified Securities ifthey (i) are
issued prior to 1 January, 2023 and provide a retum that
differssignificantly fromthe return on an investmentin the
underlying (i.e., they are not"delta-one" securities for U.S.
tax purposes) or (ii)donot referenceany U.S. equity or any
index that contains any component U.S. equity or otherwise
provide direct or indirect exposure to U.S. equities. If the
Securities reference a U.S. equity or an index that contains
a component U.S. equity or otherwise provide direct or
indirect exposure to U.S. equities and (i) areissued prior to
1 January 2023 and provide a return that does not difer
significantly from the return on an investment in the
underlying, or (ii) are issued on or after 1 January 2023,
further analysiswould be required.)

[Payments on the Specified Securities are calculated by
reference to [Net Dividends/Net Total Returns]. By
purchasing a Specified Security, the parties agree that in
calculating the relevant payment amount the Issuer has
withheld, the purchaser is deemed to have received 30 per
cent. of any dividend equivalent payments (as defined in
Section 871(m) of the Code) in respect of therelevant[U.S.
securities/U.S. dividend paying index components]. The
Issuerwill not pay any additionalamounts to the holder on
account ofthe Section 871(m)amount deemed withheld.

[For this purpose, "Net Dividends" means the dividends
paid by an issuer ofa security net of 30 per cent. US federal
withholding tax]

[For this purpose "Net Total Returns" means the net total
return of the US source dividend paying components, as
calculated by the Index Sponsor, of an index that reinvests
US source dividends paid by an issuerofa security that is a
component ofthe indexnet of 30 per cent. USwithholding
taxon such USsource dividends.]]
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Selling Restriction: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]

[The Securities are only intended to be offered, sold or
otherwise made available to investors via the professional
segment of [the regulated market ofthe Luxembourg Stock
Exchange]/[the Euro MTF Market]/[specify].]®

Legend: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]
[Prohibition of Sales to Belgian Notapplicable]
Consumers:

Responsibility

The Issueraccepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms. Tothe bestofthe knowledge
of the Issuer (who hastaken all reasonable care to ensure that suchis the case), the information contained herein
is in accordance with thefacts and does notomit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

[Signed on behalf of [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.J/[BNP Paribas]
As Issuer:

By:

Duly authorised]®

% Include if the Securities are intended to be listed and admitted to trading on a professional segment, as the case may be.

Include if the Final Terms are signed; delete if the Final Terms are not signed.
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PART B -OTHER INFORMATION

Listing and Admission to trading — [De-listing]

[The Securities are unlisted.]/[Application [has been/willbe] made to list the Securities on [the Official
List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange]/[Euronext Paris]/[Euronext Access Paris]/[Euronex
Brussels]/[Euronext Amsterdam] and to admit the Securities for trading on [[the professional segment
of] the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market]/[the Euro MTF Market]/[Euronext Paris]/[the
XMLI Segment of] [Euronext Access Paris]/[Euronext Brussels]/[Euronext Amsterdam]/[specify]/[with
effect from [@]]./[Application has been made to list the Securities on the stock exchange of
[Madrid/Barcelona/Valencia/Bilbao] and to admit the Securities to trading in the Warrants and
Certificates Module of the Spanish stock market trading system (Sistema de Interconexién Bursatil
Espafiol ("SIBE")) [with effect from [e]]./[Applicationwill be made to list the Securities onthe Nordic
Derivatives Exchange Stockholm(the "NDX") and to admit the Securities for trading onthe NDX [with
effect from [@®]]./[Application will be made to list the Securities and to admit the Securities for trading
on the Official List of NASDAQ OM X Stockholm [with effect from [®]].]./[Application [has been/wil
be] made to list the Securities and to admit the Securities for trading [with effect from[®]] on the Official
List of NASDAQ OM X Helsinki Ltd. and/or on the Nordic Derivatives Exchange ofthe Nordic Growth
Market NGM AB]/[specify other exchange] [with effect from [®]].[Application has beenmade to list the
Securities on the Nordic MTF and to admit the Securities for trading on the Nordic MTF [with effect
from [@®]].] [Application has been made to list the Securities on the Boerse Stuttgart cats GmbH (the
"Cats™)and to admit the Securities to trading on the cats [with effect from [®]].][Application has been
made to list the Securities on [specify relevant MTF/third country market/SME growth market] and to
admit the Securities for trading on [specify relevant MTF/regulated market/third country market/SME
growth market] [with effect from[®]].]

[The de-listing of the Securities on the [exchange/regulated market/market] specified above shall occur
on [specify], subjectto any change to such [date/period] by such [exchange/regulated market/market] or
any competent authorities, for which the Issuer [and the Guarantor] shall under no circumstances be
liable].

[Estimate of total expenses related to admission to trading: [@]]*

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to indicate if original Securities are already admitted to
trading)

[Ratings

Ratings: [The Securities to be issued [[have been]/[are expected to be]] rated [insert
details] by [insert creditratingagencyname(s)].]

[The Securities have not been rated.]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this
has previously beenpublished by therating provider:

[®]

(The above disclosure should reflect the ratingallocated to Securities of
the type beingissued under the Programme generally or, where the issue
hasbeen specificallyrated, thatrating.)]]

32

Delete if minimum denomination is less than EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as of the Issue Date).
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[[Insert the legal name of the relevant CRA entity] is established in the
[European Union/United Kingdom] and is registered under Regulation
(EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended). [As such[insert the legalname ofthe
relevant CRA entity] is included in the list of credit rating agencies
published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its
website (https:/Avww.esma.europa.eu/supervision/credit-rating-
agencies/risk) in accordance with such Regulation.]

3. [Interests of Natural and Legal Persons Inwlwved in the [Issue/Offer]

[Need to include a description of any interest, including a conflict of interest, that is material to the
issue/offer, detailing the persons involved and the nature of the interest. May be satisfied by the inclusion
of the following statement]:

"Save [for the fees [of [insert relevant fee disclosure]] payable to [insert name of Authorised Offeror]
and] as discussed[ in the "Potential conflicts of interests" paragraph in the "Risks" section in the Base
Prospectus], so faras the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the [issue/offer] of the Securities has an
interest material to the [issue/offer]."]

[When addingany other description, consideration should be given as towhether such matters described
constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base
Prospectus under Article 23 ofthe Prospectus Regulation.]

4, [Reasons for the [Issue/Offer], Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses
(@) Reasonsforthe [issue/offer]:  [See "Use of Proceeds" in the Base Prospectus]/[give details]

(See "Use of Proceeds" wording in Base Prospectus. If
reasons for [issue/offer] are differentfromwhatis disclosed
in the Base Prospectus, givedetails.)

() [Estimated net proceeds: [Up to] [@]

(If proceeds are intended for more thanone usewillneedto
split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds
insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and
sourcesofotherfunding.)]

(c) [Estimated total expenses: [®][Include breakdown ofexpenses]]

5. Performance of Underlying/Formula/Other Variable and Other Information concerning the
Underlying Reference

[Need to include details ofwherepastand further performance and volatility of the index/formula/other
variablescan be obtained.]

[Where the underlyingis an index needto includethe name oftheindexandifthe indexis notcomposed
by the Issuer need to includedetails ofwherethe informationabout the index canbe obtained]

The Issuer [intends to provide post-issuance information [specify whatinformationwill be reported and
where it can be obtained]] [does notintend to provide post-issuance information].
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6.

Operational Information

Relevant Clearing System(s):

If other than Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.,
Clearstream Banking Luxembourg, Euroclear
France, Euroclear Netherlands, Iberclear,
Clearstream Banking Frankfurt, include the
relevant identification number(s) and in the case
of Swedish Dematerialised Securities, the
Swedish Security Agent:

[N.B. Ensure all relevant entities have been
appointed and formalities complied with in
accordancewiththerules and regulations of the
relevant clearing system]

[Euroclear France/Euroclear Netherlands/ Euroclear
Sweden/lberclear/ Clearstream Banking Frankfurt/
other]

[if Iberclear add: [Insert relevant entity] will act as
link entity [Entidad de Enlace]/Paying Agent
(Entidad de Pago)/Depositary Entity (Entidad
Depositaria)/Liquidity Entity/Entidad Especialista)]

[N.B. Ensure all relevant entities have been
appointed and formalities complied with in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the
relevant clearing system]

[Identification number(s):]

[Swedish Security Agent;

[Svenska Handelsbanken AB (publ)/other]
[Address: [®]]

[Not applicable]

[Terms and Conditions of the Non-exempt Offer]

[Offer Price:]

[Conditions to which the offer is subject:]

126

[Issue Price/ specify / Thenotice indicating the Offer
Price will be published before the end of the Offer
Period (in a case where the Offer Price is unknown
atthe beginning ofthe Offer Period)]

[Not applicable/give details]

[The Issuerwill in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner determine the final amount of
Securities issued up to a limit of [@]. The final
amount that are issued on [@] will be [listed/admitted
to trading] on the [[Official List of] [the professional
segment  of] [the  Luxembourg  Stock
Exchange/Euronext Amsterdam/Euronext Paris/[the
XMLI Segment of ]JEuronext Access Paris/Euronex
Brussels]/[Stock exchange of
[Madrid/Barcelona/Valencia/Bilbao]/[[NASDAQ

OMX  Helsinki  Ltd]/[the Nordic  Growth
Market]/[NASDAQ OMX Stockholm]/[the Nordic
Derivatives Exchange Stockholm]/[specify other
exchange]. [Application has been made to list the
Securities on the Nordic MTF and to admit the
Securities fortradingonthe Nordic MTF [with effect
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from [@®]].] [Application has been made to list the
Securities on the Boerse Stuttgart cats GmbH (the
"Cats™)and to admit the Securities to trading onthe
cats [with effect from [®]]. [Application has been
made to list the Securitiesonthe [®] and to admit the
Securities for trading on the [@®] [with effect from
[®]]. Securities will be allotted subject to availability
in the order of receipt of investors'applications. The
final amount of the Securities issued will be
determined bythe Issuer in light of prevailing market
conditions, and in good faith in a commercially
reasonable manner depending on the number of
Securities which have been agreed to be purchased
asof[@].]

[Description of the application process:] [Not applicable/give details]

[Details of the minimum and/or maximum [Notapplicable/give details]
amount ofthe application:]

[Description of possibility to reduce [Notapplicable/give details]
subscriptions and manner for refunding amounts
paid in excess by applicants:]

[Details ofthe method and time limits forpaying  [Not applicable/give details]
up and delivering the Securities:]

[Mannerinanddateonwhichresults oftheoffer  [Notapplicable/give details]
are to be made public:]

[Procedure for exercise of any right of pre- [Notapplicable/give details]
emption, negotiability of subscription rights and
treatment of subscriptionrights not exercised:]

[Process for notification to applicants of the [Notapplicable/give details]
amount allotted and indication whether dealing
may begin before notification is made:]

[Amount of any expenses and taxes chargedto  [Not applicable/give details]® [repeat as necessary
the subscriber or purchaser:]® orinsertnecessaryinformationin a table]

(If the Issuer is subject to MiFID Il and/or PRIIPs
such that it is required to disclose information
relating to expenses contained in the issue price of
the Securities, alsoinclude thatinformation)

[SeriesNumber Issue Price per Expenses®
Security includedinthe
Issue Price

% If the Issuer is subject to MiFID Il and/or PRIIPs such that it is required to disclose information relating to costs and charges include that
information.

3 |f the applicable Final Payout isan ETS Payout and, if required, indicate that estimates of the gross entry costs required to be disclosed
pursuant to MiFID Il will be calculated on the business day immediately preceding the relevant Issue Date.

% |f the Issuer is subject to MiFID Il and/or PRIIPs such that it is required to disclose information relating to costs and charges include that
information.
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[Intermediaries with a firmcommitment to act

[Name and address of the entities which have a
firm commitment to act as intermediaries in
secondary trading, providing liquidity through
bid and offer rates and a description of the main
terms of their commitment:]

[Placing and Underwriting]®®

[Name(s) and address(es), totheextent knownto
the Issuer, ofthe placers in the various countries
where the offertakes place:

Name and address of the co-ordinator(s) of the
globalofferand of single parts ofthe offer:*

Name and address of any paying agents and
depository agents in each country (in addition to
the Principal Security Agent):

Entities agreeing to underwrite the issue on a
firm commitment basis, and entities agreeing to

place the issue without a firm commitment or
under "best efforts" arrangements:

When the underwriting agreement has been or
will be reached:]

10. [Yield (inthe case of Certificates)

[Fixed Rate Certificatesonly]

[®] (@] [®]]

[None/give details (such as the maximum bid/ofer
spread of the offer price and the minimum unit
amount per order)]]

[None/givedetails]

[®]

[®]

[®]

[®]

[Anindicationofyield. Describe the method wherebythat yieldis calculated in summary form.]]

11. [Performance of Rates

[Details of the performance of [LIBOR/SONIA/EURIBOR//other rate as specified in the
Conditions] rates can be obtained, [but not] free of charge, from [Reuters/Bloomberg/give
details of electronic means of obtaining the details of performance].]/[Not applicable]]

12. [EU Benchmarks Regulation

EU Benchmarks Regulation: Article 29(2)
statement on benchmarks:

36
37
38

[Applicable: Amounts payable under the
Securities are calculated by reference to [[insert
name[s] of Benchmark(s)] / [the [relevant]

To theextent known to the Issuer, of the placers in the various countries where the offer takes place.
Where not all of the issue is underwritten, a statement of the portion not covered.
See "Potential conflicts of interests” in the section "Risks" of this Base Prospectus for further information.
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Benchmark], which [is/are] provided by [[insert
name[s] of the Administrator[s]]/[the [relevant]
Administrator][, as specified in thetable below] (if
more than one, specify in relationto each relevant
Benchmark)].

[As at the date of these Final Terms, [[insert
name[s] of the Administrator[s]] / [the [relevant]
Administrator[s]][[is/are] not included]/[[is/are]
included][, as the case may be,] in the register of
Administrators and Benchmarks established and
maintained by the European Securities and
Markets Authority [("ESMA™)] pursuantto article
36 of the Benchmarks Regulation (Regulation
(EVU) 2016/1011) [(the "BMR")][, as specified in
the table below].

[As far as the Issueris aware, [[insert name of
Benchmark[s]] / [the [relevant] Benchmark]
[does/do] not fall within the scope ofthe BMR by
virtue of Article 2 of the BMR.]/[the transitional
provisions in Article 51 of the BMR apply, such
that the [relevant] Administrator is not currently
required to obtain authorisation/registration[, as
specified in thetable below].] [repeat as necessary
orinsertnecessaryinformationin a table below]]

[Benchm  Administ Register  Other

ark rator Informat
ion
[®] [®] [®] [®]

[Not applicable]]
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13. [MiFID I Product
Gowernance/Target Market
Assessment
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Solely for the purposes of [the/each]
manufacturer's product approval process, the
target market assessment in respect of the
Securities, taking into account the five categories
in item 18 of the Guidelines published by [the
European Securities and Markets
Authority]/[ESMA] on’5 February 2018, has led to
the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the
Securities is eligible counterparties[,] [and]
professional clients [and retail clients], each as
defined in [Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended,
"MIFID 1I")][MiFID I]; [and (ii) all channels for
distribution of the Securities are appropriate],
including  investment  advice, portfolio
management, non-advised sales and pure
execution services]J/[(ii) all channels for
distribution to eligible counterparties and
professional clients are appropriate; and (iii) the
following channels for distribution of the
Securities to retail clients are appropriate —
[investment  advice][,/  and] [portfolio
management][,/ and][ non-advised sales J[and pure
execution services][, subject to the distributors
suitability and appropriateness obligations under
MIiFID 11, as applicable]]. [Consider any negative
target market]. Any person subsequently offering,
selling or recommending the Securities (a
"distributor") should take into consideration the
manufacturer['s/sT target market assessment;
however, a distributor subjectto MiIFID Il is
responsible for undertaking its own target market
assessment in respect of the Securities (by either
adopting or refining the manufacturer['s/s] target
market assessment) and determining appropriate
distribution channels[, subject to the distributors
suitability and appropriateness obligations under
MIFID I, as applicable]].]
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[ISSUE SPECIFIC SUMMARY]

[Issue specific summaryto be insertedwhere applicable]
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES

The followingis the textof the Terms and Conditions of the Securities which willincludethe additional terms
and conditions contained in ANNEX 1 in relation to the payouts for Securities, the addition terms and
conditionscontainedin Annex 2 in the case of Index Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained
in Annex 3 in the case of Share Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 4 in the
case of ETI Securities, the additional terms and conditionscontained in Annex5 in the case of Debt Securities,
the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 6 in the case of Commodity Securities, the additional
terms and conditions contained in Annex 7 in the case of Currency Securities, the additional terms and
conditions contained in Annex 8 in the case of Futures Securities, the additional terms and conditions
contained in Annex 9 inthe case of OET Certificates or anyother Annex (each,an ""Annex'* and, together the
"Annexes') which may be added from time to time, in the case of any other security linked to any other
underlying reference (the ""Terms and Conditions™). In the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities the
applicable Final Terms in respect of such Securities will be available at the specified office of the relevant
Issuer and at the office of the Swedish Security Agentspecifiedin the applicable Final Terms).

For the purposes of Securities which are neither admitted to trading on a regulated market in the European
Economic Area nor offered in the European Economic Area in circumstances where a prospectus is required to
be published under the Prospectus Regulation (" Exempt Securities"), references in these Terms and Conditions
to "Final Terms" shall be deemed to be references to "Pricing Supplement”. The expression "Prospectus
Regulation” means Regulation (EU) 2017/1129, as amended. For the purposes of the Conditions and unless
stated otherwise, references tothe European Economic Area include the United Kingdom.

The series of Securities described in the applicable Final Terms (in so faras it relates to such series of Securities)
(such Securities being hereinafter referred to as the " Securities") are issued by whichever of BNP Paribas Issuance
B.V. ("BNPP B.V.") or BNP Paribas ("BNPP") is specified as the Issuer in the applicable Final Terms (the
"Issuer™) andreferences to the Issuer shall be construed accordingly and guaranteed by BNP Paribas ("BNPP" or
the "Guarantor™) where the Issueris BNPP B.V.. Securities will be eitherwarrants (“"Warrants™) or certificates
("Certificates™), as specified in the applicable Final Terms, and references in these Terms and Conditions to
"Security", " Securities", "Warrant”, "Warrants", "' Certificate” and " Certificates" will be construed accordingly.

As used herein, "Tranche" means Securities which are identical in all respects (including as to listing and
admission to trading) and " Series" means a Tranche of Securities together with any further Tranche or Tranches
of Securities which are (i) expressedto be consolidated and formasingle series and (ii) have the same terms and
conditions or terms and conditions which are the same in all respects save for the Issue Date, Issue Price, the
amount and date of thefirst payment of interest thereon (if any) and/or the date fromwhich interest starts to accrue
(if any), as applicable.

The Securities are issued pursuant to an Agency Agreementdated 2 July 2020 (as amended and/or supplemented
fromtime to time, the " Agency Agreement") between BNPP B.V. as Issuer, BNPP as Issuer or Guarantor (where
the Securities are issued by BNPP B.V.), BNP Paribas Securities Services in Amsterdamor BNP Paribas Arbitrage
S.N.C. ( as specified in the applicable Final Terms as Agent, the " Amsterdam Security Agent"), BNP Paribas
Securities Services or BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. (as specified in the applicable Final Terms as French issuing
and paying agent, the "French Security Agent"), the Amsterdam Security Agent or the French Security Agent
(if specified in the applicable Final Terms, the "Principal Security Agent”), BNP Paribas Securities Services,
Branch in Spain as Spanish agent (if specified in the applicable Final Terms as Agent in respectof the Securities,
the "Madrid Security Agent") (each a "Security Agent" and collectively, the "Security Agents"), as
supplemented in the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities by anissuingand paying agency agreement dated
16 March 2018as amended and/or supplemented fromtime to time (the "Swedish Agency Agreement") between
BNPP B.V., Svenska Handelsbanken AB (publ) (or any successor thereto) as Euroclear Sweden security agent
(the "Swedish Security Agent")and BNP Paribas Securities Services, Branch in Frankfurt as German agent (if
specified in the applicable Final Terms as Agent in respect of the Securities, the " German Security Agent"). The
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expression " Security Agent" shallinclude, in respect of Swedish Dematerialised Securities, the Swedish Security
Agentand shallincludeany additional or successor security agent(s) in respect of the Securities.

BNP Paribas or BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) shall undertake the
duties of calculation agent (the "Calculation Agent™) in respect of the Securities as set out below and in the
applicable Final Terms unless another entity is so specified as calculation agent in the applicable Final Terns.
Wheneverthe Calculation Agent is required to act orto exercise judgment in any way, it will do so in good faith
and commercially reasonable manner. The expression "Calculation Agent” shall, in relation to the relevant
Securities, includesuch other specified calculation agent.

The Swedish Agency Agreement will be governed by Swedish Law.

The applicable Final Terms for the Securities supplements these Terms and Conditions for the purposes of the
Securities.

References herein to the "applicable Final Terms" are to the Final Terms or two or more sets of Final Terms (in
the case ofany further Securities issued pursuant to Condition 12and forming a single series with the Securities)
(which, forthe avoidance of doubt, may be issued in respect of more thanoneseries of Securities) insofar as they
relate to the Securities.

Subject as provided in Condition 4 and in the Guarantee (as defined in Condition 1), the obligations of BNPP
B.V. with respect to physical delivery (if applicable) and/orthe payment of amounts payable by BNPP B.V. are
guaranteed by BNPP pursuant to the Guarantee. The original of the Guarantee is held by BNP Paribas Securities
Services on behalf ofthe Holders at its specified office.

Copies of the Agency Agreement (as amended or supplemented fromtime to time), the Guarantee and the
applicable Final Terms may be obtained fromthe specified office ofthe relevant Security Agent, save that if the
Securities are unlisted, the applicable Final Terms will only be obtainable by a Holder and such Holder must
produce evidence satisfactory to the relevant Security Agent as to identity. Copies of the Swedish Agency
Agreement willbe available forinspection at the office of the Swedish Security Agent specified in the applicable
Final Terms.

Words and expressions defined in the Agency Agreement (as amended or supplemented from time to time) or
used in the applicable Final Terms shall have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless
the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated.

The Holders are entitled to the benefit of and are deemedto have noticeof and are bound by all the provisions of
the Agency Agreement, as amended or supplemented fromtime to time, (insofaras they relate to the Securities)
and the applicable Final Terms, which are binding on them.

1. DEFINITIONS
Forthe purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the following general definitions willapply:
"Account Holder" is as defined in Condition2.2;
"Accrual Period" is as defined in Condition 28(c);
"Actual/Actual (ICMA)" is as defined in Condition 28(c);
"Actual Exercise Date" is as defined in Condition 18 and Condition 21.1(a);
"Additional Disruption BEvent"” is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Administrator/Benchmark Event” is as defined in Condition 15.1;
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"AER Knock-out" is as defined in Condition 22.8(b) and Condition 29.6(b);

"Affected Item" is as defined in this Condition 1 under the definition of Strike Date and in Condition 18
(in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25 (in the case of Certificates);

"AffectedRelevant Assets" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

" AffectedShare" is as definedin Condition 15.2(e);

"Affiliate" means in relation to any entity (the "First Entity"), any entity controlled, directly or
indirectly, by the First Entity, any entity thatcontrols, directly or indirectly, the First Entity or any entity
directly or indirectly under common control with the First Entity. For these purposes "control” means

ownership of a majority ofthe voting power of an entity;

"Agency Agreement” (as amended or supplemented fromtime to time) is as defined in paragraph 5of
these Terms and Conditions;

" Alternate Cash Amount” is as defined in Condition 5.4;

"American Style Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Annex" and "Annexes" is as defined in paragraph 1 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Asset Transfer Notice™ is as defined in Condition 30.2(a);

"Automatic Early Expiration Date" is as defined in Condition 22.8(b);

"Automatic Early Expiration BEvent" is as defined in Condition 22.8(b);
"Automatic Early Expiration Lewel" is as defined in Condition 22.8(b);

" Automatic Early Expiration Payout Amount” is as defined in Condition 22.8(b);
" Automatic Early Expiration SettlementDate" is as defined in Condition 22.8(b);
" Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Date" is as defined in Condition 22.8(b);
"Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 22.8(b);
" Automatic Early Redemption Amount” is as defined in Condition 29.6(b);

" Automatic Early Redemption Date" is as defined in Condition 29.6(b);
"Automatic Early Redemption Event” is as defined in Condition 29.6(a);
"Automatic Early Redemption Lewel™ is as defined in Condition 29.6(b);

" Automatic Early Redemption Valuation Date" is as defined in Condition 29.6(b);
"Automatic Early Redemption Valuation Period" is as defined in Condition 29.6(b);
"Automatic Early Redemption Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 29.6(b);

" Automatic Exercise" is as defined in Condition 20;
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"Aweraging" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 27 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Aweraging Date" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25 (in the case
of Certificates);

"Basket Company" is as defined in Condition 15.2(e);

"Basket of Underlying References" is as defined in Condition 22.8(b) and Condition 29.6(b);
"BasketPrice"is as definedin Condition 22.8(b) and in Condition 29.6(b);

"Benchmark" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Benchmark Modification or Cessation BEvent" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"BMR" is as defined in Condition15.1;

"BNPP" is as defined in paragraph 3 ofthese Terms and Conditions;

"BNPP B.V." is as defined in paragraph 3 ofthese Terms and Conditions;

"Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for
generalbusiness (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the relevant
Business Day Centre(s) and for the purposes of making payments in euro, any day on which the Trans-
European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET?2) Systemis open (@
"TARGET2 Settlement Day") and where the Securities are Swedish Dematerialised Securities, a day
(otherthana Saturday ora Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for general business (including
dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in Stockholm;

"Calculated Additional Disruption Amount" is as defined in Condition 15.2(c)(ii);

"Calculated Additional Disruption Amount Determination Date™ is as defined in
Condition 15.2(c)(ii);

"Calculation Agent" isas defined in paragraph 6 of these Terms and Conditions and Condition 28(b)(ii);
"Calculation Period" is as defined in Condition 25;

"Call Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Cancellation BEvent" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Cash SettledCertificates" is as defined in Condition 27;

"Cash SettledSecurities" means (a) in the case ofan issue of Warrants, Cash Settled Warrantsand (b)
in the case ofan issue of Certificates, Cash Settled Certificates;

"Cash SettledWarrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Cash Settlement Amount" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25
(in the case of Certificates);

"Certificates" is as defined in paragraph 3ofthese Terms and Conditions;
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"ChangeinLaw" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Clearing System" means ClearstreamBanking Luxembourg and/or Euroclear and/or Euroclear France
and/or Euroclear Netherlands and/or Euroclear Sweden and/or Iberclear and/or Clearstream Banking
Frankfurt and/or any additional or alternative clearing system approved by the Issuer and the relevant
Security Agent(s) fromtime to time and specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Clearstream Banking Frankfurt” means Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt and any successor or
alternative clearing system;

"Clearstream Banking Luxembourg" means Clearstream Banking, S.A. in Luxembourg and any
successor or alternativeclearing system;

"Clearstream FrankfurtSecurities" is as defined in Condition2.2;

"Clearstream FrankfurtWarrants" is as definedin Condition 21.1(a);
"Commodity OET Certificate" meansa Commodity Security thatis an OET Certificate;
"Commodity Securities" is as defined in Condition2.1;

"Cumulative Coupon™ is as defined in Condition29.6(b);

"Currency Bvent"” is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Currency OET Certificate” meansa Currency Security thatis an OET Certificate;
"Currency Securities" is as defined in Condition2.1;

"Current Interest Period" is as defined in Condition 29.6(b);

"Cut-off Date" is as defined in Condition 25 (in the case of Certificates);

"Day Count Fraction™ is as defined in Condition 28(c);

"Debt Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Delivery Date" is as defined in Condition 30.2(c);

"DelayedDate" is as defined in Condition 30.1;

"Designated Maturity" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(ii);

"Determination Date(s)" is as defined in Condition 28(c);

"Determination Period" is as defined in Condition 28(c);

"Disruption Cash SettlementPrice" is as defined in Condition 5.1;

"Documents" is as defined in Condition 13.2(b);

"due exercise" is as defined in Condition 21.4;

"Entitlement” is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25 (in the case of
Certificates);
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"EURIBOR" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(ii)(C);

"ETI Securities"is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Euroclear France Securities” is as defined in Condition2.2;

"Buroclear France Warrants" is as defined in Condition 21.1;

"Buroclear Netherlands™ means Nederlands Centraal Instituut voor Giraal Effectenverkeer B.V.;
"Euroclear Netherlands Securities” is as defined in Condition2.2;

"Euroclear Netherlands Warrants™ is as defined in Condition 21.1(a);

"Euroclear Sweden" means Euroclear Sweden AB (a Swedish Central Securities Depository authorised
as such under the Regulation (EU) No 909/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23
July on improving securities settlement in the European Unionand on central securities depositories and

amending Directives 98/26/EC and 2014/65/EU and Regulation (EU) No 236/2012);

"Euroclear Sweden Register” means the register maintained in the Euroclear Sweden System for
Swedish Dematerialised Securities issued or to be issued by the Issuer;

"Euroclear Sweden System" means the technical systemat Euroclear Sweden for the registration of
securitiesand the clearingandsettlement of securities transactions;

"Euronext Paris" is as defined in Condition 29.2;

"European Style Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"ETI Securities"is as defined in Condition 2.1,

"Exempt Securities"is as defined in paragraph 2 ofthese Terms and Conditions;
"exercise" is as definedin Condition 21.4;

"Exercise Business Day" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Exercise Notice" is as defined in Condition 22.1;

"Exercise Price"is as specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"Expenses" is as definedin Condition11.2;

"Expiration Date" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Extraordinary External BEvent"” is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Failure to Deliver SettlementPrice" is as defined in Condition 15.2(¢);
"FBF Agreement" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(iii);

"FBF Rate" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(iii);
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"Fixed Rate Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Floating Rate" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(ii);

"Floating Rate Certificates" is as definedin Condition 28;

"Floating Rate Option™ is as defined in Condition 28(b)(ii);

"freelytradable” is as defined in Condition 5.4;

"French Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 5ofthese Terms and Conditions;
"Futures OET Certificate™" means a Futures Security that is an OET Certificate;
"Futures Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"GDR/ADR" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"General Meeting" is as defined in Condition 9.4;

"Global Security" hasthemeaningprovidedin Condition2.2;

"Gowvernment Authority" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Guarantee™ means thegarantie dated 2 July 2020 executed by BNPP in respectof Securities issued by
BNPP B.V;;

"Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount" is as defined in Condition4;
"Guarantor" means BNPP;

"Hedge" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Hedging Disruption™ is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Hedging Shares" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Holder" is as defined in Condition 2.2;

"Holder of Certificates" is as defined in Condition 2.2;

"Holder of Securities” is as defined in Condition2.2;

"Hybrid Securities" is as defined in Condition2.1;

"lberclear"” means "Sociedad de Gestion de los Sistemas de Registro, Compensacion y Liquidacion de
Valores, S.A. Unipersonal” whose commercial name is Iberclear;

"IncreasedCost of Hedging" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"IncreasedCostof Stock Borrow" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Index OET Certificate" means an IndexSecurity that is an OET Certificate;

"Index Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;
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"Initial Stock Loan Rate" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Insolvency Filing" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Interest Amount" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(v);

"Interest Determination Date" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(v);
"InterestPeriodEnd Date" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(i);
"Interest Period End Final Date" is as defined in Condition 28(a) and Condition 28(a)(i);
"Intervening Period" is as defined in Condition 30.2(d);

"ISDA Definitions" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(ii);

"Issuer"is as defined in paragraph 3ofthese Terms and Conditions;
"Jurisdiction Bvent" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Knock-in Determination Day" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-in Determination Period" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-in Bvent" is as defined in Condition 16.1;

"Knock-in Lewel " is as defined in Condition 16.1;

"Knock-in Observation Price Source" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-inPeriodBeginning Date" is as definedin Condition 16.1;
"Knock-inPeriodEnding Date" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-inRange Lewel " is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-in Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-out Corridor Value 1" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-out Corridor Value 2" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-out Determination Day" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-out Determination Period" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-out Bvent"” is as defined in Condition 16.1;

"Knock-out High Barrier"is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-out Lewel" is as defined in Condition 16.1;

"Knock-out Low Barrier"is as defined in Condition 16.1;

"Knock-out Observation Price Source" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
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"Knock-out Period Beginning Date" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-out Period Ending Date" is as defined in Condition 16.1;
"Knock-out Range Lewel" is as defined in Condition 16.1;

"Knock-out Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 16.1;

"Lewel" is as defined in Condition 16.1;

"LIBOR" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(ii)(C);

"Linked Interest Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Local Currency" is as definedin Condition 15.1;

"Local Time" means localtime in the city ofthe relevant Clearing System;
"Loss of Stock Borrow" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Luxembourg or Brusselstime" is as defined in Condition 21.4;
"Madrid Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 5 ofthese Terms and Conditions;
"Masse" is as defined in Condition 9.4;

"Maximum Stock Loan Rate" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Modified Postponement" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25 (in
the case of Certificates);

"Non-Approval BEvent" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Notice Period" is as definedin Condition 29.3;

"Observation Date" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and 25 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Observation Period" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and 25 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Observation Price Source"is as defined in Condition 22.8(b) and Condition 29.6(b);

"OET Certificate" means Securities specified as Open End Turbo Certificates in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Omission™ is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and in Condition 25 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Open End Certificate" is as defined in Condition 25;
"Optional Additional Disruption Event” is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Optional Redemption Amount" is as defined in Conditions 29.2and 29.3;
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"Optional Redemption Date" is as defined in Condition 29.2;
"Paris Business Day" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(vii);
"Physical Delivery Certificates" is as defined in Condition 27;

"Physical Delivery Securities" means (a) in the case of anissue of Warrants, Physical Delivery Wamants
and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, Physical Delivery Certificates;

"Physical Delivery Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Postponement” is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and in Condition 25 (in the case
of Certificates);

"Principal Security Agent"is as defined in paragraph 5of these Terms and Conditions;
"Proceedings"is as defined in Condition 14;

"PutWarrants" is as definedin Condition 20;

"Quota" is as defined in Condition 23.1(b);

"Redemption Date" is as defined in Condition29.1;

"Reference Banks" is as defined in Condition 25;

"Reference Rate Fallback Event" is as defined in Condition 25.

"Related Expenses" is as defined in Condition11.2;

"Relevant Adjustment Provisions" is as defined in Condition 16.1, in Condition 22.8(b) and 29.6(b);
"Relevant Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Date" is as defined in Condition 22.8(a);
"Relevant Jurisdiction" means the country in which (as the case may be) the Shares or the Shares
relating to the depositary receipts are issued (or in which theissuer of such Shares is incorporated) or the
Indexis based, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"ResetDate" is as defined in Condition 28(b)(ii);

"Rolling Futures Contract Securities" means a Security thatis specified as suchin the applicable Final
Terms;

"Scheduled Aweraging Date" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25
(in the case of Certificates);

"Scheduled Closing Time" means, in respect of an Exchange or Related Exchange and a Scheduled
Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such Exchange or Related Exchange on such
Scheduled Trading Day, without regard to after hours orany other trading outside of the regular trading
session hours subject, in respect of IndexSecurities, to subparagraphs 18(b) and 18(c) of the definition
of Valuation Time, and subject, in respectof Share Securities, to subparagraph 18(c) of the definition of
Valuation Time;

"ScheduledPayment Date" is as defined in Condition 30.1;
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"Scheduled Strike Date" means any original date that, but for the occurrence of an event causing a
Disrupted Day, would have beenthe Strike Date;

"ScheduledValuation Date" means any original date that, but forthe occurrence ofan eventcausinga
Disrupted Day, would have beena Valuation Date;

"Securities" is definedin paragraph 3ofthese Terms and Conditions;

"Security Agent" and " Security Agents" are as defined in paragraph 5 of these Terms and Conditions;

"Security Expenses” is as defined in Condition 11.1;

"Series"is as defined in paragraph 4 of these Terms and Conditions;

"Settlement Business Day" is as definedin Condition5.1;

"Settlement Date" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Settlement Disruption BEent" is as defined in Condition5.1;

"SFIA Act"is as defined in Condition 19;

"Share" is as definedin Condition 15.2(e);

"Share OET Certificate" meansa Share Security thatis an OET Certificate;

"Share Securities" is as defined in Condition2.1;

"Significant Alteration BEvent" is as defined in Condition15.1;

"Specified Maximum Days of Disruption™ means (other than with respect to Commodity Securities,
Custom Indices and Currency Securities) eight Scheduled Trading Days or such other number of
Scheduled Trading Days specified in the applicable Final Terms, with respectto Currency Securities,
five Scheduled Trading Days, with respectto Custom Indices, twenty Scheduled Custom IndexBusiness
Days and with respect to Commodity Securities, five Commodity Business Days;

"Stop-Loss BEvent” is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Strike Date" means, in the case of Index Securities, Share Securities, ET1 Securities, Debt Securities
or Futures Securities, the Strike Date specified in the applicable Final Terms, or, if such date i not a
Scheduled Trading Day, the next following Scheduled Trading Day unless, in the opinion of the
Calculation Agentsuchday is a Disrupted Day. Ifany suchday is a Disrupted Day, then:

(i

where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a single Index (other than a Component
Security Index), Share Securities relating to a single Share, ETI Securities relating to a single
ETI Interest, Debt Securities relating to a single Debt Instrument or Futures Securities relating
to a single Future, the Strike Date shall be the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is
not a Disrupted Day, unless each of the number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal
to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption immediately followingthe Scheduled Strike Date
is a Disrupted Day. In that case, (i) the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall be
deemed to be the Strike Date, notwithstanding the factthatsuchday is a Disrupted Day and (ii)
the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevantlevel or price:

a) in the caseof IndexSecurities, by determining the level of the Indexas of the Valuation
Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day in accordance with the
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(ii)

(iii)

formula for and method of calculating the Index last in effect prior to the occurrence
ofthe first Disrupted Day using the Exchangetraded or quoted price as of the Valuation
Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day of each security comprised
in the Index (or, if an event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred in respect of
the relevant security on the last such Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith estirmate
of the value for the relevant security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day); or

b) in the case of Share Securities, ET| Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities,
in accordancewith its good faith estimate of the relevant price as of the Valuation Time
on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day; or

where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a single Component Security Index, the
Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant level for such Component Security Indexusing
the formula forand method of calculating such Component Security Indexlast in effect prior to
the occurrenceofthe first Disrupted Day using:

a) in respect of each Component Security not affected by a Market Disruption Eventon
the Scheduled Strike Date, the exchange traded or quoted price of such Component
Security as ofthe Valuation Time on the Scheduled Strike Date; and

b) in respect of each Component Security affected (each, an "Affected Component
Security") by a Market Disruption Eventon the Scheduled Strike Date, the exchange
traded or quoted price for each Affected Component Security on the first succeeding
Scheduled Trading Day onwhich no Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing
with respect to the Affected Component Security, unless each of the number of
consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption immediately following the Scheduled Strike Date is a day on which a
Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respect to the Affected
Component Security, in which case, the Calculation Agent shall determine the value,
amount, levelor price of the Affected Component Security using its good faith estirate
ofthe value,amount, level or price ofthe relevant Affected Component Security as of
the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day;and

the Strike Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation Agent
determines the level of the Component Security Indexin accordance with theabove provisions.

where the Securities are IndexSecurities relatingto a Basket of Indices (other than a Basket of
Component Security Indices), Share Securities relating to a Basket of Shares, ETI Securities
relating to an ET1 Basket, Debt Securities relating to a Basket of Debt Instruments or Futures
Securities relating to a Basket of Futures, the Strike Date for each Index, Share, ETI Interest,
Debt Instrument or Future, as the case may be, not affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted
Day shallbe the Scheduled Strike Date and the Strike Date foreach Index, Share, ETI Interest,
Debt Instrument or Future affected, as the case may be (each an "Affected Item™), by the
occurrence ofa Disrupted Day shallbe the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that i not
a Disrupted Day relating to the Affected Item unless each of the number of consecutive
Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption immediately
following the Scheduled Strike Date is a Disrupted Day relating to the Affected Item. In that
case, (i) the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall be deemed to be the Strike Date
for the Affected Item, notwithstanding the fact that such day is a Disrupted Day, and (ii) the
Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant level or price using, in relation to the Affected
Item:
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(iv)

(v)

a) in the case ofan Index the level of that Indexas of the Valuation Time on the lastsuch
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day in accordance with the formula for and method of
calculating that Index last in effect prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day
using the Exchange traded or quoted price as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day of each security comprised in that Index(or, if an
event givingrise toa Disrupted Day has occurredin respect of therelevantsecurity on
the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith estimate of the value
for the relevant security as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day); or

b) in the case ofa Share, ETI Interest, Debt Instrument or Future, its good faith estinate
ofthe price forthe Affected Itemas ofthe Valuation Time on the last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day; or

where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Component Security Indices,
the Strike Date foreach Component Security Indexnot affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted
Day shall be the Scheduled Strike Date, and for each Component Security Index affected (an
"Affected Item") by the occurrence ofa Disrupted Day, the Calculation Agentshall determine
the level ofthat Component Security Indexusing the formula for and method of calculating that
Component Security Indexlast in effect prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day, using:

a) in respect of each Component Security not affected by a Market Disruption Eventon
the Scheduled Strike Date, the exchange traded or quoted price of such Component
Security as ofthe Valuation Time on the Scheduled Strike Date; and

b) in respect of each Component Security affected (each, an "Affected Component
Security") by a Market Disruption Eventon the Scheduled Strike Date, the exchange
traded or quoted price for each Affected Component Security on the first succeeding
Scheduled Trading Day onwhich no Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing
with respect to the Affected Component Security, unless each of the number of
consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption immediately following the Scheduled Strike Date is a day on which a
Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respect to the Affected
Component Security, in which case, the Calculation Agent shalldetermine the value,
amount, level or price of such Affected Component Security using its good faith
estimate of the value, amount, level or price of the relevant Affected Component
Security as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day;
and

the Strike Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation Agent can
determine the level of the Component Security Indexin accordance with the above provisions;
or

in the case of Commodity Securities, the Initial Pricing Date;

"Strike Day" means each date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms and, if Averaging Date
Consequences are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the provisions contained in the
definition of "Averaging Date" shall apply mutatis mutandis as if references in such provisions to
"Averaging Date" were to " Strike Day";

"Strike Period" means the period specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"Substitute Asset" and " Substitute Assets" is as defined in Condition 5.4;
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"Substitute Guarantee" is as definedin Condition 13.2(b);

"Substitute Guarantor" is as defined in Condition 13;

"Substitute Share" is as defined in Condition 15.2(e);

"Substitution Date" is as definedin Condition 15.2(e);

"sub-unit” is as definedin Condition 28(a);

"Successor Index" is as defined in Condition 15.2(d);

"Swedish Agency Agreement" is as defined in paragraph 5 ofthese Terms and Conditions;
"Swedish Dematerialised Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Swedish Dematerialised Securities” means Swedish Dematerialised Warrants and Swedish
Dematerialised Certificates;

"Swedish DematerialisedWarrants" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Swedish Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 5 ofthese Terms and Conditions;
"Taxes" is as definedin Condition 11.2;

"Terms and Conditions" is as defined in paragraph 1 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Trade Date" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Tranche" is as defined in paragraph4 of these Terms and Conditions;

"Underlying Reference"is as defined in Condition 16.1, 22.8 and 29.6(b);
"Underlying Reference Lewel" is as defined in Condition22.8and 29.6(b);
"Underlying Share" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Units" is as definedin Condition 20;

"Valid Date" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Valuation Date" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25 (in the case
of Certificates);

"Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 18 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 25 (in the case
of Certificates);

"Warrants" is as defined in paragraph 3 ofthese Terms and Conditions.

145



21

TYPE, TITLE AND TRANSFER

Type

The Securities relate to a specified indexor basket of indices (" Index Securities™), a specified share or
basket of shares (including Stapled Shares (as defined in Share Condition 1)), a specified depositary
receipt (a"GDR/ADR") referencing ashare (an "Underlying Share") orbasket of GDRs and/or ADRs
("Share Securities™), a specified interest in an exchange traded fund, an exchange traded note, an
exchange traded commodity or any other exchange traded product (each an "exchange traded
instrument™) or basketof interests in exchange traded instruments ("ETI Securities™), a specified debt
instrument or basket of debt instruments or futures or options contracts related to a specified debt
instrument or basket of debt instruments (synthetic or otherwise) ("Debt Securities™), a specified
commodity or commodity index or basket of commodities and/or commodity indices (" Commodity
Securities"), a specified currency or basket of currencies (" Currency Securities™), a specified futures
contract or basket of futures contract(s) ("Futures Securities") and/or Securities which relate to any
combination of such indices, shares, interests in exchange traded instruments, debt instruments,
commodities, currencies, futures contract(s) and other assetclasses or types ("HybridSecurities").

Securities related to a specified interest in an exchange traded instrument or basket of interests in
exchange traded instruments, a specified commodity or commodity index or basket of commodities
and/or commodity indices, a specified inflation index or basket of inflation indices, specified currency
futures contract, a specified currency or basket of currencies, a specified fundshare orunit or basket of
fund shares or units, the credit of a specified reference entity or reference entities, a specified futures
contractorbasket of futures contracts, or Hybrid Securities related to any of these asset classes, may not
atany time be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, transferred or delivered, directly or
indirectly, in the United States or to, by or for the account or benefit of, persons that are (i) a "U.S.
person™as definedin Regulation Sunderthe Securities Act (" Regulation S™); or (ii) a personother than
a "Non-United States person" as definedin Rule 4.7 under the United States Commodity Exchange Act,
as amended (the "Commodity Exchange Act™); or (iii) a "U.S. person™ as defined in the Interpretive
Guidance and Policy Statement Regarding Compliance with Certain Swap Regulations promulgated by
the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the"CFTC"); or (iv) any other "U.S. person" as such term
may be defined in Regulation Sor in regulations or guidance adopted under the Commodity Exchange
Act (each such person, a "U.S. person™). Any such applicable U.S. wrapper may restrict the types of
Securities that can be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or
delivered and theterms of such Securities.

If Averagingis specified as applyingin the applicable Final Terms, the applicable Final Terms will state
the relevant Averaging Dates and, if an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day, whether Omission,
Postponement or Modified Postponement (each as defined in Condition 18 in the case of Warrants or
Condition 25in the case of Certificates) applies.

References in these Terms and Conditions, unless the context otherwise requires, to Cash Settled
Securities shall be deemed to include references to (a) Physical Delivery Securities, which include an
option (assetout in the applicable Final Terms) at the Issuer's election to request cash settlement of such
Security pursuant to Condition 5.3 and where settlement is to be by way of cash payment, and
(b) Physical Delivery Securities where settlement is to be automatically varied to be by way of cash
payment pursuant to Condition 5.3. References in these Terms and Conditions, unless the contex
otherwise requires, to Physical Delivery Securities shall be deemedto include references to Cash Settled
Securities which include an option (as set out in the applicable Final Terms) at the Issuer's election to
request physical delivery of the relevant underlying asset in settlement of such Security pursuant to
Condition 5.3and where settlementis to be by way of physical delivery.

Securities may, if specified in the applicable Final Terms, allow Holders to elect for settlement by way
of cash payment and/or by way of physical delivery. Those Securities where the Holder has elected for
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2.2

cash paymentwill be Cash Settled Securities and those Securities where the Holder has elected for
physical delivery will be Physical Delivery Securities. The rights of a Holder as described in this
paragraphmay besubjecttothe Issuer's rightto vary settlement as indicated in the applicable Final Tenms
and will be subject tothe Issuer's rightto substitute assets or pay the Alternate Cash Amount (as defined
below)in lieu of physical delivery in accordance with these Conditions.

Title to Securities

Title to Securities held through Euroclear France ("Euroclear France Securities™) will be evidenced in
accordancewith Article L.211-3 of the French Code Monétaire et Financier by book-entries (inscription
en compte). No document oftitle (including certificats représentatifs pursuantto Article R.211-7 of the
French Code Monétaire et Financier) will be issued in respect of such Securities. The Securities held
through Euroclear France will, upon issue, be inscribed in the books of Euroclear France which will
credit the accounts of the relevant Account Holders (including Euroclear S.A./N.V. and Clearstream
Banking Luxembourg).

"Euroclear Netherlands Securities" means Securities held by Euroclear Netherlands. Title to Securities
cleared through Euroclear Netherlands is established by accountentry in accordance with the Dutch Act
on Giro Transfers of Securities (Wet giraal effectenverkeer). No physical document or certificate will be
issuedin respect of such Securities.

In the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities, the person (includinga nomineeaccount holder, as the
case may be) for the time being recordedin the Euroclear Sweden Register as the holder of a particular
amount of Securities shall (except as otherwise required by law) be treated for all purposes by the Issuer,
the Guarantor, if any, the Security Agents, Euroclear Sweden and all other persons dealing with such
person as the holder thereof and as the person entitled to exercise the rights represented thereby
notwithstanding any notice to the contrary (and the expressions "Holder" and "Holder of Securities"
and related expressions shall be construed accordingly). The Issuer shall cause such Securities to be
accepted by Euroclear Sweden for clearing and registration in the Euroclear Sweden System in
accordancewith the SFIA Act and the rules of Euroclear Sweden. The Issuer shall have therightto obtain
extracts from the debt register (Sw. skuldbok) of Euroclear Sweden in respect of the Securities. No
physical documentor certificate will be issued in respect of Swedish Dematerialised Securities.

Title to Securities cleared through Iberclear is established by account entry in accordance with the rules
and procedures of Iberclear. No physical document or certificate will be issued in respect of such
Securities.

For the purpose of these Conditions, " Account Holder" means any authorised financial intermediary
institution entitled to hold accounts, directly or indirectly, on behalf of its customers with Euroclear
France, Euroclear Netherlands or Iberclear, as the case may be, and includes the depositary bank for
ClearstreamBanking Luxembourg and Euroclearand/or any other relevant Clearing System.

For the purpose of these Conditions, "Holder", "Holder of Certificates" and "Holder of Securities"
mean the individual or entity whose name appears in the account held by the relevant Account Holder or
the Issuer (as thecase may be) as beingentitled to such Certificates or Securities, as the case may be.

Clearstream Frankfurt Securities means securities to be issued by BNPP B.V. in materialised bearer
formand cleared through Clearstream Banking Frankfurt.

ClearstreamFrankfurt Securities are represented by one or more global certificates in bearer form (each,
a Global Securityand together,the Global Securities) which are deposited with ClearstreamBanking
Frankfurt. The Global Security will become exchangeable in whole, but not in part, for the Securities in
definitive formwhen either ClearstreamBanking Frankfurt is closed for business for a continuous period
of fourteen (14) days, other than public holidays, or permanently ceases business or announces an
intention todo so.
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2.3

Any definitive Security issued in exchange for the Global Security will be issued in bearer formonly.
The relevantdefinitive Securities will be made available by the Issuer to the persons shown in the records
of ClearstreamBanking Frankfurt.

The Global Security shall bear the manual or facsimile signatures of any two authorised signatories of
the Issueraswellas thesignature of an authentication officer of the German Security Agent. The Global
Security will be held in custody by or on behalf of Clearstream Banking Frankfurt until all obligations
of the Issuerunderthe Securities havebeensatisfied. The Global Security willbecome exchangeable in
whole, but notin part, forthe Securities in definitive formwhen either Clearstream Banking Frankfurt is
closed for business for a continuous period of fourteen (14) days, other than public holidays, or
permanently ceases business orannounces anintentionto do so.

Definitive Securities will be signed (A) manually or in facsimile by any two directors of the Issuer who
are both in office at the time of the issue of such definitive Securities or (B) manually orin facsimile by
one director of the Issuer who is in office at the time of the issue of such definitive Securities and
manually by a person to whomthe authority to sign has beendelegated by the board of directors of the
Issuerorany otherauthorised signatory.

ClearstreamFrankfurt Securities may only be issued and held outside France.

Subject to as set out below, title to Clearstream Frankfurt Securities will pass by delivery. The Issuerand
the German Security Agent will (except as otherwise required by law or ordered by a competent
authority) deemandtreatthe bearer of any Clearstream Frankfurt Security as the absolute owner thereof
(whether or not the Clearstream Frankfurt Security is overdue and notwithstanding any notice of
ownership orwriting thereon or notice of any previous loss or theft thereof) forall purposes but, in the
case of the Clearstream Frankfurt Securities represented by a Global Security, without prejudice to the
provisions setoutin the next succeeding paragraph.

If a Clearstream Banking Security in definitive formis lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it
may be replaced, subjectto applicable laws, regulations and stock exchange regulations, at the s pecified
office of the German Security Agent orsuch otheragent as may fromtime to time be designated by the
Issuer forthe purpose and notice of whose designation is given to holders, in each case on paymentby
the claimant of the fees and costs incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence,
security and indemnity and otherwise as the Issuer may require. Mutilated or defaced Clearstream
Banking Security in definitive formmust be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

Transfers of Interests
Transfers of Warrants may notbe effected after the exercise of such Warrants pursuant to Condition 22

Transfers of Certificates may not be effected after the redemption of such Certificates pursuant to
Condition 29.

Subject as set forthin this Condition, all transactions (including permitted transfers of Securities) in the
open market or otherwise mustbe effected through Account Holder(s), subjectto and in accordance with
the rules and procedures for the time being of the relevant Clearing System(s). Title will pass upon
registration of the transfer in the books oftherelevant Clearing System.

Any reference herein to Clearstream Banking Luxembourg and/or Euroclear and/or any other relevant
Clearing Systemshall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any
additional or alternative clearing system approved by the Issuer and the Principal Security Agent from
time to time and notified to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

Title to Swedish Dematerialised Securities will pass upon registration of the transfer in the Euroclear
Sweden Register (or, if applicable, upon notice to a nominee under the terms of the SFIA Act) in
accordancewith the SFIA Act.
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For so long as the Clearstream Frankfurt Securities are represented by a Global Security held by or on
behalf of ClearstreamBanking Frankfurt, each person (other than Clearstream Banking Frankfurt) who
is for the time being shown in the records of Clearstream Banking Frankfurtas theholder of a particular
nominal value or number of such Security (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by
Clearstream Banking Frankfurt as to the nominal value or number of such Securities standing to the
account ofany personshallbe conclusive and binding forall purposes save in the case of manifest error)
shallbe treated by the Issuerandthe Security Agent (unless otherwise provided for by law or ordered by
a competent authority) as theholder of such nominal value or number of such Securities for all purposes
other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such Security, for which purpose the
bearer of the relevant Global Security shall be treated by the Issuer and the German Security Agent as
the holder of such nominal value or number of such Securities in accordance with and subject to the
terms of the relevant Global Security and the expressions Holder and holder of Security and related
expressions shall be construed accordingly.

The Securities which are represented by a Global Security will be transferable only in accordance with
the rules and procedures for the time being of ClearstreamBanking Frankfurt.

STATUS OF THE SECURITIES AND GUARANTEE

The Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuerand rank pari passu
among themselves.

The term "unsubordinated obligations" refers, in the case of Securities issued by BNPP, to senior
preferred obligations which fall or are expressed to fall within the category of obligations described in
article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier. Additionally, BNPP may not issue
senior non-preferred securities pursuant to these Conditions.

The Guarantee is a senior preferred obligation (within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the
French Code monétaireet financier) andan unsecured obligation of BNPP and will rank pari passu with
all its other present and future senior preferred and unsecured obligations subject to such exceptions as
may from time to time be mandatory under French law.

Unless Waiver of Set-Off is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, no Holder may
exercise or claim any Waived Set-Off Rights against any right, claim, or liability the Issuer (or, if
applicable, the Guarantor) has or may have or acquire against such holder, directly or indirectly,
howsoeverarising (and, fortheavoidance of doubt, includingall suchrights, claims and liabilities arising
under or in relation to any and all agreements or other instruments of any sort or any non-contractual
obligations, in each casewhether or not relating totherelevant Securities) and each such Holder shall be
deemed to have waived all Waived Set-Off Rights to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law in
relation to all such actual and potential rights, claims and liabilities.

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Condition 3 is intended to provide or shall be construed as
acknowledging any right of deduction, set-off, netting, compensation, retention or counterclaimor that
any suchrightis orwould be available to any Holder of any Security but for this Condition 3.

For the purposes of this Condition 3, "Waiwed Set-Off Rights" means anyand all rights of or claims of
any holder of any Security for deduction, set-off, netting, compensation, retention or counterclaimarising
directly orindirectly under or in connection with any such Security.

The potentialimpact on the Securities (or, if applicable, on the Guarantee) in the event of the resolution
of BNPP is detailed in Condition 32 (Recognition Of Bail-In And Loss Absorption).
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5.1

GUARANTEE

Where the Issuer is BNPP B.V., subject as provided below and in the Guarantee, the Guarantor has
unconditionally and irrevocably (a) guaranteed to each Holder all obligations of the Issuer in respect of
such Holder's Securities as and when such obligations become due and (b) agreed that ifand each time
that the Issuer fails to satisfy any obligations under such Securities as and when such obligations become
due, the Guarantor will after a demand has been made on the Guarantor pursuant thereto (without
requiring the relevantHolder first to take steps against the Issuer or any other person) make or cause to
be made such payment or satisfy or causeto be satisfied such obligations as though the Guarantor were
the principal obligor in respect of such obligations provided that (i) in the case of Physical Delivery
Certificates and, in the case of Physical Delivery Warrants that are Call Warrants, notwithstanding that
the Issuerhad the right to vary settlementin respect of such Physical Delivery Securities in accordance
with Condition 5.3and exercised such right or failed to exercise such right, the Guarantor will have the
rightto elect nottodeliver or procure delivery of the Entitlement to the Holders of such Physical Delivery
Securities, but in lieu thereof, to make payment in respectof each such Physical Delivery Security of an
amount determined by the Guarantor in good faithand in a commercially reasonable mannerequalto the
Cash Settlement Amount that would have been payable upon exercise (in the case of Warrants) or
redemption (in the case of Certificates) of such Securities assuming they were Cash Settled Securities
calculated pursuant to the terms ofthe applicable Final Terms, or in the case of lack of liquidity of the
underlying, the fair market value of such Security less, unless Unwind Costs are specified as not
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the costs of unwinding any underlying related hedging
arrangements (the "Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount™) and (ii) in the case of Securities where the
obligations of the Issuer which fail to be satisfied by the Guarantor constitute the delivery of the
Entitlement to the Holders, the Guarantor will as soon as practicable following the failure by the Issuer
to satisfy its obligations under such Securities deliver or procure delivery of such Entitlementusing the
method of delivery specified in the applicable Final Terms provided that, if in the opinion of the
Guarantor, delivery of the Entitlementusing such method is notpracticable by reasonof (A) a Settlenment
DisruptionEvent(as definedin Condition5.1) or (B) if " Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity™ is specified
as applyingin the applicable Final Terms, a Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity (as defined in Condition
15.1), in lieu of such delivery the Guarantor will make payment in respect of each such Security of, in
the case of (A) above, the Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amountor, in the case of (B) above, the Failure
to Deliver Settlement Price (as defined in Condition 15.2). Any payment of the Guaranteed Cash
Settlement Amountorthe Failure to Deliver Settlement Price, as the case may be, in respect of a Security
shallconstitutea complete discharge of the Guarantor's obligations in respectof such Security. Payment
of the Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount as the Failure to Deliver Settlement Price, as the case may
be, will be made in such manneras shall be notified to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO PHYSICAL SETTLEMENT IN RESPECT OF
SECURITIES

Settlement Disruption

If, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, delivery of the Entitlement using the method of delivery
specified in the applicable Final Terms or such commercially reasonable manner as the Calculation Agent
has determined is not practicable by reason ofa Settlement Disruption Event (as defined below) having
occurred andcontinuingon any Settlement Date (in the case of Warrants) or Delivery Date (in the case
of Certificates), then such Settlement Date or Delivery Date, as the case may be, for such Securities shall
be postponed to the first following Settlement Business Day in respect of which there is no such
Settlement Disruption Event, provided that the Issuer may elect in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable mannertosatisfy its obligations in respectofthe relevant Security or in the case of Wanants,
if applicable, Unit, as the case may be, by delivering the Entitlement using such other commercially
reasonable manneras it may selectand in such event the Settlement Date or Delivery Date, as the case
may be, shallbe such day as the Issuer deems appropriate in connectionwith delivery of the Entitlerment
in such other commercially reasonable manner. For the avoidance of doubt, where a Settlerment
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Disruption Event affects some but not all of the Relevant Assets comprising the Entitlement, the
Settlement Date or Delivery Date, as the case may be, for the Relevant Assets not affected by the
Settlement Disruption Event will be the originally designated Settlement Date or Delivery Date, as the
case may be.

In the case of Warrants, in the event that a Settlement Disruption Event will result in the delivery on a
Settlement Date of some but not all of the Relevant Assets comprising the Entitlement, the Calculation
Agent shalldetermine in its discretion the appropriate pro rata portion of the Exercise Price to be paid
by the relevantHolder in respect of that partial settlement.

For so long as delivery ofthe Entitlementis not practicable by reason of a Settlement Disruption Event,
then in lieu of physical settlement and notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the Issuer may elect
in good faithandin a commercially reasonable manner to satisfy its obligations in respect oftherelevant
Security or in the case of Warrants, if applicable, Unit, as the case may be, by payment to the relevant
Holder of the Disruption Cash Settlement Price (as defined below) on the fifth Business Day following
the date that notice of such election is given tothe Holders in accordance with Condition 10. Payment of
the Disruption Cash SettlementPrice will be made in such manneras shall be notified to the Holders in
accordance with Condition 10. The Calculation Agent shall give notice as soon as practicable to the
Holders in accordance with Condition 10 that a Settlement Disruption Event has occurred. No Holder
shall be entitled to any payment in respect of the relevant Security or in the case of Warrants, if
applicable, Unit, as the case may be, in the event ofany delay in the delivery ofthe Entitlement due to
the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event and no liability in respect thereof shall attach to the
Issuerorthe Guarantor.

Forthe purposes hereof:

"Disruption Cash Settlement Price" means, in respect of any relevant Security or in the case of
Warrants, if applicable, Unit, as the case may be, the fair market value of such Security orin the case of
Warrants, if applicable, Unit, as the case may be (disregarding, where the Settlement Disruption Event
affected some but not all of the Relevant Assets comprising the Entitlement and such non-affected
Relevant Assets have been duly delivered as provided above, the value of such non-affected Relevant
Assets), less, unless Unwind Costs are specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the cost
to the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements all as
determined by the Issuer in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, plus in the case of
Warrants, if applicable and if already paid, the Exercise Price (or, where as provided above some
Relevant Assets have beendelivered, anda pro rata portion thereof has been paid, such pro rata portion);

"Settlement Business Day" has the meaning specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

"Settlement Disruption Bvent” means, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent or, if the proviso to
Condition 4 applies, the Guarantor, an event beyond the control of the Issuer or, if the proviso to
Condition 4 applies, the Guarantor as a result of which the Issuerorthe Guarantor, as the case may be,
cannotmake delivery ofthe Relevant Asset(s) using the method specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity

"Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity", if specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, will be
an Optional Additional Disruption Event, as described in Condition 15.1 below.

Variation of Settlement

@ If the applicable Final Terms indicate thatthe Issuer has an optionto vary settlement in respect
of the Securities, and subject in the case of Warrants to a valid exercise of the Warrants in
accordance with these Conditions, the Issuer may at its sole and absolute discretion in respect
ofeach such Security orin the case of Warrants, ifapplicable, Unit, elect not to pay the relevant
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Holders the Cash Settlement Amount or to deliver or procure delivery of the Entitlement to the
relevant Holders, as the case may be, but, in lieu thereof to deliver or procure delivery of the
Entitlement or make payment of the Cash Settlement Amount on the Settlement Date (in the
case of Warrants) or Redemption Date (in the case of Certificates) to the relevant Holders, as
the case may be. Notification of such election will be given to Holders in accordance with
Condition 10.

(b) If specified in the applicable Final Terms, and subject in the case of Warrants toa valid exercise
of Warrants in accordance with these Conditions, the Issuer shall, in respect of each such
Security orin the case of Warrants, if applicable, each Unit, in lieu of delivering or procuring
the delivery of the Entitlement to the relevant Holders, make payment of the Cash Settlement
Amount on the Settlement Date (in the case of Warrants) or Redemption Date (in the case of
Certificates) to the relevant Holders.

Issuer’s Option to Substitute Assets or to pay the Alternate Cash Amount

Unless Issuer’s Option to Substitute is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms,
following a valid exercise or redemption, as the case may be, of Securities in accordance with these
Conditions, the Issuer may, in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner in respect of such
Securities, if the Calculation Agentdetermines (in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner)
that the Relevant Asset or Relevant Assets, as the case may be, comprise(s) shares or interests in ETls
which are not freely tradable, elect either (a) to substitute for the Relevant Asset or the Relevant Assets,
as the case may be, an equivalent value (as determined by the Calculation Agent in goodfaith and ina
commercially reasonable manner) of suchother shares orinterests in ETIs which the Calculation Agent
determines, in goodfaith andin a commercially reasonable manner, are freely tradable (the " Substitute
Asset" orthe " Substitute Assets", asthe case may be) or (b) not todeliver or procure the delivery of the
Entitlement orthe Substitute Asset or Substitute Assets, as the case may be, to the relevant Holders, but
in lieu thereofto make payment tothe relevant Holders onthe Settlement Date of an amount equal to the
fair market value of the Entitlement on the Valuation Date as determined by the Calculation Agent in
good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner by reference to such sources as it considers
appropriate (the " Alternate Cash Amount™). Notification ofany suchelectionwill be given to Holders
in accordance with Condition 10.

Forthe purposes hereof, a "freely tradable” share orinterest in an ETIshall mean (i) with respectto the
United States, ashare orinterestin an ETI, as the case may be, which is registered under the Securities
Actor notrestrictedunderthe Securities Act and which is not purchased fromthe issuer of such share
or interestinan ET]I, as the case may be, and not purchased froman Affiliate of the issuer of such share
or interestin an ETI, as the case may be, orwhich otherwise meets the requirements of a freely tradable
share or interest in an ETI, as the case may be, for purposes of the Securities Act, in each case, as
determined by the Calculation Agentin goodfaith andin a commercially reasonable manner or (i) with
respectto any other jurisdiction, a share or interest in an ETI, as the casemay be, notsubject toany legal
restrictions ontransferin such jurisdiction.

Commodity Securities shall notbe Physical Delivery Securities.

GENERAL

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor (if applicable), the Calculation Agent and any Security Agent shall
have any responsibility forany errors or omissions (to the extent permitted by any applicable law) in the
calculation ofany Cash Settlement Amountor ofany Entitlement.

The purchase of Securities does not confer on any Holder of such Securities any rights (whether in respect
of voting, distributions or otherwise) attaching to any Relevant Asset.
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In making any election, modification, determination or adjustment, the Issuer or the Calculation Agent,
as applicable, will act in good faith andin a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve or restore the
economics of the agreed terms, as far as reasonably practicable. Any such election, modification,
determination oradjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the rights and obligations
of the Issuer comparedto the Holders, to the detriment of the Holders.

If Essential Trigger is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer or the Calculation
Agent, asthecase may be, may only modify or adjust theterms of the Securities (other than modifications
or adjustments that do not relate to essential characteristics of the Securities) or redeemthe Securities
prior to their scheduled Redemption Date (in the case of Certificates), or cancel the Warrants prior to
their scheduled Exercise Date (in the case of European Style Warrants) or Expiration Date (in the case
of American Style Warrants) as described in the Terms and Conditions, following an event or
circumstance (or combination of events or circumstances) that (a) is not attributable to the Issuer that
significantly alters the economics of the Securities compared to the economics as of the Issue Date, or
(b) constitutes a force majeure.

For the purpose of this Condition, essential characteristics of the Securities means characteristics of the
Securities that are considered essential to the Holders, including without limitation, the yield (coupon
structure) (in the case of Certificates), the Underlying Reference, the principal protected amount (ifany),
the identity of the Issuer and of the Guarantor, the scheduled Redemption Date (in the case of
Certificates), the scheduled Exercise Date (in the case of European Style Warrants) or Expiration Date
(in the case of American Style Warrants).

ILLEGALITY AND FORCE MAJEURE

lllegality

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the Securities has become illegalin
whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may, in the case of Warrants, cancel, or in the case of
Certificates, redeemall but not some only of the Securities by giving notice to Holders in accordance
with Condition 10, provided that, if such illegality also constitutes a force majeure, the provisions of
Condition 7.2will apply.

If the Issuer cancels or redeems, as the casemay be, the Securities then, if and to the extent permitted by
applicable law:

@) if Highest Value is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuerwill pay to
each Holder an amount in respect of each Security, or in the case of Warrants, if Units are
specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as the case may be, held by
such Holder calculated and paid onsuch date determined, in accordance with Condition 29.7(a)
(in the case of Certificates) or 21.5(a) (in the case of Warrants);

(b) if Market Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuerwill pay to each Holder an
amount in respect of each Security or in the case of Warrants, if Units are specified as applicable
in the applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as the case may be, held by such Holder calculated
and paid on such date determined, in accordance with Condition 29.7(b) (in the case of
Certificates) or 21.5(b) (in the case of Warrants); or

(©) if Monetisation Option is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will
pay to each Holder an amount in respect of each Security held by such Holder calculated and
paid on suchdatedetermined, in accordance with Condition 29.7(c); or

d) otherwise, the Issuer will pay an amount to each Holder in respect of each Security, or in the

case of Warrants, if Units are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, each Unit,
as the case may be, held by such Holder, which amount shall be equal to the fair market value
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ofa Security or Unit, as the case may be, notwithstanding such illegality less, exceptif Unwind
Costs is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the cost to the Issuer and/or
its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements plus, in the case of
Warrants, ifapplicable and if already paid by oron behalf of the Holder, the Exercise Price, all
as determined by the Calculation Agentin good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner,
payment being made in such manner as shall be notified to the Holders in accordance with
Condition 10.

Should any one or more of the provisions contained in these Terms and Conditions be or become invalid,
the validity ofthe remaining provisions shallnot in any way be affected thereby.

Force Majeure

If the Issuer determines that by reason of force majeure oract of state occurring afterthe Trade Date it
becomes impossible to performits obligations under the Securities, the Issuer may, either (i) take the
action described in Condition 15.2(a), or if applicable, (c) or (d) (save that references to “Additional
Disruption Event” and/or “Optional Additional Disruption Event”, as applicable, will be deemed to be
references to “force majeure”), or (ii) in the case of Warrants, cancel all, but not some only of the
Warrants, or in the case of Certificates, redeemall, but not some only of the Certificates by giving notice
to Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

If the Issuer cancels or redeems, as the case may be, the Securities thenthe Issuer will:

@ if Condition 7.2(a) is specified in the applicable Final Terms, pay to each Holder an amountin
respect of each Security, or in the case of Warrants, if Units are specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as the case may be held by such Holder, which amount shall
be equalto the fair market value of a Security, taking into accountsuch force majeure or act of
state, provided that noaccount will be taken of costs (other thansuch costs thatare unavoidable
to early redeemthe Securities at their fair market value) and no such costs shall be deducted; or

(b) if Condition 7.2(b) is specified in the applicable Final Terms, if and to the extent possible or
practicable, payan amount (ifany) to each Holder in respect of each Security, or in the case of
Warrants, if Units are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as the
case may be, held by such Holder, which amountshall be equal to the fair market value (if any)
of a Security or Unit, as the case may be, taking into account such force majeure oract of state
less, except if Unwind Costs is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the
cost tothe Issuer and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangenments
plus, in the caseof Warrants, ifapplicable and if already paid by or onbehalf of the Holder, the
Exercise Price, all as determined by the Calculation Agentin good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner.

Any payment will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Holders in accordance with
Condition 10.

PURCHASES

The Issuermay, but is not obligedto, at any time purchase Securities at any price in the open market or
by tender or private treaty in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Any Securities so
purchased may be held orresold or surrendered for cancellation.
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SECURITY  AGENTS, DETERMINATIONS, MEETINGS PROVISIONS AND
MODIFICATIONS

Security Agents

The specified offices of each of the Security Agents are as set out at the end of these Terms and
Conditions.

Each ofthe Issuerandthe Guarantor (if applicable) reserves theright atany time to vary or terminate the
appointment of any Security Agent and to appoint further or additional Security Agents, provided that
no termination of appointment of the Security Agentshall become effective until a replacement Security
Agent shall have beenappointed and providedthat, so longas any ofthe Securities are listed on a stock
exchange orare admittedto trading by another relevantauthority, thereshall be a Security Agenthaving
aspecified office in each locationrequired by therules and regulations of the relevantstock exchange or
other relevant authority. Notice of any termination of appointment and of any changes in the specified
office of any of the Security Agents will be given to Holders in accordance with Condition 10. In acting
underthe Agency Agreement (as amended or supplemented fromtime to time), the Security Agentacts
solely as agent of the Issuer and the Guarantor (if applicable), and does not assume any obligation or
duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust for or with, the Holders and any determinations and
calculations made in respect of the Securities by the Security Agent shall (save in the case of manifest
error) be final, conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable), and the respective
Holders.

In the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities the relevant Issuer is entitled to vary or terminate the
appointment of the Swedish Security Agent, provided that it appoints another Swedish Security Agent
that is duly authorised under the SFIA Actas an account operator.

Calculation Agent

In relation to each issue of Securities, the Calculation Agent (whether it be BNP Paribas, BNP Paribas
Arbitrage S.N.C. or another entity) acts solely as agent of the Issuer and the Guarantor (if applicable),
and does not assume any obligation or duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust for or with, the
Holders. Allcalculations and determinations made in respect of the Securities by the Calculation Agent
shall (save in the case of manifesterror) be final, conclusiveandbinding on the Issuer, the Guarantor (if
applicable), and the Holders. Because the Calculation Agent may be an Affiliate of the Issuer, potential
conflicts of interest may exist betweenthe Calculation Agentand the Holders, includingwith respectto
certain determinations and judgments that the Calculation Agent must make.

The Calculation Agent may, with the consent of the Issuer, delegate any of its obligations and functions
to a third party as it deems appropriate.

Determinations by the Issuer and the Guarantor

Any determination made by the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable), pursuant to these Terrs and
Conditions shall, to the extent permitted by applicable law, (save in the case of manifest error) be final,
conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor (ifapplicable), and the Holders.

Meetings of Holders

The Securities may or may not constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5ofthe French
Code monétaire etfinancier. Pursuanttothis Article, obligations are negotiable securities which, whithin
a same issue, conferthe same rights fora same nominalamount.

In this Condition 9.4:
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(A) references to a "General Meeting" are to a general meeting of Holders of all Tranches of a
single Series of Securities and include, unless the context otherwise requires, any adjoumed
meeting thereof;

(B) references to "Securities” and "Holders" are only to the Securities of the Series in respect of
which a General Meeting has been, or is to be, called, and to the Securities of the Series in
respect of which a Written Resolutionhas been, oris to be sought, and to the holders of those
Securities (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Issuer), respectively;

© "outstanding" hasthe meaningset out in paragraph (f) below;
(D) "Electronic Consent" hasthemeaningsetout in paragraph 9.4(a)(vii) below;
(B) "Written Resolution” means a resolution in writing signed orapproved by or on behalf of the

holders of notless than 75 per cent. in nominalamount of the Securities outstanding. References
to a Written Resolution include, unless the context otherwise requires, a resolution approved by
Electronic Consent; and

(3] "Written Resolution Date" has the meaningsetoutin paragraph 9.4(a)(vii) below;

In respectofthe meeting and voting provisions applicable to a Series of Securities, the applicable Final

Terms shall provide one of the following options: “Not applicable", " Contractual representation of
Holders/No Masse", "Full Masse" or " Contractual Masse", as further described in this Condition 9.4.

"Not applicable” means that the relevant Securities do not constitute obligations within the meaning of
Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et financier. In this case, sub-paragraph (d) below shall
apply.

"Contractual representation of Holders/No Masse" means that the relevant Securities constitute
obligations within themeaning of Article L.213-5 ofthe French Code monétaireet financier and will be
specified in relation to Securities which can be traded in amounts or have a notionalamount of at least
EUR 100,000 (orits equivalentin the relevant currency as of the Issue Date). In this case sub-paragraph
(@) belowshallapply.

"Full Masse" means that the relevant Securities constitute obligations within the meaning of Article
L.213-5 ofthe French Code monétaireet financier and will be specified in relationto Securities (i) which
can be traded in amounts or have a notional amount of less than EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the
relevant currency as of the Issue Date) and (i) issued inside France. "Full Masse™ may also be specified
in relation to any relevant Securities which constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5
of the French Codemonétaire et financier. In these cases sub-paragraph (b) belowshallapply;

"Contractual Masse" means that the relevant Securities constitute obligations within the meaning of
Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et financier and will be specified in relation to Securities
(i) which can be traded in amounts or have a notionalamount of at least EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent
in the relevant currency as of the Issue Date) or (ii) issued outside France ("a I'étranger"), within the
meaning of Article L.228-90 of the French Code de Commerce. In this case sub-paragraph (c) below
shallapply.

@) Contractual representation of Holders/No Masse

If "Contractual representation of Holders/No Masse" is specified in the applicable Final Terrrs,
the following meeting and voting provisions shallapply as follows:

0] General
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(ii)

Pursuant to Article L.213-6-3 | of the French Code monétaireet financier:

(@)  the Holders shall not be grouped in a masse having separate legal personality
and acting in part through a representative of the holders (représentant de la
masse) and in part through general meetings; however,

(b)  thefollowing provisions ofthe French Codede commerce shallapply: Articles
L.228-46-1, L.228-57, L.228-58, L.228-59, L.228-60, L.228-60-1, L.228-61
(with the exception of thefirst paragraph thereof), L.228-65 (with the exception
of (i) sub-paragraphs 1°, 3°, 4° and 6° of paragraph I and (ii) paragraph II),
L.228-66, L.228-67, L.228-68, L.228-76, L.228-88, R.228-65, R.228-66,
R.228-67, R.228-68, R.228-70, R.228-71, R.228-72, R.228-73, R.228-74 and
R.228-75 of the French Codede commerce, and

(c)  wheneverthe words "de lamasse", " d'uneméme masse", "' par les représentants
de la masse", "d'une masse", "et au représentant de la masse", "de la masse
intéressée”, "dont la masse est convoquée en assemblée” or "par un
représentant de la masse", appear in those provisions, they shall be deemed to

be deleted, and subject to the following provisions of this Condition 9.4(a).

Resolution

Subject to this Condition 9.4(a) and in accordance with the provisions of Article L.228-
46-1 of the French Codede commerce, a resolution (the "Resolution™) may be passed
(X) ata General Meeting in accordance with thequorumand voting rules described in
paragraph9.4(a)(vii) belowor (y) by a Written Resolution.

A Resolution may be passed with respect to any matter that relates to the conmon
rights (intéréts communs) of the Holders.

A Resolution may be passed on any proposal relating to the modification of the
Conditions including any proposal, (i) whether for a compromise or settlenent,
regarding rights which are the subject of litigation or in respect of which a judicial
decision has been rendered, (ii) relating to a total or partial waiver of the guarantees
granted to the holders, or (iii) the amendment ofany terms and provisions applicable
to the Securities.

For the avoidance of doubt, neither a General Meeting nor a Written Resolution has
power, and consequently a Resolution may not be passed to decide on any proposal
relating to (a) the modification of the objects or form of the Issuer, (b) the issue of
securities benefiting froma security over assets (surété réelle) which will not benefit
to the holders of Securities, (c) the potential merger (fusion) or demerger (scission)
including partial transfers of assets (apports partiels d'actifs) under the demerger
regime of or by the Issuer; (d) the transfer of the registered office of a European
Company (Societas Europaea — SE) to a different Member State of the European
Union.

However, each Holder is a creditor of the Issuerand as suchenjoys, pursuantto Article
L.213-6-3 1V ofthe French Code monétaireet financier, all the rights and prerogatives
of individual creditors in the circumstances described under items (c) and (d) in the
paragraphabove, including any rightto object (former opposition).

Each Holder is entitled to bring a legal action against the Issuer for the defence of its
own interests without the authorisation of the General Meeting.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Holders may appointa nominee tofile a proof of claim in the name ofall Holders
in the eventofjudicial reorganisation procedure or judicial liquidation ofthe Issuer.

Pursuant to Article L.228-85 ofthe French Code de commerce, in the absence of such
appointment of a nominee, the judicial representative (mandataire judiciaire), at its
own initiative or at the request of any Holder will ask the court to appoint a
representativeofthe Holders who will file the proofof Holders’ claim.

Conveningofa General Meeting

A General Meeting may be held atanytime, on convocation by the Issuer. One or nore
Holders, holding together at least one-thirtieth by number of the Securities outstanding,
may address to the Issuer a demand for convocation of the General Meeting. If such
General Meeting has not been convened within two (2) months after such demand, the
Holders may commission one of theirmembers to petition a competent court in Paris
to appointan agent (mandataire) who will call the General Meeting.

Notice of the date, hour, place and agenda of any General Meeting will be published
as provided under Condition 10, not less than fifteen days prior to the date of such
General Meetingon first convocation and, five days on second convocation.

Arrangements for Voting

Each Holder has the right to participate in a General Meeting in person, by proxy, by
correspondence or by videoconference or by any other means of telecommunication
allowing the identification of participating Holders.

Each Security carries the rightto onevote.

In accordance with Article R.228-71 of the French Code de commerce, the right of
each Holderto participate in General Meetings will be evidenced by theentries in the
books oftherelevantaccountholder of thename of such Holder as of 0:00, Paris time,
on the second Paris business day preceding the date set for the meeting of the relevant
General Meeting.

Decisions of General Meetings must be published in accordance with the provisions
set forth in Condition 10.

Chairman

The Holders presentat a General Meeting shall choose one of themto be chairman (the
"Chairman") by a simple majority of votes present or represented at such General
Meeting (notwithstanding the absence of a quorumat the time of such vote). If the
Holders fail to designate a Chairman, the Holder holding or representing the highest
number of Securities and present at such meeting shall be appointed Chairman, failing
which the Issuer may appointa Chairman. The Chairman appointed by the Issuer need
not be a Holder. The Chairman of an adjourned meeting need not be the same person
as the Chairman of the original meeting fromwhich the adjournmenttook place.

Quorumand Voting

General Meetings may deliberate validly on first convocation only if Holders present
or represented hold at least one fifth (by number) of the Securities then outstanding.
On second convocation, no quorumshall be required. Decisions at meetings shall be
taken by a simple majority of votes cast by Holders attending (including by
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(b)

videoconference or by any other means of telecommunication allowing the
identification of participating Holders) such General Meetings or represented thereat.

(vii)  Written Resolution and Electronic Consent

Pursuant to Article L.228-46-1 of the French Code de commerce the Issuer shall be
entitled, in lieu of conveninga General Meeting, to seek approval of a resolution from
the Holders by way of a Written Resolution. Subject to the following sentence, a
Written Resolution may be contained in onedocument or in several documents in like
form, each signed by or on behalf of one or more of the Holders. Pursuant to Article
L.228-46-1 of the French Code de commerce, approval of a Written Resolution may
also be given by way of electronic communication (" Electronic Consent").

Notice seeking the approval of a Written Resolution (including by way of Electronic
Consent) will be published as provided under Condition 10 not less than five (5) days
prior to the date fixed for the passing of such Written Resolution (the "Written
Resolution Date™). Notices seekingthe approval of a Written Resolution will contain
the conditions of formand time-limits to be complied with by the Holders who wish
to express their approval or rejection of such proposed Written Resolution. Holders
expressing their approval or rejection before the Written Resolution Date will
undertake not todispose of their Securities until after the Written Resolution Date.

(viiiy  Effect of Resolutions

A Resolution passed at a General Meeting or a Written Resolution (including by
Electronic Consent) shall be binding on all Holders, whether or not present or
represented at the General Meeting and whether or not, in the case of a Written
Resolution (including by Electronic Consent), they have participated in such Written
Resolution (including by Electronic Consent) and each of themshall be bound to give
effect to the Resolutionaccordingly.

Full Masse

If the applicable Final Terms specify “Full Masse”, the Holders will be grouped automatically
for the defence of theircommon interests in a separate legal body called masse (the " Mass™).

The Masse will be governed by the provisions of Articles L.228-46 et seq of the French Code
de commerce, as completed by, and subject to the provisions below.

(i) Legal Personality

The Masse will be a separate legal entity and will act in part through a representative of the
Masse (the "Representative™) and in part through a general meeting of the Holders (a "' General
Meeting™). The provisions ofthe French Code de commerce relating to the Masse shall apply,
as completed by, and subjectto, the provisions of this Condition.

(i) Representativeof the Masse

Pursuant to Article L.228-51 of the French Code de commerce, the names and addresses of the
initial Representative of the Masse and its alternate will be set out in theapplicable Final Tenrs.
The Representative appointed in respect of the first Tranche ofany Series of Securities will be
the Representative of the single Masse ofall Tranches in such Series.

The Representative will be entitled to such remuneration in connection with its functions or
duties as set out in the applicable Final Terms.
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In the event of death, retirement, liquidation, dissolution or revocation of appointment of the
Representative, such Representative will be replaced by another Representative. In the event of
the death, retirement, liquidation, dissolution or revocation of appointment of the alternate
Representative, an alternate will be elected by the general meeting ofthe Holders.

All interested parties will at all times have the right to obtain the names and addresses of the
initial Representative and the alternate Representative at the head office of the Issuer and the
specified office of the Principal Security Agent.

(iii) General Meetings

In accordance with Article R.228-71 ofthe French Code de commerce, the rightofeach Holder
to participate in General Meetings will be evidenced by theentries in the books of the relevant
AccountHolder ofthe name of such Holder as of 0:00, Paris time, on the second Paris business
day preceding the date set forthe meeting ofthe relevant General Meeting.

In accordance with Articles L.228-59 and R.228-67 of the French Codede commerce, notice of
date, hour, place and agenda of any General Meeting will be published as provided under
Condition 10 not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date of such General Meeting on first
convocation, and five days on second convocation.

Each Holder has the right to participate in a General Meeting in person, by proxy, by
correspondence and, in accordance with Article L.228-61 of the French Code de commerce by
videoconference or by any other means of telecommunication allowing the identification of
participating Holders.

Each Security carries the rightto onevote.
(iv) Written Resolutions and Electronic Consent

(A) Pursuant to Article L.228-46-1 of the French Code de commerce the Issuer
shallbe entitled, in lieu of conveninga General Meeting, to seek approval of
a resolutionfromthe Holders by way ofa Written Resolution. Subject to the
following sentence, a Written Resolution may be contained in one docunent
or in several documents in like form, each signed by or on behalf of one or
more of the Holders. Pursuant to Article L.228-46-1 of the French Code de
commerce, approval of a Written Resolution may also be given by way of
Electronic Consent.

(B) Notice seeking the approval of a Written Resolution (including by way of
Electronic Consent) will be published as provided under Condition 10 not less
than five days prior to the Written Resolution Date. Notices seeking the
approval of a Written Resolution will contain the conditions of formand time-
limits to be complied with by the Holders who wishto express theirapproval
or rejection of such proposed Written Resolution. Holders expressing their
approval or rejection before the Written Resolution Date will undertake not
to disposeoftheir Securities until after the Written Resolution Date.

Contractual Masse

If the applicable Final Terms specify “Contractual Masse”, the following meeting and voting
provisionsshallapply:

The Holders will be grouped automatically for the defence of their common interests in a
separate legal body called masse (the"Masse™). The Massewill be governed by the provisions
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of the French Code de commerce, and with the exception of Articles L.228-48, L.228-65 sub-
paragraphs 1°, 3°, 4° and 6° of  and Il, L.228-71, R.228-63 and R.228-69 and furthersubject
to the following provisions:

0) Legal Personality

The Masse will be a separate legal entity and will act in part through a representative (the
"Representative") and in part through a general meeting of the Holders (the "Genera
Meeting").

(i) Representative

Pursuant to Article L.228-51 of the French Code de commerce, the names and addresses of the
initial Representative of the Masse and its alternate will be set out in theapplicable Final Tenrs.
The Representative appointed in respect of the first tranche of any series of Securities will be
the representative of the single Masse of all Tranches in such Series.

The Representative will be entitled to such remuneration in connection with its functions or
duties as set out in the applicable Final Terms.

In the event of death, retirement or revocation of appointment of the Representative, such
Representativewill be replaced by another Representative. In the event of the death, retirement
orrevocationofappointmentofthe alternate Representative, an alternate will be elected by the
General Meetingofthe Holders.

All interested parties will at all times have the right to obtain the names and addresses of the
initial Representative and the alternate Representative at the head office of the Issuer and the
specified office of the Principal Security Agent.

(iii) General Meeting

In accordance with Article R.228-71 of the French Code de commerce, the rightof each Holder
to participate in General Meetings will be evidenced by theentries in the books of the relevant
AccountHolderofthe name of such Holder as of 0:00, Paris time, on the second Paris business
day preceding the date set forthe meeting ofthe relevant General Meeting.

In accordance with Articles L.228-59 and R.228-67 ofthe French Codede commerce, notice of
date, hour, place and agenda of any General Meeting will be published as provided under
Condition 10 not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date of such General Meeting on first
convocation, and five (5) days on second convocation.

Each Holder has the right to participate in a General Meeting in person, by proxy, by
correspondence and, in accordance with Article L.228-61 of the French Code de commerce by
videoconference or by any other means of telecommunication allowing the identification of
participating Holders.

Each Security carries the rightto onevote.
(iv) Written Resolutions and Electronic Consent

(A) Pursuant to Article L.228-46-1 of the French Code de commerce the Issuer
shallbe entitled, in lieu of conveninga General Meeting, to seek approval of
a resolutionfromthe Holders by way ofa Written Resolution. Subject to the
following sentence, a Written Resolution may be contained in one document
or in several documents in like form, each signed by or on behalf of one or
more of the Holders. Pursuantto Article L.228-46-1 of the French Code de
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commerce, approval of a Written Resolution may also be given by way of
Electronic Consent.

(B) Notice seeking the approval of a Written Resolution (including by way of
Electronic Consent) willbe published as provided under Condition 20 not less
than five days prior to the Written Resolution Date. Notices seeking the
approval of a Written Resolution will contain the conditions of formand time-
limits to be complied with by the Holders who wishto express their approval
or rejection of such proposed Written Resolution. Holders expressing their
approval or rejection before the Written Resolution Date will undertake not
to disposeoftheir Securities until after the Written Resolution Date.

Meetings of Holders for Securities that do not constitute obligations within the meaning of
Aurticle L.213-5 ofthe French Code monétaire et financier

In relation to Securities that do notconstitute obligations, the following voting provisions shall
apply:

0) General

The Holders shallnot be grouped in a massehaving separate legal personality and acting in part
through arepresentative ofthe holders (représentant de la masse) and in part through general
meetings.

(i) Resolution

Subject to this Condition 9.4(b)(iv), a resolution (the "Resolution™) may be passed by a Written
Resolution by the consent of one or more Holders holding together at least 66>° per cent. (by
number) of the Securities then outstanding.

A Resolution may be passed with respect to any matter that relates to the common rights
(intéréts communs) of the Holders.

A Resolution may be passed on any proposal relating to the modification of the Conditions
including any proposal, (i) whether fora compromise or settlement, regarding rights which are
the subject of litigation or in respectofwhich a judicial decision has beenrendered, (ii) relating
to a total or partial waiver of the guarantees granted to the holders, or (iii) the amendment of
any terms and provisions applicable to the Securities.

A Written Resolution is not sufficient, and consequently a Resolution may not be passed to
decide on any proposal relating to:

@) the modification ofthe objects or formofthe Issuer;

(b) the issue of securities benefiting froma security over assets (surété réelle) which will
not benefit theholders of the Securities;

(©) the potential merger (fusion) or demerger (scission) including partial transfers of assets
(apportspartiels d'actifs) under the demerger regime of or by the Issuer; or

(d the transfer of the registered office of a European Company (SocietasEuropaea — SE)
to a different Member State of the European Union.

However, each Holder is entitled to bring a legal action against the Issuer for the defence of its
own interests without a Written Resolution.
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(f)

The Holders may appointa nominee to file a proof of claimin the name of all Holders in the
event of judicial reorganisation procedure or judicial liquidation of the Issuer.

In the absence ofa nomineebeing appointed, the judicial representative (mandataire judiciaire),
atits own initiative orat therequestofany Holder, willask the court to appoint a representative
of the Holders whowill file the proofofHolders’ claim.

(iii) Written Resolution and Electronic Consent

@) The Issuershallbe entitled to seekapproval of a resolution fromthe Holders by way
of a Written Resolution. Notwithstanding that a Written Resolutionmay be approved
electronically, a Written Resolution may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form, each signed by or on behalf of one or more of the Holders.
Approval of a Written Resolution may also be given by way of electronic
communication ("' EHectronic Consent”).

(b) Notice seeking the approval of a Written Resolution (including by way of Electronic
Consent) will be published as provided under Condition 10 not less than five days prior
to the date fixed for the passing of such Written Resolution (the "*Written Resolution
Date"). Notices seeking the approval of a Written Resolution will contain the
conditions of the form and time-limits to be complied with by the Holders who wish
to express their approval or rejection of such proposed Written Resolution. Holders
expressing their approval or rejection before the Written Resolution Date will
undertake not todispose of their Securities until after the Written Resolution Date.

(iv) Effect of Resolutions

A Resolutionpassed by way of a Written Resolution (including by Electronic Consent) shall be
binding on all Holders, whether or not they have participated in such Written Resolution
(including by Electronic Consent), and each of them shall be bound to give effect to the
Resolutionaccordingly.

Information to Holders

Each Holder will have the right, during (i) the 15-day period preceding the holding of the
relevant General Meeting on first convocation or (ii) the 5-day period preceding the holding of
the relevant General Meeting onsecond convocationor (iii) in the case ofa Written Resolution,
a period of not less thanfive days preceding the Written Resolution Date, as the case may be,
to consultor make a copy of thetext of the resolutions which will be proposed and of the reports
which will be prepared in connection with such resolution, all of which will be available for
inspection by the relevant Holders at the registered office ofthe Issuer, at the specified offices
of any of the Security Agents during usual business hours and at any other place specified in
the notice of the General Meeting orthe Written Resolution.

Decisions of General Meetings and Written Resolution once approved will be published in
accordancewith the provisions of Condition 10.

Bxpenses

If "Contractual representation of Holders/No Masse" or " Contractual Masse" is specified in the
applicable Final Terms, orin the case of Securities thatdo not constitute obligations within the
meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et financier, the Issuer will pay all
expensesrelatingto theoperation of the Masse and expenses relating to the calling and holding
of General Meetings and seeking the approval of a Written Resolution, and, more generally, all
administrative expenses resolved upon by the General Meeting or in writing through Written
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Resolutionbythe Holders, it being expressly stipulated that no expenses may beimputed against
interest (ifany) payable under the Securities.

If "Full Masse" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, Article L. 228-71 ofthe French Code
de commerce shallapply.

Outstanding Securities

For the avoidance of doubt, in this Condition 9.4, the term "outstanding” (as defined below)
shallnotinclude those Securities purchased by the Issuer in accordance with Article L.213-0-1
of the French Code monétaire et financier thatare held by itand notcancelled.

"outstanding™ means, in relation to the Securities of any Series, allthe Securities issued other
than:

a) those Securities which have beenredeemed and cancelled pursuantto the Conditions;

b) those Securities in respect of which the date for redemption in accordance with the
Conditions has occurred and the redemption moneys (including all interest (if any)
accrued to the date forredemption and interest (if any) payable under the Conditions
afterthat date) have beenduly paidto orto the order ofthe Principal Security Agent;

C) those Securities which have been purchased and cancelled in accordance with the
Conditions;

d) those Securities in respect of which claims have become prescribed under the
Conditions;

e) in the caseof ClearstreamFrankfurt Securities in definitive form (i) those mutilated or

defaced thathave been surrendered in exchange for replacement Clearstream Frankfurt
Securities in definitive form, (ii) (for the purposeonly of determining how many such
ClearstreamFrankfurt Securities are outstanding and without prejudice to their status
forany other purpose) those Clearstream Frankfurt Securities alleged to have been lost,
stolen or destroyed and in respect of which replacement Clearstream Frankfurt
Securities;

providedthat for the purpose of attending and voting atany meeting of the Holders of the Series,
those Securities (if any) which are for the time being held by or forthe benefit ofthe Issuer or
any of its subsidiaries shall (unless and until ceasing to be so held) be deemed not to remain
outstanding.

Sole Holder

Whether the applicable Final Terms specify “Full Masse” or “Contractual Masse”, or in thecase
of Securities that do not constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the
French Code monétaire et financier, if and for so long as the Securities of a given Series are
held by a single Holder, the relevant Holder will exercise directly the powers delegated tothe
Representativeand General Meetings of Holders under the Conditions. For the avoidance of the
doubtifa Representative has been appointed while the Securities ofa given Series are held by
a single Holder, such Representative shall be devoid of powers. A Representativeshall only be
appointedifthe Securities of a Series are held by more than one Holder.

In the case of Securities thatdo not constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-
5 ofthe French Code monétaire et financier, ifand for so long as the Securities ofa given Series
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10.

are held by a single Holder, the relevant Holder will exercise directly all powers, rights and
obligations entrusted tothe Holders under the Conditions.

Modifications

Without prejudiceto Condition 6, the Issuer may modify these Terms and Conditions and/or the Agency
Agreement (as amended or supplemented fromtime to time) without the consent ofthe Holders (butin
the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities, with the consent of Euroclear Sweden) in any manner
which the Issuer may deem necessary or desirable provided that such modification is not materially
prejudicial to the interests ofthe Holders or such modificationis ofa formal, minor or technical nature
orto cure, correct or supplementa manifest or provenerror or to cure, correct or supplement any defective
provision contained herein and/or therein or to comply with mandatory provisions of the law of the
jurisdiction in which the Issuer is incorporated. Notice of any such modification will be given to the
Holders in accordancewith Condition 10 but failure to give, or non-receipt of, such notice will not affect
the validity of any such modification.

NOTICES

All notices toHolders shall be valid if:
@ delivered to the relevant Account Holders for communication by themto the Holders;

(b) in the case of Securities held through Euroclear France listed on Euronext Paris or Euroclear
Netherlands Securities listed on Euronext Amsterdam (other than Securities issued and cleared
through Iberclear listed on the Madrid Stock Exchange),and inthe case of OET Certificates
and Call Payout 2300, published on the "Certificate” website of the Issuer
("www.produitsdebourse.bnpparibas.fr" or www.bnpparibasmarkets.be or
www.bnpparibasmarkets.nl or www.educatedtrading.bnpparibas.se) or other website of the
Issueras may be notified to Holders;

(©) in the case of Securities issued and cleared through Iberclear and listed on the Madrid Stock
Exchange, published by the Madrid Stock Exchange oron any other stock exchange in Spain,
if applicable, in the manner specifically provided by Spanish law and regulations for the relevant
notice, as the case may be;

d) in the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities, mailed to a Holder on the address registered
for such Holder in the Euroclear Sweden Register maintained by Euroclear Sweden in
accordancewith the rules of Euroclear Sweden;

(e) for so long asthe Securities are listed ona stock exchange or are admitted to trading by another
relevant authority, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the relevant stock exchange
or otherrelevantauthority. Any such notice shallbe deemed to have been given on the second
Business Day following such delivery or, if earlier, the date of such publication or, if published
more than once, on thedate of the first such publication;

® so long as the Clearstream Frankfurt Securities are represented by a Global Security, the Issuer
shall deliver all notices relating to the Securities to Clearstream Banking Frankfurt for
communication by it to the Holders. Any suchnotice shallbe deemed tohave beengivento the
Holders on the third day after the date on which the said notice was given to Clearstream
Banking Frankfurt; and

()] Notices relating tothe operation of the Masse pursuantto Condition 9.4 and pursuant to Articles
R. 228-79 and R.236-11 of the French Code de commerce shall be given by delivery of the
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11.2

relevant noticeto Euroclear France, Euroclear, ClearstreamBanking Luxembourg and any other
clearing systemthrough which the Securities are for the time being cleared. For the avoidance
of doubt, Conditions 10(a) and (e) above shallnot apply tosuch notices.

EXPENSES AND TAXATION

A Holder must pay all taxes, duties and/or expenses, including any applicable depository charges,
transaction orexercise charges, stamp duty, stamp duty reservetax, issue, registration, securities transfer
and/orothertaxes orduties arising fromthe disposal, exercise and settlement (in the case of Warrants)
or redemption (in the case of Certificates) of the Securities and/or the delivery or transfer of the
Entitlement (as applicable) pursuant to the terms of such Securities ("' Security Expenses") relating to
such Securities as provided above.

The Issuer shall deduct fromamounts payable or fromassets deliverable to Holders all Related Expenses,
not previously deducted fromamounts paid or assets delivered to Holders, as the Calculation Agent shall
in good faith and in acommercially reasonable manner determine are attributable to the Securities.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Issuer shallnot be liable forany Related Expenses and Holders shall be
liable to pay the Related Expenses attributable to their Securities.

"Expenses" means Security Expensesandany Related Expenses.

"Related Expenses” means (a) all present, future, prospective, contingent or anticipated Taxes which
are (or may be) or were (or may have been) withheld or payable under the laws, regulations or
administrative practices ofany state (orany political sub-division or authority thereof or therein) and (b)
any other present, future, or contingentexpenses (including without limitation, any applicable depositary
charges, transaction charges, issue registration, securities transfer or other expenses) which are (or may
be) or were (or may have been) payable, in each case in respect of or in connection with:

0) the issue, transfer or enforcement of the Securities;
(i) any payment(or delivery of assets) to Holders;

(iii) aperson orits agent'sassets orany rights, distributions of dividends appertaining to such assets
(had suchan investor (or agent) purchased, owned, held, realised, sold or otherwise disposed of
assets) in such anumberas the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in acommercially
reasonable manner, may determine to be appropriate as a hedge or related trading position in
connectionwith the Securities; or

(iv) any of the Issuer's (or any Affiliates’) other hedging arrangements in connection with the
Securities.

"Taxes" means taxes, levies, imposts, duties, deductions, withholdings, assessments or other charges
(including any stamp, registration or transfer tax, duty or other charge or taxon income, payments (or
delivery of assets), profits, capital gains or, for the avoidance of doubt, any withholding or deduction
required pursuant to (i) an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the Code) or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, any
agreements or regulations thereunder, any official interpretations thereof, or any law implementing an
intergovernmental approach thereto) together with any interest, additions to tax or penalties and (i)
Section 871(m) ofthe Code.
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FURTHER ISSUES

The Issuershallbe at liberty fromtime to time without the consent of Holders to createand issue further
Securities so as to be consolidated with and forma single series with the outstanding Securities.

SUBSTITUTION OF THE ISSUER OR THE GUARANTOR

Substitution BEvent

The occurrenceofany ofthe followingevents, in respect ofthe Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may
be, shall constitute a " Substitution BEvent":

@)
(b)

©)

(d)

©)

a divestment in respect of the Issuer;

the cancellation, suspensionor revocation ofany relevantauthorisation or licence of the Issuer
or the Guarantor, as the casemay be, by any governmental, legal or regulatory authority;

aconsolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange in respect of the Issuer or the
Guarantor, as the case may be, with orinto another entity or person;

a takeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, solicitation proposal or other event by any entity
or person to purchase or otherwise obtain a controlling stake in the Issuer or the Guarantor, as
the case may be; or

any other event affecting the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, pursuant to which
substitution is permissible in accordance with the regulations of any stock exchange, any
applicable law or regulation in force in the jurisdiction of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the
case may be orany applicable law or regulation in force in the jurisdiction in which the securities
are offered.

Substitution Conditions

A substitution of the Issuer pursuant to Conditions 13.3 or 13.4 below may only occur if the following
conditions (the " Substitution Conditions") are satisfied:

@)

(b)

©)

(d)

where BNPP B.V. is the Issuer, the creditworthinessof the Substitute atsuchtime being at least
equalto the creditworthiness ofthe Issuer (or ofany previous substitute), as determined by the
Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in acommercially reasonable manner by reference
to, inter alia, thelongtermsenior debtratings (ifany) assigned by S&P Global Ratings Europe
Limited, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., Moody's Investors Service Lid.
and/or Fitch Ratings Limited, or any successor ratingagency or agencies thereto, or such other
rating agency as the Calculation Agent determines to the Substitute or, as the case may be, to
the Issuer (orto any previous substitute);

the Issuer confirms that there are no payment arrears in respectofthe Securities and that there
is no indication thatpayments will imminently be in arrears or that there may be any issues in
making any payments in respectofthe Securities;

all actions, conditions and things required to be taken, fulfilled and done to ensure that the
Securities represent legal, valid and binding obligations of the Substitute having been taken,
fulfilled and done and being in full force and effect;

the Substitute becomes party to the Agency Agreement (unless the Substitute is already a party

to the Agency Agreement) with any appropriate consequentialamendments, as if it had beenan
original party to it;
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(e) each stock exchange on which the Securities are listed has confirmed that, following the
proposed substitution of the Substitute, the Securities will continue to be listed on such stock
exchange and in the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities, Euroclear Sweden, has
consentedto suchsubstitution (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed);

() if appropriate, the Substitute has appointed a process agent as its agent in to receive service of
processon its behalf in relation toany legal actionor proceedings arising outof or in connection
with the Securities; and

Q) the Issuerhasgivenat least 30 days' prior notice of the date of such substitutionto the Holders
in accordancewith Condition 10.

Securitiesissuedby BNPP

BNPP orany previously substituted company, may, butis not obliged to, at any time, withoutthe consent
of the Holders, substitute foritselfas principal obligor under the Securities another company within the
BNP Paribas Group (the "Substitute™), subjectto:

@) BNPP unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteeing in favour of each Holder the performance
of all obligations by the Substitute under the Securities;

(b) BNPP having obtained fromthe Substitute an undertaking that the substitutionwill not have a
material impact on the interests of the Holders as a consequence of any taxor regulatory regime
to which the Substitute is subject (comparedto the Issuer) and that it will not deduct any costs
relating to the substitution fromamounts due to the Holder; and

(© the Substitution Conditions having been satisfied.

Securitiesissuedby BNPP B.V.

Following the occurrence of a Substitution Event, the Issuer may, but is not obliged to, without the
consent of the Holders, substitute for itself as principal obligor under the Securities a Substitute, being
BNPP B.V. (where BNPP B.V. has previously been substituted as Issuer) or any other company in the
BNP Paribas Group, subject to:

@) BNPP unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteeing in favour of each Holder the performance
of all obligations by the Substitute under the Securities on substantially the same terms as the
relevant Guarantee;

(b) BNPP B.V. having obtained fromthe Substitute an undertaking that the substitution will not
have a materialimpact on the interests ofthe Holders as a consequence ofany taxor regulatory
regime to which the Substituteis subject (comparedtothe Issuer) and that it will not deductany
costsrelating to the substitution fromamounts dueto the Holder; and

(©) the Substitution Conditions having been satisfied.

Securitiesguaranteedby BNPP

Following the occurrence of a Substitution Event, BNPP or any previously substituted company may,
but is not obliged to, without the consent of the Holders, substitute for itself as guarantor in respect of
the Securities any company (the " Substitute Guarantor"), being BNPP (where BNPP has previously
been substituted as Guarantor) oranother company in the BNP Paribas Group subject to:

@) the creditworthiness of the Substitute Guarantor at such time being at least equal to the
creditworthiness of BNPP (or of any previous substitute under this Condition), as determined
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(b)

©)

(d)

©)

()

@

(h)

by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner by
reference to, inter alia, the long term senior debt ratings (if any) assigned by S&P Global
Ratings Europe Limited, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. and/or Moody's
Investors Service Ltd. and/or Fitch Ratings Limited, orany successor rating agency or agencies
thereto, or such other rating agency as the Calculation Agentdetermines to the Substitute
Guarantor or, as the casemay be, to BNPP (orto any previous substitute under this Condition);

the Substitute Guarantor having entered into a guarantee (the "Substitute Guarantee™) in
respect of the Securities in substantially the same formas the relevant BNPP Guarantee and
such other documents (if any) as may be necessary to give full effect to the substitution (the
"Documents™) and (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) pursuantto which the
Substitute Guarantor shall undertake in favour of each Holderto be bound by these Terns and
Conditions, the provisions of the Agency Agreement as fully as if the Substitute Guarantor had
been named in these Terms and Conditions, the Documents, the Agency Agreement as the
guarantorin respectofthe Securities in place of BNPP (or of any previous substitute under this
Condition);

the Substitute Guarantee and the Documents having been delivered to BNP Paribas Securities
Services, to be held by BNP Paribas Securities Services for so long as any Securities remain
outstandingandforso longasany claimmade against the Substitute Guarantor or the Issuer by
any Holder in relation to the Securities, the Substitute Guarantee or the Documents shall not
have beenfinally adjudicated, settled ordischarged;

each stock exchange on which the Securities are listed having confirmed that following the
proposed substitution of the Substitute Guarantor (or of any previous substitute under this
Condition) it will continueto list the Securities and in the case of Swedish Dematerialised
Securities, Euroclear Sweden, has consented to such substitution (such consent not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed);

if appropriate, the Substitute Guarantor having appointeda process agent as its agentin France
to receive service of process on its behalf in relation to any legalaction or proceedings arising
out oforin connectionwith the Securities or the Substitute Guarantee;

BNPP (or any previous substitute under this Condition) having given at least 30 days' prior
notice ofthe date of such substitution tothe Holders in accordance with Condition 10;

BNPP confirming that there are no payment arrears in respect of the Securitiesand that there is
no indication that payments will imminently be in arrears or that there may be any issues in
making any payments in respectofthe Securities; and

BNPP having obtained fromthe Substitute Guarantor an undertaking that the substitution will
not have a material impact on the interests of the Holders as a consequence of any tax or
regulatory regime to which the Substitute is subject (compared to the Issuer) and that it will not
deductany costs relatingto thesubstitution fromamounts due to the Holder.

GOVERNING LAW AND SUBMISSIONTO JURISDICTION

@)

The Securities, the Agency Agreement (as amended or supplemented from time to time) and
the Guarantee are governed by, and construed in accordance with, French law, and any action
or proceeding against the Issuer in relation thereto (“Proceedings”) may be submitted to the
jurisdiction of the competent courts in Paris within the jurisdiction of the Paris Court of Appeal
(Cour d'Appel de Paris). BNPP B.V. elects domicile at the registered office of BNP Paribas
currently locatedat 16 boulevard des Italiens, 75009 Paris.
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(0) If Essential Trigger is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and, to the extent
that any proceedings in respect of the Securities relate to consumers (as such termis used in
Regulation (EU) No 1215/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 December
2012 on jurisdictionandtherecognitionand enforcementof judgments in civiland commercial
matters (the "Brussels Recast Regulation™)), notwithstanding Condition 14(a), the Issuer will
be required to, and such consumers may, in respect ofany dispute in respect of the Securities,
take proceedings in the jurisdictions specified in Article 18 of the Brussels Recast Regulation.

ADDITIONAL DISRUPTION EVENTS AND OPTIONAL ADDITIONAL DISRUPTION
EVENTS

Definitions

"Additional Disruption BEvent" means (i) if "Applicable" is specified in the applicable Final Terns,
Change in Lawand Hedging Disruption, (i) if "Not applicable™ is specified in the applicable Final Tems,
none of Changein Lawand Hedging Disruption, (iii) if "Changein Law does notapply tothe Securities™
is specified in the applicable Final Terms, Hedging Disruption and (iv) if "Hedging Disruption does not
apply to the Securities™ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, Changein Law;"

"Administrator/Benchmark BEvent" means the Calculation Agent determines that:
(i) a Benchmark Modification or Cessation Eventhas occurred orwill occur;

(i) any authorisation, registration, recognition, endorsement, equivalence decision, approval or
inclusion in any official register in respect of a relevant Benchmark or the administrator or
sponsorofarelevant Benchmark has not been, orwill not be, obtained orhas been, or will be,
rejected, refused, suspended or withdrawn by therelevantcompetentauthority or other relevant
official body, in each case with the effect that the Issuer orthe Calculation Agent orany other
entity is not, orwill not be, permitted under any applicable law or regulationto use the relevant
Benchmarkto performits ortheir respective obligations under the Securities; or

(iii) it is not commercially reasonable to continue the use of a relevant Benchmark in connection
with the Securities fromthe perspective of the Issuer orthe Calculation Agent or the Issuer or
the Calculation Agent suffers or will suffer an increased cost, in each case, as a result of any
applicable licensing restrictions or changes in the cost of obtaining or maintaining any relevant
licence (including, without limitation, where the Issuer, the Calculation Agentor any other
entity is requiredto holda valid licence in orderto issue or performits obligations in respect of
the Securities andforany reasonsuch licence is either notobtained, not renewed or is revoked
or there is a material changein the cost of obtaining or renewing such licence);

"Benchmark" means any figure, value, level or rate which is a benchmark as defined in BMR and where
any amount payable or deliverable under the Securities, orthe value of the Securities, is determined, in
whole or in part, by reference to such figure, value, level or rate all as determined by the Calculation
Agent;

"Benchmark Modification or Cessation BEvent" means, in respect of the Benchmark any of the
following has occurred orwill occur:

() any material change in such Benchmark; or
(ii) the permanentorindefinite cancellation or cessation in the provision of such Benchmark;

"BMR" means the EU Benchmark Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/1011);
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""Cancellation Bvent" means, that in thedetermination of the Calculation Agent, all or some of the Debt
Instruments are redeemed prior to their stated maturity date for any reason, and as a result thereof it is
impossible, impracticable or unduly onerous for the Issuer or its Affiliates to hedge the Issuers
obligations in respect of the Securities;

"Change in Law" means that, on orafter the Trade Date (a) due to theadoptionoforany changein any
applicable law orregulation (including, without limitation, in respect of any taxlaw, solvency or capital
requirements), or (b) due to the promulgation of orany change in the interpretation or application of any
law or regulation by any court, tribunal or regulatory or other supervisory authority with competent
jurisdiction (including any action taken by ataxing or financialauthority orany supervisory authority)
or the combined effect thereof if occurring more than once, the Issuer determines in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner that:

(i) it has become illegal for it or any of its Affiliates to hold, acquire or dispose of any relevant
hedge positionrelatingtoan Index(in the case of IndexSecurities), any relevanthedge position
relating to a Share (in the case of Share Securities), any relevant hedge position relatingto an
ETI Interest (in the case of ETI Securities),_any relevant hedge position relating to a Debt
Instrument (in the case of Debt Securities) or any relevant hedge position relating to a
Commodity or Commodity Index (in the case of Commodity Securities) (eacha "Hedge"); or

(i) it or any of its Affiliates would incura materially increased cost (including, without limitation,
in respect ofanytax, solvency, regulatory or capital requirements) in maintaining the Securities
inissue or, unless Hedge Maintenance Cost s specified as not applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, in holding, acquiring or disposing of any Hedge;

"Currency Bvent" means that, on or after the Trade Date, it has become impracticable, illegal or
impossible forthe Issuerorany ofits Affiliates (a) to convertthe relevant currency (" Local Currency')
in which the Index, the Shares or the Debt Instruments or any options or futures contracts or other hedging
arrangement in relation to the Indexorthe Shares orthe Debt Instruments (for the purposes of hedging
the Issuer’s obligations under the Securities) are denominated, into the Settlement Currency, or exchange
orrepatriate any funds in the Local Currency or the Settlement Currency outside of the country in which
the Index, the Shares orthe Debt Instruments orany options or futures contracts in relation to the Index
or the Shares respectively are traded due to the adoption of, orany change in, any applicable law, rule,
regulation, judgment, order, directive or decreeofany Government Authority or otherwise, or (b) for the
Calculation Agentto determine a rate or (in the determination of the Calculation Agent) a commercially
reasonable rate at which the Local Currency canbe exchanged for the Settlement Currency for payment
underthe Securities;

"Extraordinary External Event” means that, onorafterthe Trade Date, the performance ofthe Issuers
obligations underthe Securities is prevented or materially hindered or delayed due to:

(i) any act (otherthana Market Disruption Event), law, rule, regulation, judgment, order, directive,
interpretation, decree or material legislative oradministrative interference ofany Government
Authority orotherwise; or

(i) the occurrence of civil war, disruption, military action, unrest, political insurrection, terrorist
activity ofanykind, riot, public demonstration and/or protest, or any other financial or economic
reasons orany other causes or impediments beyond such party's control; or

(iii) any expropriation, confiscation, requisition, nationalisation or otheraction taken or threatened
by any Government Authority that deprives the Issuer or any of its Affiliates, of all or
substantially all of its assets in the Local Currency jurisdiction.
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"Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity" means, following the exercise of Physical Delivery Securities,
in the opinion ofthe Calculation Agent, it is impossible or impracticable to deliver, when due, some or
all of the Relevant Assets (the "Affected Relevant Assets") comprising the Entitlement, where such
failure to deliveris due to illiquidity in the market for the Relevant Assets;

"Gowvernment Authority” means any nation, state or government, any province or other political
subdivision thereof, any body, agency or ministry, any taxing, monetary, foreign exchange or other
authority, court, tribunal or other instrumentality and any other entity exercising, executive, legislative,
judicial, regulatory oradministrative functions of or pertainingto government;

"Hedging Disruption" means that the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates is unable, after using
commercially reasonable efforts, to (a) acquire, establish, re-establish, substitute, maintain, unwind or
dispose of any transaction(s) or asset(s) or any futures or option contracts it deems necessary to hedge
the equity price riskorany otherrelevant price riskincluding butnot limited to the currency risk of the
Issuerissuing and performing its obligations with respectto the Securities, or (b) freely realise, recover,
remit, receive, repatriate ortransfer the proceeds of any such transaction(s), asset(s) or futures or options
contract(s) orany relevant hedge positions relating to the Securities;

"Hedging Shares" means the number of components comprised in an Index (in the case of Index
Securities) or the number of Shares (in the case of Share Securities) that the Issuer and/or any of its
Affiliates deems necessary to hedge the equity or other price risk of entering into and performing its
obligations with respect tothe Securities;

"Increased Costof Hedging" means thatthe Issuerand/or any of its Affiliates would incur a materially
increased (as compared with circumstances existing on the Trade Date) amountoftax, duty, expenseor
fee (other than brokerage commissions) to (a) acquire, establish, re-establish, substitute, maintain,
unwind or dispose of any transaction(s) or asset(s) orany futures or options contract onany Commodity
or, in the case of a Commodity Index, Index Component (in the case of Commodity Securities) or, in
respect of any Index Securities relating to a Custom Index, any relevant hedge positions relating to an
Index, or, in respectofany DebtSecurities, any relevanthedge positions relatingto a Debt Instrument it
deems necessary to hedge the market risk (including, without limitation, equity price risk, foreign
exchange risk and interest risk) of the Issuer issuing and performing its obligations with respect to the
Securities, or (b) realise, recover or remit the proceeds of any such transaction(s) or asset(s) or any such
futures or options contract(s) or, in respect of any Index Securities relating to a Custom Index, any
relevant hedge positions relating to an Index, or, in respect of any Debt Securities, any relevant hedge
positions relating to a Debt Instrument, provided that any such materially increased amount that is
incurred solely due to the deterioration of the creditworthiness of the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates
shallnot be deemed an Increased Cost of Hedging;

"IncreasedCostof Stock Borrow' means that the Issuerand/orany of its Affiliates would incur a rate
to borrowany component security comprised in an Index(in the case of IndexSecurities) orany Share
(in the case of Share Securities) that is greater than the Initial Stock Loan Rate;

"Initial Stock Loan Rate" means, in respectofa componentsecurity comprised in an Index(in the case
of Index Securities) or a Share (in the case of Share Securities), the initial stock loan rate specified in
relation to such Share, security, componentor commodity in the applicable Final Terms;

"Insolvency Filing" means that a Share Company or Basket Company institutes or has instituted against
it by a regulator, supervisor orany similar official with primary insolvency, rehabilitative or regulatory
jurisdiction over it in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organisation or the jurisdiction of its head or
home office, or it consentstoa proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other
relief underanybankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar law affecting creditors' rights, or a petition
is presented for its winding-up or liquidation by it or such regulator, supervisor or similar official or it
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consents to such a petition, provided that proceedings instituted or petitions presented by creditors and
not consentedto by the Share Company or Basket Company shallnot be deemed an Insolvency Filing;

"Jurisdiction Bvent" means that, on or after the Trade Date, it has become impracticable, illegal or
impossible forthe Issuerorany of its Affiliates to purchase, sell, hold or otherwise deal (or to continue
todo so in the future) in the Index, the Shares, the Debt Instruments or, unless Hedging Arrangements is
specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, any options or futures contracts in relation to
the Index, the Shares orthe Debt Instruments in order for the Issuer to performits obligations:

() underthe Securities; or

(i) unless Hedging Arrangements is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, in
respect of any relevant hedging arrangements in connection with the Securities (including,
without limitation, any purchase, sale or entry into or holding of one or more securities
positions, currency positions, stock loan transactions, derivatives position, commodity position
or other instruments or arrangements (however described) by the Issuer and/or any of its
Affiliates in orderto hedge, eitherindividually or on a portfolio basis, the Securities),

or the costsof so doingwould (in the determination of the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in
a commercially reasonable manner) be materially increased under the restriction or limitation of the
existing or future law, rule, regulation, judgment, order, interpretation, directive or decree of any
Government Authority or otherwise;

"Loss of Stock Borrow' means that the Issuerand/or any Affiliate is unable, after using commercially
reasonable efforts, to borrow (or maintain a borrowing of) any component security comprised in an Index
(in the case of IndexSecurities) orany Share (in the case of Share Securities) in an amount equal to the
Hedging Shares at a rate equalto or less thanthe Maximum Stock Loan Rate;

"Maximum Stock Loan Rate" means in respect ofa component security comprisedin an Index(in the
case of Index Securities) or a Share (in the case of Share Securities), the Maximum Stock Loan Rate
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Optional Additional Disruption BEvent" means any of Administrator/Benchmark Event, Cancellation
Event, Currency Event, Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity, Extraordinary External Event, Increased
Cost ofHedging, Increased Cost of Stock Borrow, Jurisdiction Event, Insolvency Filing, Loss of Stock
Borrow, Stop-Loss Event and/or Significant Alteration Event, in each case if specified in the applicable
Final Terms;

"Protected Amount” means the amount specified as suchin the applicable Final Terms;

"Significant Alteration Event" means any event or circumstance or combination of events or
circumstances occurring after the Trade Date that is not attributable to the Issuer but which in the
determination of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner, significantly alters the economics of the Securities as at the Trade Date where such
event renders the performance of the Issuer's obligations under the Securities unduly onerous or results
in a material increase in costsincurred by the Issuer associated with the Securities as a consequence of a
change in any applicable law or regulation (including, without limitation, in respect of any tax laws,
solvency orregulatory capital requirements), nationalisation, or regulatory action but, in each case, where
such event does not constitute a force majeure pursuant to Condition 7.2 (Force Majeure), or, to the
extent permitted by applicable law, in other similar events or circumstances that would in the
determination of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner, significantly alter the economics of the Securities as at the Trade Date;
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"Stop-Loss BEvent” means, in respect of a Share, the price of any Share as quoted on the relevant
Exchange for such Share at the Scheduled Closing Time on any Scheduled Trading Day that is nota
Disrupted Day in respectofsuch Share onor afterthe Trade Date or, if later, the Strike Date, is less than
5 percent., orsuch percentagespecified in the applicable Final Terms, of its Strike Price or, if no Strike
Price is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the price given as the benchmark price for such Sharein
the applicable Final Terms, all as determined by the Calculation Agent;and

"Trade Date" has the meaninggivento it in the applicable Final Terms.

If Additional Disruption Events are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and an
Additional Disruption Event and/or an Optional Additional Disruption Event occurs (other than in
respect of Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity), the Issuer acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner may take the action described in (a) or, if applicable, (b), (c), (d) or (e), as the case
may be, below:

@ require the Calculation Agentto determine in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner the appropriateadjustment, if any, to bemade toany one or more of any Relevant Asset
and/orthe Entitlementand/or the Exercise Price (in the case of Warrants) and/or the Weighting
and/orany ofthe otherterms ofthese Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Tems
to account for the Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption Event
and determine theeffective date of that adjustment. In the case of an Administrator/Benchmark
Event, such adjustment may (a) consist of one or more amendments and/or be made on one or
more dates, (b) be determined by reference toany adjustment(s) in respectofthe relevantevent
or circumstance in relation to any hedging arrangements in respect of the Securities and (C)
include, without limitation, selecting a successor benchmark(s) and making related adjustments
to the Conditions of the Securities including, where applicable, and unless Unwind Costs is
specified as not applicable, to reflect any increased costs of the Issuer providing such exposure
to the successor benchmark(s) and, in the case of more than one successor benchmark, making
provisionforallocation of exposure as between the successor benchmarks;

(b) in the case of Warrants, cancel the Warrants by giving notice to Holders in accordance with
Condition 10. If the Warrants are so cancelled the Issuer will:

(i) if Highest Value is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, pay to each
Holderan amount in respectofeach Security, or if Units are specified as applicable in
the applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as the case may be, held by such Holder
calculated and paid on such date determined, in accordance with Condition 21.5(a); or

(i) if Market Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms, pay to each Holder an
amount in respect of each Security, or if Units are specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as thecase may be, held by such Holder calculated
and paid on suchdatedetermined, in accordance with Condition 21.5(b); or

(iii) otherwise, pay an amount to each Holder in respect of each Warrant or, if Units are
specified in the applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as the case may be, held by him
which amount shall be equalto the fair market value ofa Warrantora Unit, as the case
may be, taking into account the Additional Disruption Event andfor Optional
Additional Disruption Eventless, exceptif Unwind Costs is specified as notapplicable
in the applicable Final Terms, the cost to the Issuerand/or its Affiliates of unwinding
any underlying related hedging arrangements (unless provided for otherwise in the
applicable Final Terms) plus, if applicable and already paid, the Exercise Price, all as
determined by the Calculation Agent in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner. Payments will be made in such manneras shallbe notified to the Holders in
accordancewith Condition 10;
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(d)

in the case of Certificates,

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

unless Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of Additional Disruption Event and/or
Optional Additional Disruption Event, Highest Value, Market Value or Monetisation
Option are specified in the applicable Final Terms, on giving notice to Holders in
accordance with Condition 10, redeemall but not some only ofthe Certificates, each
Certificate being redeemed by paymentof an amount equal to the fair market value of
a Certificate taking into account the Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional
Additional Disruption Eventless, exceptif Unwind Costs is specified as notapplicable
in the applicable Final Terms, the cost to the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of unwinding
any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Calculation
Agentin good faith and in acommercially reasonable manner, payment being made in
such manneras shall be notified to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10; or

if Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of Additional Disruption Eventand/or Optional
Additional Disruption Event is specified as being applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, the Calculation Agent shall calculate the fair market value of each Certificate,
taking into account the Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional
Disruption Event (the "Calculated Additional Disruption Amount™) as soon as
practicable following the occurrence of the Additional Disruption Event and/or
Optional Additional Disruption Event (the "Calculated Additional Disruption
Amount Determination Date™) and on the Redemption Date shall redeem each
Certificate at an amount calculated by the Calculation Agent equal to (X) the Calculated
Additional Disruption Amountplus interestaccrued fromand including the Calculated
Additional Disruption Amount Determination Date to but excluding the Redemption
Date at a rate equal to Issuer's funding cost at such time or (y) if Principal Protected
Termination Amountis specified as beingapplicable in the applicable Final Terms and
if greater, the Protected Amount (specified in the applicable Final Terms); or

if Highest Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will on giving
notice to Holders in accordance with Condition 10, redeemall but not some only of
the Certificates and pay to each Holder an amount in respect of each Certificate held
by such Holder calculated and paid on such date determined, in accordance with
Condition 29.7(a); or

if Market Value is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will on giving
notice to Holders in accordance with Condition 10, redeemall, but not some only of
the Certificates and pay to each Holder an amount in respect of each Certificate held
by such Holder calculated and paid on such date determined, in accordance with
Condition 29.7(b); or

if Monetisation Option is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will on
giving notice to Holders in accordance with Condition 10, redeemall but not some
only ofthe Certificates and pay toeach Holder an amount in respect of each Certificate
held by such Holder calculated and paid on such date determined, in accordance with
Condition 29.7(c); or

in the case of Index Securities linked to a Custom Index, the Calculation Agent may use
commercially reasonable efforts toselect a successor indexwith a substantially similar formula
forand method of calculation as the Custom Indexwithin twenty (20) Scheduled Custom Index
Business Days of the occurrence of the relevant Additional Disruption Event or Optional
Additional Disruption Event and, upon selection of such successor index (the "Successor
Index"), the Calculation Agent shall promptly notify the Issuerand the Issuer will give notice
to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10 and such indexshall become the Successor
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Indexand deemed tobe a " CustomIndex' for the purposes of the Securities and the Calculation
Agent will make such adjustment, if any, to one or more of the Terms and Conditions and/or
the applicable Final Terms as the Calculation Agent acting in good faith andin a commercially
reasonable manner determines appropriate toaccountfor the substitution. Such substitution and
any relevant adjustment tothe Terms and Conditions and/or theapplicable Final Terms will be
deemed to be effective as of the date selected by the Calculation Agent in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner which may, but need not be the date on which the relevant
Additional Disruption Eventor Optional Additional Disruption Eventoccurred; or

in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, the Calculation Agent may adjust
the Basket of Shares to include a Share selected by it in accordance with the criteria for Share
selection set out below (each a " Substitute Share™) for each Share (each an " Affected Share")
which is affected by the Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption
Event and the Substitute Share will be deemed to be a "Share" and the relevant Issuer of such
shares a "Basket Company" for the purposes of the Securities, and the Calculation Agent will
make such adjustment, ifany, to any oneor more ofany Relevant Assetand/or the Entitlenment
(where the Securities are Physical Delivery Securities) and/or the Exercise Price (in the case of
Warrants) and/or the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of these Terms and Conditions
and/or the applicable Final Terms as the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner determines appropriate, provided that in the event that any
amount payable under the Securities was to be determined by reference to the Initial Price of
the Affected Share, the Initial Price of each Substitute Share will be determined by the
Calculation Agentin accordance with thefollowing formula:

Initial Price = A x (B/C)

where:

"A" is the official closing price of therelevant Substitute Share on the relevant Exchange onthe
Substitution Date;

"B" is the Initial Price of the relevant Affected Share; and

"C" is the official closing price of the relevant Affected Share on therelevant Exchange on the
Substitution Date.

Such substitution and the relevant adjustment to the Basket of Shares will be deemed to be
effective as of the date selected by the Calculation Agent (the "Substitution Date") in good
faith and in a commercially reasonable manner and specified in the notice referred to below
which may, but need not, be the relevant date of the Additional Disruption Event and/or
Optional Additional Disruption Event.

The Weighting of each Substitute Share in the Basket of Shares will be equal to the Weighting
of the relevant Affected Share.

In order to be selected as a Substitute Share, the relevant share must be a share which the
Calculation Agentdetermines, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner:

() is not already included in the Basket of Shares;

(i) the relevant issuer of such share belongs to the same economic sector as the Basket
Company in respectofthe Affected Share; and

(iii) the relevant issuer of such share has a comparable market capitalisation, international
standingand exposure as the Basket Company in respect of the Affected Share.
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If a Failure to Deliverdue to llliquidity occurs:

(A) subject as provided elsewhere in the Conditions, any Relevant Assets which
are not Affected Relevant Assets, will be delivered on the originally
designated Settlement Date (in the case of Warrants) or Redemption Date (in
the case of Certificates) in accordancewith Condition5.1and (in the case of
Warrants) the Calculation Agentshall determine acting in goodfaith andin a
commercially reasonable manner the appropriate pro rata portion of the
Exercise Price to be paid by the relevant Holder in respect of that partial
settlement; and

(B) in respectofany Affected Relevant Assets, in lieu of physical settlementand
notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the Issuer may electin good faith
and in a commercially reasonable mannerto satisfy its obligations in respect
of the relevant Security or in the case of Warrants, if Units are specified in
the applicable Final Terms, Unit, as the case may be, by payment to the
relevant Holder of the Failure to Deliver Settlement Price on the fifth
Business Day following the date that notice of such election is given to the
Holders in accordance with Condition 10. Payment of the Failure to Deliver
Settlement Price will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the
Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

Forthe purposes hereof:

"Failure to Deliver Settlement Price" means, in respect of any relevant Security, or in the case of
Warrants, if Units are specified in the applicable Final Terms, Unit, as the case may be, the fair market
value of such Security or Unit, as the case may be (taking into account the Relevant Assets comprising
the Entitlement which have been duly delivered as provided above), less, unless Unwind Costs are
specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the costto the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of
unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Issuer in good faith
and in a commercially reasonable manner, plus, in the case of Warrants, if applicable and already paid,
the Exercise Price (or, where as provided above some Relevant Assets have been delivered, and a pro
rata portionthereof has been paid, such pro rataportion).

Notwithstanding the foregoing the Calculation Agent will adjust any relevant terms of the Securities as
it determines appropriate to preserve the economic equivalent of the obligations of the Issuer under the
Securities.

Upon the occurrenceofan Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption Event, if
the Calculation Agentdetermines that an adjustment in accordance with the above provisions is necessary
it shall notify the Issuer thereof as soon as practicable and the Issuer shall give notice as soon as
practicable to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10 stating the occurrence of the Additional
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16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

Disruption Eventand/or Optional Additional Disruption Event, as the case may be, giving details thereof
and the action proposedto be takenin relation thereto.

KNOCK-IN EVENT AND KNOCK-OUT EVENT

If "Knock-in Event" is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, then any payment and/or
delivery, as applicable, underthe relevant Securities which is expressed in the Conditions to be subject
to a Knock-in Event, shall be conditional uponthe occurrence of such Knock-in Event.

If "Knock-out Event"is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, then any payment and/or
delivery, as applicable, underthe relevant Securities which is expressed in the Conditions to be subject
to a Knock-out Event, shall be conditional upon the occurrence of such Knock-out Event.

In respect of IndexSecurities, Share Securities, ET1 Securities, Debt Securities and Futures Securities, if
the Knock-in Valuation Time orthe Knock-out Valuation Time specified in the applicable Final Tenrs
is the Valuation Time and if on any Knock-in Determination Day or Knock-out Determination Day (@)
in respect of Securities other than Custom IndexSecurities or Debt Securities, at any time during the one
hour period thatbegins orends at the Valuation Time the relevant Level triggers the Knock-in Level, the
Knock-out Level, the Knock-out High Barrier or the Knock-out Low Barrier, as applicable, a Trading
Disruption, Exchange Disruption or Early Closure occurs or exists, or (b) in respect of Custom Index
Securities or Debt Securities, a Custom Index Disruption eventis occurring, then (i) if Disruption
Consequences are specified as not applicable in theapplicable Final Terms, a Knock-in Event or Knock-
out Event may occur notwithstanding such Trading Disruption, Exchange Disruption, Early Closure or
Custom Index Disruption eventor (i) if Disruption Consequences are specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, the Knock-in Event or the Knock-out Event shall be deemed not to have
occurred; provided that if, by operation of this provision, no Knock-in Determination Day or Knock-out
Determination Day would occur in the Knock-in Determination Period or Knock-out Determination
Period, the Knock-in Period Ending Date or Knock-out Period Ending Date shall be treated as a Valuation
Date and the Calculation Agentshall determine therelevant Levelas at the Knock-in Valuation Time or
Knock-out Valuation Time in accordance with the provisions contained in the definition of "Valuation
Date" forthe purposes of determining the occurrence ofa Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event.

In respectof Commodity Securities or Currency Securities, if the Knock-in Valuation Time or the Knock-
out Valuation Time specified in the applicable Final Terms is the Valuation Time and if any Knockdn
Determination Day or Knock-out Determination Day is a Commodity Disrupted Day or a Disrupted Day,
as applicable, then (i) if Disruption Consequences are specified as not applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, a Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event may occur notwithstanding such day being a Commodity
Disrupted Day ora Disrupted Day, as the case may be or (ii) if Disruption Consequences are specified
as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, such Knock-in Determination Day or Knock-out
Determination Day will be deemed notto be a Knock-in Determination Day or Knock-out Determination
Day for the purposes of determining the occurrence of a Knock-in Event ora Knock-out Event.

In respect of Securities other than Custom IndexSecurities or Debt Securities, if the Knock-in Valuation
Time or the Knock-out Valuation Time specified in the applicable Final Terms is any time or period of
time during the regular trading hours on the relevant Exchange and if on any Knock-in Determination
Day or Knock-out Determination Day and at any time during the one-hour periodthatbegins or ends at
the time on which the relevant Leveltriggers the Knock-in Level, the Knock-out Level, the Knock-out
High Barrier or the Knock-out Low Barrier, as applicable, (a) in the case of Index Securities, Share
Securities, ET1 Securities and Futures Securities, a Trading Disruption, Exchange Disruption or Eary
Closure, (b) in the case of Currency Securities, a Disruption Event or (c) in the case of Commodity
Securities, a Market Disruption Event, in each case occurs or exists, then (i) if Disruption Consequences
are specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, a Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event may
occur notwithstanding such Trading Disruption, Exchange Disruption, Early Closure, Disruption Event
or Market Disruption Event or (ii) if Disruption Consequences are specified as applicable in the
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16.1

applicable Final Terms, the Knock-in Event or the Knock-out Event shall be deemed not to have
occurred, provided that, in the case of Securities other than Commodity Securities or Currency Securities,
if, by operation of this provision, no Knock-in Determination Day or Knock-out Determination Day
would occur in the Knock-in Determination Period or Knock-out Determination Period, the Knock-n
Period Ending Date or Knock-out Period Ending Date shall be treated as a Valuation Date and the
Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant Level as at the Knock-in Valuation Time or Knock-out
Valuation Time in accordancewith the provisions contained in the definition of "Valuation Date" for the
purposes of determining the occurrence of a Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event.

In respect of Debt Securities, if the Knock-in Valuation Time or the Knock-out Valuation Time specified
in the applicable Final Terms is any time or period of time during the regular trading hours on the
exchange onwhich therelevant Debt Instrumentis traded or onany exchange on which options contracts
or futures contracts with respecttosuch Debt Instrument are traded and if on any Knock-in Determination
Day or Knock-out Determination Day and at any time at which the relevant Level triggers the Knock-in
Level or the Knock-out Level, a Market Disruption Event has occurred or is occurring, then (i) if
Disruption Consequences are specified as not applicable in theapplicable Final Terms, a Knock-in Event,
Knock-out Event, the Knock-out High Barrier or the Knock-out Low Barrier, as applicable, may occur
notwithstanding such Market Disruption Event or (ii) if Disruption Consequences are specified as
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Knock-in Event or the Knock-out Event shall be deemed
not to haveoccurred, providedthatif, by operation of this provision, no Knock-in Determination Day or
Knock-out Determination Day would occur in the Knock-in Determination Period or Knock-out
Determination Period, the Knock-in Period Ending Date or Knock-out Period Ending Date shall be
treated asa Valuation Dateand the Calculation Agent shall determine therelevant Level as at the Knock-
in Valuation Time or Knock-out Valuation Time in accordance with the provisions contained in the
definition of "Valuation Date" for the purposes of determining the occurrence ofa " Valuation Date" for
the purposes of determining the occurrence ofa Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event.

Definitions relating to Knock-in BEvent/Knock-out Event

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms:

"Knock-in Determination Day" means (a) each date, (b) each Scheduled Trading Day in the Knock-in
Determination Period, (c) each Scheduled Custom Index Business Day in the Knock-in Determination
Period, (d) each Commodity Business Day in the Knock-in Determination Period or (e) each Business
Day in the Knock-in Determination Period, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Knock-in Determination Period"' means the period which commences on, and includes, the Knock in
Period Beginning Date and ends on, and includes, the Knock-in Period Ending Date;

"Knock-in Bvent" means:
(1) (in respect ofasingle Underlying Reference) that the Levelis; or

(i) (in respect of a Basketof Underlying References) that the amount determined by the Calculation
Agent equal to the sum of the values of each Underlying Reference as the product of (X) the
Level of such Underlying Reference and (y) the relevant Weighting is, or

(i) (in case of a SPS Payout) the applicable Underlying Reference Value or the applicable
Underlying Reference Intraday Value, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, is

(A) "greater than", "greater than or equal to", "less than" or "less than or equal to" the Knock-in Level
or, if applicable, (B) "within" the Knock-in Range Level, in each case as specified in the applicable Final
Terms (X) on a Knock-in Determination Day or (y) in respect of a Knock-in Determination Period,
specified in the applicable Final Terms;
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"Knock-in Lewel" means the other level,amount, number or percentage specified as such or otherwise
determined in the applicable Final Terms, subjectto adjustmentfromtime to time in accordance with the
provisions setforth in the Relevant Adjustment Provisions;

"Knock-in Observation Price Source" means the source specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Knock-inPeriod Beginning Date" means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or,
if the Knock-in Period Beginning Date Day Conventionis specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms and suchdate is nota Scheduled Trading Day (in the case of IndexSecurities (other than Custom
IndexSecurities), Share Securities, ET Securities, Debt Securities or Currency Securities), a Commodity
Business Day (in the case of Commodity Securities), a Custom Index Business Day (in the case of
CustomIndexSecurities) or Business Day (in the case of other Securities), the next following Scheduled
Trading Day, Commodity Business Day, CustomIndexBusiness Day or Business Day, as the case may
be;

"Knock-inPeriod Ending Date" means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or, if
the Knock-in Period Ending Date Day Convention s specified as applicable in the applicable Final Tenrs
and suchdateis nota Scheduled Trading Day (in the case of IndexSecurities (other than Custom Index
Securities), Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Currency Securities), a Commodity
Business Day (in the case of Commodity Securities), a Custom Index Business Day (in the case of
CustomIndexSecurities) or Business Day (in the case of other Securities), the next following Scheduled
Trading Day, Commodity Business Day, Custom IndexBusiness Day or Business Day, as the case may
be;

"Knock-in Range Lewel" means the range of Levels specified as such or otherwise determined in the
applicable Final Terms, subject to adjustment from time to time in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Relevant Adjustment Provisions;

"Knock-in Valuation Time" means the time or period of time on any Knock-in Determination Day
specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or in the event that the applicable Final Terms do not
specify a Knock-in Valuation Time, the Knock-in Valuation Time shall be the Valuation Time;

"Knock-out Corridor Value 1" means the Level specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;
"Knock-out Corridor Value 2" means the Level specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"Knock-out Determination Day" means (a) each date, (b) each Scheduled Trading Day in the Knock-
out Determination Period, (c) each Scheduled Custom Index Business Day in the Knock-out
Determination Period, (d) each Commodity Business Day in the Knock-in Determination Period or (g)
each Business Day in the Knock-out Determination Period as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Knock-out Determination Period" means the period which commences on, and includes, the Knock-
out Period Beginning Date andends on, and includes, the Knock-out Period Ending Date;

"Knock-out Eent” means:
0] if Knock-outCorridor Range is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, that:

0] the Knock-out Corridor Value 1in respect of the Underlying Reference is greater than
orequalto the Knock-out High Barrier specified in the applicable Final Terms; and/or

(i) the Knock-out Corridor Value 2 in respect of the Underlying Reference is less than or
equalto the Knock-out Low Barrier specified in the applicable Final Terms;
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(i) otherwise:
0) (in respect ofasingle Underlying Reference) that the Levelis; or

(i) (in respect of a Basket of Underlying References) that the amount determined by the
Calculation Agent equal to thesumofthe values of each Underlying References as the
productof (X) the Level of such Underlying Reference and (y) the relevant Weighting
is,

(A) "greaterthan”, "greaterthan orequal to”, "less than" or "less than orequalto” the Knock-out Level
or, if applicable, (B) "within" the Knock-out Range Level, in each case, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms (X) on a Knock-out Determination Day or (y) in respect of a Knock-out Determination
Period, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Knock-out High Barrier" means the level, amount, number or percentage (which must be a level,
amount, number or percentage greater than the Knock-out Low Barrier) specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms, subject to adjustment from time to time in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Relevant Adjustment Provisions;

"Knock-out Lewvel" means the level, amount, number or percentage specified as such in the applicable
Final Terms, subject to adjustment fromtime to time in accordance with the provisionsset forth in the
Relevant Adjustment Provisions;

"Knock-out Low Barrier" means the level, amount, number or percentage (which must be a level,
amount, number or percentage less than the Knock-out High Barrier) specified as suchin the applicable
Final Terms, subject to adjustment fromtime to time in accordance with the provisions set forth in the
Relevant Adjustment Provisions;

"Knock-out Observation Price Source” means the source specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Knock-out Period Beginning Date" means the date specified assuchin the applicable Final Terms or,
if the Knock-outPeriod Beginning Date Day Convention is specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms and suchdate is nota Scheduled Trading Day (in the case of IndexSecurities (other than Custom
Index Securities), Share Securities, ET1 Securities or Currency Securities), a Commodity Business Day
(in the case of Commodity Securities), a Custom Index Business Day (in the case of Custom Index
Securities) or BusinessDay (in the case of other Securities), the next following Scheduled Trading Day,
Commodity Business Day, CustomIndexBusiness Day or Business Day, asthe casemay be;

"Knock-out Period Ending Date" means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or, if
the Knock-out Period Ending Date Day Convention is specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms and such date is nota Scheduled Trading Day (in the case of IndexSecurities (other than Custom
IndexSecurities), Share Securities, ET Securities, Debt Securities or Currency Securities), a Commodity
Business Day (in the case of Commodity Securities), a Custom Index Business Day (in the case of
CustomIndexSecurities) or Business Day (in the case of other Securities), the next following Scheduled
Trading Day, Commodity Business Day, CustomIndexBusiness Day or Business Day, as the case may
be;

"Knock-out Range Lewel" means the range of Levels specified as such or otherwise determined in the

applicable Final Terms, subject to adjustment from time to time in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Relevant Adjustment Provisions;
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"Knock-out Valuation Time" means the time or period oftime on any Knock-out Determination Day
specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or in the event that the applicable Final Terms do not
specify a Knock-out Valuation Time, the Knock-out Valuation Time shall be the Valuation Time;

"Lewel" means, forthe purposes of this Condition 16, (i) the "official level”, " official close", "last price",
"bid price” or "asked price" of the Underlying Reference, as specified in the applicable Final Terns,
published by the Knock in Observation Price Source or Knock-out Observation Price Source, as
applicable, or (ii) if "Standard Level” is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms (a) in the
case of Share Securities, ETI Securities and Futures Securities, the price of the relevant Underlying
Reference, (b) in the case of Index Securities and Custom Index Securities, the level of the relevant
Underlying Reference (c) in the case of Commodity Securities, the Relevant Price, or (d) in the case of
Currency Securities, the spot rate of exchange for the exchange of the Subject Currency into the Base
Currency (expressed as the number of units (or part units) of such Subject Currency for which one unit
of the Base Currency can be exchanged), in each case determined by the Calculation Agent as of the
Knock-in Valuation Time or Knock-outValuation Time on any Knock-in Determination Day or Knock-
out Determination Day, as applicable, or, in the case of the "official close" level, at such time as the
official close is published by the Knock-in Observation Price Source or Knock-out Observation Price
Source, as applicable;

"Relevant Adjustment Provisions™ means:

(i) in the case of Index Securities, Index Condition 2 (Market Disruption) and Index Condition 3
(Adjustmentsto an Index);

(i) in the caseof CustomIndexSecurities, IndexCondition 6 (Adjustments toa Custom Indexand
CustomIndexDisruption);

(iii) in the case of Share Securities, Share Condition 2 (Market Disruption), Share Condition 3
(Potential Adjustment Events) and Share Condition4 (Extraordinary Events);

(iv) in the case of ETI Securities, ET1 Condition 2 or ETI Condition 10 (Market Disruption), ETI
Condition 3 or ETI Condition 11 (Potential Adjustment Events) and ETI Condition 4
(Extraordinary ET1 Events) or ET1 Condition 12 (Extraordinary Events);

(v) in the case of Debt Securities, Debt Condition 3 (Market Disruption), Debt Condition 4
(Correction of Debt Instrument Price), Debt Condition 5 (Redemption or Cancellation of a Debt
Instrument) and Debt Condition 9 (Non-Commencement or Discontinuance of an Exchange-
traded Contract);

(vi) in the case of Commodity Securities, Commodity Condition 2 (Market Disruption) and
Commodity Condition 3 (Consequences of a Market Disruption Event and Disruption
Fallbacks);

(vii) in the case of Currency Securities, Currency Condition 2 (Disruption Events) and Currency
Condition 3 (Consequences of a Disruption Event); and

(viii) in the case of Futures Securities, Futures Condition 3 (Adjustments to a Future); and
"Underlying Reference" means, for the purposes of this Condition 16, each Index, CustomIndex, Share,

ETI, Interest, Debt Instruments, Commodity, Commodity Index, Subject Currency, Future or other basis
of reference to which the relevant Securities relate.
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17.

18.

TERMS APPLICABLE TO WARRANTS ONLY

Conditions 18to 23apply to Warrantsonly.

DEFINITIONS (WARRANTS)

"Actual Exercise Date" means the Exercise Date (in the case of European Style Warrants) or, subject to
Condition 21, the dateduring the Exercise Period (in the case of American Style Warrants) on which the
Warrant is actually or is deemed exercised or, if Automatic Exercise is specified in the applicable Final
Terms, is automatically exercised (as more fully set outin Condition 21);

"Aweraging Date" means, in respect of an Actual Exercise Date:

(i

in the case of Index Securities (other than Index Securities relating to a Custom Index (other
than a Component Security Index) or Basket of CustomIndices (eachas defined in Annex2)),
Share Securities, ET1 Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities, each date specified as an
Averaging Date in the applicable Final Terms or, if any such date is not a Scheduled Trading
Day, the immediately following Scheduled Trading Day unless, in the opinion of the Calculation
Agentany suchdayis a Disrupted Day. Ifany suchday is a Disrupted Day, then:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

if "Omission" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, then such date
will be deemed not to be an Averaging Date for the purposes of determining the
relevant Settlement Price provided that, if through the operation of this provision no
Averaging Date would occur in respect of such Actual Exercise Date, then the
provisions of thedefinition of "Valuation Date" willapply for purposes of determining
the relevant level, price, value oramount on the final Averaging Date with respect to
that Actual Exercise Date as if such Averaging Date were a Valuation Date that was a
Disrupted Day; or

if "Postponement" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, then the
provisions of the definition of "Valuation Date" will apply for the purposes of
determining the relevant level, price, value or amount on that Averaging Date as if
such Averaging Date were a Valuation Date that was a Disrupted Day irrespective of
whether, pursuantto such determination, that deferred Averaging Date would fallon a
day that already is or is deemed to be an Averaging Date; or

if "Modified Postponement" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Tenrs
then:

(A) where the Warrants are IndexSecurities relatingto a single Index(other than
a Component Security Index), Share Securities relatingto a single Share, ETI
Securities relating to asingle ET1 Interest, or Futures Securities relatingto a
single Future, the Averaging Date shall be the first succeeding Valid Date (as
defined below). If the first succeeding Valid Date has not occurred for a
number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified
Maximum Days of Disruption immediately following the original date that,
but for the occurrence of another Averaging Date or Disrupted Day, would
have been the final Averaging Date in respect of such Actual Exercise Date,
then (1) that last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall be deerred to
be the Averaging Date (irrespective of whether that last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day is already an Averaging Date), and (Il) the
Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant level, value or price for that
Averaging Date in accordance with subparagraph (a)(i) of the definition of
"Valuation Date" below; and
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(ii)

(B)

©

(D)

where the Warrants are Index Securities relating to a single Component
Security Index, the Calculation Agent shall determine the level of the
Component Security Index for the Averaging Date in accordance with sub-
paragraph (a)(ii) of the definition of "Valuation Date" below and the
Averaging Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the
Calculation Agent determines the relevant level of the Component Security
Index in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (a)(ii) of the
definition of "Valuation Date" below;

where the Warrants are IndexSecurities relating toa Basket of Indices (other
than a Basket of Component Security Indices), Share Securities relatingto a
Basket of Shares, ETI Securities relating to an ETI Basket or Futures
Securities relatingto a Basket of Futures, the Averaging Dateforeach Index
Share, ETI Interest or Future not affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted
Day shall be the originally designated Averaging Date (the "Scheduled
Aweraging Date") and the Averaging Date foreach Index, Share, ETI Interest
or Future affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the first
succeeding Valid Date (as defined below) in relation to such Index, Share,
ETI Interest or Future. If the first succeeding Valid Date in relation to such
Index, Share, ETI Interest or Future has not occurred for a number of
consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days
of Disruption immediately following the original date that, but for the
occurrence of another Averaging Date or Disrupted Day, would have been
the final Averaging Date in respectof such Actual Exercise Date, then (1) that
last suchconsecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall be deemed the Averaging
Date (irrespective of whether that last such consecutive Scheduled Trading
Day is already an Averaging Date) in respect of such Index, Share, ETI
Interest or Future and (1) the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant
level, value, price or amount for that Averaging Date in accordance with
subparagraph (a)(i) of the definition of "Valuation Date" below; or

where the Warrants are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Component
Security Indices, the Averaging Date for each Component Security Indexnot
affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the Scheduled
Averaging Date, and for each Component Security Index affected (an
"Affected Item™) by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, the Calculation
Agent shall determine the level of the Component Security Index in
accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (a)(iv) of the definition of
"Valuation Date" below and the Averaging Date shall be deemed to be the
earliest date on which the Calculation Agent determines the level of the
Component Security Index in accordance with the provisions of sub-
paragraph (a)(iv) of the definition of " Valuation Date" below; or

in the case of Commodity Securities, each date specified as suchin the applicable Final Tenms
or, if any such date is not a Commodity Business Day, the immediately following Commodity
Business Day unless, in the opinionofthe Calculation Agent any suchday is a day on whicha
Market Disruption Event has occurred or is continuing, in which case the provisions of
Commodity Condition 3 (Consequences of a Market Disruption Event and Disruption
Fallbacks)shallapply;

"Cash Settlement Amount™ means, in relation to Cash Settled Warrants, theamount (which may never
be less than zero) to which the Holder is entitled in the Settlement Currency in relation to each such
Warrant or, if Units are specified in the applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as the case may be, equal to
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the Final Payout specified in the applicable Final Terms. The Cash Settlement Amount (ifany) shall be
rounded to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Settlement Currency, half of any such sub-unit being
rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention, providedthat:

0) if Rounding Convention 1 is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Cash
Settlement Amount shall be calculated using a maximum of four decimal places (with 0.00005
being rounded upwards) and shall be rounded to the second decimal place (with 0.005 being
rounded upwards); or

(i) if Rounding Convention 2 is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Cash
Settlement Amount shall not be subject to rounding but Securities of the same Series held by
the same Holder will be aggregated for the purpose of determining the aggregate Cash
Settlement Amountin respect of such Warrants and the aggregate of such Cash Settlement
Amounts will be rounded downtothe nearestwhole sub-unit of the Settlement Currency in such
manner as the Calculation Agent shall determine,

Provided That if the product of the Final Payout is zero, no amount shall be payable in respect of the
relevant Warrant (and such Warrant shall expire worthless);

"Entitlement" means in relationto a Physical Delivery Warrant or, if Units are specified in theapplicable
Final Terms, each Unit, as the case may be, thequantity ofthe Relevant Assetorthe Relevant Assets, as
the case may be, which a Holder is entitled to receive on the Settlement Date in respect of each such
Warrant or Unit, as the case may be, following payment of the Exercise Price (and any other surs
payable) (including BExpenses as defined in Condition 11) rounded down as provided in Condition21.3,
as determined by the Calculation Agent including any documents evidencing such Entitlement which
amount will be the Entitlement Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Exercise Business Day" means:

() in the case of Cash Settled Warrants, a day thatis a Business Day;and
(i) in the case of Physical Delivery Warrants, a day thatis a Business Dayanda Scheduled Trading
Day;

"Expiration Date" means the last day of the Exercise Period;

"Observation Date" means each datespecified as an Observation Date in the applicable Final Terns or
if any such date is not a Scheduled Trading Day (in the case of Index Securities (other than Index
Securities relating to a Custom Index or Basket of Custom Indices), Share Securities, ET1 Securities,
Debt Securities or Futures Securities) or Commodity Business Day (in the case of Commodity
Securities), the immediately following Scheduled Trading Day or Commodity Business Day, as
applicable. The provisions contained in thedefinition of * Averaging Date" shallapply ifany suchday is
a Disrupted Day or, in the case of Commodity Securities, a day on whicha Market Disruption Event has
occurred or is continuing, mutatis mutandis as if references in such provisions to " Averaging Date" were
to "Observation Date" unless Observation Day Disruption Consequences is specified as not applicable
in the applicable Final Terms, in which case such date will be an Observation Date notwithstanding the
occurrence ofa Disrupted Day and (i) in the case of IndexSecurities (other than IndexSecurities relating
to a Custom Indexor Basket of Custom Indices), Share Securities, ET1 Securities, Debt Securities or
Futures Securities, the provisions of (a)(i)(B) or (a)(iii)(B), as applicable, ofthe definition of "Valuation
Date" will apply forthe purposes of determining the relevantlevel, price oramountonsuch Observation
Date as if such Observation Date were a Valuation Date that was a Disrupted Day or (ii) in the case of
Commodity Securities the provisions of Commodity Condition 3 (Consequencesofa Market Disruption
Event and Disruption Fallbacks) will apply;

185



"Observation Period" means the period specified as the Observation Period in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Settlement Date" means:
@ in relation to Cash Settled Warrants:

0) (other than in respect of Commodity Securities) in relation to each Actual BExercise
Date, (A) where Averagingis not specified in the applicable Final Terms, (X) the date
specified in theapplicable Final Terms or, ifnone, (y) thefifth Business Day following
the Valuation Date provided that if the Warrants are Index Securities relating to a
Basket of Indices, Debt Securities relating to a basket of Debt Instruments Share
Securities relating to a Basket of Shares, ET1 Securities relating to an ETI Basket or
Futures Securities relating to a basket of Futures and the occurrence of a Disrupted
Day has resulted in a Valuation Date for one or more Indices, Shares, ETI Interests or
Futures, as the case may be, being adjusted as set out in the definition of "Valuation
Date" below, the Settlement Date shall be the fifth Business Day next following the
last occurring Valuation Date in relation to any Index, Share, ETI Interests, Debt
Instrument or Future, as the case may be, or (B) where Averaging is specified in the
applicable Final Terms, the fifth BusinessDay following the lastoccurring Averaging
Date provided that where the Warrants are Index Securities relating to a Basket of
Indices, Share Securities relating to a Basket of Shares, ETI Securities relating to an
ETI Basket, Debt Securities relating to a basket of Debt Instruments or Futures
Securities relating to a basket of Futures and the occurrence of a Disrupted Day has
resulted in an Averaging Date for one or more Indices, Shares, ETI Interests Debt
Instrumentor Futures, as the case may be, beingadjusted as set outin the definition of
"Averaging Date" above, the Settlement Date shall be the fifth Business Day nex
following the last occurring Averaging Date in relation to any Index, Share, ETI
Interests, Debt Securities Commodity or Commodity Indexor Future, as the case may

be; or
(i) in respect of Commodity Securities, the date as specified in theapplicable Final Tems;
and
(b) in relation to Physical Delivery Warrants, the date specified as such in the applicable Final

Terms;

"Swedish Dematerialised Warrants" means Warrants in registered, uncertificated and dematerialised
book-entry form in accordance with the SFIA Act accepted by Euroclear Sweden for clearing and
registrationin the Euroclear Sweden System;

"Valid Date" means a Scheduled Trading Day that is not a Disrupted Day and on which another
Averaging Date in relation to the Actual Exercise Date or another Observation Date does notor is deemed
notto occur;

"Valuation Date" means:

@ in the caseof IndexSecurities (other than IndexSecurities relating to a Custom Indexor Basket
of CustomIndices), Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities (X
the Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the Actual Exercise Date or (y) the Actual
Exercise Date (or, if such date is nota Scheduled Trading Day thefirst Scheduled Trading Day
following such date) orthe first Scheduled Trading Day following the Actual Exercise Date of
the relevant Warrant, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, unless in either case, in the
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opinion ofthe Calculation Agent, suchday is a Disrupted Day. If such day is a Disrupted Day,

then:

(i

(ii)

where the Warrants are Index Securities relating to a single Index (other than a
Component Security Index), Share Securities relating to a single Share, ET| Securities
relating to asingle ETI Interest, Debt Securities relatingto a single Debt Instrurment or
Futures Securities relating to a single Future, the Valuation Date shall be the first
succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is not a Disrupted Day, unless each of the
number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days
of Disruptionimmediately following the Scheduled Valuation Dateis a Disrupted Day.
In that case, (A) the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shallbe deemred to
be the Valuation Date, notwithstanding the fact that such day is a Disrupted Day, and
(B) the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevantvalue, level or price:

(A) in the caseof IndexSecurities, by determining the level of the Indexas of the
Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day in
accordance with the formula for and method of calculating the Index last in
effect prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day using the Exchange
traded or quoted price as ofthe Valuation Time on the last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day of each security comprised in the Index (or, if an
event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred in respect of the relevant
security on the last such Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith estimate of
the value for the relevant security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day); or

(B) in the case of Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures
Securities, in accordance with its good faith estimate of the relevantvalue or
price as ofthe Valuation Time on the lastsuch consecutive Scheduled Trading
Day; or

where the Warrants are IndexSecurities relating toa single Component Security Index
the Calculation Agent shall determine therelevant level for such Component Security
Indexusing theformula forand method of calculating such Component Security Index
last in effect priorto the occurrence of thefirst Disrupted Day using:

(A) in respect of each Component Security not affected by a Market Disruption
Event on the Scheduled Valuation Date, the exchange traded or quoted price
of such Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the Scheduled
Valuation Date; and

(B) in respect of each Component Security affected (each, an "Affected
Component Security") by a Market Disruption Event on the Scheduled
Valuation Date, the exchange traded or quoted price for each Affected
Component Security on thefirst succeeding Scheduled Trading Day onwhich
no Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respect to the
Affected Component Security, unless each of the number of consecutive
Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption
immediately following the Scheduled Valuation Date is a day on which a
Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respectto the Affected
Component Security, in which case, the Calculation Agent shall determine
the value,amount, level or price of such Affected Component Security using
its good faith estimate of the value, amount, level or price of the relevant
Affected Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day;and
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(iii)

(iv)

the Valuation Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation
Agent determines the level of the Component Security Index in accordance with the
above provisions; or

where the Warrants are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Indices (other than a
Basket of Component Security Indices), Share Securities relating to a Basket of Shares,
ETI Securities relating to a Basket comprised of ETI Interests or a Basket of ETI
Interests, as the case may be, Debt Securities relating to a Basket of Debt Instruments
or Futures Securities relating toa Basket of Futures, the Valuation Date for each Index
Share, ETI Interest, Debt Instrumentor Future, as the case may be, notaffected by the
occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the Scheduled Valuation Date, and the
Valuation Date for each Index, Share, ETI Interest, Debt Instrument, or Future
affected, as the case may be (each an "Affected Item™), by the occurrence of a
Disrupted Day shall be the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is not a
Disrupted Day relating to the Affected Itemunless each of the number of consecutive
Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption
immediately following the Scheduled Valuation Date is a Disrupted Day relating to
the Affected Item. In that case, (A) the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day
shall be deemed to be the Valuation Date for the Affected Item, notwithstanding the
fact that such day is a Disrupted Day, and (B) the Calculation Agent shall determine
the relevantvalue, level or price using, in relation to the Affected Item, the level, value
or price as applicable, determined using:

(A) in the case ofan Index the level of that Indexas ofthe Valuation Time on the
last suchconsecutive Scheduled Trading Day in accordance with the fornmula
for and method of calculatingthat Indexlast in effect priorto the occurrence
ofthe first Disrupted Day usingthe Exchangetraded or quoted price as of the
Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day of each
security comprised in that Index(or, if an eventgivingriseto a Disrupted Day
has occurred in respect of the relevant security on the last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith estimate of the value for the relevant
security as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled
Trading Day); or

(B) in the case ofa Share, ETI Interest, Debt Instrument or Future its good faith
estimate of the value for the Affected Itemas of the Valuation Time on the
last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day; and

where the Warrants are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Component Security
Indices, the Valuation Date for each Component Security Indexnot affected by the
occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the Scheduled Valuation Date, and for each
Component Security Index affected (an "Affected Item™) by the occurrence of a
Disrupted Day, the Calculation Agent shall determine the level of that Component
Security Index using the formula for and method of calculating that Component
Security Indexlast in effect priorto the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day, using:

(A) in respect of each Component Security not affected by a Market Disruption
Event on the Scheduled Valuation Date, the exchange traded or quoted price
of such Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the Scheduled
Valuation Date; and

(B) in respect of each Component Security affected (each, an "Affected
Component Security") by a Market Disruption Event on the Scheduled
Valuation Date, the exchange traded or quoted price for each Affected
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Component Security on thefirst succeeding Scheduled Trading Day onwhich
no Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respect to the
Affected Component Security, unless each of the number of consecutive
Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption
immediately following the Scheduled Valuation Date is a day on which a
Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respectto the Affected
Component Security, in which case, the Calculation Agent shall determine
the value,amount, level or price of such Affected Component Security using
its good faith estimate of the value, amount, level or price of the relevant
Affected Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day;and

the Valuation Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation
Agent determines the level of the Component Security Index in accordance with the
above provisions; or

(b) in the case of Commodity Securities, the Final Pricing Date,

and otherwise in accordance with the above provisions; and
"Valuation Time" means:
@ the Valuation Time specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

(b) if not set out in the applicable Final Terms, in the case of Index Securities relating to a
Composite Index, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, (i) for the pumposes
of determining whether a Market Disruption Event has occurred (A) in respect of any
Component Security, the Scheduled Closing Time on the Exchange in respect of such
Component Security, and (B) in respect of any options contracts or futures contracts on such
Index, the close oftrading on the Related Exchange; and (ii) in all other circumstances, thetime
at which the official closing level of such Index s calculated and published by the Index
Sponsor; or

(c) if not set out in the applicable Final Terms, in the case of Index Securities relating to Indices
otherthan Composite Indices, Share Securities or ET1 Securities, unless otherwise specified in
the applicable Final Terms, the Scheduled Closing Time on the relevant Exchange on the
relevant Strike Date, Valuation Date, Observation Date or Averaging Date, as the case may be,
in relation to each Indexor Share or ETI Interest to be valued, provided that if the relevant
Exchange closes priorto its Scheduled Closing Time and the specified Valuation Time is after
the actual closing time for its regular trading session, then the Valuation Time shall be such
actualclosingtime.

FORM OF WARRANTS

Warrants are issued in dematerialised bearer form(au porteur). No physical documentoftitle (including
certificats représentatifs pursuantto Article R.211-7 of the French Code Monétaireet Financier) will be
issuedin respectof Warrants. Title ofthe Warrants will pass upon registration in the books of Euroclear
France, Euroclear Netherlands or Iberclear, as the case may be.

Unless this possibility is expressly excluded in the applicable Final Terms and tothe extent permitted by
applicable French law, the Issuer may at any time request from the central depositary identification
information of Holders of Warrants in dematerialised bearer form (au porteur) such as the name or the
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company name, nationality, date of birth or year of incorporation and mail address or, as the case may
be, email address of such Holders*.

Swedish Dematerialised Warrants will be issued in registered, uncertificated and dematerialised book-
entry form in accordance with the Swedish Central Securities Depositaries and Financial Instruments
Accounts Act (Sw. Lag (1998:1479) om vardepapperscentraler och kontoféring av finansiella
instrument) (the "SFIA Act"). Swedish Dematerialised Warrants will not be issued in definitive form.

TYPE (WARRANTS)

The applicable Final Terms will indicate whether the Warrants are American style Warrants (" American
Style Warrants") or European style Warrants ("European Style Warrants"), in the case of Cash Settled
Warrants whether automatic exercise ("Automatic Exercise™) applies to the Warrants, whether
settlementshall be by way of cash payment (" Cash SettledWarrants™) or physical delivery ("Physical
Delivery Warrants"), whether the Warrants are call Warrants (" Call Warrants") or put Warrants ("Put
Warrants"), whether the Warrants may only be exercised in units ("Units") and whether Averaging
("Aweraging™) will apply to the Warrants. If Units are specified in the applicable Final Terms, Warrants
must be exercised in Unitsandany Exercise Noticewhich purports to exercise Warrants in breach of this
provisionshallbe void and of no effect.

If the Warrants are Swedish Dematerialised Warrants, they will be European Style Warrants and Cash
Settlement and Automatic Exercise will apply.

EXERCISE RIGHTS (WARRANTS)

Exercise of Warrants

(@) American Style Warrants
American Style Warrants are exercisable on any Exercise Business Day duringthe Exercise Period.

The following provisions apply to Warrants held through Euroclear France ("Euroclear France
Warrants"), Warrants held through Euroclear Netherlands ("Euroclear Netherlands Warrants"),
Warrants held through Iberclear (" Iberclear Warrants™) or Warrants held through Clearstream Banking
Frankfurt ("Clearstream Frankfurt Warrants"):

If (i) the Warrantsare Cash Settled Warrants and Automatic Exercise is not specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms or (ii) if the Warrants are Physical Delivery Warrants, any American Style
Warrant with respect to which no Exercise Notice (as defined below) has been delivered in the manner
set out in Condition 22, at or prior to 10.00 a.m., Luxembourg or Brussels time, as appropriate, on the
Bxpiration Date, shallbecome void.

If the Warrants are Cash Settled Warrants and Automatic Exercise is specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms, any such American Style Warrant shall be automatically exercised on the
BExpiration Date and the provisions of Condition22.6 shallapply.

The BExercise Business Day duringthe Exercise Period on whichan Exercise Notice is delivered prior to
10.00 a.m. (Local Time) to the relevant Clearing Systemorto therelevant Account Holder, and the copy
thereof is received by the Principal Security Agent or, if the Warrants are Cash Settled Warrants and
Automatic BExercise is specifiedas applying in theapplicable Final Terms, the Expiration Date, is referred
to herein as the "Actual Exercise Date". If any Exercise Notice is received by the relevant Clearing

39

The possibility for the Issuer of requesting from the central depositary identification information of Holders of Warrants in
dematerialised bearer form (au porteur) such as the name or company name, nationality, date of birth or year of incorporation
and mail address or, as the case may be, email address of such Holders is provided by the Ordonnance n°2014-863 du 31 juillet
2014 relative au droit des sociétés prise en application de I’article 3 de la loi n° 2014-1 du 2 janvier 2014 habilitant le
Gouvernement a simplifier et sécuriser la vie des entreprises. This Ordonnance was adopted on 2 August 2014.
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Systemor, as the case may be, the relevant Account Holder, or if the copy thereof is received by the
Principal Security Agent, in each case, after 10.00 a.m. (Local Time) on any Exercise Business Day
during the Exercise Period, such Exercise Notice will be deemed to have been delivered on the nex
Exercise Business Day, which Exercise Business Day shall be deemed to be the Actual Exercise Date,
providedthatany such Warrant in respect of which no Exercise Notice has beendeliveredin the manner
setout in Condition 22 at or prior to 10.00 a.m. (Local Time) on the Expiration Date shall (A) (1) if the
Warrants are Cash Settled Warrants and Automatic Exercise is notspecified as applyingin theapplicable
Final Terms or (Il) if the Warrants are Physical Delivery Warrants, become void or (B) if the Warrants
are Cash Settled Warrants and Automatic Exercise is specified as applying in theapplicable Final Tens,
be automatically exercised on the Expiration Date as providedabove.

(b) European Style Warrants
European Style Warrants are only exercisable onthe Exercise Date.

The following provisions apply to Euroclear France Warrants, Euroclear Netherlands Warrants, Iberclear
Warrants or ClearstreamFrankfurt Warrants:

If (i) the Warrantsare Cash Settled Warrants and Automatic Exercise is not specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms or (ii) the Warrants are Physical Delivery Warrants, any European Style Warrant
with respect to whichno Exercise Notice has been delivered in the mannerset out in Condition 22, at or
priorto 10.00 a.m. (Local Time) on the Actual Exercise Date, shallbecome void.

If the Warrants are Cash Settled Warrants and Automatic Exercise is specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms, any such European Style Warrant shall be automatically exercised onthe Actual
BExercise Date and the provisions of Condition 22.6 shall apply.

(©) Swedish Dematerialised Warrants

If the Warrants are Swedish Dematerialised Warrants, the Warrants will be automatically exercised on
the BExercise Date.

Cash Settlement

If the Warrants are Cash Settled Warrants, each such Warrant or, if Units are specified in the applicable
Final Terms, each Unit entitles its Holder, upondue exercise and subject, to receive from the Issuer on
the Settlement Date the Cash Settlement Amount

If the Cash Settlement Amount is not anamount in the Settlement Currency, it will be converted into the
Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms for the purposes of
determining the Cash Settlement Amount. If Aggregation is specified as applicable in the applicable
Final Terms Warrants exercised at the same time by the same Holder will be aggregated for the purpose
of determining the aggregate Cash Settlement Amounts payable in respect of suchWarrants or Units, as
the case may be.

Physical Settlement

If the Warrants are Physical Delivery Warrants, each such Warrant or, if Units are specified in the
applicable Final Terms, each Unit, as the case may be, entitles its Holder, upon due exercise and subject,
to receive from the Issuer on the Settlement Date the Entitlement subject to payment of the relevant
Exercise Price and any other sums payable. The method of delivery of the Entitlement is set out in the
applicable Final Terms.

If Aggregation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, Warrants or Units, as the case
may be, exercised at the same time by the same Holder will be aggregated for the purpose of determining
the aggregate Entitlements in respect of such Warrants or Units, as the case may be, provided that the
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aggregate Entitlements in respect ofthe same Holderwill be rounded downto the nearest whole unit of
the Relevant Assetoreach ofthe Relevant Assets, as the case may be, in such manneras the Calculation
Agent shall determine. Fractions of the Relevant Asset or of each of the Relevant Assets, as the case may
be,and a cash adjustmentwill be made in respectthereof,

Following exercise of a Share Security which is a Physical Delivery Warrant, all dividends on the
relevant Sharesto be delivered will be payable to the party that would receive such dividend according
to market practice for a sale of the Shares executed on the relevant Actual Bxercise Date and to be
delivered in the same manneras suchrelevant Shares. Any suchdividends to be paid to a Holder will be
paid to the account specified by the Holder in the relevant Exercise Noticeas referred toin Condition 22.

Commodity Securities shallnot be Physical Delivery Warrants.

General

In relation to any Cash Settled Warrants where Automatic Exercise is specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms, the expressions "exercise", "due exercise" and related expressions shall be
construed to apply to any such Cash Settled Warrants which are automatically exercised in accordance
with the above provisions.

All references in this Condition to " Luxembourg or Brussels time" shall, where Warrants are cleared
throughan additional or alternative clearing system, be deemed to refer as appropriateto the time in the
city where the relevantclearing systemis located.

Payments on cancellation of Warrants

@) Highest Value

If "Highest Value" is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the greater of the
fair market value or, as the case may be, Settled Amount, of a Security or Unit, as the case may
be, (notwithstanding any illegality (if applicable) and taking into accountany Index Adjustment
Event, Custom Index Adjustment Event, Non-Commencement or Discontinuance of an
Exchange-traded Contract, Extraordinary Event, Commodity IndexAdjustment Event, Market
Disruption Event, Index Cancellation, or Futures Adjustment Event, as the case may be) and
the Protected Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms or, as the case may be,
proportionate share of such Protected Amount, provided that, (X) no costs shall be deducted
from such amount and (y) suchamount shallinclude the reimbursement by the Issuer, pro rata
(calculated fromthedate of cancellation or, as the case may be, partial cancellation date, notified
to the Holders until the Exercise Date or the Expiration Date, as the case may be, of the
Securities), ofany costs or, as the case may be, proportionate share of such costs (including but
not limited to any structuring costs) paid by Holders to the Issuer in the Issue Price of the
Securities, suchamount to be paid to the Holders on the date notified to the Holders in the notice
of cancellationor, as the case may be, notice of partial cancellation.

(b) Market Value

If "Market Value" is specified as applicable in theapplicable Final Terms, the fair market value
or, as the case may be, Settled Amount, of a Security or Unit, as the case may be,
(notwithstanding the illegality (if applicable) and taking into account any Index Adjustment
Event, Custom Index Adjustment Event, Non-Commencement or Discontinuance of an
Exchange-traded Contract, Extraordinary Event, Commodity Index Adjustment Event, Market
Disruption Event, IndexCancellation, or Futures Adjustment Event, as applicable), calculated
(¥ without taking account of any costs and no costs shall be deducted from such amount and
(y)including the reimbursement by the Issuer, pro rata (calculated fromthe date of cancellation
or, as the case may be, partial cancellation date, notified to the Holders until the Exercise Date
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or the Expiration Date, as the case may be, of the Securities), ofany costs or, as the casemay
be, proportionate share of such costs (including but not limited to any structuring costs) paid by
Holders to the Issuer in the Issue Price of the Securities, suchanamounttobe paidtothe Holders
on the date notified in the notice of cancellation or, as the case may be, notice of partial
redemption.

EXERCISE PROCEDURE (WARRANTS)

Exercise Notice in respectof Warrants

Subject as provided in Condition 22.6, Warrants may only be exercised by the delivery, orthe sending
by fax, of a duly completed exercise notice (an "Exercise Notice") in the formset out in the Agency
Agreement, asamended or supplemented fromtime to time, (copies of which formmay be obtained from
the relevant Clearing Systemorthe relevant AccountHolder (in the case of Euroclear France Wanants,
Euroclear Netherlands Warrants, Iberclear Warrants or Clearstream Frankfurt Warrants) and the relevant
Security Agents during normal office hours) to the relevant Clearing Systemor, as the case may be, the
relevant Account Holder, with a copy to the Principal Security Agent in accordance with the provisions
setout in Condition 21and this Condition.

@ In the case of Cash Settled Warrants, the Exercise Notice shall:

0) specify the Series number of the Warrants and the number of Warrants being exercised
and, if Units are specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of Units being
exercised;

(i) specify the number of the Holder's securities account at the relevant Account Holder

to be debited with the Warrants;

(iii) irrevocably instruct the relevant Account Holder to debit on or before the Settlement
Date the Holder's securities account with the Warrants being exercised;

(iv) specify the number of the Holder's account at the relevant Account Holder to be
credited with the Cash Settlement Amount (if any) for each Warrant or Unit, as the
case may be, being exercised;

v) include an undertaking to pay all Security Expenses, and an authority to the relevant
Account Holder to deduct an amount in respect thereof from any Cash Settlement
Amount due to such Holder and/or to debit a specified account of the Holder at the
relevant Clearing Systemor as the case may be, the relevant Account Holder; and

(vi) authorise the production of such certification in any applicable administrative or legal
proceedings,

all as provided in the Agency Agreement (asamended or supplemented fromtime to time).

(b) In the case of Physical Delivery Warrants, the Exercise Notice shall:

(i) specify theseries number of the Warrants and the number of Warrants being exercised
and, if Units are specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of Units being
exercised;

(i) specify the number of the Holder's securities account at the relevant Account Holder

to be debited with the Warrants being exercised;
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©)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

irrevocably instruct the relevant Account Holder to debit on or before the Settlenent
Date the Holder's securities accountwith the Warrants being exercised or Units, as the
case may be, being exercised;

irrevocably instruct the relevant Account Holder to debit on the Actual Exercise Date
a specified account of the Holder with such Account Holder with the aggregate
BExercise Prices in respectofsuch Warrants or Units, as the case may be (together with
any otheramounts payable);

include an undertaking to pay all Security Expenses and an authority to the relevant
Account Holder to debit a specified account of the Holder at the relevant Account
Holderin respectthereofand to pay such Security Expenses;

include such details as are required by the applicable Final Terms for delivery of the
Entitlement which may include account details and/or the name and address of any
person(s) into whose name evidence of the Entitlement is to be registered and/or any
bank, broker or agent to whom documents evidencing the Entitlement are to be
delivered and specify the name and the number of the Holder's account with the
relevant Account Holderto be credited with any cash payable by the Issuer, eitherin
respect of any cash amount constituting the Entitlement or any dividends relating to
the Entitlement or as a result ofthe occurrence ofa Settlement Disruption Eventora
Failure to Deliverdue to llliquidity and the Issuer electing to pay the Disruption Cash
Settlement Price or Failure to Deliver Cash Settlement Price, as applicable, or as a
result ofthe Issuerelectingto pay the Alternate Cash Amount;

in the case of Currency Securities only, specify the number of the Holder's account at
the relevant Account Holderto be credited with the amount due uponexercise of the
Warrants or Units, as the casemay be; and

authorise the production of such certification in any applicable administrative or legal
proceedings,

all as provided in the Agency Agreement (as amended or supplemented fromtime to time).

If Condition 5.3(b) applies, the formof Exercise Notice requiredto be delivered will be different
from that set out above. Copies of such Exercise Notice may be obtained fromthe relevant
AccountHolderandthe Security Agents during normal office hours.

If Condition 5.3(b) applies, Holders will be required to deliver an Exercise Notice specifying
appropriate informationrelating to the settlementof Cash Settled Warrants.

Verification of the Holder

Upon receipt ofan BExercise Notice, the relevant Account Holder shall verify that the person exercising
the Warrants is the holder thereof according to the accounts of the relevant Account Holders. Subject
thereto, the relevant Clearing Systemor, as the case may be, the relevant Account Holderwill confim
to the Principal Security Agent the series number and the number of Warrants being exercised and the
account details, ifapplicable, for the payment of the Cash Settlement Amountor, as the case may be, the
details forthe delivery ofthe Entitlement of each Warrant or Unit, as the case may be, being exercised.
Upon receipt of such confirmation, the Principal Security Agent will inform the Issuer thereof. The
relevant AccountHolder will on or before the Settlement Date debit the securities accountof the relevant
Holder with the Warrants beingexercised.
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Settlement

@ Cash Settled Warrants

If the Warrants other than Swedish Dematerialised Warrants are Cash Settled Warrants, the
Issuershall on the Settlement Date pay or cause to be paid the Cash Settlement Amount (if any)
for each duly exercised Warrant or Unit, as the case may be, to the Holder's account specified
in the relevant Exercise Notice for value on the Settlement Date less any Security Expenses.

If the Warrants are Swedish Dematerialised Warrants, payment of the Cash Settlement Amount
(if any) will be made to the persons registered as Holders in the register maintained by Euroclear
Sweden on the fourth Business Day immediately prior to the Settlement Date (the "Swedsh
Record Date"). The Security Agent will on the Settlement Date pay the Cash Settlenent
Amount through Euroclear Sweden toeach Holder appearing in the Euroclear Sweden Register
on the Swedish Record Date.

(b) Physical Delivery Warrants

Subject to paymentoftheaggregate Exercise Prices and payment of any Security Expenses with
regard to the relevant Warrants or Units, as the case may be, the Issuer shall on the Settlenent
Date deliver, or procurethedelivery of, the Entitlementfor each duly exercised Warrantor Untt,
as the casemay be, pursuant tothe details specified in the Exercise Notice. Subjectas provided
in Condition 21.3, the Entitlement shall be delivered and evidenced in such manner as set out
in the applicable Final Terms.

Determinations

Any determination as to whetheran Exercise Notice is duly completed andin proper formshall be made
by the relevant Account Holder. Subject as set out below, any Exercise Notice so determined to be
incomplete ornot in proper form, orwhich is not copied tothe Principal Security Agent or the Issuer, as
the case may be, immediately after being delivered or sentto the relevant AccountHolder as provided in
Condition 22.1 above shall be null and void. In the absence of negligence or wilful misconduct on its
part, none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) shall be liable to any person with respect to any
action taken or omitted to betakenby it in connectionwith such determination or the notification of such
determination toa Holder.

If such Exercise Notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction ofthe relevant Account Holder, in
consultationwith the Principal Security Agent, it shallbe deemed to be a new Exercise Notice submitted
atthe time such correctionwas deliveredto the relevant Account Holder and the Principal Security Agent
or the Issuer, as the case may be.

If (i) the Warrants are Cash Settled Warrants and Automatic Exercise is not specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms or (ii) the Warrants are Physical Delivery Warrants, any Warrant with respectto
which the Bxercise Notice has notbeen duly completed and delivered in the manner setout above by the
cut-offtime specified in Condition21.1(a), in the case of American Style Warrants, or Condition 21.1(b),
in the case of European Style Warrants, shallbecome void.

The relevant Account Holder shall use its best efforts promptly to notify the Holder submitting an
Exercise Notice if, in consultation with the Principal Security Agentorthe Issuer, as the case may be, it
has determined that such Exercise Notice is incomplete or not in proper form. In the absence of
negligenceorwilfulmisconducton its part, none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (ifapplicable), the Security
Agents, the relevant Account Holder shall be liable to any person with respect to any action taken or
omitted to be taken by it in connection with such determination or the natification of such determination
toa Holder.
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Deliveryof an Exercise Notice

Delivery ofan Exercise Notice shall constitute an irrevocable election by the relevantHolder to exercise
the Warrants specified. After the delivery of such Exercise Notice, such exercising Holder may not
transfer suchWarrants.

Automatic Exercise

@ This Condition only applies if the Warrants are Cash Settled Warrants which are not Swedish
Dematerialised Warrants for which Automatic Exercise is specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms and Warrants are automatically exercised as provided in Condition
21.1(a) or Condition 21.1(b).

(0) No Exercise Notice is required to be submitted orany otheraction required to be taken by any
relevant Holder of a Warrant in ordertoreceivethe Cash Settlement Amount in respect of such
Warrant, or if Units are specified in the applicable Final Terms, a Unit, as the case may be. The
Issuer shall transfer or cause to be transferred to each Clearing System through which such
Warrantsare held an amountequal to the aggregate of the Cash Settlement Amounts in respect
ofthe Warrants held in eachsuch Clearing Systemand each such Clearing Systemshall, subject
to having received such aggregate Cash Settlement Amount, on the Settlement Date credit the
account ofeach Holder of such Warrant(s) in its books with an amount equal to the aggregate
Cash Settlement Amount relating to the Warrant(s) held by such Holder and on or before the
Settlement Date debit such account with the number of Warrants exercised and in respect of
which such Cash Settlement Amount is being paid. Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor (if
applicable) shall have any responsibility for the crediting by the relevant Clearing System of
any suchamountsto any such accounts.

Exercise Risk

BExercise of the Warrants is subjectto all applicable laws, regulations and practices in force on the
relevant Exercise Date and noneofthe Issuer, the Guarantor (ifapplicable) or the Security Agents shall
incur any liability whatsoever if it is unable to effect the transactions contemplated, after using all
reasonable efforts, as a result of any such laws, regulations or practices. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor
(if applicable), or the Agents shall, to the extent permitted by applicable law, under any circumstances
be liable for any acts or defaults of the relevant Clearing System or, as the case may be, the relevant
AccountHolderin relation to the performance of its duties in relation to the Warrants.

Automatic Early Expiration

@) If " Automatic Early Expiration” is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, then
unless previously exercised or cancelled, if on (i) any Automatic Early Expiration Valuation
Date (the "Relevant Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Date") or (i) in respect of an
Automatic Early BExpiration Valuation Period, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, an
Automatic Early Expiration Event occurs, thenthe Warrants will be automatically cancelled in
whole, but notin part, ontherelevant Automatic Early Expiration Date and the amount (ifany)
payable on the Automatic Early Expiration Settlement Date by the Issuer upon cancellation
shallbe equalto the relevant Automatic Early Expiration Payout Amount.

(o) Definitions relating to Automatic Early Expiration

"AER Knock-out" means the occurrence (such date of occurrence the AER Knock-out Date) of a
Knock-out Event and/ora Knock-in Eventas specified in the applicable Final Terms;
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"Automatic Early Expiration Date" means the Relevant Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Date
or if such date is not a Business Day, the next following Business Day, and no Holder shall be entitled
to any interest or further payment in respectof such delay;

"Automatic Early Expiration Event" means (i) if AER Knock-outis specified as applicable, an AER
Knock-out occurs or (ii) if AER Knock-out is specified as not applicable (X) in the case of a single
Underlying Reference, the Underlying Reference Level or (y) in the case of a Basket of Underlying
References, the Basket Price is in each case, (A) "greaterthan”, (B) "greaterthanorequalto”, (C) "less
than" or (D) "less than orequalto" the Automatic Early Expiration Level as specified in the applicable
Final Terms;

"Automatic Early Expiration Lewvel” means the level,amount, number or percentage specified as such
in the applicable Final Terms, subject toadjustmentfromtime to time in accordance with the provisions
set forth in the Relevant Adjustment Provisions, as applicable;

"Automatic Early Expiration Payout Amount” means an amount in the Settlement Currency equal to
the Automatic Early Redemption Payout set out in the applicable Final Terms, provided that if the
productofthe Automatic Early Redemption Payout is zero, no amount shall be payable on cancellation
of the Warrant pursuantto this Conditionand such Warrant shall expire worthless;

"Automatic Early Expiration Settlement Date" means the datespecified as suchin theapplicable Final
Terms;

"Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Time" means the time specified as suchin theapplicable Final
Terms;

"Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Date" means (i) the AER Knock-out Date or (i) each date
specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or, if such date is not a Scheduled Trading Day (in the
case of Index Securities (otherthan CustomIndexSecurities), Share Securities, Debt Securities or ETI
Securities, a Custom Index Business Day (in the case of Custom Index Securities), a Commodity
Business Day (in the case of Commodity Securities), Business Day (in the case of other Securities), as
applicable, the next following Scheduled Trading Day, Custom Index Business Day, Commodity
Business Day or Business Day, as applicable, unless in the case of Index Securities, Share Securities,
Debt Securities, ET1 Securities or Commodity Securities, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, any
such day is a Disrupted Day (in respect of IndexSecurities (other than Custom IndexSecurities), Share
Securities, Debt Securities or ET1 Securities), a Custom IndexDisruption event is occurringon such day
(in respect of CustomIndexSecurities) ora Market Disruption Event is occurringonsuch day (in respect
of Commodity Securities). Ifany suchday is a Disrupted Day, a day on which a Custom IndexDisruption
eventis occurringor (except in the case of Commodity Securities) a day on which a Market Disruption
Event is occurring, as applicable, then the corresponding provisions in the definition of " Valuation Date™
shallapply mutatis mutandis as if references in such provisions to ""Valuation Date" were to " Automatic
Early BExpiration Valuation Date" or (in the case of Commodity Securities) if any such day is a day on
which a Market Disruption Event is occurring, thenthe provisions of "Pricing Date" shall apply mutatis
mutandis as if references in such provision to "Pricing Date™ were to "Automatic Early Expiration
Valuation Date";

"Basket of Underlying References™ means, for the purposes of this Condition 22.8, the Basket of
Indices, Basket of Shares, ET1 Basket, Basket of Debt Instruments, Basket of Commodities, Basket of
Commodity Indices, Basket of Futures or other basis of reference to which the value of the relevant
Securities may relate, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Basket Price" means, in respect of any Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Date, an amount
determined by the Calculation Agent equal to the sum of the values for each Underlying Reference as
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the product of (a) the Underlying Reference Level of such Underlying Reference on such Automatic
Early Expiration Valuation Date and (b) the relevant Weighting;

"Observation Price Source" meansthe sourcespecified as suchin the applicable Final Terms;
"Relevant Adjustment Provisions" means:

0) in the case of Index Securities, Index Condition 2 (Market Disruption) and Index Condition 3
(Adjustmentsto an Index);

(i) in the caseof CustomIndexSecurities, IndexCondition 6 (Adjustments toa Custom Indexand
CustomIndexDisruption);

(iii) in the case of Share Securities, Share Condition 2 (Market Disruption), Share Condition 3
(Potential Adjustment Events) and Share Condition 4 (Extraordinary Events);

(iv) in the case of ETI Securities, ETI Condition 2 (Market Disruption) and ETI Condition 3
(Potential Adjustment Events);

V) in the case of Debt Securities, Debt Condition 3 (Market Disruption), Debt Condition 4
(Correction of Debt Instrument Price), Debt Condition 5 (Redemption or Cancellation of a Debt
Instrument) and Debt Condition 9 (Non-Commencement or Discontinuance of an Exchange-
traded Contract);

(vi) in the case of Commodity Securities, Commodity Condition 2 (Market Disruption), Commodity
Condition 3 (Consequences of a Market Disruption Event and Disruption Fallbacks) and
Commodity Condition 4 (Adjustments to a Commodity Index);

(vii) in the case of Currency Securities, Currency Condition 3 (Consequences of a Disruption Event);
and

(viii)  in the case of Futures Securities, Futures Condition 3 (Adjustments to a Future);

"Underlying Reference™ means, for the purposes of this Condition 22.8 each Index, Custom Index
Share, ETI Interest, Debt Instrument, Commodity, Commodity Index, Subject Currency, Future, or other
basis of referenceto which therelevant Securities relate; and

"Underlying Reference Lewel" means, in respect of any Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Date, (i)
"official level", "official close", "last price", "bid price", or "asked price" of the Underlying Reference,
as specified in the applicable Final Terms published by the Observation Price Source or (ii) if Standard
Underlying Reference Level is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms (a) in the case of
Share Securities, ET1 Securities and Futures Securities the price of the relevant Underlying Reference,
(b) in the case of Index Securities and Custom Index Securities, the level of the relevant Underlying
Reference, (c) in the case of Commodity Securities, the Relevant Price, or (d) in the case of Currency
Securities, the spot rate of exchange for the exchange of the Subject Currency into the Base Currency
(expressedas the number of units (or part units) of such Subject Currency forwhich oneunit of the Base
Currency can be exchanged), in each case, as determined by the Calculation Agent as of the Automatic
Early Expiration Valuation Time on such Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Date or, in the case of
the "official close" level, at suchtime on such Automatic Early Expiration Valuation Dateas the " official
close" levelis published by the Observation Price Source.
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23.

231

232

24,

25.

AER Rate Determination

Where theapplicable Final Terms specify thatthe AER Rate is determined by referenceto a Screen Rate,
the provisions of Condition 29.6 will apply.

MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM NUMBER OF WARRANTS EXERCISABLE

American Style Warrants
This Condition23.1applies only to American Style Warrants.

@ The number of Warrants exercisable by any Holder on any Actual Exercise Date or, in the case
of Automatic Exercise, the number of Warrants held by any Holder on any Actual Exercise
Date, in each case as determined by the Issuer, must not be less than the Minimum Exercise
Number specified in the applicable Final Terms and, if specified in the applicable Final Terms,
if a number greater than the Minimum Exercise Number, must be an integral multiple of the
number specified in the applicable Final Terms. Any Exercise Noticewhich purports to exercise
Warrants in breach ofthis provisionshall be void and of no effect.

() If the Issuer determines that the number of Warrants being exercised on any Actual Exercise
Date by any Holder or a group of Holders (whether or not acting in concert) exceeds the
Maximum Exercise Number (a number equal to the Maximum Exercise Number being the
"Quota"), the Issuer may deemthe Actual Exercise Date for the first Quota of such Wanmants,
selected at the discretion of the Issuer, to be such day and the Actual Exercise Date for each
additional Quota of such Warrants (and any remaining number thereof) to be each of the
succeeding Exercise Business Days untilall such Warrants have beenattributed with an Actual
Bxercise Date, provided, however, thatthe deemed Actual Exercise Date forany such Wamants
which would thereby fall after the Expiration Date shall fall on the Expiration Date. In any case
where more than the Quota of Warrants are exercised on the same day by Holder(s), the order
of settlement in respectof such Warrants shall be at the sole discretion of the Issuer.

European Style Warrants
This Condition23.2 applies only to European Style Warrants.

The number of Warrants exercisable by any Holder on the Exercise Date, as determined by the Issuer,
must be equal to the Minimum Exercise Number specified in the applicable Final Terms and, if specified
in the applicable Final Terms, if a number greater than the Minimum Exercise Number, must be an
integral multiple of the number specified in the applicable Final Terms. Any Exercise Notice which
purportsto exercise Warrants in breach of this provisionshallbe void and of no effect.

TERMS APPLICABLE TO CERTIFICATES ONLY
Conditions 25to 31 apply to Certificates only.
DEFINITIONS

"Aweraging Date" means:

(0 in the caseof IndexSecurities (other than IndexSecurities relating to a Custom Indexor Basket
of Custom Indices (each as defined in Annex 2)), Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt
Securities or Futures Securities, each date specified as an Averaging Date in theapplicable Final
Terms or, ifany such date is not a Scheduled Trading Day, the immediately following Scheduled
Trading Day unless, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, any such day is a Disrupted Day.
If any such day is a Disrupted Day, then:
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(i

(ii)

(iii)

if "Omission" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, then such date
will be deemed not to be an Averaging Date for the purposes of determining the
relevant Settlement Price provided that, if through the operation of this provision no
Averaging Datewould occur, thentheprovisions of the definition of " Valuation Date"
will apply forthe purposes of determining the relevant level, price, value or amount on
the final Averaging Date as if such Averaging Date were a Valuation Date that was a
Disrupted Day; or

if "Postponement” is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, then the
provisions of the definition of "Valuation Date" will apply for the purposes of
determining the relevant level, price, value or amount on that Averaging Date as if
such Averaging Date were a Valuation Date that was a Disrupted Day irrespective of
whether, pursuantto such determination, that deferred Averaging Date would fallon a
day that already s oris deemed to be an Averaging Date; or

if "Modified Postponement" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Tenrs,
then:

(A) where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a single Index (other
than a Component Security Index), Share Securities relating toa single Share,
ETI Securities relating to asingle ETI Interest, or Futures Securities relating
tosingle Future, the Averaging Date shall be the first succeeding Valid Date
(as defined below). If the first succeeding Valid Date has not occurred for a
number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified
Maximum Days of Disruption immediately following the original date that,
but for the occurrence of another Averaging Date or Disrupted Day, would
have been the final Averaging Date, then (I) that last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day shall be deemed to be the Averaging Date
(irrespective of whether that lastsuch consecutive Scheduled Trading Day is
already an Averaging Date), and (1) the Calculation Agent shall determine
the relevant level, value or price for that Averaging Date in accordance with
subparagraph (a)(i) of the definition of "Valuation Date" below; and

(B) where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a single Component
Security Index, the Calculation Agent shall determine the level of the
Component Security Index for the Averaging Date in accordance with sub-
paragraph (a)(ii) of the definition of "Valuation Date" below and the
Averaging Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the
Calculation Agent determines the level of the Component Security Indexin
accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (a)(ii) of the definition of
"Valuation Date" below;

© where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Indices
(otherthan a Basketof Component Security Indices), Share Securities relating
to a Basket of Shares, ETI Securities relating to an ETI Basket or Futures
Securities relatingto a Basket of Futures, the Averaging Date foreach Index
Share, ETI Interest or Future not affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted
Day shall be the originally designated Averaging Date (the "Scheduled
Aweraging Date™)and the Averaging Date for each Index, Share, ET| Interest
or Future affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the first
succeeding Valid Date (as defined below) in relation to such Index, Share,
ETI Interest or Future. If the first succeeding Valid Date in relation to such
Index, Share, ETI Interest or Future has not occurred for a number of
consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days
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of Disruption immediately following the original date that, but for the
occurrence of another Averaging Date or Disrupted Day, would have been
the final Averaging Date, then (I) that last such consecutive Scheduled
Trading Day shall be deemed the Averaging Date (irrespective of whether
that last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day is already an Averaging
Date) in respect of such Index, Share, ETI Interest or Future, and (1) the
Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant level, price, value or amount
for that Averaging Date in accordance with subparagraph (a)(ii) of the
definition of "Valuation Date" below; or

(D) where the Certificates are IndexSecurities relating to a Basket of Component
Security Indices, the Averaging Date for each Component Security Indexnot
affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the Scheduled
Averaging Date, and for each Component Security Index affected (an
"Affected Item") by theoccurrence of a Disrupted Day, the Calculation Agent
shalldetermine thelevel of the Component Security Indexin accordance with
the provisions of sub-paragraph (a)(iv) of the definition of "Valuation Date"
belowand the Averaging Date shall be deemed to bethe earliestdate on which
the Calculation Agent determines the level of the Component Security Index
in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (a)(iv) of the definition of
"Valuation Date" below; or

(i) in the case of Commodity Securities, each date specified as suchin the applicable Final Tems
or, if any such date is nota Commodity Business Day, the immediately following Commodity
Business Day unless, in the opinion ofthe Calculation Agent,anysuchdayis a day on which a
Market Disruption Event has occurred or is continuing, in which case the provisions of
Commodity Condition 3 (Consequences of a Market Disruption Event and Disruption
Fallbacks) shallapply;or

(iii) in the case of Open End Certificates, the date designated as such by the Issuer acting in good
faith, provided that such date is determined by the Issuer and notified to the Holders in
accordance with Condition 10 at the latest on the tenth (10th) Business Day preceding the
contemplated Averaging Date;

"Calculation Period" means each Interest Period, AER Calculation Period, FR Calculation Period, Call
Calculation Period or Put Calculation Period, as applicable;

"Cash Settlement Amount” means, in relation to Cash Settled Certificates, the amount (which may
never be less than zero) to which the Holder is entitled in the Settlement Currency in relation to each
such Certificate equal to the Final Payout specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Cash Settlement Amount (if any) shall be roundedto the nearestsub-unit of the relevant Settlement
Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable
market convention, providedthat if Rounding Convention 2 is specified as applicable in the applicable
Final Terms, the Cash Settlement Amount shall not be subject to rounding but Securities of the same
Series held by the same Holder will be aggregated for the purpose of determining the aggregate Cash
Settlement Amount in respect of such Certificates and the aggregate of such Cash Settlement Anmounts
will be rounded down to the nearest whole sub-unit of the Settlement Currency in such manner as the
Calculation Agentshall determine,

provided that if the product of the Final Payout is zero, no amount shall be payable in respect of the
relevant Certificate;
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"Cut-off Date" means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or if not so setoutin
respectof Physical Delivery Certificates, thethird Business Day immediately preceding the Redemption
Date;

"Entitlement" means in relation to a Physical Delivery Certificate, the quantity of the Relevant Asset or
the Relevant Assets, as the casemay be, which a Holder is entitled toreceive on the Redemption Date in
respect of each such Certificate following payment of any sums payable (including Expenses as defined
in Condition 11 rounded downas provided in Condition 30.2(d) as determined by the Calculation Agent
including any documents evidencing such Entitlement which amount will be the Entitlement Amount
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Observation Date" means:

(i) in the case of Certificates other than Open End Certificates, each date specified as an
Observation Date in the applicable Final Terms orif any such date is not a Scheduled Trading
Day (in the case of Index Securities (otherthan IndexSecurities relating to a CustomIndexor
Basket of Custom Indices), Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures
Securities) or Commodity Business Day (in the case of Commodity Securities), the immediately
following Scheduled Trading Day or Commodity Business Day, as applicable. The provisions
contained in the definition of " Averaging Date" shallapply ifany such day is a Disrupted Day
or, in the case of Commodity Securities, a day onwhicha Market Disruption Event has occurred
oris continuing, mutatis mutandis as if references in such provisions to " Averaging Date" were
to "Observation Date" unless Observation Day Disruption Consequences is specified as not
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, in which case such date will be an Observation Date
notwithstanding the occurrence of a Disrupted Day and (i) in the case of IndexSecurities (other
than IndexSecurities relatingtoa Custom Indexor Basket of Custom Indices), Share Securities,
ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities, the provisions of (2)(i)(B) or (a)(iii)(B),
as applicable, of the definition of *Valuation Date" will apply for the purposes of determining
the relevant level, price oramount on such Observation Date as if such Observation Date were
a Valuation Date that was a Disrupted Day or (ii) in the case of Commodity Securities the
provisions of Commodity Condition 3 (Consequences of a Market Disruption Event and
Disruption Fallbacks) willapply; and

(i) in the case of Open End Certificates, the date designated as such by the Issuer acting in good
faith, provided that such date is determined by the Issuer and notified to the Holders in
accordance with Condition 10 at the latest on the tenth (10th) Business Day preceding the
contemplated Observation Date;

"Observation Period" means the period specified as the Observation Period in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Open End Certificate" means a Certificate in respectofwhich "Open End" is specified as applicable
in the applicable Final Terms and which may be redeemed on a date determined by the Issuer in good
faith, subject to the other provisions of these Terms and Conditions;

"Reference Banks" means the five major banks selected by the Calculation Agentin the interbank
market (or, if appropriate, money, swap or over-the-counter index options market) that is most closely
connected with the relevant rate (which, if EURIBOR is the relevant rate, shall be the euro-zone);

"Reference Rate Fallback BEvent" means, in relation to any Screen Page Reference Rate or AER
Reference Rate, as applicable, any of the following, as determined by the Calculation Agent:
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() the Screen Page Reference Rate or AER Reference Rate, as applicable, ceasing to exist or
ceasingto bepublished fora period of at leastsix(6) consecutive Business Days or having been
permanently orindefinitely discontinued;

(i) the making of a public statement or publication of information (provided that, at the time of any
such event, there is no successor administrator that will provide the Screen Page Reference
Rate) by or on behalf of (i) the administrator of the Screen Page Reference Rate or AER
Reference Rate, as applicable, or (ii) the supervisor, insolvency official, resolution authority,
centralbank or competent court having jurisdiction over suchadministrator stating that (x) the
administrator has ceased or will cease permanently or indefinitely to provide the Screen Page
Reference Rate or AER Reference Rate, as applicable, (y) the Screen Page Reference Rate or
AER Reference Rate, as applicable, has been or will be permanently or indefinitely
discontinued, or (z) the Screen Page Reference Rateor AER Reference Rate, as applicable, has
been or will be prohibited from being used or that its use has been or will be subject to
restrictions oradverse consequences, either generally, or in respect ofthe Securities, provided
that, if such public statement or publication mentions that the eventor circumstance referred to
in (X), (y) or(z) above will occuron a date falling laterthan three (3) monthsafter the relevant
public statementor publication, the Reference Rate Fallback Event shall be deemed to occur on
the date falling three (3) months prior to such specified date (and not the date of the relevant
public statement);

(iii) it has orwill priorto the next Interest Determination Date (as applicable), become unlawful for
the Calculation Agent orany other party responsible for determining the Screen Page Reference
Rate or AER Reference Rate, as applicable, to calculate any payments due to be made to any
Holderusing the Screen Page Reference Rate or AER Reference Rate, as applicable (including,
without limitation, under BMR, if applicable); or

(iv) the making of a public statement or publication of information that any authorisation,
registration, recognition, endorsement, equivalence decision, approval or inclusion in any
official register in respect of the Screen Page Reference Rate or AER Reference Rate, as
applicable, orthe administrator of the Screen Page Reference Rate or AER Reference Rate, as
applicable, has not been, or will not be, obtained or has been, or will be, rejected, refused,
suspended or withdrawn by the relevant competent authority or other relevant official body, in
each case with the effect that the use of the Screen Page Reference Rate or AER Reference Rate,
as applicable, is not or will not be permitted underany applicable law or regulation, such that
the Calculation Agent orany other party responsible for determining the Screen Page Reference
Rate or AER Reference Rate, as applicable, is unable to performits obligations in respect of the
Securities.

A change in the methodology of the Screen Page Reference Rate or AER Reference Rate, as applicable,
shallnot, absent theoccurrenceof one of the above, be deemed a Reference Rate Fallback Event.

"Swedish Dematerialised Certificates" means Certificates in registered, uncertificated and
dematerialised book-entry formin accordance with the SFIA Act accepted by Euroclear Sweden for
clearing and registration in the Euroclear Sweden System;

"Valid Date" means a Scheduled Trading Day that is nota Disrupted Day and on which another
Averaging Date oranother Observation Date does not oris deemed not to occur;

"Valuation Date" means:

@ in the caseof IndexSecurities (other than IndexSecurities relating to a Custom Indexor Basket
of Custom Indices), Share Securities, ET1 Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities,
unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Interest Valuation Date and/or the

203



Redemption Valuation Date (subject to paragraph (b) below in respect of Open End
Certificates), as the casemay be, specified in the applicable Final Terms or, if such day is not a
Scheduled Trading Day, the immediately succeeding Scheduled Trading Day unless, in the
opinion ofthe Calculation Agent, such day is a Disrupted Day. If such day is a Disrupted Day,
then:

(i) where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a single Index (other than a
Component Security Index), Share Securities relatingto a single Share, ET1 Securities
relating to a single ETI Interest, Debt Securities relating to a single Debt Instrurent,
Futures Securities relating to a single Future, the Valuation Date shall be the first
succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is not a Disrupted Day, unless each of the
number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days
of Disruption immediately following the Scheduled Valuation Dateis a Disrupted Day.
In that case, (A) the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shallbe deerred to
be the Valuation Date, notwithstanding the fact that such day is a Disrupted Day, and
(B) the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevantvalue, levelor price:

(A) in the caseof IndexSecurities, by determining the level ofthe Indexas of the
Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day in
accordance with the formula for and method of calculating the Index last in
effect prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day using the Exchange
traded orquoted price as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day of each security comprised in the Index (or, if an
event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred in respect of the relevant
security on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith
estimate ofthe valuefor the relevant security as of the Valuation Time on the
last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day); or

(B) in the case of Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures
Securities, in accordance with its good faith estimate of the relevant value,
levelor price as ofthe Valuation Time on the lastsuch consecutive Scheduled
Trading Day; or

(i) where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a single Component Security
Index, the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant level for such Component
Security Index using the formula for and method of calculating such Component
Security Indexlast in effect prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day using:

(A) in respect of each Component Security not affected by a Market Disruption
Event on the Scheduled Valuation Date, the exchange traded or quoted price
of such Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the Scheduled
Valuation Date; and

(B) in respect of each Component Security affected (each, an "Affected
Component Security") by a Market Disruption Event on the Scheduled
Valuation Date, the exchange traded or quoted price for each Affected
Component Security on thefirst succeeding Scheduled Trading Day onwhich
no Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respect to the
Affected Component Security, unless each of the number of consecutive
Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption
immediately following the Scheduled Valuation Date is a day on which a
Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respectto the Affected
Component Security, in which case, the Calculation Agent shall determine
the value,amount, level or price of such Affected Component Security using
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(iii)

(iv)

its good faith estimate of the value, amount, level or price of the relevant
Affected Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day; and

the Valuation Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation
Agent determines the level of the Component Security Index in accordance with the
above provisions; or

where the Certificates are IndexSecurities relating toa Basket of Indices (other than a
Basket of Component Security Indices), Share Securities relating to a Basket of Shares,
ETI Securities relating toa Basketcomprised of ETI Interests, Debt Securities relating
to a Basket of Debt Instruments or Futures Securities relating to a basket of Futures,
the Valuation Date for each Index, Share, ETI Interest, Debt Instrument or Future, as
the case may be, not affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the
Scheduled Valuation Date, and the Valuation Date foreach Index, Share, ET| Interest,
Debt Instrument or Future affected, asthe case may be, (each an " Affected Item"™) by
the occurrence ofa Disrupted Day shall be the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day
that is not a Disrupted Day relating to the Affected Itemunless each of the number of
consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption immediately following the Scheduled Valuation Date is a Disrupted Day
relating to the Affected Item. In that case, (i) the last such consecutive Scheduled
Trading Day shall be deemed to be the Valuation Date for the Affected Item
notwithstanding the fact that such day is a Disrupted Day, and (ii) the Calculation
Agent shall determine the relevant value, level or price using, in relation to the
Affected Item, the level orvalue as applicable, determined using:

(A) in the case ofan Index the level of that Indexas ofthe Valuation Time on the
last suchconsecutive Scheduled Trading Day in accordance with the formula
for and method of calculatingthat Indexlast in effect priorto the occurrence
ofthe first Disrupted Day usingthe Exchangetraded or quoted price as of the
Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day of each
security comprised in that Index(or, if an eventgivingriseto a Disrupted Day
has occurredin respect ofthe relevant security on that last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith estimate of the value for the relevant
security as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled
Trading Day); or

(B) in the case ofa Share, ETI Interest Debt Instrument or Future, its good faith
estimate ofthe value for the Affected Itemas of the Valuation Time on that
last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day, and

where the Certificates are IndexSecurities relatingto a Basketof Component Security
Indices, the Valuation Date for each Component Security Indexnot affected by the
occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the Scheduled Valuation Date, and for each
Component Security Index affected (an "Affected Item™) by the occurrence of a
Disrupted Day, the Calculation Agent shall determine the level of that Component
Security Index using the formula for and method of calculating that Component
Security Indexlast in effect priorto the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day, using:

(A) in respect of each Component Security not affected by a Market Disruption
Event on the Scheduled Valuation Date, the exchange traded or quoted price
of such Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the Scheduled
Valuation Date; and
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(B) in respect of each Component Security affected (each, an "Affected
Component Security") by a Market Disruption Event on the Scheduled
Valuation Date, the exchange traded or quoted price for each Affected
Component Security on thefirst succeeding Scheduled Trading Day onwhich
no Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respect to the
Affected Component Security, unless each of the number of consecutive
Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption
immediately following the Scheduled Valuation Date is a day on which a
Market Disruption Event occurs oris continuing with respectto the Affected
Component Security, in which case, the Calculation Agent shall determine
the value,amount, level or price of such Affected Component Security using
its good faith estimate of the value, amount, level or price of the relevant
Affected Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day;and

the Valuation Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation
Agent determines the level of the Component Security Index in accordance with the
above provisions; or

(b) in the case of Open End Certificates and for the purposes of the " Provisions relating to Valuation
on Redemption” set out in the applicable Final Terms, the date designated as the Redemption
Valuation Date by the Issueracting in good faith, providedthatsuch date is determined by the
Issuer and notified to the Holders in accordance with Condition 13 at the latest on the tenth
(10th) Business Day preceding the contemplated Redemption Valuation Date; and

(©) in the case of Commodity Securities, the Final Pricing Date,

and otherwise in accordance with the above provisions;and

"Valuation Time" means:

0) the Interest Valuation Time or the Valuation Time, as the case may be, specified in the
applicable Final Terms; or

(ii)

(ii)

in the case of Index Securities relating to a Composite Index, unless otherwise
specified in the applicable Final Terms, (A) for the purposes of determining whether a
Market Disruption Event has occurred: (X) in respect ofany Component Security, the
Scheduled Closing Time on the Exchange in respectof such Component Security, and
(y) in respect of any options contracts or futures contracts on such Index, the close of
trading on the Related Exchange; and (B) in all other circumstances, thetime at which
the official closing level of such Indexis calculated and published by the Index
Sponsor; or

in the case of IndexSecurities relating to Indices other than Composite Indices, Share
Securities or ETI Securities unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms,
the Scheduled Closing Time on the relevant Exchange on the relevant Strike Date,
Valuation Date, Observation Date or Averaging Date, as the case may be, in relation
to each Indexor Share to be valued, providedthat if the relevant Exchange closes prior
toits Scheduled Closing Time and the specified Interest Valuation Time or Valuation
Time, as the casemay be, is after theactual closing time for its regular trading session,
then the Interest Valuation Time or the Valuation Time, as the case may be, shall be
such actual closingtime.
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26.

27.

28.

FORM OF CERTIFICATES

Certificates are issued in dematerialised bearer form (au porteur). No physical document of titlke
(including certificats représentatifs pursuant to Article R.211-7 of the French Code Monétaire et
Financier) will be issued in respectof Certificates. Title will pass uponregistration of the transfer in the
books of Euroclear France Euroclear Netherlands or Iberclear, as the case may be.

Unless this possibility is expressly excluded in the applicable Final Terms and to theextent permitted by
applicable French law, the Issuer may at any time request from the central depositary identification
information of Holders of Certificates in dematerialised bearer form (au porteur) such as thename or the
company name, nationality, date of birth or year of incorporation and mail address or, as the case may
be, email address of such Holders.*

Swedish Dematerialised Certificates will be issued in registered, uncertificated and dematerialised book-
entry form in accordance with the Swedish Financial Instruments Accounts Act 1998 (Sw.: Lag
(1998:1479) om vardepapperscentraler och kontoféring av finansiella instrument) (the "SFIA Act™).
Swedish Dematerialised Certificates will not be issued in definitive form.

TYPE (CERTIFICATES)

The applicable Final Terms will indicate whether settlement shall be by way of cash payment ("Cash
Settled Certificates") or physical delivery ("Physical Delivery Certificates™), whether Cash Settled
Certificates are redeemable in instalments and whether Averaging ("Averaging”) will apply to the
Certificates. If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, interest shall be payable in respect of the
Certificates.

If the Certificates are Swedish Dematerialised Certificates, they willbe Cash Settled Certificates.

The applicable Final Terms will indicate if the Certificates are exercisable, if so whether Multiple
Exercise applies and therelevant Exercise Date(s).

INTEREST (CERTIFICATES)

If so specified in the applicable Final Terms the Certificates will pay interest, such interest to be
calculated on the basis ofa fixed rate of interest ("Fixed Rate Certificates™), a floating rate of interest
("Floating Rate Certificates") or by reference to the performance of one or more Index, Share, ETI
Interest, Debt Instrument, Commodity, Currency, Futures or any other underlying security or any
combination thereof in the manner specified in the applicable Final Terms (such Certificates, "Linked
Interest Certificates"):

@) Interest on Fixed Rate Certificates

Each Fixed Rate Certificate pays interest calculated from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date at the rate(s) per annumequal to the Rate(s) of Interest. Interest will
accrue in respect of each Interest Period (which expressions shall in these Terms and Conditions
mean the period from (and including) an Interest Period End Date (or if none the Interest
Commencement Date) to (butexcluding) thenext (or first) Interest Period End Date (each such
latter date the " Interest Period End Final Date" for the relevant Interest Period)). Interest will
be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to (and including) the
Redemption Date. If an Interest Payment date falls after the Interest Period End Final Date in
respect of the relevant Interest Period, no additional interest or other amount shall be payable

40

The possibility for the Issuer of requesting from the central depositary identification information of Holders of Certificates in
dematerialised bearer form (au porteur) such as the name or company name, nationality, date of birth or year of incorporation
and mail address or, as the case may be, email address of such Holders is provided by the Ordonnance n°2014-863 du 31 juillet
2014 relative au droit des sociétés prise en application de I’article 3 de la loi n° 2014-1 du 2 janvier 2014 habilitant le
Gouvernement a simplifier et sécuriser la vie des entreprises. This Ordonnance was adopted on 2 August 2014.
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(b)

as a result of such interest being payable on such later date. If a Business Day Convention is
specified in the applicable Final Terms as applyingto an Interest Period End Date oran Interest
Payment Date and (i) if there is no numerically corresponding day on the calendar month in
which an Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, should occur
or (ii) if any Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, would
otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention
specified is:

() the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to the next day which is a
Business Day; or

(i) the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
InterestPayment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponedto the next day which is
a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which
event such Interest Period End Dateor Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall
be brought forward tothe immediately preceding Business Day; or

(i) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the immediately
preceding Business Day.

If no Business Day Conventionis specified as applicable to an Interest Period End Date in the
applicable Final Terms, theamount of interest payable oneach Interest Payment Date in respect
ofthe InterestPeriod endingon (butexcluding) the Interest Period End Final Date in respect of
such Interest Period will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount.

Interest shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to the Notional Amount of each
Certificate and if a Day Count Fraction is specified in the applicable Final Terms multiplying
such sumby the applicable Day Count Fraction. The resultant figure shall be rounded to the
nearest sub-unit of the relevant Settlement Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded
upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

"sub-unit" means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such
currency that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to
euro, means one cent.

Interest on Floating Rate Certificates and Linked Interest Certificates

0) Interest, InterestPeriods and Business Day Convention

Each Floating Rate Certificate and, subject to the provisions of Condition 28(c), each
Linked Interest Certificate pays interest in respect of each Interest Period (which
expression shallin these Terms and Conditions mean the period from(and including)
an Interest Period End Date (or if none the Interest Commencement Date to (but
excluding) the next (or first) Interest Period End Date (each such latter date the
"Interest PeriodEnd Final Date" for the relevant Interest Period)). For the pumposes
ofthis Condition 28(b), " Interest Period End Date" shall mean either: (A) the Interest
Period End Date(s) in each year specified in the applicable Final Terms or (B) if no
Interest Period End Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Final Terms, each date
which falls the number of months orother period specified as the Specified Period in
the applicable Final Terms afterthe preceding Interest Period End Date or, in the case
of the first Interest Period End Date, after the Interest Commencement Date.

208



(ii)

Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to
(and including) the Redemption Date. If an Interest Payment Date falls after an Interest
Period End Final Date in respect ofthe relevant Interest Period, no additional interest
orotheramountshallbe payable as a result of such interestbeing payable on such later
date.

If a Business Day Convention s specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying to
an Interest Period End Date or an Interest Payment Date and (1) if there is no
numerically corresponding day on the calendar monthin which an Interest Period End
Date or InterestPayment Date, as the case may be, should occur or (I1) if any Interest
Period End Date or InterestPayment Date, as the case may be, would otherwise fall on
a day which is not a Business Day, then, ifthe Business Day Convention specified is:

(A) in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with (b)(i)
above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, (i) in the case of (I) above, shall
be the last day thatis a Business Day in the relevant monthand the provisions
of (B) below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (ii) in the case of (Il) above,
shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would
thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (A) such Interest
Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be
brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (B) each
subsequent Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case
may be, shallbe the last Business Day in the monthwhich falls the Specified
Period after the preceding applicable Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, occurred; or

(B) the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
InterestPayment Date, as the case may be, shallbe postponedtothe nex day
which is a Business Day; or

© the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to the
next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the nex
calendar month, in which event such Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day; or

(D) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day.

ISDA Determination

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the manner
in which the Rate of Interestor Rate is to be determined, such Rate of Interest or Rate,
as the case may be, for each Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or
minus (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any). For the purposes
of this subparagraph (i), " ISDA Rate™ for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the
Floating Rate that would be determined by the Calculation Agent under aninterest rate
swap transactionif the Calculation Agent were actingas Calculation Agent (as defined
in the ISDA Definitions (as defined below)) for that swap transaction under the tenmrs
of an agreement incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions (a copy of which may be
obtainedat the registered office of the Issuer during usual business hours) as published
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(iii)

by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association Inc. (ISDA) and as amended
and updated as at the Issue Date of the Certificates (the "ISDA Definitions™) andunder
which:

(A) the Floating Rate Optionis as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(B) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Final Tenrs;
and

© the relevant Reset Date is either (1) if the applicable Floating Rate Optionis
based on the London interbank offered rate ("LIBOR™) or on the Euro-zone
inter-bank offered rate ("EURIBOR") (or, in the event that EURIBOR or
LIBOR has been discontinued, such other successor benchmark rate as the
financial industry shall have accepted as a successor or substitute rate for
EURIBOR or LIBOR for a currency, as applicable), the first day of that
Interest Period or (1) in any other case, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

For the purposes of this subparagraph (ii), "Floating Rate", " Floating Rate Option",
"Designated Maturity" and "Reset Date" have the meanings givento those terns in
the ISDA Definitions.

FBF Determination

Where so specified in the applicable Final Terms, interest will be payable on such
dates, at sucharate (the "FBFRate")and in suchamounts, plus or minus (as indicated
in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any), as would have been payable
(regardless ofany event of default ortermination event thereunder) by the Issuerif it
had entered intoan interest rate swap transaction governed by anagreementin theform
ofthe Master Agreementrelatingto foreignexchangeand derivatives transactions (@n
"FBF Agreement"), as in effect on the date of issue of the Certificates, published by
the Fédération Bancaire Frangaise and evidenced by a Confirmation (as defined in
the FBF Agreement) with the holder of the relevant Certificate under which:

(A) the Issuerwas the Floating Amount Payer;

(B) the Principal Security Agent (as defined herein) was the Agent (as defined in
the FBF Agreement) oras otherwisespecified in the applicable Final Terms;

© the Interest Commencement Date was the Transaction Date;
(D) the Notional Amountin respect of a Certificate was the Notional Amount;
(B) the Interest Payment Dates were the Floating AmountPayment Dates; and

(F) all otherterms were as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

When the preceding sentence applies, in respect of each relevant Interest Payment
Date:

I the amount of interest determined for such Interest Payment Date
will be the Interest Amount for the relevant Interest Period for the
purposes ofthese Terms and Conditions as though determined under
subparagraph (v) below;
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. the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period will be the Floating Rate
(as defined in the FBF Agreement) determined by the Principal
Security Agentin accordance with the preceding sentence;and

1"l the Calculation Agent will be deemed to have discharged its
obligations under subparagraph (v) below if it has determined the
Rate of Interest and the Interest Amount payable on such Interest
Payment Date in the manner provided in the preceding sentence.

(iv) Screen Rate Determination

(A)

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Final Tenrs
as the manner in which the Rate of Interest or Rate is to be determined, such
Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may be, for each Interest Period will,
subject as provided below, be either:

I the offered quotation; or

Il the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place,
with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate(s) which
appears orappear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page (or such
replacement page on that service which displays the information) as at the
Specified Time indicated in the applicable Final Terms (which will be 11.00
a.m., London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of
EURIBOR) (the "Screen Page Reference Rate") on the Interest
Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms) the Margin (ifany), allas determined by the Calculation Agent.
If five ormore of such offered quotations are available on the Relevant Screen
Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one
only of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such
lowest quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the
Calculation Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean
(roundedas provided above) of such offered quotations.

If the Relevant Screen Page is notavailable or if, in the case of subparagraph
(A)1., no offered quotation appears on the Relevant Screen Page (or such
replacement page on that service which displays the information) or, in the
case of subparagraph (A)ll., fewer thanthree offered quotations appear onthe
Relevant Screen Page (or such replacement page on that service which
displays the information), in each case as at the Specified Time, except as
providedin paragraph (C) below, the Calculation Agentshall request each of
the Reference Banks to provide the Calculation Agent with its offered
guotation (expressedas a percentage rate perannum) for the Reference Rate
at the Specified Time on the Interest Determination Date in question. Iftwo
or more of the Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with offered
quotations, the Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may be, for the Interest
Period shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary tothe nearest0.001
with 0.0005 being rounded upwards) of the relevant quotations, eliminating
the highest quotation (or in the event thattwo or more quotations are identical,
one ofthe highest) and the lowest (orin the event thattwo or more quotations
are identical, one of the lowest), plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if
any), all as determined by the Calculation Agent.
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(B)

©

If on any Interest Determination Date one only or none of the Reference
Banks provides the Calculation Agent with an offered quotation as provided
in the preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may be,
for the relevant Interest Period shall be the rate per annum which the
Calculation Agent determines as being the arithmetic mean (rounded if
necessary to the nearest 0.001, with 0.0005 being rounded upwards) of the
rates per annum, as communicated tothe Calculation Agentby the Reference
Banks or any two or more of them, at which such banks were offered, at the
Specified Time on the relevant Interest Determination Date, deposits in the
Settlement Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used
for the Reference Rate by leading banks in the inter-bank market plus or
minus (as appropriate) the Margin (ifany).

If fewer than two of the Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with
offered rates, the Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may be, for the relevant
Interest Period shall be the offered rate for deposits in the Settlement
Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used for the
Reference Rate, or the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of the
offered rates for deposits in the Settlement Currency for a period equal to that
which would have been used for the Reference Rate, atwhich, at the Specified
Time on the relevant Interest Determination Date, any one or more banks
(which bankorbanks is orare in the opinion of the Calculation Agent suitable
for the purpose) informs the Calculation Agent it is quoting to leading banks
in the inter-bank market applicable to the Reference Rate (which will be the
London inter-bank market, if the Reference Rateis LIBOR, or the Euro-zone
inter-bank market, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR), plus or minus (as
appropriate) the Margin (ifany), as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If the Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may be, cannot be determined in
accordancewith the provisions of paragraph (A), the Rate of Interest or Rate,
as the case may be, shallbe equal to the last Reference Rate available on the
Relevant Screen Page, plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (ifany), as
determined by the Calculation Agent, except that if the Calculation Agent
determines that the absence of the quotation is due to the discontinuation of
the Screen Page Reference Rate or the occurrence of a Reference Rate
Fallback Event, then the Reference Rate will be determined in accordance
with paragraph (C) below.

If the Calculation Agent determines at any time prior to any Interest
Determination Date, that the Screen Page Reference Rate has been
discontinued or a Reference Rate Fallback Event has occurred, the
Calculation Agentwill use, as a substitute for the Screen Page Reference
Rate, the alternative referencerate selected by the central bank, reserve bank,
monetary authority or any similar institution (including any committee or
working group thereof) in the jurisdiction or region of the currency of the
relevant rate (each a "Relevant Nominating Body™) that is consistent with
industry accepted standards, provided that if the Calculation Agent notifies
the Issuer that it is unable to determine such alternative reference rate, the
Calculation Agent will as soon as reasonably practicable (and in any event
before the Business Day priorto the applicable Interest Determination Date)
appointan agent (the "Reference Rate Determination Agent"), which will
determine whether a substitute or successor rate, which is substantially
comparable to the Screen Page Reference Rate, is available for the pumpose
of determining the Reference Rate on each Interest Determination Date
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falling on or after the date of such determination. If the Reference Rate
Determination Agentdetermines that there is an industry accepted successor
rate, the Reference Rate Determination Agent will notify the Issuer of such
successor rate to be used by the Calculation Agent to determine the Rate of
Interest.

If the Reference Rate Determination Agent or the Calculation Agent, as
applicable, has determined a substitute or successor rate in accordance with
the foregoing paragraph (such rate, the "Replacement Reference Rate"), for
the purpose of determining the Reference Rate oneach Interest Determination
Date falling on or after such determination:

I the Reference Rate Determination Agent or the Calculation Agent,
as applicable, will also determine the changes (ifany) required tothe
applicable Business Day Convention, the definition of Business
Day, the Interest Determination Date, the Day Count Fraction, and
any method for obtaining the Replacement Reference Rate,
including any adjustment needed to make such Replacement
Reference Rate comparable to the Screen Page Reference Rate, in
each case acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner that is consistent with industry-accepted practices for such
Replacement Reference Rate;

Il. references to the Reference Ratein these Conditions will be deemed
to be references to the relevant Replacement Reference Rate,
including any alternative method for determining such rate as
describedin (I)above;

1"l the Reference Rate Determination Agent or the Calculation Agent,
as applicable, will notify the Issuer of the Replacement Reference
Rate, and the details described in I. above, as soon as reasonably
practicable;and

V. the Issuer will give notice to the Holders in accordance with
Condition 10, the Principal Security Agent and the Calculation
Agent oftheReplacement Reference Rate, and the details described
in (1) above as soon as reasonably practicable but in any event no
laterthan 5:00 p.m. (London time) on the Business Day prior to the
applicable Interest Determination Date.

If the Reference Rate Determination Agent determines that the Reference
Rate has beendiscontinued butforany reasona Replacement Reference Rate
has not been determined, the Reference Rate will be equal to the last
Reference Rate available on the Relevant Screen Pageas definedabove.

The determination of the Replacement Reference Rate and the other matters
referred to above by the Reference Rate Determination Agent or the
Calculation Agent, as applicable, will (in the absence of manifest error) be
final and binding on the Issuer, the Calculation Agent, the Principal Security
Agent and the Holders, unless the Issuer, the Calculation Agent or the
Reference Rate Determination Agent determines at a later date that the
Replacement Reference Rate is no longer substantially comparable to the
Reference Rate ordoes not constitutean industry accepted successor rate, in
which casethe Calculation Agentshallappointor re-appoint a Reference Rate
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Determination Agent, as the case may be (which may or may not bethe same
entity as the original Reference Rate Determination Agent or the Calculation
Agent) for the purpose of confirming the Replacement Reference Rate or
determining a substitute Replacement Reference Rate in an identical manner
as described in this paragraph (C). If the replacement Reference Rate
Determination Agent orthe Calculation Agent, as applicable, is unable to or
otherwise does notdetermine a substitute Replacement Reference Rate, then
the Replacement Reference Rate will remain unchanged.

The Reference Rate Determination Agentmay be (X) a leading bank, broker-
dealer orbenchmark agent in the principal financial centre of the relevant rate
as appointed by the Calculation Agent, (y) the Issuer or the Guarantor (if
applicable) or (z) an affiliate of the Issuer, the Guarantor (ifapplicable) or the
Calculation Agent, provided that such person shall, if required by any
applicable laws, possess any licence required for suchactivity.

If the relevant Reference Rate Fallback Event may also constitute an
Administrator/Benchmark Event in the determination of the Calculation
Agent pursuant to Condition 15.1, the provisions of this Condition
28(b)(iv)(C) will apply.

Determination of Rate of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amount

In the case of Floating Rate Certificates and Linked Interest Certificates the
Calculation Agent will, on or as soonas practicable after each date on which the Rate
of Interest is to be determined (the "Interest Determination Date"), determine the
Rate of Interest (subject to any Minimum Interest Rate or Maximum Interest Rate
specified in the applicable Final Terms) for the relevant Interest Period. In the case of
Floating Rate Certificates and Linked Interest Certificates, the Calculation Agent will
notify the Principal Security Agent of the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest
Period as soonas practicable after calculating the same.

The Calculation Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the " Interest Amount")
payable on each Certificate for the relevant Interest Period by applying the Rate of
Interest to the Notional Amount of such Certificate and multiplying such sum by the
Day Count Fraction specified in the applicable Final Terms and rounding the resultant
figure to the nearest sub-unit (defined above) of the relevant Specified Currency, one
half of such a sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with
applicable market convention.

Minimum and/or Maximum Interest Rate

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Minimum Interest Rate forany Interest Period,
then, in the eventthat the Rate of Interestin respectof such Interest Period determined
in accordance with the provisions of subparagraphs (i), (i), (iii) or (iv) above (as
appropriate) is less than such Minimum Interest Rate, the Rate of Interest for such
Interest Period shall be such Minimum Interest Rate.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Maximum Interest Rate for any Interest
Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period
determined in accordance with the provisions of subparagraphs (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv)
above (asappropriate) is greater thansuch Maximum Interest Rate, the Rate of Interest
for such InterestPeriod shall be such Maximum Interest Rate.

Notification of Rate of Interestand Interest Amount
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©)

The Calculation Agent will cause the Rate of Interestand each Interest Amount for
each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the
Principal Security Agent, the Issuerand the Guarantor (such notifications to occur no
later than the Business Day following such determination), and (in the case of
Certificates which are listed on Euronext Paris and the rules of such stock exchange so
require) Euronext Paris and, if applicable, to any other stock exchange on which the
relevant Certificates are for the time being listed. In addition, the Calculation Agent
shall publish or cause to be published such Rate of Interest, Interest Amount and
Interest Payment Date in accordance with Condition 10as soonas possible after their
determinationbutin no event later than the fourth Paris Business Day thereafter. Each
Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended
(or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way of adjustment) in the event of
an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will be
promptly notified to eachstock exchange onwhich the relevant Certificates are for the
time being listed and to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10. For the purposes
ofthe Terms and Conditions, the expression " Paris Business Day" meansa day (other
than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business in
Paris. The determination of each Interest Rate and Interest Amount, the obtaining of
each quote and the making of each determination or calculation by the Calculation
Agentshall (in the absence of manifest error) be finaland bindinguponall parties.

Day Count Fractions

"Day Count Fraction" means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any
Calculation Period if " Actual/Actual (ICMA)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms:

(i

(ii)

in the case of Certificates where the number of days in the relevant period from (and
including) the most recent Interest Period End Date (or, if none, the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (the "Accrual
Period") is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the Accrual
Period ends, the number ofdays in such Accrual Period divided by the product of (I)
the number of days in such Determination Period and (11) the number of Determination
Dates (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) that would occur in one calendar
year; or

in the case of Certificates where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination
Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the sumof:

(A) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period
in which the Accrual Period beginsdivided by the product of (a) the number
of days in such Determination Period and (b) the number of Determination
Dates (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) that would occur in one
calendaryear; and

(B) the numberofdays in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination
Period divided by the product of (a) the number of days in such Determination
Period and (b) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one
calendaryear;

"Determination Date(s)" means the date(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Determination Period" means eachperiod from(and including) a Determination Date to but
excluding the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement
Date or the Interest Period End Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on
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the first Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling after,
such date);

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" or "Actual/Actual” is specified in the applicable Final
Terms, the actualnumber of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any
portion of that Calculation Period falls in a leap year, the sumof (1) the actual nurber
of days in that portion ofthe Calculation Period falling in a leap yeardivided by 366
and (2) the actualnumber of days in that portionofthe Calculation Period falling in a
non-leap year divided by 365);

if " Actual/365 (Fixed)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number
of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365;

if " Actual/365 (sterling)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number
ofdays in the Calculation Period divided by 365 or, in the case ofa Calculation Period
ending in a leap year, 366;

if " Actual/360" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days
in the Calculation Period divided by 360;

if *30/360", "360/360" or "Bond Basis" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the
number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated ona formula basis
as follows:

[360>< 2 _Yl)]+ [30X(M2 — Ml)]+(D2 -D,)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:

"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation Period
falls;

"Y>" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the
last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"D4" is the first calendar day, expressed asa number, of the Calculation Period, unless
such numberis 31, in which case D, will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless suchnumber would be 31and D; is greater
than 29, in which case D, will be 30;

if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the
number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated ona formula basis
as follows:

[360>< (Y, _Yl)]+ [30X(M2 - Ml)]+(D2 -D,)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:
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(d)

(vii)

"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation Period
falls;

"Y2" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the
last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"D4" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period, unless
such numberwould be 31, in which case D, will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless such numberwould be 31, in which case D,
will be 30;

if *30E/360 (ISDA)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in
the Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360>< (Y, - Yl)]+ [3OX(M2 - Ml)]+(D2 -D,)

Day Count Fraction =
360

where:

"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which thefirst day of the Calculation Period
falls;

"Y;" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the
last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"M_" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"Dy" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period, unless
(A)that day is thelast day of February or (B) suchnumberwould be 31, in which case
D, will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless (A) that day is the last day of February but
not the redemptiondateor (B) such numberwould be 31, in which case D, will be 30.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, where the applicable Final Terms specifies that the
relevant Day Count Fraction is "unadjusted", the Calculation Period and the Interest
Amount payable on any date shall not, unless otherwise provided in the application
Final Terms, be affected by theapplication of any Business Day Convention.

Interest on Linked Interest Certificates

In the case of Linked Interest Certificates the Rate of Interest shall be determined in the manner

specified in the applicable Final Terms in accordance with the applicable Additional Terms and
Conditions.
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29.

29.1

29.2

(e) Accrual of Interest

Each Certificate (or in the case of the redemptionof part only ofa Certificate, that part only of
such Certificate) will cease to bear interest (if any) fromthe date for its redemption or exercise,
as the case may be, unless such Certificate is redeemed early. If such Certificate is redeemed
early, (i) if the applicable Final Terms specify that Accrual to Redemptionis applicable, interest
will cease to accrueon thedue date forredemptionor (ii) if the applicable Final Terms specify
that Accrual to Redemption is not applicable, no interest shall accrue or be payable in respect
of which the relevantpayment date has not occurred onor prior to the due date for redemption
of such Certificate, unless in either case payment of principal and/or delivery of all assets
deliverable is improperly withheld or refused. In such event, interest will continue to accrue
untilwhicheveris the earlier of:

() the date on whichallamounts duein respectof such Certificate have been paid and/or
all assets deliverable in respect of such Certificate have been delivered; and

(i) five days afterthe date on which the fullamount of the moneys payable in respect of
such Certificate has been received by the Principal Security Agent and/or all assets in
respect of such Certificate have beenreceived by any agent appointed by the Issuer to
deliver such assets to Holders and notice to that effect has been given to the Holders
in accordancewith Condition 10.

REDEMPTION (CERTIFICATES)

General

Subject as provided in these Terms and Conditions and each Certificate will be redeemed by the Issuer:
@ in the case ofa Cash Settled Certificate, by payment of the Cash Settlement Amount;

(b) in the case ofa Physical 